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The Macquarie Bank Group’s 2007
annual report consisis of two
documents ~ the 2007 Annual Review
(incorporating the Concise Report)
and the 2007 Financial Report. This
Annual Review provides an overview
of the Group’s operations and a
summary of the financial statements.
The Financial Report contains the
Bank’s risk management report and
statutory financial statermenis.

If you would like a copy of the
2007 Financial Report please call
us on +61 2 8232 5006 or visit
www.macquarie.com.au/
shareholdercenire.

Cover: Thames Water

Thames Water is the largest water
and wastewater services company in
the United Kingdfom. serving eight
milion water and 13 million wastewater
custemers across London and the
Thames Valley. The history of Thames
Water dates back to the early 1600s
when the privately funded New River,
a 40-mile channel, was built 1o create
London’s water supply.

On 1 December 2006, a Macquarie-
led consortium, Kemble Water,
acquired Thames Water for £8 bilion
($A19.88 hillion). Kemble Water,
named after the town near the
headwaters of the Thames River,

is the largest consorlium Macquarie
has ever brought together and
includes investors from Europe,
North America and Australasia.

On Kemble Water's behalf, Macquarie
has been working closely with
Thames Water management to

help lay the foundations for a new

era for the company.

sover photograph by Steve Spefer.
“dap image © Crovn Copynghit (2007)
Al nghts reserved.
rdnance Survey Licence Number 100019345

2007 Annual General Meeting
Macguarie Bank's 2007 Annual
General Meeting will be held at
10.30am on Thursday, 19 July 2007
at the Westin Sydney, in the Grand
Baflroom, Lower Level, No,1 Martin
Place, Sydney.

Details of the business of the mesting
will be contained in the separate
Notice of Annual General Mesting to
be sent to shareholders.

The Holey Dollar

In 813 Governor Lachlan Macquarie
overcame an acute currency
shertage by purchasing Spanish
sitver doliars (then worth five shilings),
purching the centres out and
creafing two new coins — the "Holey
Doiar (valued at five shilings) and
the ‘Dump’ (valued at one shiling
and three pence).

This single move not only doubled
the rumger of coins in circulation

hut mcreased their worth by 25 per
cent and prevented the coins leaving
the colony, Governor Macquarie's
creatoan of the Holey Dollar was an
inspred solution to a difficult problem
and for this reason 1t was chosen as
the symhal! for the Macquarie Group.
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> We have over 10,000 staff, up 22 per cent from
March 20086, including around 6,500 Australian-
based staff and over 3,500 international staff

> 55 per cent of our operating income is now derived

from international markets!

> Total Shareholder Return for the period since the
Bank’s listing in July 1996 until 31 March 2007

exceeds 1,800 per cent

1 Throughout this report, total operating income for the pumoses of international income, excludes eamings on capital and is after

chrectly attributable costs including fee and comimission expenses.
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which was established in 1969 as a subsudlary of the UK
merchant bank, Hill Samuel & Co. In 1985, a banking licence
was acquired and operations began under the name
Macquarie Bank.

)

Macquarie listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX)

in July 1996, with a market capitalisation of approximately
$A1.0 billion. Our market capitalisation is approximately
$A21.0 billion {at 31 March 2007) and we employ over 10,000
people in 24 countries, offering a full range of investment,
financial market and advisory products and services.
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approach alicws the nexibiity 1o enter new Seclors
and regions as opportunities arise and to respond
to the specialist requirements of individual markets.
As a result, we have established leading positions
in a diverse range of markets.

In Australia and New Zealand, we are a pre-eminent
provider of diversified investment banking and
financial services.

In Asia, we offer a full range of investment, financial
market and acvisory products and senvices.

In Europe, the Middle East, Africa and the
Americas, we focus on select markets where
we can add real value.

Calgary
Vancguver
eattla
! San Frgncisco
an Jose
Los Angeles Iryin

San Diego ar?sbad

Auckiand

Wellington
Christchurch

Macquarie Bank staff locations at 31 March 2007

Chicago
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Housten

We structure our business intc seven operating
Groups with a non-hierarchical management style
providing individual businesses with operating freedom
within risk limits. This strategy is known as ‘freedom
within boundaries’.
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Jacksonville
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Earnings per share increased 48 per cent to $A5.92 per share

Total ordinary dividends for the year were $A3.15 per share

Return on average ordinary shareholders’ funds was 28.1 per cent

International income contributed 55 per cent of the Bank’s operating

income (excluding earnings on capital)

Total assets under management increased 41 per cent to

almost $A200 billion 7
Total assets grew by 28 per cent to $A136.4 billion
Tier 1 capital adeqguacy ratio of 15.0 per cent
Consolidated profit
Year ended 31 March

2007 2006 %

$m $m Change

Total income 7,181 4,832 49
Total expenses {5,253 {3,545) 48
Profit before income tax 1,928 1,287 50
Income tax expense {377 (290) 30
Profit frorm ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 997 56
Minority interests (57) (52) 10
Distribution on Macquarie Income Securities {31) (29) 7
Profit after income tax attributable to ordinary equity holders 1,463 916 60

Macquaria Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review
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record profit. This result reflects the quality of our staff,
our investment in growth, particularly internationally, and
favourable market conditions.

Consolidated after-tax profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
increased 60 per cent to $A1,463 million from $A916 million

Earnings per share increased 48 per cent to $A5.92 from $A4.00

Total operating income increased 49 per cent to $A7,181 miillion
from $A4,832 million

Trading, fee and commission, and interest income were all up on
the previous year

Fee and commission income contributed approximately 49 per
cent of income and rose 25 per cent on the prior year

International income increased by 70 per cent to $A3,457 million,
accounting for 55 per cent of total income

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review




an increase of ol per cent rom sAJ 16 millon In tne
previous year.

Earnings per share were $A5.92, an increase of
48 per cent from $A4.00.

Total operating income for the year rose to

$A7,181 million, an increase of 49 per cent from

$a4 832 million. Trading, fee and commission,
interest and other income all increased on the
previous year. Fee and commission income
contributed approximately 49 per cent of our total
income, a rise of 25 per cent on 2006. Other income
increased 257 per cent on the prior year due to
significant asset realisations.

All of our operating Groups performed strongly,
reporting record results, The graph overleaf shows
the refative contributions to profit by each Group.
Operating Group performances are discussed in
more detail in their respective sections (pages 12-25).

Over the past five years, we have transitioned from
being an Australian institution growing internationally
to being a global institution headquartered in
Australia. Once again we achieved substantial
intemational growth during the year.

International income by region
S million year ended 31 March
Americas O Asia Pacific
Europe, Africa & Middle East O

dln INCredse O O oal e il O tic i yodl
{compared to the growth in our overalt staff numbers
of 22 per cent). Thirty five per cent of all staff are now
based outside Australia.

The total value of assets under our management
grew 41 per cent over the period to $A197.2 billion.

There has been significant growth in the Bank’s
balance sheet. Total assets during the period
increased by 28 per cent from $A106.2 bifion to
$A136.4 billion. Risk-weighted assets increased by
37 per cent from $A28.8 billion to $A39.4 billion.
The capital raised in May 2006 supported broad
business growth.

As foreshadowed at the Interim Result in Novernber
2006, the Group’s effective tax rate was lower at
20.5 per cent.

The expense to income ratio was sfightly down
at 73.2 per cent despite increased competition
in employment markets.

Staff numbers
International o Austrahka O
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Overall, Australian and international equity market
conditions remained strong. These conditions
supported significant advisory and equity capital
markets (ECM) deal flow and generally very strong
performance by the Australian and Asian broking
businesses.

The result was positively impacted by a number
of large asset realisations, including Macquarie
Goodman Group, Dyno Nobel, US ofl and gas
investments and other infrastructure and property
divestments.

Dividends
The Board has declared a fully franked final dividend
of $A1.90 per ordinary share.

This brings total ordinary dividends for the year to
$A3.15 per share, compared to $A2.15 per share
in 2006. This is an increase of 47 per cent over
the prior year and represents a payout ratio of
54.3 per cent.

Growth in relative Group contribution to profit!
Index of 100 in year ended 31 March 2006

years, beyond that ume, we expect dwvdends will be
at least 80 per cent franked, subject to the future
compoesition of income.

Specialist funds

Activity in our specialist funds remained strong,
with the assets in both listed and unlisted funds
performing well. Assets under management in
specialist funds increased 50 per cent from
$AB7 .6 billion to $A4131.3 billion,

$A21.6 billion of new equity was raised for our
specialist funds, around 80 per cent coming from
international investors.

Demand for unlisted specialist funds was particularty
strong, with unlisted funds or syndicates attracting
over 85 per cent of the equity raised in the year.

The vast majority of assets in these funds are now
international. Sixty nine per cent of the property
assets and 81 per cent of the infrastructure assets
are based offshore.

Total returns for investors in Macquarie's listed
specialist funds, both in Australia and intemationally,
from inception in December 1995 to 31 March 2007,
were over 574 per cent.

Relative Group contribution to profit! 2007 2006

200 JJ Comporate Finance? 44% 40%
180 ;_ 7 [ Macquarie Securities 9% 11%
160 ‘ B Financial Products 3% 4%
140 : O Macquarie Capital 2% 3%
120 Investment Banking Group 58% 58%
100 j Banking and Property3 15% 9%
80 | @ Treasury and Commodities 14%  16%
60 . M Equity Markets 9% 11%
40 M Financial Services 3% 4%

B Funds Management 1% 2%

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

1 Percentage coniribution based on management accounts before
urallocated comorate costs, profit share and income tax.

2 Including !nvestrent Banking Funds {IBF.

3 Banking and Property Group's 2007 contribution includad the profit on
tha realisation of the Bank’s hokifing in Macquarie Goodman Group.




which we operate.

Australia/New Zealand

We maintained leading market positions in Australia
and New Zealand. Macquarie achieved No.1
rankings in Australia for both announced and
completed mergers and acquisitions (Thomson
Financial), and maintained leading market posttions
for Australian equity raised and Asia-Pacific project
finance mandates.

We were also ranked No. 1 broker for the second
consecutive year by ASX market share.

Retail market cofferings such as the Macquarie Wrap
and Cash Management Trust, and retail businesses
such as mortgages and margin and protected
lending, achieved strong growth in volumes. Retail
client numbers increased to amaost 700,000.

Major transactions during the year included
Macquarie’s role as Global Co-ordinator and Joint
Lead Manager on the $A1.9 bilion initial public
offering IPO) of explosives manufacturer Dyno Nobel,
and the sell-down of Macquarie's 7.7 per cent stake
in the Macquarie Goodman Group (MGQY).

Asia

Our businesses in Asia continued to grow strongly
with notable contributions from the equities-related
businesses. Highlights included the establishment of
a number of funds including Macquarie Goodman
Hong Kong Wholesale Fund (an unlisted real estate
fund established by Macquarie Goodman Asia), a
wholesale fund investing in Chinese retail shopping
malls and MGP Japan Core Plus Fund {an unlisted
Japanese real estate fund established by Macquarie
Global Property Advisers).

In Japan, Macquarie established a new invesiment
banking joint venture with Shinsei Bank Ltd.

We secured lead rmanager ECM roles in significant
transactions in China/Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand and the Philippines.

Europe, Africa and the Middle East

Asset realisations, structured transactions and
advisary business drove performance across
Europe, Africa and the Middle East.

The £8.0 billion ($A19.9 billion) acquisition of
RWE Thames Water Holdings by a consortium
led by Macquarnie's European Infrastructure
Funds and our advisory role on Grupo Ferrovial's
£16.3 hilion ($A39.8 billion) takeover of BAA
were significant highlights.

During the year, we established Macquarie European
Infrastructure Fund |, a European unlisted
infrastructure fund, and formed Macquarie First
South, a stockbroking and investment banking joint
venture in South Africa.

Acquisitions during the year included Corona Energy,
a UK gas supply company, Moto, a UK roadside
catering service, East London Bus Group, a London
bus business, and Talarius (in joint venture with
Tattersalls Limited), a gaming centre operator. East
London Bus Group was subseguently sold

into a Macquarie-managed vehicle.

We established Macquarie Infrastructure Partners,
a North American unlisted infrastructure fund, and
formed a joint venture with leading investment
management firm MD Sass. We entered an
agreement to acquire Giutiani Capital Advisors,

a US-based investment banking business, and
acquired Cervus Financial Group, a Canadian
mortgage broker.

Assets purchased by Macquarie-led consortia
included GATX Alr, an aircraft leasing business, and
Spirit Finance Corporation, a real estate investment
trust. A number of assets were also acquired by
Macquarie managed funds during the year.

Long-term performance and strategy

We continue to generate substantial profits and
dividends for our shareholders. This record of
consistent, strong growth is reflected in Macquarie's
long-term share price rise and returns to shareholders.

As illustrated in the graph overleaf, since listing our
shares in July 1996, we have delivered a return to
shareholders of over 1,800 per cent to 31 March
2007. This is a better return than all other companies
making up the ASX Top 50 (at the time of our listing)
over the same period. The second best return was
around 1,300 per cent. The average total shareholder
return of the ASX Top 50 over the penod was

323 per cent .

This return to shareholders reflects our business
strategy of remaining focused on adding significant
value for our stakeholders. Our strategy is to expand
selectively, seeking only to enter markets where our
particular skills and expertise deliver real advantage
to clients. This approach allows the flexibility to enter
new sectors and regions as opportunities arise and
to respond to the specialist requirements of
indivicual markets. As a result, we have established
leading positions in a range of markets.

In Australia and New Zealand, we are a pre-eminent
provider of diversified investment banking and
financial services, In Asia, we offer a full range of
investment, financial market and advisory products
and services. In Europe, the Middle East, Afrca and
the Americas, we focus on select markets where we
can add real value.

4 Total shareholder return measures the change in share value over a

specified penod, assuming that ali dividends are reinvested and accounting
for all corporate actions.
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Stmang Tor promitability, Tuliiliment 1or our people,
teamwork and highest standards. These six
principles are the foundation upon which the
Bank is buit.

Around the world, we seek to support the
communities in which we operate. The Macquarie
Bank Foundation is one of the oldest and largest
Australian-based corporate foundations and is well-
regarded for its role in corporate philanthropy. With
the support of the Foundation, many staff raise
funds for charity, participate in volunteer work and
undertake substantial pro-bono projects for not-for-
profit organisations. Staff support of the Foundation
has been consistently strong. The Foundation, in
turn, supports mare than 500 not-for-profit
organisations in the fields of medical research, social
welfare, the environrment and the arts.

We continue to invest in, and develop, new
businesses such as emissions trading, clean
technology, atternative energy supply and clean
managed fund products. We have taken direct
action on energy consumption, conducting energy
audits of major office tenancies and designing a new
Bank building in Sydney with the latest environment-
fnendly technology.

Our people

Macquarie has always encouraged and rewarded
achievement. This approach has produced record
results for shareholders.

It has also enabled us to continue to recruit and
retain staff who are among the best and brightest in
a highly competitive global labour market. Our
Australian and international graduate recruitment
programs play ar important role in this effort,

along with shareholders, benefit through appropnate
reward structures,

With only incremental variations, Macquarie Bank's
executive remuneration approach has been in place
since the Bank was founded in 1985,

During that time, our business has changed
markedly, particularly with international expansion
over the last decade. Despite this fundamental
change in our operations, our remuneration
approach and policies have stood the test of time
and remain a significant driver of performance.

Our remuneration strategy emphasises
performance-based remuneration by incorporating
both net profit after tax and return on equity in the
determination of remuneration.

As mentioned previously, international expansion is
a key driver of growth, with 55 per cent of the
Bank's income generated from clients and activities
outside Australia.

We now face greater competition for staff as we
compete for people in global financial centres.

It is critical to our business that we attract and

retain valued staff, To attract and retain such staff,
individual remuneration must be competitive with
other financial institutions in the markets in which
we operate and staff should be rewarded where
they achieve outstanding results, as they have done.

Our remuneration policies and practices are
explained in greater detail in the Remuneration
Report in the Directors' Report later in this
document (pages 47-90).

We would like to thank al! of our staff for the
excellent results achieved this year.

Macquarie total shareholder return versus the All Crdinaries Accumulation Index

Macquarie Bank total shareholder return
All Ordinaries Accumulation Index
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ensunng we have a suihcient Dunier 1or growth over
the medium term, whilst providing the ability to take
aclvantage of opportunities as they arise.

The Bank raised $A700 million through an
institutional placement in May 2006 to help realise
international expansion opporunities.

The Tier 1 Capital ratio of 15 per cent at 31 March
2007 maintains a buffer in excess of the Group's
minimum acceptable ratios.

Potential restructuring

The Bank announced in July 2006 that it is
examining a corporate restructure 1o create a
non-cperating holding company (NOHC), which
would own banking and non-banking businesses.

This change would provide the Bank with the
flexibility to continue growing. We currently operate
under a banking regulatory model that does not
readily accommodate our growth internationally and
in non-banking businesses.

Macquarie has submitted a formal NOHC
Authorisation application to the Australian Prudential
Regulation Authority (APRA). We intend to advance
this proposal in the year ahead.

If key tax and regulatory issues are resolved, and
APRA approves the NOHC Authorisation, the Bank
will submit a proposal to shareholders later in 2007.

Consideration of headquarters and
UK-incorporated banking entity

Given the high and growing proportion of
international income, the Board thought it
approprate to consider the Bank's head office
location. The Board has resclved that the Group
will stay headquartered in Australia.

in reaching this decision, a number of considerations
were taken into account, including: location and
extent of the Group’s activity, sources of income,
different regulatory environments and the cost and
complexity of potential relocation.

To support the Bank’s UK and European growth
plans, Macqguarie also intends to submit an application
to the UK Financial Services Authority in July 2007 1o
establish a UK-incomorated banking entity.

Qur UK operations have grown significantly in recent
years and we now have over 700 staff based in the
London office. A UK banking licence would enable
us to pursue further growth in the UK/European
region and would provide a European 'passport’ for
our banking businesses.

Board and management

The Board would like to acknowledge the
contributions of Deputy Chairman Mark Johnson and
Banking and Property Group Head Bill Moss. Mark
and Bill retired from executive responsibilities in 2007
and Mark will retire as a Voting Director of the Board
at the conclusion of this year's Annual General
Meeting (AGM). They are among our longest-
standing executives and have been with the Bank for
more than 20 years, contributing significantly to the
Bank's success. We wish them well in the future.

SECUNMISalon respecively.

Non-Executive Director John Allpass has also
informed the Board of his intention to retire at the
conclusion of this year's AGM. The Board thanks
him for the valuabile contribution he has made to the
Bark since 1994. The Bank’s share price has
increased from $45.30 when John joined the Board
to $AB2.75 at 31 March 2007.

David Clarke retired as Executive Chairman and
became non-Executive Chairman. David was our
longest-serving employee, having joined our
predecessor, Hil Samuel Austrafia, in 1971 as
Joint Managing Director when the organisation
had a staff of only 12. He became Executive
Chairman of Macguarie Bank when it was formed
in February 1985.

Qutlook

We have had a strong start to our new financial
year commencing 1 April 2007. All Groups in

all regions are busy and there have already been
significant transactions. We expect continued
growth, with strong IPO and mergers and
acquisitions activity and good growth in
specialist funds.

We expect the trading businesses to benefit
fromn geographic and product expansion and
from continued good equity broking volumes.

The Bank expects to maintain or strengthen market
positions in Australia and internationally. International
income will continue to make an increasingly
important contribution.

We expect to benefit from recent staff growth and
expect this growth to continue, supparting our
international expansion.

Swing factors will include asset realisations and
general market conditions.

The outlooks for each of the Bank's operating
Groups are documented on pages 12-25.

Medium-term outlook

Our global reach has increased very significantly with
strong increases in both domestic and international
market shares. Over the medium term, we continue
to be well placed due to our committed quality staff,
our good businesses, the benefits gained from
maijor strategic growth initiatives, effective prudential
controls, continued strong global investor demand
for quality assets and growth in the capital base. !f
market conditions do not deterorate materially, we
expect continued good growth in revenue and
earnings across most of our businesses, especially
the international businesses.

11



Investment Banking Group’s result was 78 per cent higher
than the prior year.

Investment
Banking
Group
contribution
to profit
Investment Banking Group (IBG) achieved an The majority of investors in MIP and MEIF Il are
excellent result with a contribution 78 per cent up North American and European-based, many of
on 2006. 1BG staff numbers increased 25 per cent whom are investing in infrastructure for the first time.
to almost 3,000 with 47 offices across 28 countries. Qur funds continually seek quality assets to enhance
Corporate Finance investor value. Acquisitions by Macquarie and/or
Continuing strong equity market conditions during Macquarie managed specialist funds throughout the
the year resufted in record deal flow across the year include:

regions with advisory and equity capital markets Australia and New Zealand

(ECM) performing well across all industry sectors. _ Six retirement care and aged care businesses
Macquarie achieved No.1 rankings in Australia for  —Additional 15.1 per cent interest in Sydney Airport.
both announced and completed mergers and Asia

acquisitions {Thomson Financial full year 2006), —Cogeneration and water treatment plant {Korea)

as well as maintaining strong market positions for —Minority stake in a Korean-based container terminal
Australian equity raised and Asia-Pacific project operator with terminals in the US, Taiwan and Japan.
finance mandates.

North America

International growth in the Investment Banking _ Alrports services business (US)

Funds (IBF) business continues to be animportant  _ Fectricity transmission and distribution business (US)

focus. Our funds have returmed a compound annual —Publisher of community newspapers (US)

rate of 20.2 per cent! for investors since inception. —Integrated provider and manufacturer of driling

IBF equity under management? grew by 61 per cent  services and products (US)

to $A55.2 billion from $A34.4 billion for the year. —Two container terminals (Canada)

New funds established during the year include: —50 per cent stake in one of the largest owners and
operators of bulk liquid storage terminals in the US

—The largest owner and operator of tyre inflation
vending equipment across North America and
the UK.

—Macquarie Infrastructure Partners (MIP), an unlisted
fund focusing on infrastructure and infrastructure-like
investments in the US and Canada

—Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il {MEIF Il),

an unlisted fund focusing on infrastructure ”':°pe ,
investments in Europe. —UK's largest water and wastewater services company

—Roadside services business (UK)
—Bus transport business (UK)

12 Macquariz Bank Limitod 2007 Annual Review




—Landfill gas electricity generation business (UK

—The leading off-street car parking provider in the UK

—UK's largest gaming centre operator

—Spain's third largest authorised provider of vehicle
safety and gas emission inspections

—Two windfarm portfclios {France).

During the year, we sold stakes in a number of assets

held on balance sheet including:

—Aquarion Water

—Argiva

—Brussels Airport

—Canadian hospitals

—CH4

—{CJ Cablenet

—Dyno Nobel

— European Directories

—Isle of Man Ferries
—Macguarie Small Cap Roads
—Red Bee Media

—Reverse Comp

—RP Data

—Smarte Carte

—Stagecoach London Buses
—Taiwan Broadband Communications
—Thames Water.

Macquarie Securities

QOur Australian and Asian institutional cash equities
business achieved an outstanding result. In Australia,
strong equity markets resulted in good growth in
saecondary market revenues and ECM revenues
slightly up on the prior year.

Macquarie AirFinance

Macquarie AirFinance is a global aviation lessor, providing
aircraft and capital to the world’s airflines plus advisory and
asset management services to aircraft owners.

Established in 2006 as a Macquarie-led consortium, Macquarie
AirFinance was formed to acquire the assets of GATX Air, the
aircraft leasing business of GATX Corporation, for an enterprise
value of SA1.95 billion.

Macquarie AirFinance owns or manages 126 jet aircraft leased to
53 operators in 29 countries, across five continents. This includes
the Boeing 737NG, pictured above, and the Airbus A320, pictured
on page 14.

1 Arnwalised return based on all capital raised, distnbutions paid and valuations (market
capitaiisation for Isted funds and net asset value for unlisted funds) for IBF managed
funds since inception to 31 March 2007 (ksted funds as at 31 March 2007, uniisted funds
as at 31 Decamber 2006). Calculated on an AUD basis, All cashfiows converted at
histonic rates.

2 Includes assets held diractly by Macquarie, acquired with a view that they may be
soid down into new or existing IBF managed funds.
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MArket revenues as a resull of sirong equity market
conditions. ECM revenues for the region were slightly
down on the prior year.

Recent highlights include the establishrment of an
institutional cash equities joint venture, Macquarie First
South in South Africa, and the Alternative Strategies
Division joint venture with Equity Markets Group.

Financial Products
Financial Products exceeded the strong 2006 result due
to expansion across most businesses and products.

The Division achieved record raisings in its Australian
retail products and also launched new funds in several
overseas markets, including Germany, Austria,
Switzerdand, Taiwan, Korea and Canada. Joint ventures
were established with MD Sass and OneWorld
Investments to provide asset management expertise to
dnve further product origination. Total assets under
management by the Division {including assets
managed by associates) grew by 40 per cent from
$A6.3 billion at 31 March 2006 to $A8.8 billion.

Macquarie Capital

Macquarie Capital’s result was up on the prior year,
with strong contributions from most businesses.
Asset-based leasing and lending volumes increased
by 20 per cent from $A4.5 bilion at 31 March 2006
to $A5.4 billion at 31 March 2007,

Staff development

During the year, IBG added to its staff development
program with the launch of the global Master of Finance
program for staff, in partnership with INSEAD Business
School. The program is expected to form the foundation
of IBG's professional development program and is an
investrment in the long-term growth of the business.

Outlook

The Group is currently experiencing strong business
activity, including its comporate finance pipeline, and
anticipates an increase in revenue and profit over the
medium term, providing there is no material change in
market conditions.

Highlights since 31 March 2007 include:

—~Macquarie acted as financial adviser, global equity
co-ordinator and joint lead manager on the successiul
$A2.75 billion IPO of the worid's leading driling services
provider and products manufacturer, Boart Longyear

—Macqguarie acted as financial adviser and formed a joint
venture with Publishing & Broadcasting Limited (PBL)
to bid for nine Canadian casinos for $A1.45 billion

—Macguarie acted as financial adviser to UK Broadcast
Ventures Limited, the parent company of Argiva
{majority owned by Macquarie-managed funds), which
acquired 100 per cent of National Grid Wireless for
$A6.2 billion (£2.5 billion)

—Macquarne acted as financial adviser to Macquarie
Communicaticns Infrastructure Group (MCG) and
MEIF [ on the acquisition of Airwave Q2 in the UK for
$A4.8 billion (£1.9 billion)

—MEIF Il reached final close with $A7 .6 bilion
(€4.6 bilion) total cormmitments.

The table opposite shows key transactions during
the year.




AV A A LR TV RALAA WA e WAl T TRl AT TRl e il = 2 e s = o m e oaaeemem e s e e e

of Boart Longyear

Adviser to Origin Energy on its $A1.20 billion acquisition of the Sun Retail business from the
Queensland Government

Adviser to Publishing and Broadcasting Limited on its $A5.5 bilion recapitalisation and
establishment of PBL Media

Adviser to Alinta in its $A11.3 bilion merger with AGL and the subseguent separation of
AGL Energy

Adviser to Airine Partners Australia on its $A11.2 billion offer to acquire Qantas Airways”
Joint lead manager on the $A172 milion IPO of Wotif.com

Achviser to Sydney Airport on its $A4.33 billion debt refinancing and capital raising

Adviser to Wesfarmers and its consortium partners Permira and PEP on the $A20 billion proposal
to acquire Coles Group Limited ™

Asia

Achviser to Tata Company Limited on the $A1.36 billion {$US1.1 billion) acquisition of equity
stakes in Indonesian coal companies owned by PT Bumi Resources Thk

Joint global coordinator and joint bookrunner on the $A442 million ($HK2.7 bilion) PO of
Sunlight Real Estate Investrnent Trust

Adviser to MMI Holdings Limited on its $A892 million ($51.1 billion) acquisition by Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co*

Lead manager and bookrunner for Bangkok Dusit Medical Services on its $A166 milion
{$US124 million) convertible bond offering

Adviser to Macquarie Korea Opportunities Fund on the $A267.2 million ($US211.9 million)
acquisition of captive steam and power generation and water treatment facilities, located in
Samsung-Total’'s Korean petrochemical complex, from Singapore Power International

Global coordinator, bookrunner and lead manager on the $A361 million {$HK2.2 billion)
IPO of ZhuZhou CSR Times Electric

The Americas

Adviser to Bayard Group on its $A900 milion (SUS705 milion) acquisition of Cellnet Technology

Aciviser to Lundin Mining Corporation on its $44.38 billion {(3C3.8 billion} merger with
EuraZine Mining Corporation

Adviser to Western Sitver Corporation on its $A1.9 billion ($C1.6 billion) acquisition by
Glamis Gold Ltd

Adviser to Transfield Senvices on its $A372 milion ($US276 million) acquisition of US Maintenance

Adviser to ITR Concession Company LLC on the $A5.143 bilion ($US3.8 billion) acquisition of
the 75-year concession lease for the Indiana Toll Road

Adviser to lcon Parking Systems on the $A459 million (SUS350 million) refinancing of lcon Parking

Adviser to a Macquarie Bank-led consortium on the $A1.95 billion (BUS1.46 bilion) acquisttion
of the aircraft leasing assets of GATX Air

UK/Europe, Africa
and the Middle East

Joint financial adviser to the consortium led by Grupo Ferrovial on its $A39.8 billion {£16.3 billion)
takeover of BAA

Adviser to Kemble Water Limited on its $A19.9 bilion (€8 bilion) acquisition of Thames Water
Adviser to Orica on the $A860 milion acquisition of Minova from Close Brothers Private Equity

Adviser to MEIF Il on the $A1.98 bilion (£790 million) acquisition of National Car Parks' off-street
car parking business from 3i

Adviser to Macquarie Infrastructure Group on the $A2.55 billion (£1.03 billion) refinancing

of the M6 Toll

Adviser to Higher Comoration for Specialized Economic Zones on the $A199 million
{$AEDS60 million) development of the Industrial City of Abu Dhabi

* Not comrpleied at 31 March 2007.
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Banking and Property’s international focus generated
strong growth.

Banking and
Property
Group
contribution
to profit

' Banking and Property Group (BPG} achieved a —A wholesale real estate fund, investing in retail malls

179 per cent increase in profit contribution on 2008, in the People’s Republic of China, was established,

including the profit on the realisation of the Bank's with nine Chinese shopping malls as seed assets
holding in Macquarie Goodman Group. The Group
continued to expand internationally during the year
with businesses in ltaly, the United Kingdom, the

—Stakes sold in Macquarie Goodman Group and UK
office park assets

United States, Japan, Korea and China all - Real Estate Structured Finance (RESF) provided

generating good growth. a record contribution.

Real Estate and Banking and Securitisation Divisions ~ Ma&rket conditions and project timing impacted the

commenced operating as separate Groups on land development businesses, Medallist and Urban

1 April 2007, with Stephen Girdis and Tony Gill Pacific Limited.

the respective Group Heads. Outiook

Real Estate The Group is examining opportunities for expansion.

Assets under management {including associates) We expect continued growth in Australia and

increased 12 per cent to $A23.6 bilion from internationally, especially in intemational real estate

$A21.0 bilion {excluding MGQ).! securitisation, subject 10 reasonable market conditions.

Our strong global capability supported continued Strong risk management and conservative credit

expansion internationally, Highlights included: policies continue to protect the businesses and their
profitability.

—MGP Japan Core Plus Fund was established, o .
raising $US865 million. 1t is managed by Macquarie A significant event since 31 March 2007 was the

Global Property Advisors and will invest in Japanese ~ "écommendation by the Independent Directors of
real estate Macquarie ProLogis Management Limited of the

offer by ProLogis to acquire all the shares in
Macquarie ProlLogis Trust.

Banking and Securitisation

-—Macquarie Leisure Trust (MLE) was ranked the Ne.1
listed property trust in Australia for the second

consecutive year and made its first US acquisitions A ke ,
) ) Banking and Securitisation achieved a record result
—Macqggne Qfﬁce Trust (MOF) made its first with a strong contribution from the divestment of
acquisitions in Europe Australian and New Zealand chikicare businesses
—Macquarie Direct Property Fund made its first and property portfolios.
international property investments

16 Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review 1 MGO assets under management excluded from the pror year's figures.




In Australia, the mortgages loan book increased 21
per cent to more than $A22 billion. This Division is
the market leader in service 1o the Australian broker
network and one of the largest issuers of Australian
residential morntgage-backed securities.

In haly, loan origination volumes were strong. In the
US, loan volumes were down in a challenging
interest rate environment. The business continued to
focus on low credit risk lending through a broader
product range. Importantly, the US business has no
exposure to the sub prime market, which has
recently been a cause for market concern. In July
2006, we entered the Canadian mortgage market
and have experienced strong loan origination
volumes to date.

Investment Lending {formerty Margin Lending) is
ranked number two in market share in Australia and
number one for protected lending. The total loan
portfolio exceeds $A4.8 hillicn, up 45 per cent on the
prior year. Relationship Banking loans and deposits
were up 20 per cent on the prior year.

Outlook

We expect strong growth in mortgage originations in
Australia, Canada and ltaly and are repositioning our
US mortgage business. We expect Relationship
Banking and Investment Lending to perform well
and the newer businesses to increase contributions.

The Group will develop a new credit card initiative
and continug to invest in niche commercial banking
opportunities both domestically and offshore.

M Tower — Seoul

M Tower is a recently completed 19-storey A-grade office building in
Seoul CBD, Korea. Macquarie Real Estate, in partnership with MGP
Asia Fund |l, a private equity real estate fund, acquired the building in
mid-2006. The acquisition represents an expansion of Macquarie’s
real estate management business in the sought-after Korean market.

Region

Highlights/major activity

Australia/
New Zealand

Macguarie Leisure Trust (MLE} was ranked No.1
Australian Listed Property Trust (LPT) in BDO LPT survey

Strong growth and out-performance from the new
unlisted Macquarie Direct Property Fund

Acquired 49 per cent interest in St Hiliers Property -
funds management and development focus

Sale of childeare business

Strong growth in mortgages loan book

Asia

MGP Japan Core Pius Fund established with $USB65
million raised, closing oversubscribed

A wholesale real estate fund, with China Mall seed
assets, established

Macquarie Goodman Hong Kong Wholesale Fund —
unlisted $A850 miion fund investing in industrial property
in Hong Kong, established in April 2006

The Americas

MLE expansion with first US asset acquisition, Main Event
Entertainment Holdings Inc

UK/Europe,
Africa and the
Middle East

MOF made its first European acquisitions, an €85 million
Berlin office building and a €152 milion property in Milan

RESF UK business has returned a positive result in its
second year of operation and participated in significant
projects in central London and other regional centres
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Treasury and
Commodities
Group
contribution
to profit

Treasury and Commodities Group’s profit contribution
was significantly higher than the strong prior year.

Treasury and Commodities Group's profit
contribution was significantly higher than the strong
2006 result, with substantial contributions from the
Metals and Energy Capital, Debt Markets and
Foreign Exchange Divisions and good contributions
from all other Divisions.

Metals and Energy Capital

This Division offers price-making, derivative trading
and financing in base and precious metals and other
selected commodities as well as financing to the ol
and gas sector.

Its contribution increased substantially on the prior
year, reflecting continued growth in oil and gas
financing, realisation of some energy and mining
investments, as well as strong metals trading and
project finance results.

Foreign Exchange

This Division provides services across all currency
pairs and structured term hedging cumency
solutions for Australian and intemational clients.
The Foreign Exchange contribution was slightly
down on the strong prior year as market volatility
has been lower than recent averages.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

Debt Markets

This Division originates, arranges and places

debt for clients and is active in primary and
secondary trading markets for government,
inflation-linked, corporate, global and asset-backed
securities. It provides credit and interest rate risk
management solutions through structured securities
and derivatives.

The result from Debt Markets was very strongly up
on the prior year, with good performances across
the securities trading, interest rate derivatives,
originaticn, arrangement and placement businesses.

Commodity Markets Division

Commodity Markets Division (CMD) provides a
broad range of price risk management, structured
financing, commodity investor products and
selected physical commodity solutions across the
global agnicultural and energy industries. CMD's
contribution was good, although down on the prior
year, reflecting the impact of expansion,

Treasury

This Division is responsible for management of the
Macquarie Bank Group's balance sheet, liquidity and
interest rate exposure. Treasury's result was strongly
up on the prior year, reflecting successful
management of balance sheet growth.

Futures

This Division provides a full range of broking and
clearing services for Australian and intemational
exchange traded derivatives markets. The profit
contnbution from Futures was slightly up on the prior
year, reflecting continued market growth,




Outlook

The Group's future performance is dependent on
market conditions. Satistactory volatility in financial
and commodity markets is expected to continue.
The deal pipeline remains strong and transaction
volumes should remain favourable, although we are
facing strong competition for transactions. The
employment market also remains highty competitive.

The Group expects 1o maintain strong transaction
activity levels across its businesses and will continue
to expand its international operations.

Significant events since 31 March 2007 included
the commencement of trading by Macquarie Cook
Power, an electricity trading and marketing business
servicing the North American energy market,

Sherwood Copper Corporation - Minto

When it commences operations in mid-2007, the
Minto copper-gold mine will be the first new mine
opened in the Yukon Territory of Canada, a traditional
mining jurisdiction, in many years. in October 2006,
Macquarie’s Metals and Energy Capital Division
provided the financing to Canada’s Sherwood Copper
Corporation for the development of the mine.
Macquarie arranged and provided the senior and
mezzanine debt and hedging, and participated in the
equity finance. The mine is an important investment
in the region and a significant employer within the
local communities.

Region
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Highlights/major activity

Australia/
New Zealand

‘Milestone’ debt deals included the first inflation indexed

debt from a commercial mortgage backed security which
was arranged for ALE Property Group;

the longest duration inflation linked debt transaction
arranged for Sydney Airport; the arrangement and
placerment of SMART 2007-1, the largest Ausiralian auto
and equipment receivables securitisation

Thomson Financial ranked Macqguarie as No.1
arranger of AUD securitisations for 2006, with
$A4.1 billion of deals

Establishment of coal business, trading in physical and
financial contracts

Asia

Establishment of Woori Commodity Derivatives Business
Cooperation in Korea

Futures expansion in Hong Kong (addition of clearing),
India {execution) and Korea (execution and clearing)

The Americas

Expansion of Macquarie Cock Energy physical gas
marketing and traging business into Canada

Establishment of Miami Office and emerging markets
bond broking business

UK/Europe,

Africa and the

Middle East

Expansion of Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank joint venture
operations to include Foreign Exchange

Acquisition of Corona Energy physical gas marketing and
supply business

Establishment of Freight Derivatives business

Establishment of Environment Financial Products business
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Equity
Markets
Group
contribution
to profit

Equity Markets Group recorded its fourth successive

record result,

Equity Markets Group (EMG} achieved another
record contribution, 39 per cent up on 2006.
Trading condftions in Australian and international
equity markets remained broadly favourable
throughout the year.

Equity Products Division

The Division offers equity-linked investment, trading
and risk management products to wholesale and
retail clients in Australia, Asia, Europe, the US and
Latin America.

The Divsion generally performed well, maintaining
strong market positions in Australia and key Asian
markets. Niche operations in most other international
markets made an increased contribution. The
exception was our South African equity products’
business alliance with Nedbank, which experienced
difficult trading conditions, resulting in a loss for

the year.

During the year, the primary focus was on expanding
the range of underlying markets over which the
Division has the capability to offer equity-linked
products. New markets covered include India,
Pakistan, Thailand, Malaysia, Mexico, Greece,
Denmark, Belgium and Norway.

The Division continued to invest heawvily in new
product development and in the quantitative models

and risk management systems necessary to offer
these products.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

MQ Specialist Investment Management
During the year, EMG's intemal hedge fund
managerment businesses were re-organised under the
name MQ Specialist Investment Management. The
Division's result was significantly up on the prior vear.

The Division focused on building its successful
irvestrment track record in its flagship single strategy
and mutti-strategy fJunds, as well as its reputation as a
specialist Asian manager of funds of hedge finds.

The leading single strategy fund, MQ Asia LLong Short
Fund, delivered a 12-month retun of 19.0 per cent.
The MQ Asian Multi-Strategy Fund retumed 10.2 per
cent with low volatility of 2.8 per cent.

Funds under management {excluding funds provided
by the Macquarie Bank Group) grew 141 per cent
to just over $A1.4 bilion at 31 March 2007.

In addition, funds under risk management {funds
of external managers over which the Division
provides hedging or risk management services)
grew 21 per cent to approximately $A3.5 billion
over the same perod.

Global Equity Finance

The Division’s contribution was very substantially up
on the prior year due to strong growth in securities
bomowing and lending volumes as well as structured
equity finance activities in Australia, Asia and Europe.
During the year, the Division commenced securities
borrowing and lending activities in the US.
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In the second half, the Division established a new
business with Macquarie Securities (the Macquarie
Bank Group's securities broking business), to offer
equity derivatives, access products and financing to
hedge fund clients. The Alternative Strategies
Division began operating independentty of EMG’s
other Divisions from 1 April 2007.

Qutlook

EMG will continue to grow and diversify its business
activities in Australia and internationally. We aim to
provide a range of products and level of service to
clients to match, or better, that offered by global
investment banks.

Future performance will depend on conditions in
global equity markets. We expect broadly favourable
conditions to continue for the medium tern,
however the business can experience significant
variation between markets. A sustained or significant
decline in prices or volumes in major markets would
have a considerable impact on EMG’s profitability.

MQ IPO China Concentrated Core Fund

Macquarie Equities (Asia) Limited announced in January 2007 the
launch of the MQ IPO China Concentrated Core Fund, the first
China-related IPO retail fund to be offered in Hong Kong.

The fund, which uses a primarily quantitative investment strategy, is
designed to capture the returns of China-related IPOs and provide
exposure to the strong growth of China’s economy. The investment
universe of the fund includes companies listed in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the US.
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Financial
Senvices

Group
contribution
to profit

A

Profits from the Financial Services Group have almost
doubled during the past three years.

Financial Services Group's {FSG) profit was 32 per
cent up on 2006. The Group's strong revenues were
due largely to record broking volumes, strong
underwriting deal flow as well as a 21 per cent
increase in Wrap funds under administration and
good inflows into the Macquarie Cash Management
Trust {CMT).

New FSG businesses, which were introduced during
the past two years, achieved continuing success.
The third-party managed fund distribution business,
the Macquarie Professional Series, now manages
$A1.9 bilion after only two years of operation.

FSG continues to investigate international
opportunities in both the United Kingdom and Asia.
We are also actively pursuing domestic opportunities
to expand adviser numbers and grow our core
service business.

The Group's total assets under administration,
advice and/or management grew 25 per cent to
$A70.5 bilion from $A56.2 biflion during the year.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

Macquarie Adviser Services (MAS)

Strong inflows into the Macquarie Wrap platform,
which now has $A23.2 billion in funds under
administration, and an 18 per cent increase in the
Macquarie CMT to $A14.1 billion, formed a strong
profit base for MAS during the year, Additionally,
there was good growth in both the Macquarie
Professional Series and the Group's superannuation
portfolio, which now exceeds $A20 billion.

MAS also launched its new Macquarie Insurance
product, Futurewise, which has the facility to provide
life insurance coverage to adviser clients within 15
minutes of application. The MAS-owned Coin
Financial planning software business also continued
its success, increasing its major institutional and
boutique clients from 200 to 320 during the year.

Macquarie Private Wealth (MPW)

{formerly Macquarie Financial Services)
Macquarie Financial Services was re-branded
Macquarie Private Wealth effective from 2 April 2007.
This re-branding reflected the Division's commitment
to provide a complete service advice proposition
that fully meets the investment needs of clients. The
Division was ranked number one full service retall
broker in Australia in 2007 and posttive returms were
generated by our underwriting business which was
derived from strong deal flow.

Macquarie Private Portfolio Management and
Macquarie Private Bank both reached more than
$A1 bilion in funds under management/administration,




Outlook

We expect increasing demand for alternative and
innovative products and strong inflows into retail
products, the latter as a result of changes in
superannuation legislation.

We expect continued competitive pressures across
the industry.

The Group continues to investigate adjacent annuity
business opportunities that will grow the underlying
profit base while expanding senvices to clients both
domestically and internationalty.

of Scottish en
and an exceptional
growth manager.

Walter Scott Global Equity Fund

The Walter Scott Global Equity Fund is part of the Macquarie
Professional Series, a managed funds distribution business that
has attracted SA1.9 billion from institutions and retail investors.
Macquarie partners with specialist fund managers from around the
globe to offer their signature investment strategies in Austrafia and
New Zealand.

The fund is managed by Walter Scott & Partners Limited, an
Edinburgh-based, global equity manager with a highly experienced
investment team. Walter Scott’s conservative style of growth investing
is characterised by a classical, fundamental and long-term approach.
Industry sectors and regions represented in the fund’s portfolio
include energy, pharmaceuticals and Japan, as pictured above.

Region Highlights/major activity

Australia/ Australia: Retail financial services, including wealth
New Zealand management, full-service stockbroking and senvice and
support for 15,000 intermediaries

New Zealand: Retail financial services, including wealth
management, full-service stockbroking and senvice and
suppert for NZ intermediaries

Asia Retail financial services joint venture with TMB in
Thailand, launched in February 2006
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Funds
Management
Group
contribution
to profit

The Equities Division made the most substantial
contribution to Funds Management Group’s profit.

Fund Manager of the Year
Domestic Equities—Smal] Caps

Australia

Fund Manager of the Year
Fixed Interest

Australia

Funds Management Group’s (FMG) contribution
increased by 45 per cent, driven by revenue
growth from its equities, listed property and private
equity funds.

Funds under management (FUM) grew by 23 per
cent to over $A83 bilion during the year with strong
inflows across all asset classes. Revenues from
higher margin products such as Australian eqguities,
private equity and global listed property funds were
substantial. This reflects the Group’s strategy to
grow its market position in funds and asset classes
where investors are prepared to reward strong
investment performance with higher fees.

Australia

The Group was awarded Momingstar Fund
Manager of the Year 2006 for both Fixed Interest
and Domestic Equities — Small Companies
{Australia). Our flagship equities funds continue to
perfarm well, particularly the Macquarie Small
Companies Fund which has delivered first quartile
perforrmance over one, two, three and five years
(to 31 March 2007). The Equities Division launched
a new range of funds, the Macqguarne Incentives
Series, featuring an innovative fee structure which
ensures that investors pay fees only when the
funds cutperform.

Macguarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

The Group increased inflows into key products.
The Macquarie Master Diversified Fixed Interest
Fund, the Macguarie Intemational Infrastructure
Securities Fund and the Macquarie Australian Small
Companies Fund all experienced good inflows.

Over the year, we made significant investments
in IT infrastructure, including an upgrade of our
investrment accounting system.

International

QOur 65 per cent-owned Korean joint venture,
Macquarie-IMM Investment Management, achieved
strong growth in its Macquarie-IMM Global and
Asian REITS funds, with funds under management
climbing to over $A4.7 bilion within two years. The
Group's new private equity fund-of-funds operation
in Hong Kong launched its first product, the
Macquarie Asia-Pacific Private Equity Fund. In
Taiwan, the Group won a number of sub-advisory
contracts from local fund managers for a range of
funds due to be launched in the new financial year.

Fund raising was successful for the Macquarie
Clean Technology Fund, helping to make our new
US operation in Carlsbad, California, profitable.

The Group has seen recent success in Eurgpe with
significant new funds under management in
currency and commaodities hedge funds. We have
also recently transferred our Sydney-based global
fixed income team to London while also establishing
a supporting London-based sales operation. This
business will expand to cover other asset classes
over time.




A significant event since 31 March 2007 was the
agreed sale, subject to regulatory approval, of
Macquarie-iIMM Investment Management (MIMM).
The Group will continue to manage three MIMM
funds with a total of KRW4.3 trillion ($A5.6 billion)
in funds under management.

Outlook

We expect growth to be consistent with recent
years, driven largely by our success in international
and growth asset products. FMG will continue to
expand its distribution capabilities in Asia, Europe
and North America. Smaller acquisition opportunities
will be sought, especially where they expand our
range of investment capabilties.

© 2007 Morningstar Research Pty Ltd. All nghts reserved. To the extent
that the above constitutes general advice by Momingstar, this adwice has
bean prepared by Momingstar Research Pty Lid (ABN: 83 062 096 342,
AFSL: 243 161) and does not take account of your objectives, financial
stuation or needs. Before acting on any advice, you shouk] consider the
appropriateness of the advice, having regard 10 your objectives, financial
situation and needs. Pleasa refer to Morningstar's Financial Senice
Guide {FSG) for more infomation at www.momngstar.com.awtsg and
consider the product disclosure statement befcre making a decision to
acquire the financial product.
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Macquarie Australian Small Companies Fund

Macquarie was named Moringstar Fund Manager of the Year

2006 (Domestic Equities — Small Caps Australia} for its Macquarie
Australian Small Companies Fund. The fund, which generally invests
in securities outside the top 100 companies on the ASX, has a
diverse portiolio of shares with some of the fastest growing
companies on the Australian share market. Industry sectors
represented in the fund’s portfolio over the past year include
technology, engineering, pharmaceuticals, marine services, oil

and gas and aguaculture, as pictured above.

Region

Highlights/major activity

Australia/
New Zealand

Macquarie Funds Management is one of Australia’s
largest asset managers, offering investment services
in all major asset classes. Macquarie wins Morningstar
Fund Manager of the Year in two asset classes

Asia

Macquarie-IMM Investment Management, a 65 per
cent-owned joint venture, is one of Korea's largest
foreign-owned asset managers, offering investment
services over Korean assets and selecied global
investment products

Macquarie Funds Management Hong Kong offers advisory
and fund-of-funds services over Asian private equity

Macquarie Funds Management Taiwan offers a range of
fundis due to be launched in the new financial year

Europe

Macquarie Investment Managerment UK Limited offers
fixed income funds management cut of the London
office. The sales operation offers managed funds in
three asset classes

The Americas

Macquarie Funds Management USA Inc, based in
Carlsbad (San Dieqgo), California, offers advisory and
fund-of-funds services over global private equity
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s international expansion. The

Information Services Division

Nigel Smyth
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represents tha non-hierarchical nature of Macquarie

The concentric nature of the organisation chart
and the role of central risk management.

continued to be a fundamental part of the way Macquarie

framework which enables the seven Groups to operate.
does business and a key factor in our success.

A network of support areas provides the infrastructure and
During the year, strong independent risk management

Other Groups and Divisions grew considerably during

the year, with staff numbers 24 per cent up from last year

in support of the Bank

management and organisation structure is shown below.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review
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appropnately assessed and managed across the
Bank. lts functions are Crediit, Finance, Operational
Risk and Compliance. The Head of RMG has
oversight of Internal Audit jointly with the Board Audit
and Compliance Committee (BACC). A full Risk
Management Report is contained in the 2007
Financial Report booklet.

Credit minimises the risk of loss arising from failure

by counterparties to repay loans or hohour contracts.

Credit ensures that the identification and assessment
of equity exposure risks is complete. Credit is
supported by the Data Policy Unit which ensures
consistent data standards across the Bank’s
businesses so that accurate and reliable information
is available for risk management and reporting.

Finance ensures that market, funding and liquidity
risks are appropriately managed and that aggregate
risks across all risk types do not exceed the Bank's
economic capability to bear risk. Finance is also
responsible for ensuring that the Bank discharges its
obligations to the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority (APRA), including compliance with
prudential standards and that a constructive
relationship is maintained with the reguiator.

Operational Risk assesses operational risk from a
Bank-wide perspective and ensures that an
appropriate framework exists to identify, assess and
manage operational risk.

Compliance assesses legal, regulatory and
reputational risks from a Bank-wide perspective.
The area also minimises and manages comnpliance
risk, overseeing management of these risks by
business groups to ensure they are identified in an
appropriate and consistent manner.

Internal Audit provides independent assurance to
senior management and the BACC on the adequacy
and effectiveness of Macquarne’s financial and risk
management framework.

The Quantitative Applications Division (QAD)

has become part of RMG and is responsible for
reviewing and approving all derivatives pricing models
used within Macquearie's trading systems. In addition,
QAD works with businesses to provide solutions to
complex financial problems. QAD also presents
courses internationally on quantitative approaches

in finance.

RMG is also responsible for leading the
implementation of Macguarie’s Basel Il Project. Basel
Il is a new regulatory regime being rolled out around
the world and being implemented by APRA within
Australia. As described more fully in the Risk
Management Report, Macquarie is seeking
accreditation from APRA as an advanced bank.

The advanced approaches under Basel Il place a
higher reliance on a bank’s internal capital measures
and therefore require a more sophisticated level of
risk management and risk measurement practices.

Providing nrdaiclal GO, 1itiai Wil phicti IR al I’
capital management, management reporting and
budgeting, divisional accounting services and
international business support.

The Divsion is a major contributor to the Bank's
Restructure Project, being involved in most areas of
the project, including refinement of the financial
control and reporting structure and enhancement of
the Group's capital management framework to
accord with the proposed structure of the new Group.

The Settlements Division provides independent
confirmation and settlement facilities for a variety of
products and currencies for many of the Group's
businesses globally, incorporating best practice
operational risk standards.

Over the last 12 months, the Division has continued
to enhance its settlement systems and
organisational structure to build a robust foundation
for growth and flexibility, with particular focus on
offshore operations. Additional pro-active
employment and staff development also position the
Division well to meet the future needs of the
businesses we support.

The Business Improvement & Strategy Division
provides consulting services to all business and
support areas and manages the Bank's annual
strategy review. Services include advice on growth,
strategy, organisation design, new product
development, process re-engineering and
management of change. Based in Sydney, the
Division offers its services domestically and
internationally.

The Taxation Division provides taxation support to
all areas of the Bank, manages the Bank’s
compliance with taxation legislation and relationships
with revenue authorities worldwide. The Division
reviews the taxation implications of existing and
proposed transactions and structures.

To maximise support to the Bank's businesses, the
Division has staff located in London, New York,
Hong Kong and Seoul, as well as Sydney.

The Company Secretanial and Investor Relations
Division has responsibility for compliance with
certain ASX and Australian Securities and
Investments Commission requirements, the Bank’s
share registry, employee equity schemes,
professional risk insurances and Bank-wide
corporate governance matters.

The Division includes the Investor Relations function,
which oversees the Bank's cormunications with the
investment community and actively works to foster
relationships with the Bank’s shareholders.

Macquarie aspires to be recognised as the leading
employer of the best people in the market, The
Human Resources Division supports business
strategy by seeking to attract, recruit, reward and
retain the best employees. To achieve this, the
Division works closely with business groups,
providing operational and consulting services globally.
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continued

During the year, the Division focused on initiatives to
ensure scalable HR services are available across
geographies. In particular, this included evolving the
regional HR service model and tools, a review of
international HR systems and design of a systems
and operations strategy. There has been continued
focus on the perpetuation of cutture internationally
through induction and orientation programs across
regions and enhancement of the employment brand
through the launch of a global careers website.

The Business Services Division has responsibility
for the strategic direction, implementation and
ongoing management of corporate real estate,
comorate risk and corporate services. The primary
focus during the year was to ensure the Bank’s
growth was managed within a controlled risk
framework. Key projects included establishing new
offices, including in Shelley Street, Sydney, and
expanding existing offices, as well as significantly
increasing the capacity and resflience of major data
and recovery centres,

Information Services Division

The Information Services Division is responsible

for the management of the Bank's technology
infrastructure, the support and development of existing
business systems and the delivery and deployment of
new systems, technologies and services.
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In the last year, the Infrastructure Technology
Services team delivered a number of projects
supporting the Bank's growth, such as building the
trading floors in the new London office and migrating
production systems into two new state-of-the-art
data centres in Sydney and Hong Kong. The
business-aligned teams implemented a number of
significant application upgrades, including the rofl out
of a global order management system for
Institutional Equities in Asia, Europe and the US and
the replacerment of the Funds Management Group’s
core back office platform.,

Corporate Communications Division

The Corporate Communications Division is
responsible for protecting and enhancing Macquarie
Bark's brand and reputation. The Division oversees
the Bank's activities in:

—media relations

—govermnment relations
—community relations

—brand and marketing

—internal communications
—e-Commerce

—reputation and brand protection
Macquane Bank Foundaticn
—Macguarie Bank Sports.

The Corporate Communications Division is
represented in the Bank's offices in Sydney,
Canberra, London, New York, Hong Kong,
Singapore and Seou.




The Macquarie Bank Foundation contributed $A12.6 million
to more than 500 community organisations during the year.

One of Australia’s oldest and largest corporate
foundations, the Macquarie Bank Foundation
contributed $A12.6 million to more than 500
community organisations in the year to 31 March
2007, up from $A8.5 milion the previous year.

In addition, Macquarie staff around the world raised
gad.1 million for not-for-profit organisations, up from
$A2.7 million the previous year. This took
Macquarie’s total community contribution to $A16.7
million. This figure does not include the many hours
of time given by Macquarie staff as volunteers,
mentors, pro bono service providers and members
of not-for-profit boards and executive committees.

A major initiative during the year was the introduction
of capacity building funding, providing not-for-profit
organisations with the means to achieve their next
stage of strategic growth. The Foundation
committed approximately $A2.5 milion to capacity
building during the year 1o seven organisations,
including the Bionic Ear Institute, Philanthropy
Australia and the Pathways Foundation.

Other inttiatives highlighted the Macquarie Bank
Foundation's commitment to the ongoing
development of the not-for-profit sector. With Mission
Australia, the Foundation hosted a Social Innovation
Dialogue, bringing together senior decision makers
from business, government and the not-for-profit
sector to discuss new ways of addressing social
need. A similar event will be held in the UK this year.
In addition, the Foundation developed a Macquarie
Board Register of senior executives prepared to
serve on not-for-profit boards.

Photo:. Anthony Geernaen

The Foundation continued to support a diverse
range of community organisations in the areas of
education, health care and research, the
environment, welfare and the arts. In a major
five-year partnership, the Foundation established
a $A1 million training fund with Surf Life Saving
Australia for its 34,000 active members.

In the environment, the Foundation provided
capacity building funding to Waterkeepers Australia,
which works to protect local waterways, and Bush
Heritage Australia, which acquires threatened tracts
of private land for permanent preservation. Support
was also provided to the JNF Erwvironmental
Scholarship Fund to facilitate bilateral scholarships
between Australia and Israel.

Health inftiatives included increased support for the
Spastic Centre of NSW, in particular the 20/Twenty
Challenge, which was developed by a Macquarie
Bank staff member and has raised more than
$A1.2 million over four years to buy specialised
equipment for children with cerebral palsy. In
addition, Macquarie Bank received an award as
the largest corporate supporter of the Juvenile
Diabetes Research Foundation, with more than
400 Macquarie staff and family members taking
part in fundraising events for the organisation.
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In education, the Foundation supported the Inspire
Foundation initiative to make its mental heafth
resources available to Australian schools. Macquarie
has also provided funding for Inspire to launch its
ground-breaking programs in the US.

In the arts, the Foundation supported the
Commonwealth Writers' Prize, as well as the
London Philharmonic’s Adopt-a-Class program.
With Macquarie’s European businesses, it also
supported a major exhibition of contemporary
Australian indigenous art in Paris to coincide with the
opening of the Musée du Quai Branly.

The Macquarie Bank Foundation provided funding
to Opportunity International to support microfinance
in South-east Asia. Other welfare initiatives included
capacity building funding to CREATE Foundation,
which supports children in care, and support for the
Beacon Foundation’s Polish program, which teaches
school children the personal and presentation skills
needed for the workplace.

Macquarie Bank Sports, funded by the Foundation
and Macquarie businesses, provided free coaching
clinics to more than 8,000 children during the year,
with major sporting identities sering as both
coaches and role models.
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In London, 40 Macquarie staff have joined the
Hackney Schools Mentoring Program, mentoring
80 teenagers from the Cardinal Pole School in one
of the city’s most deprived areas.

The Macquarie Bank Foundation actively supports
staff in their community activities. Staff engagement
has grown substantially over the past year, with much
of this growth at an international level.




The Board is committed to the Bank seeking

to achieve superior financial performance and
long-term prosperity, while meeting stakeholders’
expectations of sound corporate governance
practices. This Statement outlines the Bank’s
main corporate governance practices as at

31 March 2007 and, unless otherwise stated,
they reflect the practices in place throughout

the financial year ending on that date.

The Board, in conjunction with the Board Corporate
Governance Committee, determines the corporate
governance arrangements for the Bank. As with all
its business activities, the Bank is proactive in
respect of comporate governance and puts in place
those arrangements which it considers are in the
best interests of the Bank and its shareholders,
consistent with its responsibilities to other
stakeholders. It actively reviews Australian and
international developments in corporate governance,
including prudential requirements of the Australian
Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA). This year
APRA introduced a new Governance Standard, APS
510 — Governance (APRA's Governance Standard),
which contains governance requirements for the
Bank as an APRA-requlated entity.

The ASX Corporate Governance Council’s Principles
of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice
Recommendations {(ASX Recommendations) provide
a corporate gavernance framework for ASX listed
companies. As required by the ASX Listing Rules,
this statement sets out the extent to which the
Bark has followed the ASX Recommendations
during the year to 31 March 2007, identifies any

of the ASX Recommendations not followed and
provides reasons why they were not followed,

This statement adopts the order and numbering

of the ASX Recommendations.

The Bank considers that its governance practices
are consistent with all but two of the 28 ASX
Recommendations. An explanation for departure
from these recommendations is provided on pages
33 and 40, respectively. The Bank has posted
copies of its corporate governance practices on

its website at www.macquarie.com.aw/auwabout_
macguarie in accordance with the ASX
Recommendations.

Principle 1:

Lay solid foundations for management

and oversight

The Board adopted a Charter in September 2006
which details the composition and role and
responsibilities of the Board and their relationship
with management to accomplish the Board's
primary role of prometing the long-term health and
prosperity of the Bank. A copy of the Board Charter
is available on the Bank's website at
www.macquarie.com.aw/au/about_macqguarie.
(ASX Recommendation 1.1)

As set out in the Board Charter, the Board has
delegated specific authorities to the various Board
Committees and the Managing Director. The Bank’s
Executive Committee and Operations Review
Committee operate as management commitiees
appointed by the Managing Director pursuant to his
delegated powers and, in exercising these powers,
he typically makes decisions regarding significant

issues in consultation with one of these commitiees.

The Bank currently alsc has approximately 245
Non-Voting Executive Directors. Pursuant to the
Bank’s constitution, they have no right to attend or
vote at any Board meeting. However, they do have
the power to exercise management powers
delegated by the Board including to sign and
countersign the Bank's common seal.

Principle 2:

Structure the beard to add value

The Board considers that its membership should
comprise directors with an appropriate mix of skills,
experience and persond attributes that allow the
directors individually, and the Board collectively, to:

—discharge their responsibilities and duties under the
law effectively and efficientty;

—understand the business of the Bank and the
ervironment in which the Bank operates so as to
be able to agree with management the objectives,
goals and strategic direction which will maximise
shareholder value; and

—assess the performance of management in meeting
those objectives and goals.

The current mermbership of the Board is set out
below. Details of each individual Voting Director's
background are set out in Schedule 1 to the
Directors' Report, which immediatety follows this
Corporate Governance Statement.

(ASX Recommendation 2.5)
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Current Board compeosition™
Voting Director

Board Membership

Date of Appointment

David Clarke AQ™*

Non-Executive Chairman

8 March 1984

Allan Moss AO Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 26 June 1989
Mark Johnson*** Non-Executive Deputy Chairman 23 February 1987
John Allpass independent 1 January 1994
Laurie Cox AO™"" Executive 2 January 1996
Peter Kirby Independent 28 June 2003
Catherine Livingstone Independent 19 Novermnber 2003
Kevin McCann AM Lead Independent 23 December 1996
John Niland AC Independent 21 February 2003
Helen Nugent AQ Independent 1.June 1999

as a Non-Executive Director.

Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson both ceased to be
executives of the Bank on 31 March 2007 and have
remained on the Board in a Non-Executive capacity.
Mr Johnson and Mr Alipass will retire by rotation
from the Board at the next Annual General Meeting
(AGM) in July 2007 in accordance with the Bank's
constitution and do net intend to stand for
re-election. The Bank is currently seeking a new
Independent Director to replace Mr Allpass.

The Bank's constitution provides that the maximum
number of Vioting Directors shall be ten unless
amended by a resolution of the Board. In July 2003,
the Board resclved to increase the maximum
number to eleven. In April 2007, the Board resolved
to change the maximum number to eight, effective
at the close of this year's AGM.
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* Indepengent Director, Mr Barrie Martin, retired from the Board at the conclusion of the 2006 AGM on 20 July 2006,
* On 31 March 2007, Mr Clarke resigned as Executive Chairman and has continued on the Board as Non-Executive Chabrnan.
*“** Mr Johnson was an Exacutive Voting Director unti he retired from executive responsibiities effective 31 March 2007 and has continued on the Beard

*** Mr Cox bacame an Exacutive Voting Director on 25 March 2004; prior to that he was a Non-Executive Director.

The Board Charter provides that the number of
Voting Directors necessary to constitute a quorum
at a Board meeting is:

~not less than one-third of the Voting Directors
currently in office; and

—the number of Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)
present at a meeting must be greater than the
number of Executive Voting Directors present,




property fulfilling its role and is diigent in holding
senior management accountable for its
performance. A majority of the Board members are
Independent Directars. (ASX Recommendation 2.1)

The Board believes that independence is essentially
a state of mind evidenced by an ability to
constructively challenge and independently
contribute to the work of the Beard. The
independence of directors is assessed annually by
the Board Corporate Governance Committee
{BCGC) and, to assist the BCGC, the Beard has
adopted the following definition of an Independent
Director which is available on the Bank's website:

A Voting Director will be considered independent if
not a member of management and if he/she meets
the following criteria {to the satisfaction of the BCGC):

—is not a substantial shareholder of the Bank or of
a company hoiding more than five per cent of the
Bank's voting stock or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with a shareholder
holding more than five per cent of the Bank’s
voting stock;

—has not within the last three years been employed in
an executive capacity by the Bank or ancther group
member or been a director after ceasing to hold any
such employrment;

—is not a principal or employee of a professional
adviser to the Bank and its entities whose bilings
exceed five per cent of the adviser's total revenues,
A Voting Director who is a principal or employee of a
professional adviser will not participate in any
consideration of the possible appointment of the
professional adviser and will not participate in the
provision of any service to the Bank by the
professional adviser;

—is not a significant supplier or customer of the Bank
or its entities or an officer of or otherwise associated
directly or indirectly with a significant supplier or
customer. A significant supplier is defined as one
whose revenues from the Bank exceed five per cent
of the supplier's total revenue. A significant customer
is one whose amounts payable to the Bank exceed
five per cent of the customer’s total operating costs;

—has no material contractual relationship with the
Bank or any of its associates other than as a director
of the Bank;

—is not a director of any of Macquarie Bank's
subsidiaries or responsitle entities;

—has not served on the Board for a period exceeding
the Bank's agreed tenure rules (including transitional
arrangements); and

—has no other interest or relationship that could
interfere with the Voting Director's ability to act in
the best interests of the Bank and independently
of management.

(ASX Recommendations 2.1 and 2.5)
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duties as a director.

The materiality thresholds are reviewed from time
to time and were adjusted in September 2006
1o reduce the thresholds in the first point above
from ten per cent of the Bank's voting stock to
five per cent. (ASX Recommendation 2.5)

The independence of each Independent Director
is monitored by the BCGC and Voting Directors
may be required to provide information from time
to time to the BCGC to enable it to assess the
Independent Directors’ ongoing independence.
Each year, the Independent Directors are requested
to confirm in writing their continuing status as an
Independent Director and they have each
undertaken to inform the Board as soon as
practical if they think that their status as an
Independent Director has or may have changed.
{ASX Recommendation 2.1)

Chaiman

David Clarke was Executive Chaimman of the Bank
from its formation until 31 March 2007. He has since
continued to serve on the Board as Non-Executive
Chaimman. Due 1o his recent role as Executive
Chairman, Mr Clarke is not considered to be an
Independent Director.

The Bank has noted the ASX Corporate Governance
Council's best practice recommendation that listed
companies have an independent director as
chaiman. However, for the reascns set out below,
the Board believes that David Clarke is the most
appropriate person to be the Bank’s Chairman and
that measures adopted by the Bank provide an
appropriate check on executive power (ASX
Recommendations 2.2 and 2.5). APRA’s
Govermnance Standard also requires the chairperson
of the Board to be an independent director.
Notwithstanding this requirement, APRA has
confirmed that it will allow Mr Clarke to continue as
Chairman of the Bank.

Mr Clarke was Joint Managing Director of Hil
Samuel Australia Limited, the business predecessor
to the Bank, from 1971 to 1977, sole Managing
Director from 1977 to 1984 and then Executive
Chairman. Given the Bank’s diverse, complex and
highly specialised activities, it is important that the
Board is chaired by someone with a deep
understanding of the Bank’s operations. Mr Clarke’s
experience in investment banking, and as a
chairman of major listed entities, is also important in
ensuring that managerment provides the Board with
adequate information to facilitate effective decision
making. His wide experience enables him to provide
support and advice to the Managing Director while
respecting executive responsibility.

33



The Bank's dependence on the performance of its ~ —the delegation of certain responsibilities to Board

staff is a further reason why, like most global Committees, a number of which the Chairman is
investment banks, the Bank believes it to be in not a member. The Board Audit and Compliance
sharehclders' interests to have a number of Board Committee Charter states that the Chairman of the
members with operating experience of the Board shall not be eligible to be the Chairman of

businesses. Mr Clarke's role as Executive Chairman the Committee;

has worked very well for a long time at the Bank and _ . ability of Voting Directors to seek independent
Mr Clarke continuing as the Bank's Non-Executive professional advice for company related matters,
(non-Independent) Chairman is considered to be in including Board Committee matters, at the Bank’s
shareholders’” interests. expense, subject to the estimated costs being
The Bank has alsc adopted a number of practices approved by the Chairman in advance as being
to regulate the division of responsibilities between reasonable (ASX Recommendation 2.5); and

the Board and management, and the accountability

? ; —an annual assessment of the performance of the
of management to the Board, including:

Executive Chairman and Managing Director by the
—separate individuals performed the roles of Independent Directors,
Executive Chairman and Managing Director Board Committees

(ASX Recommendation 2.3); Five standing Board Commitiees have been
—the appointment of a Lead Independent Director; established to assist in the execution of the Board's
—a ma]onty of Independent Directors on the Board responstbllltles All Board members are free to attend

who meet at least once annually as a group and in any mesting of any Board Committee. The -

the absence of any executives. The Independent membership of each Committee is outlined in the
Directors met three times during the last year. table below. {ASX Recornmendation 2.5)

The convenor of those meetings is the Lead

independent Director;

Audit and Corporate
Standing Committee Membership Compliance Governance Nominating  Remuneration Risk

Non-Executive
{(non-Independent) Directors

David Clarke AO Chairman Member Chairman
Mark Johnson Member Member
Executive Voting Directors

Allan Moss AQ Member
Laurie Cox AO Member
Independent Directors

John Allpass Member Member Mermber
Peter Kirby Member Member
Catherine Livingstone Chaiman Member™* Member
Kevin McCann AM Member Chaimnan Member
John Niland AC Member* Member Member
Helen Nugent AO Member Chairman Member

* Dr Niland replaced Mr Barrie Martin as a Member of the Board Audit and Compliance Commitiee on 27 July 2006 following
Mr Martin's retirernent from the Board.

™ Ms Livingstone replaced Mr Barrie Martin as a Member of the Board Nominating Committea on 1 Novermber 2006 {ollowing
Mr Martin's retirement from the Board.
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Annual eneral Vieeting (Alalvl) and the expecied
appointment of a new Independent Director in
the near future.

It is the policy of the Board that a majority of the
members of each Board Committee be Independent
Directors, that the Board Audit and Compliance
Committee comprise only Independent Directors
and that the Board Remuneration Committee and
the Board Corporate Governance Committee be
chaired by Independent Directors.

The number of times each Board Committee met
and the number of those meetings attended by
the members of each Committee is set out in

the Directors’ Report. (ASX Recommendation 2.5)

Each Committee has a charter which includes
detail of its duties and responsibilities. The charters
are available in the Comorate Governance section
of the Bank's website at
www.macquarie.com.aw/auw/about_macqguarie.
(ASX Recommendations 2.5, 4.5 and 9.5)

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee
Charter was reviewed and amended slightly for
consistency and to meet the comporate governance
requirements (APS 510) of APRA in September 2006.

Nomination of Directors and Board Rengwal
The Board Nominating Committee comprises
the Chairman and two Independent Directors.
(ASX Recommendation 2.4)

The Nominating Committee’s role, which is outlined
in its charter, is to review and consider the structure
and balance of the Board and make:
recommendations regarding appointments,
retirements and terms of office.

The Board has adopted a Policy on Board Renewal
and Appaintment of Directors to govern the
selection and appointment of Voting Directors, a
copy of which is available on the Bank's website at
www.macquarie.com.au/awabout_macquarie.
{ASX Recommendation 2.5)

The Nominating Committee has unlimited access 1o
senior management of the Macquarie Bank Group
and is able to engage recruitment consultants to
undertake research on, or assess, candidates for
new positions on the Board, or to consult other
independent experts where it considers it necessary
10 carry out its duties and responsibilities.

The Board recognises that it is important that it
undergoes a regular process of renewal via changes
in membership. The Board has appointed three new
Independent Directors since the beginning of 2003 -
John Niland, Peter Kirby and Catherine Livingstone.
These Board members were appointed for terms
that will not exceed 12 years and similar
arrangements, with transitional provisions that
broadty weight past time on the Board at 50 per
cent, apply to the cther Independent Directors.
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John Allpass will retire by rotation at this year's AGM
and have indicated that they will not seek re-glection.

Principle 3:

Promote ethical and responsible decision making
Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Bank’s Vioting Directors and staff are required

to maintain high ethical standards of conduct.

The Group's Code of Ethics, Macquarie Bank -
What We Stand For, covers the Bank’s dealings
with external parties and how the Bank operates
internally. It is pericdically reviewed and fully
endorsed by the Board. The Code of Ethics is
distributed to all staff and its standards are
communicated and reinforced at Bank-wide
induction programs, presentations to workgroups
and annual staff meetings.

In July 2003, the Bank adopted a Code of
Conduct (the Code), which incomorates the
Group's Cede of Ethics. The Code is also
reflected in, and supported by, a broad range

of the Bank's internal policies and procedures.
The Code includes a requirement to conduct all
Macquarie’s business in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations in the jurisdictions
in which Macquarie operates, and in a way that
enhances its reputation in those markets.

The Code was reviewed in June 2006 and a copy
of the Code is available on the Bank's website at
www.macquarie.com.aw/auw/about_macquarie.
(ASX Recommendations 3.1 and 10.1)

Integrity Officer

To strengthen Macquarie’s commitment to
conducting its business activities in accordance
with the highest ethical standards, an Integrity
Officer was established in 1998. Paul Robertson,
Executive Director and Treasurer of the Bank,
was Macquarie's Integrity Officer from establishment
until 30 Aprit 2007 when he retired from the Bank.
He has been replaced by Executive Directors
Michael Price and James Hadgkinson as Joint
Integrity Officers. In acknowledgment of the
expanding international nature of Macquarie’s
business, Regional Integrity Officers and Regional
Integrity Support Officers have been appointed in
Asia, Europe and the Americas.
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The Integrity Officers serve as an independent
point of contact with whom Voting Directors and
staff can raise concerns about integrity-related
issues. The Integrity Officers repart directly to the
Executive Chaimman, the Managing Director and
the Board Comorate Governance Committee.

The role of the Integrity Officers is to:

—develop and implement strategies in the Australian
and international offices to assist Macgquarie to
property address issues of integrity in the conduct
of its business;

—educate, advise and counsel management and staif
regarding integrity issues;

—devise and introduce systems o ensure that claims
of integrity breaches and any integrity-related
concerns are dealt with impartially, promptly and
confidentially; and

—ensure that the rights of all parties are respected
and maintained at all times.

Macquarie has established whistleblower policies
in accordance with the legislative requirements and
best practice recommendations in each of the
jurisdictions in which Macquarie operates. The
policies aim to provide a working environment that
enables employees to voice genuine concerns in
relation to:

—a breach of relevant legislation;
—a breach of the Bark's Goals and Values;
—financial malpractice or impropriety or fraud;
—failure to comply with legal obligations;
—danger to health and safety or the environment;
—criminal activity; and
—attempts to conceal any of the above.

{ASX Recommendations 3.1 and 10.7)
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Staff dealing

Macquarie's Personal Dealing Policy identifies the
principles by which Macquarie balances the personal
investment interests of staff against Macquarie's
responsibility to ensure that the personal dealing and
investment activities in any financial product of its
staff are conducted appropriately. A copy of
Macquarie’s trading policy is available on the Bank's
website at www.macqguarie.com.aw/aw/about_
macquarie. (ASX Recommendation 3.3)

The Policy applies to Vioting Directors and all
Macquarie staff (all full and part-time employees and
contractors engaged for more than three months). It
also applies generally to “associates” of stalf, which
include persons or entities over whom a staff
rmember has investment contral (such as spouses,
dependent children, self-managed super funds and
private and family-controlled companies and trusts).
(ASX Recormmendation 3.2)

One of the key aspects of the Policy requires Voting
Directors, staff and their agsociates to pre-clear their
securities trading with Macquarie.

Voting Directors and staff may only trade in
Macquarie Bank securities and related derivatives
during designated trading windows. These are
typically of three to five weeks' duration and follow
Macquarie’s announcements of its interim and full
year profits and after the AGM, However, in all cases
Macquarie prohibits Voting Directors and staff from
dealing in such investments while they possess
material non-public price-sensitive information

about Macquarie.

In June 2001, the Board also agreed that Voting
Directors generally should not sell MBL. shares while
the shares are subject to an on-market buy-back,
and should not undertake short-term trading in any
Macquarie Bank-related securities and derivatives
without the prior approval of the Chaiman (or the
Managing Director in the case of the Chaimany.

Executive Directors are also not permitted to
undertake any action that is designed to limit their
exposure to Macquarie Bank shares which are
subject to retention arangements, or their unvested
Macquarie Bank options. Non-executive directors
may also not enter into a transaction that operates
to limit the economic risk of their Macquarie Bank
shareholding below their minimum shareholding
requirement. Employees are not permitted to take
net short positions in MBL shares or any Macquarie-
managed funds.




The Bank’s Board has the responsibility for the
integrity of the Bank’s financial reporting. To assist
the Board in fulfiling this responsibility it has adopted
the processes discussed below aimed at providing
assurance that the financial statements and related
notes of the Bank are complete, in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and provide a true
and fair view.

Financial assurance

The current composition of the Board Audit and
Compliance Committee (BACC) continues to
conform to the ASX Recormmendations and is
comprised of four Independent Directors (ASX
Recommendations 4.2 and 4.3). Details of
Committee members are shown in the table on
page 34 and the number of BACC meetings and
attendance at these meetings is set out in the
Directors’ Report. (ASX Recommendation 4.5)

The main objective of the BACC is to assist the
Board in fulfiling its responsibility for overseeing
the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing,
financial reporting and compliance practices of the
Group including:

—overseeing the compliance of the financial
statements with legislative and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements;

—making informed decisions regarding accounting
and regulatory policies, practices and disclosures
and reviewing the scope and results of Internal Audit
reviews and external audits;

—making informed decisions regarding compliance
policies and reviewing the scope and results of
compliance reviews; and

—assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and operational nisk framework.

The responsibilities of the BACC are set out in its
charter, which is posted on the Bank's website.
(ASX Recommendations 4.4 and 4.5)

The BACC meets at lsast six times a year, with

additional meetings as required. The Committee also

meets privately with the following parties at least
annually in separate sessions to discuss any matters
that the Committee or the parties believe should be
discussed privately with the Commitiee:

—Head of Risk Management Group (RMG};
—Head of Internal Audit;

—Head of RMG Operational Risk;

—Head of RMG Compliance;

—Head of RMG Credit Assurance Function; and
—the external auditors.

The BACC has unlimited access to the Heads of
RMG, RMG Operational Risk, RMG Compliance,
and internal Audit, the external auditors, the Group’s
compiliance officers and senior management of the
Group. The Committee also has the power to
institute and oversee special investigations including
consultation with independent experts as needed.

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer provide the Board with written confirmation
that the Bank’s financial report presents a true and
fair view, in all material respects, of the Bank's
financial condition and operational results and are

in accordance with relevant accounting standards
(ASX Recommenaation 4.1).

Auditor independence
The BACC is also responsible for overseeing the
external audit of the Bank.

The Bank’s policy on auditor independence applies
to services supplied by the external auditor and its
related firms to the Bank, its related entities and the
trusts and entities managed by the Bank. A copy
of the Bank’s external auditor policy statement is
available on the Bank's website at
WWww.macguarie.corm.au/al/about_macquarie.
(ASX Recommendation 4.5)

The BACC also determined, and the Board
endorsed, that from 1 Aprl 2003, the external audit
engagement partner and review partner must be
rotated every five years.
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Principle 5:

Make timely and balanced disclosure
Commitment to shareholders and informed market
The Bank believes that shareholders, regulators,
ratings agencies and the investment community
generally, should be informed of all major business
events and risks that influence the Bank in a factual,
timely and widely available manner, The Bank has
had a Continuous Disclosure Policy since 1994 and
it is currently incorporated in the External
Communications Policy. A summary of the

External Communications Policy is available

on the Bank’s website at
www.macguarie.com.aw/au/about_macquarie.
(ASX Recormmendation 5.2)

This Policy was last updated in Naovember 2006.
(ASX Recommendations 5.1 and 6.1}

It is the Bank's policy that any price-sensitive
material for public announcement, including annual
and interim profit announcements, release of
financial reports, presentations to investors and
analysts and other prepared investor briefings,

will be;

—lodged with the ASX as soon as practical and before
external disclosure elsewhere; and

—posted on the Bank’s website as soon as practical
after lodgement with the ASX.

The Bank's website,
www.macquarie.com.au/shareholdercentre,
contains recent announcemenits, presentations,
past and current reports to shareholders, answers
to frequently asked questions and a summary of
key financial data. Investors may also register here
to receive copies of significant announcements by
email as soon as practical after they have been
lodged with the ASX.
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Principle 6:

Respect the rights of shareholders
Communications

It is the Bank’s policy that all external communications
by the Bank wil:

—be factual and subject to internal vetting and
authorisation before issue;

—-not omit material information: and

—be timely and expressed in a clear and chjective
manner.

A summary of the External Communications
Policy is available on the Bank’s website at
www.macquarie.com.au/aw/about_macquarie.
(ASX Recormmendation 6.1)

General meetings

The Bank encourages shareholders to participate
in general meetings. The Bank usually holds its
AGM in July of each year. The Bank will choose
a date, venue and time considered convenient to
the greatest number of its shareholders. The Bank
will also request its auditor to attend each AGM
and be available to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report.

{ASX Recommendations 6.1 and 6.2)

Notices of Meeting will be accompanied by
explanatory notes on the tems of business and
together they will seek to clearly and accurately
explain the nature of business of the meeting.
Full copies of Notices of Mesting will be placed
on the Bank's website at
www.macquarie.com.au/aw/about_macquarie.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
meeting or, if unable to attend, to vote on the
mations proposed by appointing a proxy. The
proxy form included with a Notice of Meeting will
seek to clearly explain how the proxy form is to
be completed and submitted. (n 2005, the Bank
introduced a facility to allow proxy voting online
and this will be available again this year.

Unless spacifically stated in a Notice of Meeting,

all holders of fully paid ordinary shares are eligible
to vote on all resolutions. Holders of Macquarie
Income Securities have limited voting rights as

set out in the terms of their issue.

The Bank will webcast the formal addresses at its
AGM and any other general meetings which may
be held for the benefit of those shareholders unable
to be present in person.




There are many rnsks in the markels in wnch the
Bank operates. A range of factors, some of which
are beyond the Bank’s control, can influence
performance. In many of its businesses, the Bank
constantly and deliberately assumes financial risk in
a caloulated and controlled manner. The Bank has
in place limits and a range of procedures to monitor
the risk in its activities, and these are pericdically
reviewed by the Board and the Board Risk
Committee.

Further information regarding the Bank’s system of
risk oversight and management is set out below and
also in the Risk Management Report at the
beginning of the Bank’s 2007 Financial Report.

Board oversignt

The Board established the Board Risk Committee to
focus appropriate attention on the risk management
framework of the Bank and the particular
significance of risk to the Bank's performance.

(ASX Recornmendations 7.1 and 7.3)

The Board Risk Committee Charter is found on
the Bank's website.

Risk Management Framework

The Bank's approach to risk management is
described in some detail in the Risk Management
Report in the Bank’s 2007 Financial Report.

(ASX Recommendation 7.3)

In brief, the principles followed by the Bank in risk
managerment are:

—Independence — RMG, which is responsible for
assessing and monitoring risks across the Group,
is independent of the operating areas of the Group,
reporting directly to the Managing Director and the
Board. BMG authority is required for major risk
acceptance decisions;

—Centralised Prudentiai Management — RMG's
responsibility covers the whole of the Group.
Therefore, it can assess risks from a Group-wide
perspective and provide a consistent approach
across all operating areas;

—Approval of all new business activities — Operating
areas cannot undertake new businesses or activities,
offer new products, or enter new markets without
first consutting RMG. The Group identifies, quantifies
and assesses all risks and sets prudential limits.
Where appropriate, these limits are approved by the
Executive Committee and the Board;

—Continuous assessment — AMG continually reviews
| risks to account for changes in market
crcumstances and the Group's operating areas; and

—Frequent monitoring — Centralised systems exist to
allow RMG to monitor credit and market risks dally.
RMG staff liaise closely with operating and support
Divisions. (ASX Recommendation 7.1)

rinancidl LANGEr provide e Boalld WILTE VTS
confirmation that:

—their statement given to the Board on the integrity
of the Bank’s financial statements is founded on
a sound system of risk management and internal
compliance and contral which implements the
policies adopted by the Board; and

—the Bank's risk management and internal
compliance and control system is operating
efficiently and effectively in all material respects.
(ASX Recommendations 7.2 and 7.3)

Principie 8:

Encourage enhanced performance
Performance of Board and key executives

The Board has undertaken a formal annual
performance seff-assessment, including an
assessment of the Board, Board Committees and
of those individual Directors who are required to
stand for re-election at the next AGM. In August
2006 the Board agreed to extend this annual self-
assessment to all Board members in future, not just
those seeking re-election. The process adopted by
the Board to review the performance of the Board
and the Bank's most senior executives is available
on the Bank's website at www.macquarie.com.au.
(ASX Recommendation 8.1)

The process for conducting the Board's
performance review this year consisted of the
Chaimman conducting individual interviews with
each of the Voting Directors. Prior to that, the
Voting Directors completed a questionnaire and
were able to make other comments or raise any
issue that they had relating to the Board's or a
Board Committee’s operation. The results of the
questionnaire and interviews were compiled and
included a quantitative and a qualitative analysis.

A written report discussing the results, issues for
discussion and recommendations for initiatives
was presented to the Board and discussed at a
Board meeting.

Four of the five standing Board Committees also
undertook a separate self-assessment during the
year, while the other Board Committee, the Board
Risk Committee, was assessed as part of the
Board process.
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The Managing Director and Executive Chairman
have annually presented a self-assessment to the
Independent Directors, who formally reviewed their
performance. The presentation has included financial
perfcrmance, the business environment, prudential
performance, staff and human relations and other
achieverments. The Independent Directors report

on this to the Board. Questions on the performance
of the Chairman as chairman of the Board are also
included in the seff-assessment questionnaire
completed by the members of the Board.

The Managing Director and the Executive

Chairman have also evaluated, at least annually,

the performance of the following key executives:

the Deputy Managing Director and the Group
Heads, including the Chief Information Officer,

As described on the Bank’s website, both qualitative
and quantitative measures were used, consistent
with the dimensions for reviewing the Managing
Director and the Executive Chairman. The Managing
Director reports to the Board Remuneration
Committee in conjunction with the remuneration
review process on the performance of these key
executives. In conjunction with the annual strategy
review, the Board also considers key executive
succession planning and their capabilities.

{ASX Recormmendation 8.1)

Principle 9:

Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Remuneration policy

The Bank's remuneration policies and practices in
relation to Executive Voting Directors, Independent
Cirectors and senior managers are disclosed in the
Remuneration Report contained in the Directors’
Report {see pages 47-90). The Bank acknowledges
that disclosure of the structure and objectives of the
remuneration policies, and their relationship to the
Bank’s performance, allows investors to understand
the costs and benefits of those policies and the link
between remuneration paid to Directors and key
executives and corporate performance. Detalls of
the nature and amount of remuneration (including
non-monetary components such as options) paid
to each Director and the members of the Bank's
Executive Committee are set out in the
Remuneration Report. {ASX Recornmendations

8.1, 983and 9.5
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The Macqguarie Bank Employee Share Option

Plan (Option Plan} was introduced by the Bank

in 1995. It is described in some detall in Note 36

of the Bank’s 2007 Financial Report and in the
Remuneration Report (see pages 63-68). In the
years that options have been granted to Executive
Voting Directors, the approval of shareholders has
been obtained to permit those Executive Vioting
Directors to participate in the Option Plan up to
maximum amounts specified in the shareholder
resolutions. However, shareholder approval of the
Option Plan itsetf was not required nor sought under
the then Corporations Law or the ASX Listing Rules
when the plan was introduced in 1935 nor has
shareholder approval been required since then.
Hence, the Bank does not comply with ASX
Recommendation 9.4 in respect of the Option Plan,
A description of the Option Plan has been provided
in the Bank’s Financial Report each year and the
number of options on issue, including details of
expiry dates and exercise prices, has been lodged
with the ASX on a monthly basis for public viewing
since the Bank’s shares were listed on the ASX in
1996. (ASX Recommendations 9.4 and 9.5)

Setting Remuneration Arrangements

Board oversight of remuneration and the role of the
Board Remuneration Committee is described in
the Directors' Report (see pages 44 and 58-59).
The composition of the Board Remuneration
Committee {shown in the table on page 34)
continues to conform to that suggested by the
ASX Recornmendations as it consists of a
majority of Independent Directors and is chaired
by an Independent Director. Further details in
relation to the Board Remuneration Committee,
including the number of meetings held and the
ohjectives and responsibilities of the Board
Remuneration Committee are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report.

A copy of the Committee's charter is also available
on the Bank’s website at
www.macquarie.com.au/aw/about_macquarie.
{ASX Recommendations 9.2 and 9.5)

Non-Executive Director remuneration

The remuneration policy for the Bank's NEDs and
the amount of remuneration paid to NEDs is
discussed in detail in the Remuneration Report
{see pages 69-71). There are no termination
payments to NEDs on their retirement from coffice
other than payments accruing from superannuation
contributions comprising part of their remuneration.
{ASX Recommendations 8.1, 8.3 and 9.5)




The Bank's Code of Conduct and the paucies
discussed under Principle 3 set the standards for
dealing with obligations to external stakeholders.

A staterment of the Bank’s community engagement
is detailed in the Macquarie Bank Foundation's
annual report found on the Bank's website. Furiher
commentary is also provided on page 10 of this
Annual Review.

Corporate governance in Macquarie

managed funds

Macquarie's expertise in managing fund assets
and sourcing new value-adding opportunities is

a key attraction for investors in Macquarie managed
funds. Macquarie recognises that unitholders have
entrusted their investrments to us because of the
Macquarie association and management. The
Macquarie managed funds governance standards
provide an alignment of interests between the
manager and investors in the funds and adopt

an appropriate govermnance framework to ensure
protection of security holder's interests.

Macquarie's key expectations for Macguarie-
managed Funds {“Funds”) are that:

—Funds management activity is conducted in
accordance with Macquarie's high standards
and industry best practice;

—market, credit, liquidity, operational, legal and
regulatory risks arising in relation tc Funds are
managed and monitored within an appropriate
risk management framework;

—each Fund should be managed within an
appropriate corporate governance framework so
as to ensure that investment and cther key
decisicns are made in accordance with the Fund's
mandate and taken with appropriate regard to the
interests of the investors as a whole,;

—new Funds should be subject to a robust internal
approval process that requires independent review
and sign-off of key aspects of the Fund structure.

The key elements of Macquarie's corporate
governance framework for Funds are as follows:

—conflicts of interest arising between a Fund and
its related parties should be managed appropriately
and, in particular:

—related party transactions should be identified
clearty and conducted on arms’ kength temms;

—related party transactions should be tested by
reference to whether they meet market standards;
and

—decisions about transactions between listed
, Funds and Macquarie or its affiiates should be
made by parties independent of Macquarie;

—a magjority of independent directers should be
appointed to the boards of responsible entities
of listed Funds. For these purposes, the definition
of independence is consistent with the definition
applied by Macguarie Bank Limited;

dedicated to the refevant funds management
. business, rather than to advisory or other activities;

—all regormmendations to Fund boards {and
supporting information) should be prepared
or reviewed by funds management staif;

—each listed Fund that invests in operating assets
or businesses should have its own managing
director or chief executive officer; and

—Chinese Walls operate to separate Macguarie's
corporate finance, advisory and equity capital
markets business from its funds management
businesses.

The Macquarie Board exercises oversight of the
funds management activities of the Macquarie
Group through the following:

—requiring all funds management subsidiaries 1o
adopt and maintain a risk management framework
and principles similar to that employed by
Macquarie;

—requinng Board approval for all new Funds that;

—are listed or to be listed within 12 months of
their establishment;

—exceed specified monetary thresholds in size;

—invest in operating businesses or assets in certain
specified industnes;

—receiving and reviewing appropriate information
from the funds management subsidiaries relating
to their operations.

While Macquarie exercises general oversight of its
funds management subsidiaries as set out above,
decision making relating to transactions by Funds
are made by the directors of the responsible entities
of, and companies within, the Funds. Where a Fund
acquires an interest in another company, the board
of the underlying company is responsible for
decisions relating to that company’s business

and operations.
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This concise financial report has been derived from the full financial
report for the financial year ended 31 March 2007. The full financial
report and independent audit report will be sent to members on
request, free of charge. Please call (61 2) 8232 3333 and a copy will be
forwarded to you. Alternatively, you may access the full financial report,
the independent audit report and the concise financial report via the
internet at: http://www.macquarie.com.au.

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as full an
understanding of the income statement, balance sheet and financing
and investing activities of Macguarie Bank Limited and its controlled
entities as the full financial report.
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31 Marcn 2007

in accordance with a resolution of the Voting Directors (“the

Directors™ of Macquarie Bank Limited (“the Bank”), the Directors
submit herewith the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 and the
income statement and the cash flow staternents of the Bank and
the entities it controlled at the end of, and during, the finandial year

ended on that date and report as follows:

Directors
At the date of this report, the Directors of the Bank are:

Non-Executive Directors:
D.8. Clarke, AQ, Chaiman*
M.R.G. Johnson, Deputy Chairman™

Executive Directors:
A.E. Moss, AQ, Managing Director and Chiel Executive Officer
L.G. Cox, AC

Independent Directors™:
J.G. Allpass

PM. Kirby

C.B. Lvingstone

H.K. McCann, A

J.R. Niland, AC

H.M. Nugent, AQ

* Mr Clarke retired from the role of Executive Chairman effective
31 March 2007 and remains on the Board as Non-
Executive Chairman.

* Mr Johnson retired from his executive responsibilities at the
Bank effective 31 March 2007 and remains on the Board as Non-
Executive Deputy Chaiman until the Bank's 2007 Annual General
Meeting.

= |n accordance with the Bank's definition of independence (as set
out in the Corporate Govermance Statement contained in the
2007 Annual Review).

The above Directors each held office as a Director of the Bank
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2007 Mr B.R.
Martin was an Independent Cirector from the beginning of the
financial year until his retirement on 20 July 2006.

Those Directors fisted as independent Directors have been
independent throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2007.

Cetails of the gqualifications, experience and special responsibilities
of the Directors and qualifications and experience of the Comparty
Secretaries at the date of this report are set out in the Directors’
Report Schedule 1 following this report,

Directors’ meetings

The number of meetings of the Board of Directors {"the Board™)
and meetings of Committees of the Board, and the number of

meetings atiended by each of the Directors of the Bark during

the financial year is summarsed in the tables below:

Monthly Board meetings Special Board meetings”

Board meetings Eligible to atend Attended Eligible to attend Attended
D.S. Clarke 12 12 13 13
AE. Moss 12 12 13 13
M.R.G. Johnson 12 12 13 11
L.G. Cox 12 12 13 11
J.G. Alpass 12 12 13 13
PM. Kirby 12 12 13 10
C.B. Livingstorne 12 12 13 9
B.R. Martin® 3 3 4 4
H.K. McCann 12 12 13 12
J.R. Niland 12 12 13 13
H.M. Nugent 12 12 13 12

* Mr Martin retired as a Director on 20 July 2006.

* A majority of these meetings were called at short notice and all instances of non-attendance were due to prior commitments including

being overseas at the time.
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31 March 2007 continued

Board committee meetings

Board
Board Audit Corporate Board Board
and Compliance Govemance Nominating Remuneration Board Risk
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Eligible Eligible Eligible Hlighla Eligible
loattend  Aftended toattend  Allended  to attend Attended toattend Attended toattend Attended
B.S. Clarke — - - - 3 3 6 5] 4 4
AE. Moss — - - - - - — — 4 4
M.R.G. Johnson — — 7 6 — - - — 4 3
L.G. Cox - — — - — - - — 4 4
J.G. Allpass 7 7 - — — - 6 6 4 4
; PM. Kirby — - - - - - & 8 4 4
C.B. Livingstone 7 7 - — 1 1 - - 4 4
| B.R. Martin® 2 2 - - 2 2 — — 1 1
H.K. McCann 7 6 7 7 - — - - 4 4
J.R. Nitand 5 5 7 7 - - - - 4 4
H.M. Nugent — — — — 3 6 G 4 4

" Mr Martin retired as a Director on 20 July 2006,

There was a special purpose Board Sub-Committee to conduct due diligence into the Bank's process in complying with Basal (1
requirements of the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA}. The Sub-Committee comprised of Mr Allpass, Ms Livingstone
and certain Bank executives. The Sub-Committee met four times during the vear with all members in attendance. In addition, there was
a special purpose Board Sub-Committee, comprised of Mr Clarke, Mr Moss, Mr Cox, Mr Allpass, Mr Kirby, Ms Livingstone, Dr Niland
and Dr Nugent, to deal with four transactional matters. Another special purpose Board Sub-Committee, comprised of Mr Clarke,

Mr Moss, Mr Kirby, Ms Livingstone and Dr Niland, met once to deal with another transactional rmatter,

The Independant Directors met three times during the year in the absence of the Executive Directors. All Independent Directors were in
attendance at each of these meetings.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Bank and its controlled entities during the financial year ended 31 March 2007 were those of a full service
financial services provider offering a completa range of investment banking, commercial banking and retail financial services in Australia
and selected financial senvices offshore. In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes to the principal activities of the
Bank and its controlled entities during the financial year under review not otherwiss disclosed in this report or the full financial report.

Result

The financia! report for the financial years ended 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006, and the results herein, are prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards.

The consclidated profit from ardinary activities after income tax attributable to ordinary equity holders for the financial year ended

31 March 2007 was $1,463 milion (2006: $916 million).

Dividends and distributions
Subsequent to year end, the Directors have announced a final ordinary dividend of $1.90 per share franked at 100%, in relation to the
financial year ended 31 March 2007. The final ordinary dividend is payable on 4 July 2007.
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The Bank paid dividends and paid or provided distributions during the financial year as set out in the table below:

Payment
Security Payment date type $  Inrespect of financial year ended/period
Ordinary shares 5 Juty 2006 Final 290,550,461 31 March 2006 Paid
15 December 2006 Interim 312,104,061 31 March 2007 Paid
Macquarie Income Securities 18 April 2006 Periodic 7,390,247 16 January 2006 to 17 April 2006 Paid
17 July 2006 Periodic 7,318,381 18 Apnl 2006 to 16 Juty 2006 Paid
16 October 2006 Periodic 7,788611 17 July 2006 to 15 October 2006 Paid
15 January 2007 Periodic 7,968,100 16 October 2006 to 14 January 2007 Paid
16 April 2007 Pericdic £,6088,631 15 January 2007 to 31 March 2007 Provided
Macquarie Income 18 April 2006 Periodic 25,995,893 15 October 2005 16 17 April 2006 Paid
Preferred Securities 16 October 2006 Periodic 26,717,865 18 Apnl 2006 to 15 October 2006 Paid
16 April 2007 Periodic 24117637 16 October 2006 to 31 March 2007 Provided

No other dividencis or distributions were declared or paid during the financial year.

State of affairs

I the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in
the state of affairs of the Bank and its controlled entities that
oceurred during the financiatl year under review not otherwise
disclosed in this report or the full financial report.

Review of operations and financial position

Review of operations and financial result

The consclidated after-tax profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Macquasie Bank Group {"the econormic entity”) for
the year ended 31 March 2007 was $1,463 million, an increase of
60 per cent from $916 million in the previous year.

Earnings per share were $5.92, an increase of 48 per cent from
$4.00 in the prior year.

Total operating income for the year ended 31 March 2007
was $7.2 billion, an increase of 49 per cent on the prior year.
international income increased by 70 per cent to $3.5 bilion
and accounted for 55 per cent of total operating income (a)
for the year.

The year was characterised by a number of assets realisations,
which was the predominant driver of operating income growth.
Trading, fee and commission, and interest income were all up
on the previous year.

Total operating expenses for the year to 31 March 2007 were
$5.3 bilion, 48 per cent up on the prior year.

The effective tax rate for the year of 20.5% was lower than the
prior year as a result of income 1ax rate differentials anising from
income generated offshore.

fa) Operating income for the purposes of international income
exchudes earnings on capital and is after costs directly
attributable to earning the income, including fee and

Additional information, including discussion and analysis relating
to each of the Bank’s aperating Groups’ performance, is set out in
the Chairman’s and Managing Oirector’s Report on pages 6-30

of the Bank's 2007 Annual Review.

Financial position

Macquarie’s policy is to hold a level of capital that can be efficiently
used in day-to-day activities while ensuring the existence of a
sufficient buffer for growth over the medium term, and the ability
to take advantage of cpportunities as they arise.

The Tier 1 Capital ratio of 15.0 per cent at 31 March 2007
maintains a buffer in excess of the Group's minimum acceptable
ratios. Tier 1 Capital before deductions increased by

$2,451 milion over the year due to organic growth through
retained earnings, shares created through the exercise of
empioyee options and the $700 million capital raising which have
further increased the proportion of Macquarie Income Praferred
Securities able to be classified as Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 deductions
increased from $1,216 million to $1,327 milion over the year

due to the timing of asset acquisitions and disposals. As a

result, net Tier 1 Capital grew by 66 per cent over this period to
$5,896 milion with a 37 per cent growth in risk-weighted assets
over the period, resulting in an increase in the Tier 1 ratio,
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31 March 2007 continued

Events subsequent to balance date

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any matter
or circumstance which has arisen that has significantty affected or
may significantty affect the operations of the Bank and its controfled
entities, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Bank and its controlled entities in the financial years subsequent to
31 March 2007 not otherwise disclosed in this report.

Likely developments in operations and expected outcomes
Potential Restructuring

The Bank announced in July 2006 that it is examining a corporate
restructure to create a non-operating hotding company which
would operate banking and non-banking businesses. Further
information on this proposal is contained in the Chairman's and
Managing Director's Report on page 11.

Outlook

The Bark has had a very good start to the new financial year
commencing April 2007 and expects continued growth, with
strong IPO and mergers and acquisitions activity and good growth
in specialist funds. We expect the trading businesses to benefit
from geographic and product expansion and from continued
good equity broking volumes.

The Bank expects to maintain leading market positions in
Australia and focused positions in intemational markets,
International income will continue to make an increasingly
important contribution.

We expect to benefit from recent staff growth and expect this
growth {o continue, supporting our international expansion.

Swing factors will include the performance of specialist funds,
asset realisations and general market concitions.

The outlook for each of the Bank's operating Groups are
documented on pages 12-25 of the Bank's 2007 Annual Review.
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Medium term outlook

Macquarie's global reach has increased very significantly wath
strong increases in both domestic and international market
shares Over the medium term the Bank continues 1o be wel
placed due to committed quality staff, good businesses, the
benefits gained from rmajor strategic growth intiatives, effective
prudential controls, continued strong global investor demand for
quality assets and growth in the capital base. ff market conditions
do not deteriorate materially, the Bank expects continued good
growth in reveniue and eamings across most businesses,
especially the intermational businesses.
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Notes on preparation
Financial information is used extensively in this Report.

Where trend information is presented, it shauld be recognised that accounting standards and practices have changed over time,
In particular, note that throughout this Remuneration Report:

—financial information for the Bank relating to the years ended 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2007 has been presentad in accordance
with Australian Equivalents 1o International Financial Reporting Standards ("AIFRS"),

—financial information for the Bank relating to the year ended 31 March 2005 has been restated in accordance with AIFRS, with the
exception of AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and AASB 139: Financial Instrurnents: Recognition and Measurement,
which became effective from 1 April 2005, and

—financial information for the Bank relating to sarlier perods has not been restated in accomdance with AIFRS, and is therefore presented
in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards prevailing at the time,

Financial information relating o other organ.sations has been included throughout this Repon for comparative purposes. YWhere possible,

adjustments have been made 10 this inforration to make it more comparable to Macquarie’s data. However, differences will remain due
to different accounting praclices that are impossible to identify and/or adjust for.
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31 March 2007 continued

Remuneration framework and objectives

.1 Creating shareholder wealth

With only incremental variations, Macquarie Bank's executive
remuneration approach has been in place since the Bank was
founded in 1985.

During that time, the nature of the Bank's activities has changed
markedly, most notably with the significant international expansion
of the past four years. Nonetheless, the remuneration approach
and policies have stoad the test of time and remain a significant
factor in driving the Bank's performance.

In examining the Bark's remuneration approach, the Board of
Directors' overarching goal is te drive sharsholder returns over
the short and longer term. it does this by focusing on two
main objectives.

The first objective is to align the interests of staff and
shareholders. The Bank aims to achieve this objective by
motivating staff through its remuneration policy to:

—increase the Bank’s net profit after tax; and
— sustain a high relative return on ordinary equity,

Growing net profit after tax and sustaining a high retum on
ordinary equity are fundamental drivers of total shareholder
retums. These twin objectives motivate staff {0 expand existing
businesses and establish promising new actiities.

The second objective is to attract and retain high quality staff.
The Bank aims to achieve this by offering a competitive
performance-driven rermuneration package that encourages both
long-term commitment and superior performance.

The Bank’s financial performance reflects the outstanding efforts
of its staff. The Board believes that this resutlt is largely attributable
to the Bank's remuneration arangements, which have been
carefully designed around certain principles which support the
above remuneration ehjectives (refer section 1.3 below), These
remuneration amangements promote a long term commitment
from staff and ensure that generation of superior retums for
shareholders results in superior rewards for stafi.

Shareholders have benefited from these stellar results. In the
pernod since listing (29 July 1996) to 31 March 2007, the Bark's
total returm o shareholders has been better than any other
company in the ASX Top 50 at the time the Bank listed its shares
on the Australian Stock Exchange {"ASX". A shareholder who
invested $1,000 in the Bank on listing in 1996 and re-invested
dividends would have had an investment worth $19,136 as at
31 March 2007. The Bank's Total Shareholder Retum (TSR} has
therefore been 1,814%. Staff do well when shareholders do well.

The graph below demonstrates the extent to which the Bank's
TSR, since listing, has outperformed the All Ordinaries
Accumulation Index.

Macquarie Bank total shareholder return versus the All Ordinaries Accumulation Index

Macquarie Bank total shareholder return
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This Rermnuneration Report {*Report™ has been prepared to
provide shareholders with an understanding of:

— the competitive remuneration environment within which the Bank
operates, particularly as it continues o grow internaticnally and
increasingly competes for staff with global investment barks and
private equity firns {section 1.2);

— the Bank's remuneration objectives and principles, including how
these have been incorporated into the design of the Bank's
executive remuneration arangements and how successiut the
Bank has been as a consequence (sections 1,3 and 1.4);

— the rermuneration governance framework that is applied 10
remuneration decisions (section 1.5) and the results of the most
recent independent executive remuneration review considered as
an input to the review process {section 1.6);

— the detailed remuneration arangements that apply 1o Executive
Directors (section 2) and Non-Executive Directors {section 3); and

— the remuneration, sharehaldings and optionholdings of the Bank's
Key Management Personnel and other related party transactions
{section 4).

The Board recognises that this is a long and complex Report.
This reflects the length and complexity of the relevant disclosure
requirements as wel as the Bank's recognition of the interest that
has been expressed by varous stakehoiders in understanding the
Bank's remuneration arrangements.

Taking into account feedback received in refation to the 2006
Annual General Mesting, the Bank has made some changes to
this Remuneration Report to better communicate some aspects
of its remuneration policy and arrangements.

1.2 The remuneration environment
The Board considers that the Bank's consisiently
strong performance over time is aftributable to its staff's
outstanding efforts.

As at 31 March 2007 Macguarie had 10,023 staff, including
20.7 per cent of “Director level” staff; being Executive Directors,
Division Directors and Associate Directors.

Composition of staff; 31 March 2007

Executive Directors’ 249 2,076 Director
Division Directors 600 level staff
Associate Directors 1,227 {20.7 per cent)
Other Staff 7.947

Total Staff 10,023

* Including 13 Executive Committee members and/or Executive
Voting Directors.

This Report focuses primarnty on the remuneration arangements
applicable to the Bank’s most senior executives, being the
Executive Directors, with a particular focus on the remuneration
of the 13 Executive Committee Members and Executive Voting
Directors as at 31 March 2007 (referred o collectively in this
Report as “Executive Key Management Personnel”). Information
has also been included on the broader remuneration
arangements that apply to other staff,

Remuneration and other related disclosures for the Executive
Key Management Personnel are provided in section 4.

The Bark is ¢ritically dependent on its staff for its ongoing
performance and hence its returns to shareholders. Like many
professional services organisations, without their skill and
experience, performance and returns {6 shareholders would suffer.
This has atways been the case. However, the challenges have
become even more acute as the Bank has expanded
internationally and increasingly competes for staff in the world’s
major financial centres.

International expansion has been a key driver of growth. 55 per
cent of the Bank's income fexcluding eamings on capital and
after costs, including fee and commission expenses, directly
attributable to earning the income), is now generated from dlients
and activities outside Australia, up from 48 per cent the year
before, The following chart demonstrates the growth in the Bank’s
incorme, highlighting the increasing proportion of incorme derived
from the Bank's international activities. Over the last five years,
international income has grown at a compound annual growth
rate of 55 per cent.
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* Excludes earnings on capital and is after directly attributable
costs including fee and commission expenses.

This international growth is also refiected in the Bank's mix of staff,
with 3,501, or 34.9 per cant of the Bank's employees based
outside Australia at 31 March 2007. This has increased from 688,
being 14.5 per cent of the total as at 31 March 2002, representing
a compound annual growth rate of 38.5 per cent over the last five
years. Many Auslralian-based staff also support the Bank's
international activities, directly or indirectly.
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The following chart demonstrates how offshore Director level staff
numbers have grown over time, with more than one-third of
Diractor level staff now located outside Australia.

Headcount - Director level staff (as at 31 March)
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Because of this rapid international expansion, individual staff
remuneration must be broadly in line with that of the Bank's
competitors, notably investment banks and private equity fims,
based in major financial centres such as New York and London.

The overal remureration levels for the Bank's senior staff are
high relative to most other comparies listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange. However, the redlity of operating a glebal
imvestment bank from Australia is that the overall compensation
for the Bank's senior staff must be internationally competitive.
Losing valued staff for compensation reasons is not in the Bank's
or shareholders' interests.

While the Bank recognisas that remuneration is not the sole
consideration in motivating staff, it is an important factor and

total compensation cannet be significantly out of step with
competilors’ compensation, Investment banks have always been
in direct competition for staff. Continuing industry growth has
created a "talent gap” such that competition for staff is particutarly
strong. In addition, the Bank's globally acknowledged expertise in
specific arsas such as infrastructure has made the Bank's staff
attractive to competitors.

Af the same time, nvestment banks are under growing pressure
from private equity firms, which are increasingly attempting to
recruit investment banking staff. Private equity fims are abte to
offer their staff highly atiractive remuneration packages and
opportunities. In most cases these firms are not subject to the
disclosure requirements that appily 1o listed entities ke the Bank.
Private equity firns provide staff with significant oppaortunities to
eamn high levels of remuneration under camied interest
arrangements which can be more lucrative than the rewards
offered by investment banks,
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The growing competitive pressures for staff have affected the
Bank. The Bank has bheen subject to higher voluntary Director level
turmnover over the last year, with notable increases intemationelly,
particularly in the Americas and Asia, reflecting these growing
competitive pressures, As noted in section 1.4.2 below, the Bank's
overall voluntary turover tor Direcior leved staff rernains relatively
tow at approximately 7 per cent for the year ended 31 March 2007,
out this has increased from less than 5 per cent the previous year.
However, Director level tumover is up {o doutile this Bank-wide
average in the key international regions in which the Bank operates.

1.3 Application of remuneration principles

Section 1.1 above sets out the two objectives that underpin the
Bank's goal of driving shareholder returns over the short and
longer term as follows, namely to align the interests of staif and
shareholders and to attract and retain high quality staff.

The Bank ensures that its approach to remuneration supports the
achievement of these objectives by building its remuneration
arangements around six key principles:

1. To ensure that a significant amount of remuneration is at risk
and sclely dependent on performance.

2. To appropriately motivate staff to focus on shareholder value
creation by linking the profit share pool to the key drivers of
shareholder retums, namely tha Bank’s profitability and retum
on ordinary equity in excess of the cost of capital.

3. To provide for staff equity purchases or option participation
that create identification with shareholder interests.

4. To provide retention and deferral amangements that encourage
a long-term commitment to the Bank and hence 1o
shareholders.

5. To provide remuneration amangements that are competitive on
a global basis with the Bank's peers.

8. To provide consistency over time to ensure staff have the
confidence that efforts over multiple years will be rewarded.

This section outlines how these six key principles are incorporated
in the design of the Bank’s executive remuneration arrangements,
which are explained in detail in section 2,

Principle 1

To ensure that a significant amount of remuneration is at risk and
solgly dependent on perforrnance.

This principie is incorporated in the remuneration system through
the following features:

— the levels of fixed remuneration for senior executives are relatively
low compared to similar roles in non-investment banking
companies; and

— profit share allocations and option grants to individual members
of staff:

- provide substantial incentives for superior performance, but low
or no participation for less satistactory cutcomes;

— are highly variable, as a result; and

— can comprise a high proportion of iotal remuneration in the case
ot superior performance.




Frincipke 2 Principle 4

To appropriately motivate staff to focus on sharehiolder value To provide retention and deferral armangements that encourage a
creation by linking the profit share pool to the key diivers of long-term commitment to the Bank and hence to shareholders.
sharetplder ’e‘”,"’s.’ namely the Bank's "’Oﬁ’a‘?’”’-‘” and retum This principle is incarperated in the remuneration system through
on ordinary equily in excess cf the cost of capital. the tolowing features:

This princ?ple is incorporated in the remuneration system through — the following profit share retention amangements exist for

the following features: Executive Orectors:

— the overall profit share pool is determined as a function of net - 20% of the annual pre-tax profit share allocation is withheld by
profit after tax and excess return on equity; the Bank (subject to a cap determined as twice their average

—the allocation of the podl to individual businesses is based annual remuneration, excluding options, over the last 5 years,
primarily on relative contribution 1o profits, taking into account or three times the average in the case of Executive Committee
capital usage; arcl members);

— subsequent afocations to individuals are determined by - 5 per cent (being the deemed after-tax equivalent of 10 per cent
individual performance and contribution over the year, based pre-tax) of annual profit share allocations over the last 5 years, or
primarity on outcomes contrbuting 16 net profit after tax and 10 years in the case of Executive Committee members, must be
return on ordinary equity. held as unhedged Macquarie Bank shares;

Principle 3 - retained amounts withheld do not start 1o vest until 5 years, and

then vest progressively between 5 arxd 10 vears of service;
~ retained amounts are notionally invested in Macqguarie
funds, partially or wholly, depending on the Executive

To provide for staff equity purchases or aption participation that
creates identification with shareholder interests.

This principle is incorporated in the remuneration system through Director’s responsibilities;
the following features: — the vested] amounts are paid out at 10 years, or earfier; subject
— executive Direclors are required to hold the equivalent of 5% to the following point on forteiture, if the Executive Director
(oeing the deemed after-tax equivalent of 10%) of their annual ceases employment with the Barnk: and -
profit share allocations over the last five years, or 10 years in the ~ the retained amounts are subject to forfeiture for a disqualifying
case of Executive Commitiee membears, in shares which cannot event including dishonesty, breach of duty, joining a competitor
be hedged; or taking a tearm to a competitor;
— options with pesformance hurdles are used, providing Executive — retention provisions also ap_pry tq profit share paym_ents que
Directors with an incentive i maximise the share price and reiurn 10 Stalf who are not Execuiive Directors such ihat highly paid
on ordinary equity; and staff have material amounts retained for between two and four
—various staff share plans are available tc encourage broader staff years; and . ] .
equity participation. — time-based vesting nules apply to options such that options vest

progressively in three equal franches between two and four years,
with an average vesting pericd of three years.

The following diagram summarises the way that the vesting
profies of options and profit share retention interact for

Executive Directors:
Options granted One-thirld  One-third  One-third
on promaotion 1o vests” vests” vesis”
Executive Director 5 1l L
One-sixth
Ong-sixth One-sixth One-sixth One-sixth One-sixth  vests and
Directors' Profit vests but vestsbut vestsbut vestsbut  vestsbut  retained
Share Entitlernent notpaid notpaid notpaid notpaid notpad amount
out out out out out paid out
N l 4 1 1 {
Initial Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10
Allocation

' * Vesting of options is also subject to satisfaction of the relevant performance hurdie.

If an Executive Director leaves prior to the end of the ten year period then any vested retained amounts may be paid out earfier subject to
a determination as 1o whether any disqualifying events have occumed (refer section 2.3.4).
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31 March 2007 continued

The following table sets out the 2007 average short-term versus
long-term spiit of remuneration for the Executive Key Management
Personnel, excluding the three individuals ceasing executive duties
at the end of tha year (who will not be granted 2007 options and
to whiorm the minimum shareholding guidelines applicable to
Executive Cirectors no longer apply):

2007 Composition of Remuneration: Short-term vs Long-term
%

Fixed remuneration 3.1
Directors' Profit Share - upfront® 62.6

Cireciors’ Profit Share - retaired 17.8
34.3 Long-term

] 65.7 short-tem

Minimurm shareholding requirement” 8.9

Options® 7.6
Total 100.0
* For the purpose of this table:

— eamings on prior year restncted profit share, which is explained in
section 4.2, are excluded,

—itis assumed that additional shares are required to be purchased
to meet the minimum shareholding requirement — these are netted
against upfront Directors’ Profit Share on a pre-tax basis,
assuming that the top marginal rate of tax of 46.5 per cent
(including Medicare levy) applies; and

— proposed 2007 options grants are valued based on an estimate of
what their fair value would have been had they been granted on
31 March 2007 with an exercise price equal {o the closing share
price on 31 March 2007, applying the same methodology as
outlined in section 4.4 below.
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Principle 5
To provide remuneration ammangements that are competitive on
a global basis with the Bank's peers.

As discussed in section 1.2 above, the competitive environment
has intensified, with investment banks and private equity fims
increasingly competing with one another for staff. The growth in
the Bank's international activities has further exposed the Bank to
this competition for staff.

To assist with assessing the competitiveness of remuneration
levels, the Board Remuneration Commitiee, on behali of the
Independent Directors of the Bank, regularty commissions a report
by a US office of Towers Perrin, which has expertise in
compensation design for financial services fims. Such a report
was commissioned in 2007. Towers Pemin's most recent findings
are included at section 1.6 of this report.

One of the benchmarks used by Towers Perin, and imvestment
banks more generaly, to assess overall remuneration is the
organisation’s compensation expense to income ratio
(“compensation ratio”}.

Macquarie's compensation ratio is compared with that of a group
of inlemational investment banking competitors in the chart below:

2006/2007 Compensation expenses as a percentage
of net income

based on most recent statutory accounts/filings

%

80

70

Major international investrnent banking competitors

Macquarie




Competitors comprise Babcock & Brown, Bear Steans, Credit
Suisse (Investment Banking segment), Deutsche Bank, Goldman

The Board believes that Macquania's position within the range
of competitor outcomes is appropriate given the following:

Sachs, Lehman Brothers, Merill Lynch, Morgan Stanley, and UBS the Bank has a different business mix com with the

(Investrment Bank segment). Competitors have been presented in
the same order throughakn this Report, although this is not
necessarly the order in which they are alphabetically foctnoted.

Data in the above chart has been calculated by the Bank. This
analysis is based on the Bank's revised incorme statement
presentation. This presentation accords more closely with the
presentation approach adopied by most of the Bank's
international investment banking competitors. Adjustments have
been mace in preparing the above chart where considered 1o be
appropriate. However, there is no way to fully ensure that tha
information is consistent.

This chart shows that the Bank's remuneration is within the same
broad range as the competitor group. Over time, this has also
been the case. This demonstrates that the Bank's remuneration
policies, including the approach to determining profit share,
operate in a manner which yields remuneration outcomes in ling
with the Bank's global competitors.

While the compensation ratic effectively adjusts for difierences in
size batween organisations, it is not a perfect measure to use in
assessing compensation levels because it does not 1ake into
account factors such as:

—the impact of differences in the business mix between comparator

organisations;

— performance differences between organisations, including such
factors as capital usage and quality of earnings;

— different accounting practices used by comparator
organisations; and

—differences in outsourcing approaches.

The compensation ratio should therefore be treated as a guide.

competitor group, for example the specialist funds management
businesses; and

— the Bank's performance has been superior to its competitors

over time:

— its net profit after tax attributable to ordinary equityhoiders has
grown at a compound average growth rate of 28.7 per cent over
the last ten years, higher than that of its competitors {refer “Net
Profit After Tax 10 Year Compourxd Annual Growth Rate” chart in
section 1.4.1);

— its return on ordinary equity has been at or close to the top of
the competitor group over several different timeframes as
prasented in the Return on Equity table in section 1.4.1,
reflecting the Bank's effective capital usage; and

- its total sharehoider return of 1,814% since listing is higher than
the competitor group {refer “Total Shareholder Retumn since
July 1996" chart in section 1.4.1).

Principle 6

To provide consistency over time 1o ensure staff have the

configence that efforts over muftiple years will be rewarded.

Many initiatives on which staff work can take a long time —
sometimes years —to come {0 fruition. Because the Bank's
remuneration system is outcomes driven, profit share allocatons
for transactions and business development activities that are “in
progress” are low. Staff must, therefore, have confidence that
when a transaction is cornpleted potentially some years later, the
remuneration system will recognise successful outcomes in the
way they anticipated at the outset of the transaction. This requires
consistency in the remuneration approach over time.

The Bank has been successiul over a long penod in building new
businesses. The long-term view in building these businesses
reflects staff confidence in the remuneration approach.

Such consistency has been achigved by incremental change,

without the need for drarnatic agjustments to remuneration
policies in any one year.
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1.4 Success in achieving remuneration objectives

This section provides an assessment of the success of the Bank's remuneration approach in achieving sach of the two

remuneration objectives:

— aligning the interests of staff and shareholders, and
— attracting and retaining high quality staff,

1.4.1 Aligning the interests of staff and shareholders

The Board considers that the remuneration approach and its consistency over time have been significant factors in maximising the Bank’s
growth in eamings and its returm on equity. This has, in turn, driven total returns to shareholders. The success of the Bank’s remuneration
approach in fulfiling the objective of aligning the interests of staff and shareholders should be assessed against the three critical

benchmarks of;

— 8amings;

—return on equity; and

— total retums to shareholders.
Year-on-year performance over the past five years has been as follows:

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Eamings
Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary equityholders ($ milions) 333 494 B12 916 1,463
Basic Eamings per Share (cents per sharg) 164.8 2330 369.6 400.3 591.6
Returr on equity
Return on average ordinary shareholders' funds 18.0% 223% 29.8% 26.0% 28.1%
Tota! retums to sharehoiders
Dividend - interim and final {cents per share) 83 122 161 215 315
Dwidend - special {cents per share) 50 — 40 — —
Share price at 31 March (%) 24,70 35.80 48.03 64.68 82.75
Annual Total Shareholder Return (23.1%) 52.8% 39.0% 40.2% 32.6%

The Bank's performance is also impressive when measured over longer periods of time. The Bank's performance on these same
measures over five years and ten years are summarised in the table below:

Increase over:

1997 2002 2007 5years 10 years
Eamings
Net profit after tax attributable ta ordinary equityholders ($ millions) 117 250 1,463 485% 1,150%
Basic Earnings per Share {cents per share} 749 132.8 56 345% 690%
Retumn on equity
Return on average ordinary shareholders” funds 25.5% 18.7% 28.1%
Total retums to sharehoiders
Dividend ~ interim and final (cents per share) 43 93 35 239% 633%
Share price at 31 March (%) 8.50 33.26 B82.75 148% B74%
5 Year Total Shareholder Retumn 203.7%
10 Year Total Shareholder Retum: 1,331.6%
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Over the last year, executive remuneration has increased broadly in line with the growth in key financial parformance measures,
demonstrating the way the executive remuneration arangements operate such that sharehoiders and staff have shared in the

Bank's success:

2006 2007 Increase
Performance Measures
Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary equityhoiders {$ millions) 916 1,463 60%
Basic Earnings per Share (cents per share} 400.3 5916 48%
Return on average ordinary shareholders’ funds 26.0% 28.1%
Executive Compensation
Remuneration — Executive Key Management Personnel® (8 millions) 137.2 2071 51%
Remuneration excluding sarnings on restricted
profit share — Executive Key Management Personnel® (§ millions) 134.8 1933 43%
Total Compensation Expense** {$ milions) 2,286 3,579 57%

' Refer Section 4.2 below
** Refer note 2 of the 2007 Financial Report

The data included above demonstrates that the Bank has clearly performed strongly on each key performance measure over time.

This is further supported by the information included in the remainder of this section.

Some comparisons are made below with international investment banks and ASX-lisied reference groups. Private equity comparisons
might be more appropriate. However, the relevant data is not available,

Eamings

The graph below sets out the Bank's profit growth since 1997, the
financial year in which it fisted. The Bank's profit has grown from
$117 milion to $1,483 milion over the intervening ten years,
representing a compound annual growth rate of 28.7 per cent.

Net profit after tax attibutable to ordinary equityholders
S million

Not only is this a particularly strong level of absolute earnings
growth, it is a higher level of growth than that achieved by the
Bank's international investment banking competitors, as
demonstrated by the following chart:

Net profit after tax 10 year compound annual growth rate
Macquarie versus international investment banking competitors
%
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Macquarie

Competitors comprise Bear Stearns, Deutsche Bank, Goldman
Sachs, Lehman Brothers, Merrill Lynch and Morgan Stanley.
Competitors which have been included in comparative analysis
elsewhere in this Report but which have not continuously reported
results over ten years or which reported a loss ten years ago have
been excluded from this chart, ie. Babcock & Brown, Credit
Suisse and UBS.
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Return on Equity

The Bank's Return on Equity (*ROE") performance has been strong relative to ASX 100 listed companies. As indicated in section 2.4.3.4,
which describes the Bank’s option performance hurdie, the Bank's three year average RCE is well in excess of the 65th percentile of the
companies comprising the S&P/ASX 300 Industrials Index as well as the companies comprising the S8F/ASX 100 Index.

The Bank's ROE is required to be above the 65th percentile of companies within the S&F/ASX 100 Index to satisfy the performance
hurgle on the options for members of the Bank's Executive Committee granted during the year.

The following table demonsirates that over several difierent timeframes, Macquarie’s retum on equity has also been consistently high
relative to its international investment banking competitors.

Retum on Equity

1Year 3Year Average 5 Year Average 10 Year Average'

% % % %

Macquarie 282 275 25.1 253
Average of Competiiars 247 206 16.1 17.4
Competitor 319 255 N/A N/A
Competitor 183 16.8 16.8 16.9
Competitor 26.4 1941 9.0 10.0
Competitor 19.1 136 93 1.3
Competitor 319 244 19.9 249
Competitor 233 210 18.1 18.4
Competitor 212 17.3 15.7 170
Competitor 235 19.2 176 214
Competitor 262 28.4 22.1 19.4

1 Average of most recent ten years, except in cases where ten years of continuous data is not available for a competitor, in which case

the longest time pericd for which continuous data is available for that competitor has been used.

Competitors comprise Babcock & Brown, Bear Stearns, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs, Lehman Brothers,

Merrill Lynch, Morgan Stanley and UBS.

Sourca: Undertying data from Bloomberg (except MBL 1 year ROE calculated based on 2007 data which was not released at the date
of this report). Bloomberg methodology for calcutating return on equity differs to the Macquarie methodology used elsewhers in the
Remuneration Report. Macquarie's data above has been caloulated using the Bloomberg methodology to enhance comparability of
information between organisations.

The Bank is well capitalised and these strong ROE results reflect the Bank'’s very effective capital usage which, in combination with the
high levels of eamings growth noted above, assists in driving shareholder returns.
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Retumns to shareholders
Section 1.1 highlighted the Bank’s outstanding TSR performance since listing refative to @ measure of the perfomance of the overall
Australian market.

The Bank’s refative performance is even more Impressive when exarnined against individual companies. The following chart shows that
the Bank's TSR over the period since listing has been clearly superior 1o that of the next best performing companies that were in the AGX
Top 50 at the time the Bank listed in July 1996, as well as against the Bank's international investrment banking competitors.

Total shareholder return since July 1996
MBL, other top performing ASX50 companies,
international investment banking competitors

%
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International Investrment Banking Competitors comprise Bear Steams, Creait Suisse, Deutsche Bank, Lehman Brothers, Merril Lynch,
Morgan Stanley and UBS. Competitors which have been included in comparative analysis elsewhere in this Report but which have not
been continuously listed since MBLs date of listing (29 July 1996) have been excluded from this chan, ie. Babcock & Brown and
Goldman Sachs.

All of these indicators suggest that Macquarnie has shown superior performance over all timeframes.
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1.4.2 Attracting and retaining high quality staff

Macquarie has a highly engaged workforce. Engagement at
Macquarie is measured bi-annually via a bank-wide staff survey.
Macquarie's most recent staff engagement survey was conducted
in August/Septermber 2006 with the assistance of ISR, a global
employee research and consulting firm. Macguarie significantly
outperformed relevant external nom groups in most categories,
inciuding the Global Investment Banking nom and the Global
High Performance norm. Overall, engagement increased on the
already strong results of the previous survey conducted in 2004,

The link between engagement and profitabiiity is compeliing with
highly engaged organisations realising significant benefits in
retention and performance.

The Bank's high levels of retention are reflected through its

low tumover rates, with voluntary Director level tumover of
approximately 7 per cent over the year ended 31 March 2007,
although this has increased from kess than 5 per cent in the
previous year,

The tenurg distribution of staff at the Director level as at 31 March
2007 is surmmarised in the following chart. This measure includes
accumulated service at acquired companies, for example Bankers
Trust Investment Bank and ING's Asian Equities business.

In spite of the Bank's rapid growth in recent years, this measure
shows that, as at 31 March 2007, one-guarter of Director level
staff had at least ten years service with the Bank and over 30 per
cent had between five and ten years service.

Directors' tenure

Below 3 yrs 32%

10 yrs+ 25%

5 yrs-10 yrs 32%

3yrs-5yrs 1%
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1.5 Remuneration governance

The Board of Directors has oversight of the Bank's remuneration
arangements. It has established a Board Rermuneration
Committee whose objective is to assist the Board with the Bank's
remuneration policies and practices.

The Board Remuneration Committee cumentty comprises:

H.M. Nugent Chaimman  Independent Non-Executive Diractor
JG. Alpass  Member  Independent Non-Executive Director
D.S. Clarke Member  Non-Executive Chainman

PM. Kirby Member  Independent Non-Executive Director

The Board Remuneration Commitiee has a regular meeting cycle
and meets more often as needed. The Board Remuneration
Committee met six times over the last financial year with all
members in attendance at each meeting.

The responsibilities of the Board Remuneration Committee are set
out in a formal charter which is available on the Bank’s website.

Board oversight of the approval framework for remunesation
recommendations can be summarised as follows:

The Independent Directors of the Board approve the following,
on the recommendation of the Board Remuneration Committee:

— all individual rernuneration/profit share recommendations for
members of the Executive Committeg and other Executive
Voting Directors (including the Chairman, in relation to the period
prior t¢ his retirerment from the Executive Committee, and the
Managing Director);

- all individual performance option grants to members of the
Executive Commitiee, with the proviso that grants 1o Executive
Yoting Directars (including the Managing Director) must be
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Mesting; and

— other rmuneration recommendations relating to individuals or
groups of individuals which are disclosed or are significant
because of their sensitivity or precedent implications.

Subject to the appropriate management of conflict of interest
issues, the Beard of Directors approve the following on the
recommendation of the Board Remuneration Committes:

— determination of the total option pool avaiable for annual
performance/promotion grants to staff;

— material changes tc the recruitment, retention and termination
policies and procedures for the Bank's senior management team
{Executive Committee and other Group Heads);

- recommendations relating to the remuneration framework for the
Bank, including in relation to the Bank's Non-Executive Directors;

—appropriate levels of delegated responsibifity from the Bank’s
Board to management for remuneration-related policy and
practice decisions;

—remuneration recormmendations relating to Non-Executive
Directors;

—the continuing use of the approach for the creation of the
annual profit share pool; and

= other material changes to remuneration policies.




The Board Remuneration Committee approves the
following matters:

— &l indwvidual remuneration/profit share recommendations for
Executive Directors, other than those required to be approved
by the independent Directors of the Board as noted above;

— alt individual promation/performance options grants to staff other
than those designated above;

— remuneration recommendations made outside of policy relating
to individuals or groups of individuals (unless required to be
approved by the Board);

— material changes to superannuation/pension aangements; and

— changes to remuneration policies not requinng Board aporoval.

The Board has adopted stringent internal guidelines on dectaring
and dealing with conflicts of interest. These are nigidly followed by
the Board Remuneration Committee.

This remuneration governance framework ensures that
remurneration recommendations relating to staff at various levels
of senicrity rust be approved at an appropriate level of authority.

Executive Remuneration recommendations (fixec
Committee ramuneration, profit share alocations and
members/ options allocations) approved by the
Executive Voting | Independent Directors of the Board,
Directors subject to sharencider appraval for options
{Executive Key grants to Executive Voting Directors.
Management

Personnel)

Other Executive Remuneration recommendations {fixed
Directors remuneration, profit share allocations and

options allocations) approved by the
Board Remuneration Committee.

Division Directors/ | Remuneration recommendations

Associate approved by the Board Remuneration

Directors Committee (fixed remuneration increases
and profit share allocations approved in
aggregate and options allocations
approved individually).

Other Staff Remuneration recommendations (fixed

remuneration and profit share) approved
by the Board Remuneration Commitiee

in aggregate.

The Board Remuneration Committee has acoess o senior
managament of the Bank and obtains the advice of external
consultants on the appropriateness of remuneration packages
and other employment condiitions as required.

1.6 Independent remuneration reviews
In 2007, the Board Remuneration Cormmittee, on behalf of the
Independent Directors of the Bank, commissioned an
independent review of Executive Director rermuneration from a
US office of the global remuneration consuttants, Towers Perrin.

The review considered the averall approach {0 remuneration, the
extent of alignment with shareholder interests and a comparison
of individual remuneration for senior executives where relevant
competitor information was avaiable.

Findings from the review include that:

— Macquarie has used essentially the samea remuneration system
since the Bank was founded;

— the objectives on which Macquarie’s remungration system are buitt
are similar to those cited in other leading global investment banks;

—Magqguarnie's remuneration system:

- has assisted Macquarie’s top-of-market total sharenclder return,
retum on equity and earnings growth over the past decade:

- has helped ensure that pay and performance are linked
tightly; and

— has several means to align executive reward and shareholdes
value creation;

— Macquarie's remuneration governance process is similar to that in
place at Macquarie’s peer US investment banks;

— Magcquane's remuneration Components SUpPOrt its remuneration
principies and are very much in line with practices at peer global
investrment banks, including that:

- fixed remuneration is modest refative 10 total compensation, the
bulk of which is delivered through variable means (arnual and
long-term incentives);

— Macquarie's annual profit share is based on profit and return
on equity simitar to other investment banks,

— incliviclual profit share awards 0 executives are highly
differentiated by individual contribution and resutis;

— a portion of profit share is invested in equity and withheld for
several years,

- executives Must maintain an equity stake in the comparty; and

— equity-based compensation (in the form of MBL options) is used
as a long-term incentive for executives,

— Macguarie's deferred profit share arrangements impose a
longer vesting period than most of its international investrment
bankirg competitors;

— Macquane uses performance hurdles on its options for
Executive Direciors whereas typical US practice is either to have
options vest solely after the fulfiment of senvice requirements, or
to use restricted shares which also typically vest solely based on
senvice; and

— Macquarie’s total remuneration as a percent of income or earings
before tax is in the sama general range as that of peer global
investment banks.

As a result of the review, and after critically evaluating the analyses
and conclusions, the Independent Directors of the Board wese
satisfied that, for senior management, compensation was
appropriate and that it was structured in a way that encouraged
the overall objective of driving short and longer tern shareholder
retumns by aligning the imerests of staff with those of shareholders
and by attracting and retaining high quality staff.
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31 Marcn 2007 continued

Following a rigorous and comprehensive review, the Independent 2. Executive remuneration arangements
Directors of the Board concluded that the overall remuneration 2.1 Overview of executive remuneration arangements

approach and the basis on which the profit share pool was This section describes the remuneration structure for all Executive
deterrnined had served the Bank and its shareholders well and Directors, which includes individuals that have been disclosed in
should be continued for the coming year. the tables in section 4, and the basis on which their remuneration

is determined. These remuneration amangements are broadly
consistent with those applied to all Bank staff.

The following diagram summarises the key features of the Bank's
exacutive remuneration arangements, including the three key
components of executive remuneration: fixed remuneration, an
annual profit share aflocation and option participation.

Overview of executive remuneration ammangements

Component Reference  Applicability Key features

Fixed Section2.2 Al staff —Fixed remuneration can be modest when comparad 1o similar roles in other

Remuneration non-investment banking organisations.

Profit Share Section2.3 Al staff ~—Bank-wide profit sharing pool is created based on afier tax profits and eamings
in excess of cost of capital.

—Allocation of profit share is based on performance, primariy reflecting relative
contributions to profits, taking into account capital usage.
—For Executive Directors:
- 20% is retained, with vasting on a straight ling basis between years 5 and 10;
- retained amounts are notionally invested in Macquarie-managed specialist
funds, and sometimes also cash, depending on role. Notional investment retums
thereon required to be reported as additional remuneration 1o the Executive
Directors;and
- payment of vested amounts is not made until the earfier of cessation of
employment at the end of a 10 year period, with payment also subject to
consideration of whether a disqualifying event has occurmed (whereby even
vested retained DPS may be forfeited).

Options Section Diractor —Board approves a maximurm number annually,
243 level staff — Allocations approved via the same process as the annual profit share gllocation.

—Five-year options issued for no consideration with an exercisa price set at the
prevailing market price, vesting in equal portions after 2, 3 and 4 years, i.e. average
vesting at 3 years.

—Executive Director options subject to performance hurdle based on 3 year average
return on ordinary equity relative 10 a reference group.

—Executive Directors are forbidden from hedging unvested options.

Minimum Section Execitive —Minimurm shareholding requirerment imposed with reference to recent DPS history.
Shareholding 2.4.2 Directors —These shares cannot be hedged.
Requirement
Share Plans Section Eligible —Under the Employee Share Plan, eligible employees offered up to $1,000 of shares
244 Australian funded from pre-tax avaiiable profit share.
staff —Under the Macquarie Bank Staff Share Acquisition Plan, eligible employess can

apply some pre-tax available profit share to buy shares.
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2.2 Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration takes into consideration the role and market
conditions. However, fundamental to the Bank's remuneration
philosophy is the principle that a significant amount of
rermuneration is at risk and dependent upon perfarmance.
Consequently the fixed companent can be low when compared
to simitar roles in Gther non-investment banking organisations,
particularty for Executive Directors. The table in section 1.3 shows
that this is approximately 3 per cent of total remuneration for the
average Executive Key Management Person.

2.3 Annual profit share

2.3.1 Overview

To encourage superior performance, the Bank has a profit share
scheme for staff, the fundamental principles of which have applied
since the Bank’s inception. The size of the profit sharing pool is
determined annually by reference to the Bank's after-tax profits
and its eamings over and above the estimated cost of capital.

The basis on which the profit share peol is created has been
stress tested under a varnety of profit and retum on equity
scenarios which indicate that the resuiting compensation ratio is
likedy to rernain broadly within the sarme bounds as for major
global investrment banks (refer compensation ratio analysis in
section 1.3), being an approximate range of 50 10 55 per cent.

Allocation of the total profit sharing pool to individuals is based on
their performance and contribution over the year and is subject to
an approval framework. Profit share deferral and restriction
amangements also apply.

The affect of this profit sharing mechanism is to provide substantial

incentives in relation to superior profitability, but low or no
participation for less satisfactory performance. For senior
executives, this means that a large part of their remuneration each
year is ‘at risk” and performance based (although ne specific
incividual performance conditions apply), providing significant
aignment of their interests with those of shareholders.

The whole of the profit sharing provision for a financial year is
charged against eamings in that year.

2.3.2 Determination

Thie proportion of after-tax profit and the proportion of eamings in
excess of the Bank’s cost of capital that are used 1o calculate the
profit share pool e raviewed at least annually. The need for, and
any subsequent changes, are reviewed by the Beard
Remuneration Commitiee. The Independent Directors of the
Board make a decision based on the recommendation of the
Board Remuneration Committee.

Net profit after tax and return on ordinary equity were selected
as the most appropriate performance mesasures for the
following reasons:

—they are correlated over time with total shareholder returns.

This relationship has heen re-affimned recently by independent
remuneration consultanis, Towers Perin, in their review of
Macquarie's remuneration approach;

—a pool accrues only when results ane recognised and flow 10

Macquarie's operating profits;

— they provide an appropriate incentive because they are elements

of performance over which the executives can exercise
considerable control; and

— net profit after tax and return on ordinary equity can both be

substantiated using information that is disclosed in audited
financial accounts, providing confidence in the integrity of the
remuneration system from the perspective of both sharehalders
and staff.

The Independent Directors of the Board have certain discretions,
as follows:

— to change the quanturn of the pool to reflect exdernal factors

if deermed to be in the Bank's and shareholders’ interests.
Historically, the Board has made no material alteration 1o the
quantum of the profit share pool, and

—10 defer the payrnent of profit share amounts to a subsequent year

at a Group, business or individual level where it is in the interests of
the Bank arkl shareholders 1o do so. The Independent Direclors
of the Board have exercised their discretion in refation to deferral,
inchuding for 2005, 2006 and 2007. However, the deferred
amounts are always expensed in the year in which the profits

are generated.

2.3.3 Allocation

The profit sharing pool is aliocated to business areas based
orimarily on relative contribution to profits taking into account
capital usage, and then to individugis within the business areas.

Allocations to individuals are based on their performance and
contribution over the year. Indiviciual profit share allocations are
primarity linked to outcomes actually achieved in the current year
that contribute directly to net profit after tax and excess return on
ordinary equity, the drivers that determine the total profit sharing
pool and returns to shareholders.

Staff whose performance is less directly linked with such
perfomance measures are aiso rewarded in line with their
performance as measured on a basis that is appropriate for their
role. Staff working in support areas may, for example, be rewarded
on the basis of their contribution to the Bank's financial reporting
or risk management processes, information systems, and so on.

The Board and management seek to ensure that remuneration for
staff in pruclential roles is determined in a way that preserves the
independence of the function and maintaing the Bark's robust risk
managerment framework.
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Arrangements are also in place to ensure that performance-based

remuneration is appropriately allocated to the individuals who
contributed 1o particular transactions. Therefore, businesses may

further recognise cross-divisional contributions by allocating part of

their profit share pool to certain indviduals in other areas of the
Bank who have contributed strongly to their success.

The Bank ensures that outstanding performance is appropriately
recognised and rewarded through a number of means.

At Macquarie, performance appraisals form a key part of the
process of performance measurement, goal-setting for the
ensuing year and ongoing career development of staff.

All staff are required to have at lsast one formal appraisal session
with their manager each year. Outcomes from this process
comprise a key input to determinations in relation to each
individual's remuneration, in particular the aflocation of any
performance-based remuneration in the form of profit share and,
if they are of a Director level, an options grant.

In addition to remuneration, strong performance may also be
rewarded through promotion. Advancement is based on merit
without discrimination or bias. Advancement is not based on the
length of service.

The three Director level tilles are Executive Director, Divsion
Direcior and Associate Director and apply Bank-wide.
Appointments to these Director levels are made annually, with
reference to internal expectations concemning the following:

— functional expertise and expanience, including cross-divisicnal
teamwork and client focus:;

— pecple leadership; and

— upholding Macquarie's Goals and Values.
Decisions on profit share allocations o individual Executive
Directors occur after consultation between the Managing Director

and the relevant Group Head. Individual profit share allocations are

approved for Executive Directors as follows:

—recommendations relating to the Chairman {for the period prior to
his retirement from executive responsibilities), Managing Director,
other Executive Committee members and any other Voting
Executive Directors of the Bank are approved by the Independent
Directors of the Board on the recommendation of the Board
Remuneration Committee; and

—recommendations relating to all other Executive Directors are
approved by the Board Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board.

in approving the prefit share allocations to the Managing Director
and the Chairman, the Independent Directors give consideration

to an annual self-assessment presented by the Managing Director

and the Chairnan. This self-assessment discusses their
performance as demonstrated by a range of indicators including
financial performance measures, strategic initiatives, staff and
human relations indicators, prudential and compliance
performance, reputation managemesnt and menitorng and
community and social responsibility matters.
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2.3.4 Retention

Profit share deferral and restriction arangements on part of the
annual profit share exist to encourage a long-term perspeciive and
commitment from employees. [t also encourages alignment with
the longer term interests of shareholders. These Directors' Profit
Share (‘DPS") arrangements exist for the 249 staff at the Executive
Director level {including all the individual executives named in the
tables in section 4.2).

Changes te the DPS arangements were approved by
shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting. The DPS Plan,
under which retention operates on a pre-tax basis, was introduced
to reduce the complexity of the retention amangements and assist
with compliance requirements in the increasing number of
international jurisdictions in which the Bank now operates.

The DPS Plan remains a fundamental tool in the Bank's retention
and alignment strategies, encompassing both long-term retention
arangements, as described in the remainder of this section, and
minimum shareholding requirements, as described in section
2.4.2 below.

Under new DPS Plan, 20% of each Exscutive Director's annual
gross cash incentive is withheld and is subject to restrictions,

The amounts retained under the DPS Plan begin to vest after five
years of service as an Executive Director and fully vest after

10 years (refer diagram in section 1.3). Vested amounts are then
released to an Executive Director at the earliest of the Executive
Director ceasing employment or the end of a 10 year period.

Assuming continued employrment with the Bank, a rolling 10 year
retention always exists €.g. amounts retained in year 1 will be
released in yaar 11, amounts retained in year 2 will be mleased in
year 12, and so on.

The retained amounts are subject to forfeiture shoud a
disqualifying event occur. An Executive Director will not be entitied
to any of their Retained DPS (or any future notional income or
capital growth on their Retained DPS) if the Board or the Executive
Committes, in its absolute discretion, determines that the
Executive has:

—committed an act of dishonesty; or
— commitied a significant and wilful breach of duty that causes

significant damage to the Bank; or

—left employment with the Bank to join a competitor of the group; or
—taken a teamn of siaff to a competitor or been instrumental in

causing a team to go to a competitor.




The retained amounts for Executive Directors are notionally
invested over the retention period. This investment is descnbed as
“notional” because the Executive Directors do not directty hold
securties in relation 10 this investrment. However, the value of the
retained amounts will vary as if these amounts were directly
invested in actual securities, giving the Executive Directors an
effective sconomic expasure to the performance of the securities.

The Executive Committee makes an annual determination as 1o
how each Executive Director's retained DPS for that year should be
notionally invested by the Bark. In making this determination, the
Executive Cormmitiee takes into account the recommerxdations of
the relevant Group Heads and applies the following general
principles that were established by the Board Remuneration
Committee in 2006 under a delegation from the Board:

—retained OPS for Executive Directors who are involved in the
management of a particular fund (e.9. the CEO of a fund), will be
100 per cent notionally invested in the: fund;

— retained DPS for Executive Directors who are invoived more
gererally in the management of one of Macquarie's funds
businesses, incuding certain Group Heads, will be 100 per cent
notionally invested in a portfalio of funds managed by that
particular business;

— ratained DPS for other Executive Committee members will be 100
per cent notionally invested in a general portfolio of specialist funds
managed by the Bank;

— retained DPS for Executive Directors who provide oiber senvices to
particular funds businesses {e.g. advisory services), will be 100 per
cent notionally invested in a portfolio ¢f funds managed by that
particular business; and

— retained DPS for all other Executive Directors will be notionally
invested in a general portfolio comprising & mix of cash and equity
investments in varicus specialist funds managed by the Bank.

Notional retums on these amounts may be paid annually 1o
Executive Directors, and these amounts are required to be
disclosed as remuneration for Key Management Personnel.

The Retained DPS arrangements described above create an
additonal degree of alignment for these Executive Directors. Al
Executive Directors have at least part of the value of their Retained
DPS aligned to the performance of the Bank's specialist funds, in
recognition of the significance to the Bank of these activities.

The DPS Plan replaced the DPS Trust Scheme which operated
frorm 19398 1o 2004, Under the former DPS Trust Scheme, the
retention arangements cperated on a post-tax basis and
Executive Directors wera required to hold Bank shares within the
Scheme. All balances held under the former DPS Trust Scheme
are being transitioned to the DPS Plan under transition
arangements which ensure the required balances are retained.

2.4 Equity
2.4.1 Overview of the use of equity
Rationale for the equity amangements in place
Principle 3 outlined in section 1.3 above indicated the Bank's
commitment to creating alignment with sharehokiers by
encouraging equity purchases and option participation. Section
2.4 describes the Bank's arangements for achieving this
abgnment with shareholder interests through equity participation.

Use of equity, including options, is common market practice in
investment banking for senior executive remuneration i¢ ensure
a strong motivation exists to increase the market value of
shares. This ensures significant alignment with longer term
shareholder interests.

The Bank provides options to Director level stalf on the basis
described in section 2.4.3 betow. Ontions are allocated to new
Directors to provide them with an immediate exposure when they
join the Bank or are promoted to a new Director level. Options are
also allccated annually ta reward good performance.

Options perform a number of critical functions:

—they are a reward for past performance, béing a key component
of “at risk” annual remuneration - they are allocated each year to
Director keved staff in recognition of good performance;

— they provide a long-term equity incentive by encouraging Direcior
level staff 1o contribute to the Bank's activities in a way that shouid
collectively lead to share price appreciation, which is a direct
henefit to sharehclders; and

— they encourage retention of Director level staff over the relevant
senvice period, with annual allocations ensuring that Directors
generally have a number of unvested oplions at a point in time
{section 1.3 above includes an ilustration of the way that the
option vesting arrangements interiock with the vesting profie ot
Retained DPS for Executive Directors to create a vesting
continuum aver 1en yearsy.

The Board Rermuneration Cornmittee and the Independent
Directors of the Board believe that options are the most
appropniate form of long-term equity incentive to reinforce
alignment with shareholders’ interests. Although options are
dilutive if exercised, no economic cost occurs to shareholders
if they are not exercised.

The appropdateness of using options has been reviewed on a
numbier of oocasions by the Independent Directors of the Board
and continues to be deemed appropniate.

As noted in the Executive Remuneration review performed by
the independent remuneration consuttants, Towers Perin, the
option plans of most global Investment Banks do not incorporate
performance hurdles. In confrast, Macquarie impeses
performance hurdles on Executive Director options, as outlined

in section 2.4.3.4 below.

For Executive Directors, options are used in conjunction with
minimum shareholding guidelines to achieve direct alignment with
shareholder interests over the long term. Under these mirimum
shareholding guidelines, Executive Directors are required 1o
acquire and hold a certain number of shares defermnined with
reference 10 therr recent profit share history as outlined in section
2.4.2 betow. This is akin to the mandatory investment of part of
the annual profit share allocation into MBL shares.
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In the interests of encouraging a broader level of equity
participation across the Bank, other staff share plans are made
available as noted in section 2.4.4 below.

Restrictions on trading

Macquarie'’s employees are bound by the restrictions imposed
by the Trading Policy which is avattable on the Bank’s website,
These restrictions inciude a requirement that employees may
only deal in a Macquarie Bank security during designated staff
"trading windows" (which have conventionally followed the
release of the Bank's interim results, final results and the
Annual General Meeting).

Hedging
Executive Directors are not permitted to hedge the
following interests:

—shares held in accordance with the minimum shareholding
guidelines as set out in section 2.4.2 below; and
—unvested options.

Therefore, Executive Directors are only permitted to hedge the
foliowing interests:

—shares held in excess of the number required to meet minimum
shareholdings guidelines; and

— options which have previously vested because the minimum
sarvice period and relevant performance hurdles, as described
in section 2.4.3 below, have been satisfied,

To the extent that any such permitted hedging activity is
undertaken, the transaction must be entered into with Macquarie
and notified to the Bank’s Compliance function.

In accordance with the Bank's Trading Policy, Executive

Directors are required to conduct any trading or hedging activities
in @ Macquarie Bank Security through the Bank, allowing
appropriate monitoring of these amangements. Such activities are
also gaovemned by the Bank's Trading Policy in relation to the
requirement 1o trade within designated trading windows.
Disclosures

Equity holdings of the Bank's Key Management Personnel are
disclosed in sections 4.4 and 4.5 below, in relation to options and
share respectively. Section 4.7 discloses hedging transactions
entered into by Key Management Personnel as permitted under
these rules.
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2.4.2 Shareholding requirements

Section 2.3.4 above summarised the operation of the DPS Flan in
relation to the requirement for a portion of each Executive
Director's DS allocation to be withheld subject to restrictions.

The DPS Plan also imposes on Executive Directors a requirement
to hold MBL shares equivalent to the aggregate of 5 per cent
{being the deemed after-tax equivalent of 10 per cent) of their
annual gross DPS allocation for the past 5 years {for the wider
Executive Director population) or 10 years {for Executive
Committee members).

These requirements are being phased in and apply from the 2004
DPS allocation (or for new Executive Directors from their first DPS
year} such that it is a requirement, once fully transitioned, o hold a
rofling 5 or 10 year investment in shares, as applicable.

The shares held under this requirement provide a direct alignment
of the interests of Executive Directors with that of shareholders,

As noted above, these shares cannot be hedged.

2.4.3 Options

2.4.3.1 Option tarms

The plan

The Bank has had an Employee Option Plan (“the Plan™ in place
since 1995 with onty minor amendments 1o the Plan rules being
made over that time. Staff aligible to participate are those at
Associate Director level and above. At 31 March 2007, there were
2,099 (2006: 1,825) participants in the Plan.

Key terrns including vesting rules

Five year options over fully paid unissued ordinary shares in the
Bank are issued under the Plan for no consideration and are
granted with an exercise price set at the prevailing market price.
Onptions vest progressively over time, with similar nules applying to
new startars and existing employees as foliows:

— for new starters, options vest in three tranches as o one third of
each grant after the second, third and fourth anniversaries of the
date of commencement of empioyment; and

— for existing employees, options vest in three tranches as to one
third of each grant on 1 July twe, three and four years after the
allocation of the options.

In other wortls, the average option vesting period is three years.

However, vested options can only be exercised by Executive
Directors if the relevant performance condition is also satisfied.

The fact that Macquarie only issues options with an exercise
price set at the prevaitng market price means that increased
shareholder wealth is required for options o have any value to
the executive. Therefore, uniike other arrangements such as
performance rights/shares, options are only valuable if the share
price rises above the prevailing market price at the time of the
grant. Over and above the performance hurdles, the exercise
price, therefore, acts as an embedded share price hurdle (eing
the price which must be paid to exercise the option).




Hedging 2.4.3.3 Allocation

As noted above, Executive Directors are not permitted to Once the Board has approved the annual maximum number
unciertake any action that is designed to minimise the equity risk of options to be granted, the majority of these options are

in redation to their unvested employee option holdings. allocated to individual executives in broadly the same manner

2 .4 2.2 Determination as annual cash incentives (.e. allocated on the basis of current
The Board approves the maximum number of options to be year performance).

allocated each year as part of the annual remuneration review In other words, because the annual cash incentive is performance
process. This determination has regard to the limits on the number  and outcomes driven, the annual options grant is also oulcomes
of options that may be on issue at any point in time and the and performance based and related to performance in the year
Bank's overall remuneration policies. of allocation.

While the overall level of options on issue may seem high relative Options are also alocated to staff on promation to the various

to some other ASX listed companies, the Bank's options as a Director levels identified in section 1.2 and 1o new recruits at each
proportion of its capital relative to its giobal competitors in the of these Direclor levels, with the number allocated depending on
investment banking industry is nat high. the Director level.

Option allocations reflect those individuals' advancement and

2006/2007 Options/shares under equity plans as a longer term performance. Allocations are approved via the same

percentage of overall diluted capital process as the annual profit share allocation (see section 2.3.3)
Based on most recent statutory accounts, public filings except that:
%

— the Board Remuneration Committes reviews or approves all
performance/promotion option grants to staff; and

40 — opiion grants to Executive Voting Directors must also be approved

by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on the

% recommendation of the Independent Directors of the Board.
30 2.4.3.4 Performance measures
25 Overview of the performance hurdle
Options granted to Executive Directors are subject to a
20 performarce condition which must be satisfied for the options 1o
5 I e exercised. In contrast to this, the independent remuneration

| | consultant, Towers Perrin, has confimed that most of the Bank's
10 B overseas compettors do not have performance hurdles attached
to their bong-temm incentive plans, including their option schemes.

As has been the case for several years, the performance hurdle
requires that the Bank's 3 year average return 6n ordinary equity
exceeds the 3 year average return on ordinary equity of a
reference group of companies at a certain percentile level. This
hurdle operates in addition to both the time vesting rules and the
embedded share price hurdie, as noted above in section 2.4.3.1.

As explained further below, the Bank believes that its overall
performance should be judged against other major ASX-listed
comparies, hence it uses the constituents of a relevant S8F/ASK
The above chart measures the number of outstanding shares, index as the reference group for the performance hurdle.

options, or other equity instruments issued under a comparny’s

equity plan, expressed as a percentage of the diluted number of

total shares outstanding.

The Bank's policy is based on encouraging alignment by
providing options to a very broad group of the Bank’s senior staff,
rather than confining grants 1o a small senior executive group.

As indicated above, oplions outstanding are spread across
2,099 participants.

Major international investment banking competitors®

Macquarie

Comprising Baboock & Brown, Bear Stearns, Credit Suisse,
Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs, Lehman Brothers, Merill Lynch,
Morgan Stanley and UBS.
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31 March 2007 continued

Details of the performance hurdle
The following table sets out the key parameters of:

— the performance hurdle which previously applied to option grants to Executive Committee members and Executive Voting Directors
{since Novemnber 2004); and

—the performance hurdle which currently applies to performance and promotion grants to Executive Commities members and Executive
Voting Directors.

For options issued in the period

November 2004 — From
July/August 2006 July/August 2006
(Previous Hurdle) {Cument Hurd'e)
Basis of Hurdle Macquarie’s 3 year average retum on Macquarie’s 3 year average returm
ordinary equity versus companies in on ordinary equity versus companies
Reference Index in Reference Index
Reference Index S&P/ASX 300 industrials InGex S&P/ASX 100 Index
Performance Level Required to Meet Hurdle Above the 65th percentile” Above the 65th percentile
Apglication of Re-testing Re-testing of perfarmance hurdie on No re-testing. Performance hurdie tested
a quarterly basis until expiry. once only iat ime of vesting).

* From mid-2002 to November 2004 the hurdle applied was the same as the Previous Hurdle in the table, except that the performance
level required to satisfy the hurdle was "at or above the 65th percentile” rather than “above the 65th percentile”.

The conditions imposed on options issued to Executive Directors who are not mermbers of the Bark's Executive Committee or the Board
are identical to those summarised in the table above, with the exception that the hurdie is the 50th percentile rather than the B5th
percentile. This reflacts the fact that these Executive Directors have less capacity to influence the Bank's overall results ard, individually,
have less influence over the level of the Bank’s capital.
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Reasons for selection of performance hurdle components

Component Reason selected

Basis of Hurdle Return on ordinary equity has been chosen as the appropriate hurdle for the following reasons:

—it is comelated with total shareholder returns. Encouraging superior performance, as measured by
return on ordinary equity, will generally lead to superior shareholder returms, thereby creating
alignment with shareholders’ interests;

—executives have a greater ability o affect return on ordinary equity performance through their
decisions than total shareholder returns {which can be influenced by many external factors),
thereby increasing staff motivation:

—return on ordinary equity is based on auditable financial accounts and is not subject to non-
Macquarie specific changes in market valuations:

— using total shareholder returns could resutt in fluctuations in remuneration arangements that could
have unintended consequences such as staff departures (in the event of shorl-term negative
sentiment) or excessive remuneration unrelated to staff performance; and

—as noted by the independent remuneration consultant, Towers Perin, it is an essential measure in
ary business ulilising capital. The incentives should ensure that the focus on gamings growth
alone does not lead to the destruction of value.

Reference Index S&P/ASX 300 Industrials tndex was initially chosen since the Bank has few, if any, direct
comparables and the S&P/ASX 300 Industrials Index is a widely recognised index of Australian
sarger listed companies. The changing to a namower group of companies, the S&P/ASX 100
Index, is in recognition of the increase in the Bank's market capitalisation.

The choice of this Reference Index reflects investor feedback and recognises that the Bank is an
Australian company and its performance should be judged against other major listed Australian
companies. On this basis, the Independent Remuneration consultant concluded that the
Reference Index was appropriate.

If the Bank wished! to tailor a peer group, it would be very difficult 1o compile a comparator group of
meaningful size of individually listed organisations with a sufficienty similar business mix. Such an
index would likely comprise fewer than ten peers given that few, if any, organisations provide a close
comparable to the Bark in 1ems of important factors such as business mix. Different accounting
practices globally would also impact the comparability of inforrmation between organisations.

The indepandent Remuneration consultant noted similar drawbacks to such an approach.

The ASX Indices represent a well-known and third party produced index, and therefore comprise
a more objective measure than wouid be the case for any subjectively-compiled peer group.

Tre Bank's performance against both these ASX irklices and other major international investment
banks has been strong (refer table below).

Performance Level Required Above the 65th percentile was chosen as it was considered a challenging medium 1o long-term
target, noting that if the hurdie is not met, none of the relevant options are able 1o be exercised.

Being a three year average return on equity measure, the Bank's performance hurdle rewards
sustained strang performance and is redativety well insulated from short-term fluctuations. The
Bark therefore believes that it is appropriate for 100% of the relevant options award to vest on
satisfaction of the hurdle.
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31 Marcn 2007 conunued

The hurdle is dearly challenging. However, the {ollowing table
demonstrates that the Bank's performance has been strong
against both the relevant ASX indices and the Bank's intemational
investment banking competitors:

3 year average retum on
ordinary equity as at 31 March 2007
%
Macquarie Bank 27.5"
S&P/ASX 100 Index - 65th percentile
{Cument Hurdle) 2.7
S&P/ASX 300 Industrials Index
-~ 85th percentile (Previous Hurdle) 18.9
International Investment Banking Peers
— 65th percentile 21.0
Average of International Investment Banking Peers
- Average 206

* This three year average is based on the Bank’s 2005, 2006 and

2007 results. The pertormance hurdie test is actually applied as
at the end of each calendar quarter in relation to the upcoming
quarter. As at 31 March 2007, the Bark's most recent three year
Return on Ordinary Equity data was in relation to its 2004, 2005
and 2006 results {an average of 25.8 per cent) and this data was
used in determining whether the performance hurdle had bean
satisfied in relation to the period 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2007.

The Retum on Equity table in section t.4.1 sets out the individual
competitor results behind the International lnvestment Banking
Peers average included above. Only one of these competitors
has a three year average Returmn on Ordinary Equity higher than
that of the Bank. The Bank would, therefore, have exceeded a
benchmark set on the basis of an investrment banking peer group,
even though Directors do not consider such a small, subjective
group {0 be appropriate.

Alse, only three of the nine competitors inciuded in that Retum
on Equity table have a three year average Return on Ordinary
Equity higher than the S&P/ASX 100 Index 65th percentile hurdle
curently used by tha Bank. The 65th percentile of the investment
banking competitor group is 21.0 per cent, indicating that the
Bank’s chosen reference index (S&P/ASX 100) cumently resutts

in a performance hurdle that is more challenging than a hurdie
targeting the same percentile of this competitor group.

Calculation methodology

In assessing whether the Bank's performance is above these
hurdles, the Bank obtains data from extermal sources and, where
required, supplernents this with data published by the individual
companies, The percentile ranking of the Bank based on the
three year average annual retum on ordinary equity against all
companies in the applicable reference index is then determined
quarterty. This method of assessment was selected because the
data is readily available and easily computed.
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2.4.4 Staff share plans

in addition to the schemes already outlined, the Bank has a
number of employee share plans that encourage share ownership
by providing concessional tax treatment for shares acquired by
employees under the plans.

Employee share plan

The Macquarie Bank Employee Share Plan ("ESP”) was approved
by shareholders in 1997. Eligible employees in Australia are
offered up to $1,000 worth of fully paid ordinary Bank shares
funded from pre-tax avallable profit share.

Shares issued under the ESP cannct be sold until the eartier of
three years after issue or the time when the participant is no longer
employed by the Bank or a subsidiary of the Bark. In all other
respects, shares issued rank equally with all other fully paid
ordinary shares then on issue.

The number of shares each participant receives is $1,000 divided
by the weighted average price at which the Bank's shares are
traded on the ASX on the seven days up to and including the date
of allotment, rounded down to the nearest whole share,

Staff share acquisition plan

The Macquarie Bank Staff Share Acquisition Plan (“MBSSAP")
was approved by shareholders in 1999. Eiigible employees in
Australia are given the oppaortunity to ncminate an amount of their
pre-tax available profit share to purchase fully paid ordinary Bank
shares, Shares are acquired on-market at prevailing market prices.
Any applicable brokerage, workers’ compensation premiums and
payroll tax are to the emnployee’s account.

Shares held in the MBSSAP will be withdrawn on the earier of:
—an employee’s resignation from the Bank or a related company;
— upon request by the employee {after the expiration of tha non-

disposal period); and
—ten years from the date that the shares are registered in an

employee's name.

Shares held via the MBSSAP may be forfeited if an employee is

dismissed with cause or commits fraud or theft or otherwise

brings the Bank into disrepute.

In all other respects, shares rank equally with all other fully paid

ondinary shares then on issue.




2.5 Contractual entittemnents and termination arrangements
The following table summarisas key features of the employment contracts for the axecutives named in the table in section 4.2

Length of Contract Permanent open ended

Remuneration Review Period 1 Aprl — 31 March annually

Directors’ Profit Share All Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Directors’ Profit Share ('OPS”) Plan, referred ta in
Participation saction 2.3.4 above, which ensures that a large part of their remuneration is "at risk’. The Rules of the

DPS Plan are set out in the intermal *Macquarie Bank Limited Executive Directors’ Remuneration’
booklet. Upon retirement from the Bank, Executive Directors may be entitled to the vested Retained
DPS held under the Plan provided that it is determined that no disqualifying events have occurred.

Option Participation Al Executive Directors are eligible to participate in five year options over ordinary unissued Macquarie
Bank Limited shares, under the terms described in section 2.4.3. Subject to discretions able to be
exercised by the Board or its delegates, on temmination from the Bank, Executive Directors are entitled
10 retain those options which have vested at the termination date.

Non Compete Clauses A rastraini period of six months, commencing on the date the empioyment ends is applicable to al
employees of Macquarie.

Termination of Employmant Termination of employrment by the Bank or the executive requires four weeks notice "

* In Australia, executives given notice by Macquarie would also be entitled to an additional week's notice where they are over 45 years of
age and have greater than two years continuous senvice.

Subject o employment laws in the jurisdictions in which Macquarie operates, the same arangements generally apply to all executives al
Exacutive Director level atthough minor vanations exist.

3. Non-Executive Director remuneration arrangements

3.1 Approach to Non-Executive Director remuneration
The Sank’s Non-Executive Directors are rermunerated for their services from the maximum aggregate amount (currently $2,000.000 per
annum) approved by shareholdars for that purpose. it is proposed that this maximum aggregate amount be increased to £3,000,000 10
accommodate the introduction of a fee for the Non-Executive Chairman and to allow for moderate future growth. This proposal is
expected to be the subject of a resciution at the 2007 Annual General Meeting.

Executive Directors are not remunerated for acting as Voting Directors.

The Board's policy is to remunerate Non-Executive Directors in line with market rates for relevant Australian financial organisations for the
time commitment and responsibiliies involved. This comparison to market rates is updated annually. In addition, an external review is
corducted periodically both as an irdependent verification of the market comparison and also to provide observations conceming the
cortinuing validity of the methodology.

Such an extemnal review was comm ssioned and conducted in early 2007 to ensure that the Non-Executive Directors’ rernuneration was
in line with relevant benchmark organisations and to ensure that the methodoiogy and framework employed was appropriate.

The review was conducted by the Sydney office of Mercer Human Resource Consutting. The Board Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors critically evaluated the analyses and the conclusions reached.

The current base and committee fees outined in section 3.2 refiect the recommendations of this review, including the introduction of a
fee for a Non-Executive Chairman, subject 1o shareholder approval of an increase to the aggregate remuneration cap at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting.

3.2 Board and committes fees
Current per annum rates for Non-Executive Directors became effective from 1 July 2006 and are as set out in the table betow:

Board Audit Board Board Compxorate Board
Board Risk & Compliance Remuneration Govermance Nominating
Board Committee Commitlee Committee Committee Committee
Chaiman $680,000 N/A* $60,000 $40,000 $28,000 N/A
Membxer $190,000 $16,500 $30,000 $20,000 $14,000 $4,500

- These roles are currently filed by the Non-Executive Chairman who is not separately remunerated for Committee responsibilities. Board
approval of the introduction of the Chairman's fee has been granted subject to shareholder approval of a sufficient increase to the
maxmum aggregate amount of Non-Executive Director remuneration at the 2007 Annual General Mesting.

These base and committee fees are paid quarterly, Non-Executive Directors may elect to receive their remuneration, in part, in the

form of superannuation contributions and by way of the Bank's fulty-paid ordinary shares issued via the Macqueanie Bank Non-Executive
Director Share Acquisition Plan (*NEDSAP”), a mechanism for the Non-Executive Directors to acquire additional fully paid ordinary shares
in the Bank. The NEDSAP was approved at the Bank's 1999 Annual General Meeting and shares under the NEDSAP are acquired on-
market at prevailing market prices.

Information on the frequency of Board and Committee meetings is included on pages 43 1o 44 of the Directors” Report.




31 March 2007 continued

3.3 Shareholding requirements
in order to encourage long-term commitment and more closely align the interests of the Board with shareholders, the Board has a
minimum shareholding requirement for Non-Executive Directors.

Under the minimum shareholding requirement, Non-Executive Directors are required to acquire and maintain, directly or indirectty,

a holding of 4,000 fully paid ordinary shares, which they may accumulate over three years. They are required to extend this holding

by an additional 2,000 shares over the next two years, such that they maintain a holding of 6,000 fully paid ordinary shares which they
may accumulate over five years. These minimum holdings may be contributed via participation in the NEDSAR,

Under the Bank’s Trading Policy, Non-Executive Directors are forbidden from hedging shares held to meet this minirnum
shareholding requirement.

Actual shareholdings by Non-Executive Directors are set out in section 4.5 below.

3.4 Termination arrangements
There are no termination payments to Non-Executive Directors on ther retirement from office (and never have been) other than payments
relating to their accrued superannuation contributions comprising part of their remuneration.

4. Director and Key Management Personnel remuneration and other disclosures

4.1 Key Management Personnel
Note that throughout section 4 of this Report, Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson are presented as Executive Directors because this was
their status throughout the financial year, and the comparative year. However, they both retired from executive responsibilities with effect
from 31 March 2007 so they will be classified in future Reports as Non-Executive Directors, except in comparative tables.

The following persons were Vioting Directors of Macquarie Bank Limited during the financial years ended 31 March 2007 and
31 March 2006, unless otherwise indicated:

Executive directors: Independent non-executive directors:

D.S. Clarke, AO  Chaimman J.G. Allpass H.K. McCann, AM
AE. Moss, AO"  Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer PM. Kirby J.R. Niland, AC
M.R.G. Jchnson  Deputy Chairman C.B. Lvingstone H.M. Nugent, AC
L.G. Cox, AO B.R. Martin {retired on 20 July 2006)

In addition to the Executive Directors listed above, the following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controling the activities of the Bark and its controlled entities during the financial years ended 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006,
unless otherwise indicated.

Executives:

J.K. Burke* Group Head, Equity Markets Group (appointed 1 October 2005)
M. Carapiet* Joint Head, Corporate Finance, Investment Banking Group

AJ. Downg” Group Head, Treasury & Commodities Group

PJ. Maher Group Head, Financial Services Group

N.R, Minogue™ Group Head, Risk Maragement Group

N.W. Moore” Group Head, Investrment Banking Group

W.J. Moss, AM  Former Group Head, Banking & Property Group (retired on 30 March 2007)

W.R. Sheppard™  Deputy Managing Director

G.C. Ward* Group Head, Corporate Affairs Group and Chief Financial Officer

0. Waiss Former Group Head, Equity Markets Group {retired as Group Head on 30 September 2005, retired from the
Executive Committee on 4 October 2005, and ceased employment with the Bank on 31 March 2006)

* Members of the Bank’s Executive Committee as at 14 May 2007,

The remuneration and other related party disclosures included in the Remuneration Report have been prepared in compliance with
AASB 124: Related Party Disclosures. For the purpose of these disclosures, all the individuals listed above have been determined to be
Key Management Personnel, as defined by the Accounting Standard. It is important to note that the Bank’s Independent Non-Executive
Directors are specifically required by the Accounting Standard to be included as Key Managernent Personnel. However, the Independent
Directors do nat consider that they are part of ‘managernent’.

The remuneration arrangements for all of the persons listed above as Executive Directors or Executives are described in section 2 above.
These executive remuneration arangements applied 1o Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson up to and including 31 March 2007.

The remuneration arangaments for all of the persons listed above as Independent Non-Executive Directors are described in
section 3 above. These Non-Executive Director remuneration arrangements have applied to Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson from
1 April 2007 onwards.
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4.2 Remuneration

The individuals identified above as Key Managemant Personnel include the five highest remunerated Campany Executives and Relevant
Group Executives.

in accordance with the requirements of AASB 124: Related Party Disclosures, the remuneration disclosures in the remuneralion tables
for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the year endead 31 March 2006, only include remuneration relating to the portion of the refevant
periods that each individual was a Key Managsment Person.

As explained in section 2.3.4 above, DPS amounts retained under the DPS Plan are natiorally invested for Executive Directors, providing
therm with an economic exposure (o the underying investiments, typically Macquarie-managed specialist funds. This ensures that they
are exposed to both the upside and downside of the underlying securities.

Executive Directors are each entitled to amounts equivalent 1o the investment earnings (dividends/distributions and security price
appreciation) on the undertying securities. Where these amounts are positive, they may be paid to Executive Directors as additional
remnuneration and are included in the relevant remuneration disclosuras below as pan of Long-Term Employee Benefits (refer the
"Earnings on prior year restricted profit share” column in the tables below).

These earmings on restricted profit share amounts reflect the investrment performance of the assets in which prior year Retained DPS
amounts have deen invested. Their inclusion in the individual remuneration disclosures below may therefore cause distortions when year-
on-year remuneration trends are examined. Trey do not reflect remuneration review decisions made in relation tc the indvicual’s current
year performance.

The table below hightights the Lndertying remuneration trend by adjusting the disclosed rernuneration to exclude these eamings
on Retained DPS amounts for Key Management Personnel.

Executive Only Executive and Non-Executive

2007 2008  Increase 2007 2006

3 $ 3 3

Total remuneration 207,074,381 137,230,470 50.9% 208,707,651 138,905,419
Less earnings on restricted profit share amounts 13,786,054 2,383,441 13,786,054 2,383,441
Total undertying remuneration 193,288,327 134,847,029 43.3% 194,921,597 136,521,978
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

Short-Term Employee Benefits

Total
Salary and Performance short-term
fees (including related Other employee
superannuation) remuneration(a) benefits (b) benefits
Name and position $ $ $ $
Executive Directors
D.5. Clarke (f) 335,410 17,595,026 - 17,930,436
LG. Cox 305,886 1,139,168 - 1,535,054
M.R.G. Johnson (f) 229035 1,601,432 - 1,831,427
A.E. Moss 670,819 23,178,183 - 23,849,002
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 250,875 - 71,088 322,863
PM, Kithy 221,375 - - 221,375
C.B. Livingstone 263,000 - 8,400 271,400
B.R. Martin (g) 67.413 — 9,045 76,458
H.K. McCann 259,625 — - 259,625
J.R. Niland 236,424 - - 236,424
H.M. Nugent 245125 — — 245,125
Executives
J.K. Burke 383,325 10,580,610 — 10,933,935
M. Carapiet 383,325 15,825,915 - 16,200,240
A.J. Downe 479,157 15,072,300 - 15,551,457
PJ. Maher 455,199 3,202,864 - 3,658,063
N.R. Minogus 431,241 4,144,882 — 4,576,123
N.W. Moore 517,490 22,801,375 - 23,318,865
W.R. Sheppard 517,490 6,782,535 - 7.300,025
G.C. Ward 432,211 3.956.479 - 4,388,690
Former
W.J. Moss (f) 383,325 27,789,553 — 28,172,878
Total Remuneration 7,158,710 153,640,322 89,433 160,888,465

{a) Performance related remuneration represents the current portion of each individual’s profit share allocation in relation to the reporting
period. In the case of Mr Clarke, Mr Johnson and Mr W.J. Moss the amount included in this column in the table above also includes the
related restricted profit share amounts (refer (¢) below), which are expected to be paid or payable within twelve months of the end of the
reporting pericd, in accordance with the requirements of AASE 124: Related FParty Disclosures.

(b) Other benefits for Non-Executive Directors include due diigence committes fees paid to Mr Allpass of $10,500, fees paid to Mr Allpass
and Mr Martin for Compliance Committee duties for certain Bank subsidiaries Macquarie Investment Management Limited, Macquarie
Investment Senvices Limited and Macquarie Private Portfolio Management Limited), and fees paid to Mr Allpass and Ms Livingstone for
work performed in relation to the Basel Il Board Sub-Committee.

{c) This is the retained amount relating to curment year profit share allocations, which is deferred to future peniods as described in section
2.3.4 above. In the case of Mr Clarke, Mr Johnson and Mr W.J. Moss these retained amounts are inciuded within *Performance related
remuneration” since they are expected to be paid or payable within twehve months of the end of the reporting period.

(d) This is the notional earnings on restricted profit share described in section 4.2 above.

{e) This amount has been calcutated on the basis as described in note 1 il Share based payments to the 2007 Financial Report.

Prior aption grants for sach individua! have been measured at their grant dates based on each grant's fair value, and this amount is
recognised evenly over the relevant vesting period. Therefore, the amounts included in this table are not able to be derived directly from the
disclosures in section 4.4. If an option lapses in a reporting perod, amounts previously recognised as remuneration in relation to the lapsed
options are deducted from remuneration in the reporting period. In the case of Mr Clarke, 80,200 urvested options lapsed when he retired
from executive responsibilities on 31 March 2007. The reversal of the amounts previously recognised in relation to these options exceeded
the amounts recognised in redation to his options which vested during the year, resulting in a negative balance in the table above.
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Percentage of

remuneration
Share-Based Total that consists
Long-Term Employee Benefits Payments remuneration of options
Eamings on Total
prior year long-term
Restricted restricted employee
profit share(c) profit share (d) benefits Options(e)
$ $ g $ $ %
- 1,209,653 1,209,653 (170,207} 18,969,882 (0.90)
284,792 77,283 362,075 58,920 1,956,048 am
- 391.265 391,265 155,988 2,378,680 6.56
5,794,546 2,437,804 8,232,350 1,408,466 33,489,818 4.21
— — — - 322,863 -
- — - - 221,375 —
— — - — 271,400 -
— — — 76,458 -
- — — - 259,625 -
- — — — 236,424 —
— — - — 245125 —
2,637,652 584,041 3,221,743 497,409 14,653,087 339
3,956.479 1,674,341 5,630,820 1,077,890 22,917,950 470
3,768,075 1,567,560 5335635 604,805 21,491,897 2.81
800,716 366,902 1,167,618 274,085 5,099,766 537
1,038,221 463,166 1,499,387 314,359 6,389,869 492
5,700,344 2,478,508 8,178,863 1,396,821 32,894,539 4.25
1,695,634 847,754 2,543,388 416,711 10,260,124 4.06
989,120 310,641 1,299,761 273,508 5,961,960 4.59
— 1,377,085 1,377,085 1,080,797 30,610,760 347
26,663,579 13,786,054 40,449,633 7,369,553 208,707,651

() Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson retired from the Executive Committee on 31 March 2007 and Mr W.J. Moss retired from the Executive
Committee on 30 March 2007. Subsequent to 31 March 2007, they will be paid their vested retained profit share ot $12.823,954
frefer saction 4.3), $3,683,499 {refer section 4.3) arxd $17,279,671 respectively, adjustad for any further notional earnings increment o
decrermnent thereon. These vested retained profit share amounts comprise the retained portions of their profit share allocations from
1997 o 2006 as well as the retained portion of their profit share allocations for the year ended 31 March 2007 {which are included
within the "Performance Related Remuneration” disclosed in the table abova).

(@ Mr Martin retired from the Board of Directors on 20 July 2006.
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31 Marcn 2007 continuea

For the year ended 31 March 2006

Short-Term Employee Benefits

Total
Salary and Performance short-term
fees (including related Other employee
superannuation) remuneration{a) benefits(b) benefits
Name and position $ $ $ $
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 335,302 8,475,877 — 8,811,179
L.G. Cox 395427 758,581 - 1,154,008
M.R.G. Johnson 229,922 1.507.017 — 1,736,939
AE. Moss 670,604 15,347,763 - 16,018,367
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 238,833 7,083 80,800 326,716
PM. Kirby 193,167 7,083 — 200,250
C.B. Livingstone 214,000 7,083 24,150 245,233
B.R. Martin 209,167 7,083 28,500 244750
H.K. McCann 232,167 7,083 - 239,250
J.R. Niland 190,917 7,083 - 198,000
H.M. Nugent 213,667 7,083 — 220,750
Executives
J.K. Burke {f) 189,367 2,978,294 - 3,167,661
M. Carapiet 383,202 11,679,382 - 12,062,584
A.J. Downe 479,003 10,548,119 — 11,028,122
PJ. Maher 455,053 2,637,280 — 3,092,333
N.R. Minogue 419,376 3,014,034 — 3433410
N.W. Moore 517,323 14,989,341 — 15,516,664
W.J. Moss 479,003 10,850,523 - 11,328,526
W.R, Sheppard 517,786 4,144,297 - 4,662,083
G.C. Ward 431,103 2,637,280 - 3,068,383
Former
0. Weiss (g) 242,342 11,538,099 — 11,780,441
Total Remuneration 7,236,131 101,166,468 133,450 108,536,649

(a) For Executive Directors and Exacutives, performance related remuneration represents the cument portion of each individual's profit share
allocation in relation to the reporting period. For the Non-Executive Directors, the only performance related remuneration was a contingent
elerment of the base annual fees which was removed with effect from 1 July 2005. It was therefore only in place for the first three months
of the year ended 31 March 2006.

() Other benefits for Non-Exacutive Directors include due diigence commitiee fees paid to Mr Allpass of $16,000, fees paid to Mr Allpass
and Mr Martin for Compliance Committee duties for certain Bank subsidiaries (Macquarie Investment Management Limited and
Macquarie Investrent Senvices Limited), and {fees paid to Mr Allpass and Ms Livingstona for work performed in relation to the Basa! il
Board Sub-Committee.

{c) This is the retained amount relating to cument year profit share aliocations, which is defermed to future periods as described in
section 2.3.4 above.

(d) This is the notional earnings on prior year restricted profit share described in section 4.2 above.

(e} This amount has been calculated on the basis as described in note 1 (xvii) Share based paymenits to the 2006 Financial Report. Prior
option grants for each individual have been measured at their grant dates based on each grant's fair value, and this amount is recognised
avenly over the relevant vesting period. Therefore, the amounts included in this table are not able to be derived directly from the
disclosures in section 4.4.

( ™r Burke was appointed Group Head, Equity Markets Group and became a member of the Executive Committes on 1 October 2005,

(@ Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005. Mr Weiss became entitled to his vested retained profit share of
$10,504,033 subsequent to 31 March 2006 ance the Executive Committee determined that a disqualifying event had not occurred.
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Percentage of

remuneration
Share-Based Total that consists
Long-Term Employee Benefits Payments remuneration of options
Eamings on Total
prior year long-term
Restricted restricted employee
profit share(c) profit share (d) benefits Options(e)
5 $ 5 5 5 %
2,118,870 229,873 2,348,843 256,478 11,416,500 225
189,845 6,357 196,002 29,488 1,373,498 2.14
376,754 115,324 492,078 131,537 2,360,554 5.57
3.836.941 485,814 4,322,755 869,227 21,210,349 4.10
— - — — 326,716 —
— — — — 200,250 —
_ _ _ — 245,233 -
— - — — 244 750 —
— - — — 239,250 -
— - — — 198,000 —
- — — - 220,750 —
744574 15,599 760,173 168,380 4,096,214 4.11
2,819,846 249,600 3,169,455 653,685 15,885,724 4.1
2,637,280 147,878 2,785,158 448,377 14,261,657 314
658,320 31625 690,945 227,940 4,011,218 5.68
753.509 20,999 774,508 235,059 4,442 977 529
3,749,835 356,413 4,106,248 958,187 20,581,099 466
2,712,631 267,540 2,980,171 605,183 15,004,880 483
1,036,074 163,494 1,199,568 343,925 6,205,576 5.54
659,320 38,294 897,614 204,529 3,970,526 515
— 254,622 254,622 368,635 12,403,698 297
22,394,699 2,383,441 24,778,140 5,590,630 138,905,419
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31 March 2007 continued

Amounts of restricted profit share released to Executive
Voting Girectors in the financial year ended 31 March 2006 were
as follows:

2006
%

Executive Voting Directors
D.S. Clarke 2,806,263
L.G. Cox 60,000
M.R.G. Johnson 2,225,546
AE. Moss 4,453,552
Executives
J.K. Burke 753,508
M. Carapiet 859,320
A.J. Downe 612,226
P.J. Maher 235471
N.R. Minogue 235,471
N.W. Moore 2,046,005
W.J. Moss 1,773,828
W.R. Sheppard 2,114,191
G.C. Ward 160,121
Former
Q. Waiss 1,096,976
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These amounts represented restricted profit share that was
released subsaquent to the approval at the 2005 Annual General
Meseting. Refer 10 section 2.3.4 and the 2005 Notice of Meeting
for further information. The above Executives are subject to
continuing retention under the DPS Plan, with the exception

of Mr Weiss whose retained Oirectors' Profit Share has since
been released.

For each of the persons named in the tables above, the amounts
of their remuneration for the reporting period that were not related
to performance are the amounts in the columns headed *Salary
and fees’ (including superannuation), ‘Other benefits' and
‘Eamings on prior year restricted profit share’. All other
remuneration was performance based.

As is evident from the tables on pages 72 to 75, the majority of
the remuneration for the named Bank executives is performance
based {ranging from 75.8 per cent to 94.2 per cent for individuals
who were Executive Committee: members during the year ended
31 March 2007}, This is consistent with the comments previously
made that ihe effect of the Bank's profit sharing mechanism is to
provide substantial incentives in relation to supenor profitability but
low or no participation for less satisfactory performance, The
mechanism provides significant afignment of their interests with
those of shareholders.




4.3 Future amounts payable for executive voting directors
For each Bank executive named in the remuneration table in section 4.2, 0% of the annual profit share entitienent was paid or
payable in relation to the reported financial year. These amounts arg indicated in the column headed “Performance related remuneration”
in the table.

It has been a fundamental condition of the DPS arrangements that the remaining 20% of the annual cash incentive is held subject o
restrictions. Except in the case of Mr Clarke, Mr Johnson, and Mr W.J. Moss, these amounts are indicated in the column headed
‘Restricted profit share' in the remuneration table in section 4.2, These restricted amounts begin to vest after five years of SErvice as an
Executive Director and fully vest after ten years of service as an Executive Director, subject to any disqualifying events. As described in
section 2.3.4 above, vested amounts will begin to be released to Executive Directors at the earlier of the end of the ten year period or
on ceasing employment (Up to six months after departure) provided that no disqualifying events have occurred.

No person named in the remuneration table in section 4.2 of this report forfeited any restricted profit share entitlernents during the
financial year.

For the Bank executives named in the remuneration iable in section 4.2:

— subject to future notional investment samings on the amounts retained, the maximum future value of their restricted profit share
entitlements is reflected by the amounis in the “Restricted profit share” courmn of that table (with the exception of Mr Clarke, Mr Johnson
anc Mr W.J. Moss for whom it is equal 1c 20 per cent of the amount in the *Performance related remuneration” column, subject to future
notional investment earningsy; and

— the minimum future value of their restricted profit share entitlernents is zero in the event that cenain defined disqualifying events occur
and the amounts are forfeited.

The amount of DPS allocations of the Executive Voting Directors that are held subject to restrictions is snown in the table below. The
amounts in this table have been presented inclusive of on-casts. In contrast, the DPS amounts disclosed in section 4.2 as performarnce
related rermuneration and restricted profit share are exclusive of on-costs.

Amount
Amounts credited to
released Actual restricted Date of
Balance from balance profit share Balance entry to
of restricted restricted  of restricted in relation of restricted Directors’
profit share at  profit share profit tothe DPS  profit share at Profit Share Years
31 March 2006 during the share at allocation 31 March 2007 Plan  Entitle-
plus 2006 financial 31 March for the plus 2007 or equivatent  ments
Name and DPS retention year {a) 2007 financial year(p) DPS retention(c) predecessor Accrued
position $ $ $ $ $ amangements Over
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 9,363,957 (275,603) 9,088,354 3,735,800 12,823,954 1 February 1985 22
M.R.G. Johbnson 3.605,735 (262,236) 3,343,499 340,000 3,683,499 1 March 1987 20
AE. Moss 19,621,435 {620,424) 19,001,011 6,151,200 25,152,211 1 February 1985 22
L.G. Cox 440,000 - 440,000 300.000 740,000 25 March 2004 3

(@) As outlined in section 2.3.4 above, Retained DPS amounts are released to an Executive Director after ten years. During the financial year
amounts retained from 1996 OPS allocations were released.

(b) Technically these amounts relating to 2007 DPS allocations are not credited until after 31 March 2007. However, they are added into the
balance as at 31 March 2007 bacause that is the end of the financial vear to which they relate.

{c) Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson retired from executive responsibiiities on 31 March 2007. They will become entitled to their vested restricted
profit share and any investment eamings thereon once it has been determined that none of the applicable disqualifying events have
occurred (refer section 2.3.4 for information conceming the relevant disqualiting conditions).

The whole of the profit sharing provision, including amounts held subject to restrictions, for each financial year is charged against
eamings in that year.
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31 March 2007 continued

4.4 Options
Value of options granted, exercised and lapsed

For the year ended 31 March 2007

{ii)
0] Value of options (iii)
Value of options granted as part of Value of options
granted as part of remuneration and that granted as part of
remuneration are exercised or remuneration and
during the sold during the that lapse during Aggregate of
financial year financial year(b} the financial year(b) columns (1) to i)
Name and position $ $ $ $
Directors (a)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke (c) - - (3,245,250) (3,245,250)
LG. Cox 113,251 55,828 — 169,079
M.R.G. Johnson 226,564 - — 226,564
AE. Mogs 2,026,150 6,713,392 — 8,739,542
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass — 58,735 — 58,735
B.R. Martin - 28,280 — 28,280
H.K. McGCann - 47,787 - 47,787
Executives
JK. Burke 796,250 3,941,371 - 4,737,621
M. Carapist 1,756,160 ¢ 2,831,606 — 4,587,766
A.J. Downe 1,041,250 5,868,755 - 6,910,005
P.J. Maher 367,500 1,030,007 - 1,397,507
N.R. Minogue 428,750 1,275,077 - 1,703,827
N.W. Moore 1,960,000 - — 1,860,000
W.R. Sheppard 551,250 1,745,925 — 2,297,175
G.C. Ward 367,500 834,324 — 1,201,824
Former
W.J. Moss 1,286,250 2,218,928 - 3,505,178

(8) Directors comprise all those who acted at any time during the reporting period as a Vioting Director of Macquarie Bank Uimited,

(b} Includes options that were granted as part of remuneration in prior financial vears.

{c) Mr Clarke retired as Executive Chairman on 31 March 2007, whereupon 80,200 unvested options lapsed. He will continue as
Non-Executive Chairman.
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4.4 Qptions continued
Value of options granted, exercised and lapsed

For the year ended 31 March 2006

{iiy
(0] Value of options (i)
Value of options granted as part of Value of options
granted as part of remuneration and that granted as part of
remuneration are exercised or remuneration and
during the sold during the that lapse during Aggregate of
financial year financial year{) the financial year(t) columns (i) to {iii)
Name and position $ $ $ ]
Directors (a)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 260,250 1,509,137 - 1,769,387
L.G. Cox 58,504 95,400 - 153,904
M.R.G. Johnson 166,560 2,035,862 - 2,202,522
AE. Moss 1,873,800 5,580,830 - 7,454,630
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass — 84,350 — 84,350
B.R. Martin - 67,150 — 67,150
H.K. McCann — 93,675 — 83,675
H.M. Nugent — 107,203 — 107,203
Executives
M. Carapiet 1,268,042 1,766,851 — 3,034,893
A.J. Dowre 520,500 1,845,458 — 2,365,858
P.J. Maher 260,250 1,059,021 — 1,319,271
N.R. Minogue 364,350 957,218 — 1,321,566
N.W. Moore 1,769,700 6,377,287 — 8,148,987
W.J. Moss 1,665,600 5,656,366 - 7,321,966
W.R. Sheppard 520,500 2,895,150 - 3,415,650
G.C. Ward 312,300 714,184 — 1,026,484
Former
Q. Weiss (¢} - 2,984 688 (1,368.054) 1,616,634

{@) Directors comprisa all those who acted at any time during the reporting period as a Voting Director of Macquarie Bank Limited.

{0) Includes options that were granted as part of remuneration in prior financial years.

() MrWeiss retired from the Executive Commitiee on 4 Gctober 2005.
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31 March 2007 continued

4.4 Options continued
Option holdings of Key Management Personnel and their related parties
The following table sets out details of opticns held during the financial year for the Key Management Parsonnal including their

related parties. The options are over fully paid unissued ordinary shares of the Bank.
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Number Number of  Number of
Options Options of options options options
Number of granted exercised held at vested vested at
Name and options held at during the during the Other 31 March during the 31 March
position 1 April 2006 financial year financial year changes(a) 2007() financial year 2007(b)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke (¢) 133,934 - — {80,200) 53,734 53,734 53,734
L.G. Cox 16,720 9,245 {1,700) - 23,265 2,800 2,800
M.R.G. Johnson 66,300 18,495 - — 84,795 36,366 36,366
AE. Moss 502,400 165,400 - {156,800) 511,000 107,468 55,200
Non-Executive Directars
J.G. Allpass 1,700 - {1,700} — - - —
PM. Kirby - - — - - — -
C.B. Livingstone - - - - - - -
B.R. Martin (d) 1,700 — {1,000) - 700 - 700
H.K. McCann 1,700 - {1,700) - - — —
J.R. Nitand - - — — - — —
H.M. Nugent - — — - - — —
Executives
J.K. Burke 242,000 65,000 {7,000 (118,665) 181,335 39,999 —
M. Carapiet 297,144 143,360 (83,666) - 356,838 83,666 -
A.J. Downe 202,168 85,000 {54,500) (104,333} 218,335 82,833 -
PJ. Maher 121,668 30,000 (13,334) {13,334) 125,000 30,001 33.333
N.R. Minogue 132,334 35,000 — (37,499 129,835 36,333 21,500
N.W. Moore 434,335 160,000 - - 594,335 134,334 134,334
W.R. Sheppard 161,000 45,000 e {57.666) 148,334 57,666 -
G.C. Ward 95,001 30,000 {15,924) (8,334) 100,743 30,000 5,742
Former
W.J. Moss {g) 297,501 105,000 — (73,500} 329,001 73,500 -

(a) Vested options sold under facility provided by an external party unless otherwise noted.

() Or date of retirement if earlier,

(@) Mr Clarke retired as Executive Chairman on 31 March 2007, whereupon 80,200 unvested options lapsed. He will continue as
MNon-Executive Chaiman.

{d) Mr Martin retired as a Non-Executive Director of the Bank on 20 Juty 2006.

{&) MrW.J. Moss retired from the Executive Committea on 30 March 2007,
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4.4 Options continued
Option holdings of Key Management Personnel and their related parties

The following table sets out detalls of options held during the financial year for the Key Management Perscnnel including their

related parties. The options are over fully paid unissuec ordinary shares of the Bank.
For the year ended! 31 March 2006

Number Number of Number of
Options Options of options options options
Number of granted exercised held at vested vested at
Name and options held at during the during the Other 31 March during the 31 March
position 1 April 2005(3) financial year financial year changes(b) 2006(c) financial year 2006(c)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 156,067 26,000 (47,133) - 133,934 47133 —
.G. Cox 12,600 5620 {2.500) — 15,720 - 1,700
M.R.G. Johnson 109,100 16,000 - (58.800) 66,300 29,400 —
AE. Moss 498,400 180,000 - {176,000) 502,400 94,266 104,532
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 4,200 — {2.500) — 1,700 — 1,700
PM. Kirby — — — — — - —
C.B. Livingstone — — — — - — -
B.R. Martin 4,200 — — (2,500} 1,700 - 1,700
H.K. McCann 4,200 — (2,500) — 1,700 - 1,700
J.R. Niland - - - - — - -
H.M. Nugent 3,783 — (3,783) - - — —
Executives
J.K. Burke {d) 242,000 — - - 242,000 — 85,666
M. Carapiet 234,834 121,810 (£9,500) — 297,144 59,500 -
A.J. Downe 296,667 50,000 — (54,499 292,168 79,833 76,000
PJ. Maher 130,002 25,000 (33,334 — 121,668 23,334 30,000
N.R. Minogue 134,000 35,000 (20,000} {16,660 132,334 31,332 22,666
N.W. Moore 472,334 170,000 (207.,939) — 434,335 126,667 -
W.J. Moss 320,500 160,000 — {182,999) 297,501 101,834 -
W.R. Sheppard 206,000 50,000 — {95,000) 161,000 58,000 —
G.C. Ward 88,335 30,000 (16.666) (6,668) 66,001 23,334 —
Former
0. Weiss (e} 273,000 - {115,666) (43,334) 114,000 205,000 114,000

{a) Or date of appointment if later.

{b) Vested options sold under faciity provided by an extermnal party, unless otherwise noted.

() Cr date of retirement if eartier.

{cdl Mr Burke was appainted Group Head, Equity Markets Group and becama a member of the Executive Committee on 1 October 2005.

Mr Burke was not awarded any options from the date of appointment as Group Head until 31 March 2006.

(&) Mr Waiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005, Upon retirement, the vesting of 114,000 of Mr Weiss's outstanding

options was acoelerated, as appravad by the Board Remuneration Committes, while 43,334 options lapsed.
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4.4

31 March 2007 continued

Options continued

Details of options granted and their fair value at grant date

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Option Fair value Date first option

Date options Numberof  exercise price at grant date™ tranche can
Narne and position granted options granted $ $ be exercised Expiry date
Executive Directors
LG. Cox 1 August 2006 9,245 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
M.R.G. Johnson 1 August 2006 18,495 81.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
AE. Moss 1 August 2006 165,400 61.79 12.25 1 Juty 2008 1 August 2011
Executives
J.K Burke 1 August 2006 65,000 61.79 12.25 1.July 2008 1 August 2011
M. Carapigt 1 August 2008 143,360 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
Al Downe 1 August 2008 85,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
£.J. Maher 1 August 2008 30,000 61.79 1225 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
N.R. Minogue 1 August 2006 35,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
N.W, Moore 1 August 2006 160,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
W.R, Sheppard 1 August 2006 45,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
G.C. Ward 1 August 2008 36,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011
Former
W.J. Moss 1 August 2006 105,000 61.79 12.25 1 July 2008 1 August 2011

Mr Clarke was not granted any options in the year ended 31 March 2007,
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4.4 Options continued
Details of gptions granted and their fair value at grant date

For the year ended 31 March 2006

Option Fair value Date first option

Date options Number of exercise price at grant date” tranche can
Name and position granted options granted $ $ be exercised Expiry date
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 1 August 2005 25,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
L.G. Cax 1 August 2005 5620 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
M.R.G. Johnson 1 August 2005 16,000 63,34 10.41 1 Juty 2007 1 August 2010
AE. Moss 1 August 2005 180,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
Executives
J.K. Burke (@) — - — - - -
M. Carapiet 1 August 2005 121,810 £53.34 10,41 1 Juty 2007 1 August 2010
A.J. Downe 1 August 2C05 50,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
P.t. Maher 1 August 2C05 25,000 63.34 10.41 1 Juty 2007 1 August 2010
N.R. Minogue 1 August 2005 35,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
N.W. Moare 1 August 2005 170,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
W.J. Moss 1 August 2005 160,000 63.34 10.41 1 Juty 2007 1 August 2010
W.R. Sheppard 1 August 2005 50,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010
G.C. Ward 1 August 2005 30,000 63.34 10.41 1 July 2007 1 August 2010

{a) Mr Burke was appointed Group Heaad, Equity Markets Group and became a member of the Executive Committee on 1 October 2005.
Mr Burke was not awarded any options from the date of appointment of Group Head until 31 March 2008.

* The Bank has adopted the fair value measurement provisions of AASB 2: Share-Based Payments for al oplions granted tc Key
Management Personnel, The fair value of such grants is being amortised and disclosed as part ot each Key Management Person’s
remuneration on a straight-line basis over the vesting pexiod.

Performance hurdies attached to the options issued to the Key Management Personnel are not taken into account when determining
the fair value of the option at grant date. instead, these vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. For the purpose of calculating the options-related compensation in section 4.2 above, the Bank has
assumed that all options will vest, except where it is known that an option lapsed during the period.

Opiions granted during the financial year were issued subject to the exercise conditions noted abave and are only exercisable in three
equal tranches on or after 1 July 2008, 1 July 2009 and 1 Juty 2010, Allocations of these options were in raspect of performance for the
Bank’s 2006 financial year.

The fair value of each opiion is estimated on the date of grant using a trinomial option pricing framework. The following key assumptions
have been adopted for grants made in the current financial year, risk-frea interest rate: 6.50 per cent {weighted average), expected life of
options: four years, volatiity of share price: 20 per cent and dividend yield: 3.2 per cent per annum.

The exardise price of the options granted to Executive Directors and Executives in the current financial year was based on the weighied
average market price of the Bank's ordinary shares tradad on ASX during the one week up to and includiing 1 August 2006 (adjusted for
special trades and any cum-dividend trading).

There were no options issued to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year.
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31 March 2007 contnued

4.4 Options continued

Ordinary shares issued as a result of the exercise of options by Key Management Personnel during the financial vear.

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Number of options Exercise price
exercised during Number of shares issued paid in full per share
Name and position the financiat year{a) on exercise of options $
Executive Directors
L.G. Cox 1,700 1,700 34.7M
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Alpass 1,700 1.700 34.71
B.R. Martin 1,000 1,000 34.71
H.K. McCann 1,700 1,700 3471
Executives
JK. Burke 7,000 7,000 3.7
M. Carapiet 24,500 24,500 30.51
26,666 26,666 28.74
32,500 32,500 3.1
AJ. Downe 27,834 27834 30.51
26,666 26.666 28.74
PJ. Maher 13.34 13,334 34.71
G.C. Ward 2,591 2,591 28,74
13,333 13,333 331

{a) Or the period until date of retirement if eariier than 31 March 2007.
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4.4 Options continued

Ordinary shares issued as a result of the exercise of options by Key Management Personnel during the financial year.

For the year encled 31 March 2006

Number of options Exercise price
exercised during Number of shares issued paid in full per share
Name and position the financial year(a) on exercise of options 3
Executive Directors
0.8, Clarke 21,000 21,0600 34.71
26,133 26,133 30.51
L.G. Cox 2,500 2,500 23.94
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Alipass 2,500 2,500 23.94
H.K. McCann 2,500 2,500 23.94
H.M, Nugent 2,083 2,083 23.54
1,700 1,700 34,71
Executives
M. Carapiet 8,334 8.334 34,71
24,500 24,500 30.51
26,666 26,666 28.74
PJ. Maher 33,334 33,334 27.98
N.R. Minogue 8,334 8,334 34.71
11,666 11,666 28.74
N.W. Moore 122,000 122,000 34.71
52,666 52.666 30.51
33,333 33,333 28.74
G.C. Ward 8,333 8,333 30.51
8,333 8,333 28.74
Former
0. Weiss 96,000 96,000 34,71
8,000 8,000 30.51
11,666 11,666 28.74

(a) Or the period until date of retirement if earfier than 31 March 2006.
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31 March 2007 continued

4.5 Shareholdings and other equity interests
Shareholding of Key Management Personnel and their related parties

The following {abla sets out details of fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank heid during the year by the Key Management Personnel

including their related parties.
For the year ended 31 March 2007
Number of

Number of shares held Shares issued on shares held at
Name and position at 1 April 2006 exercise of options Other changes{a) 31 March 2007(b)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 977,248 - (326,135) 651,113
L.G. Cox 268,112 1,700 - 269,812
M.R.G. Johnson 353,803 - {60,000} 293,803
AE. Moss 404,336 - - 404,336
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 16,563 1,700 250 18,513
PM. Kirby 7,891 - 1,881 9,772
C.B. Livingstone 7,336 - 214 7.550
B.R. Martin {c) 8,974 1,000 146 10,120
H.K. McCann 9,659 1,700 - 11,359
J.R. Niland 4,109 — 1,850 5,959
H.M. Nugent 19,112 - 650 19,762
Executives
JK. Burke 18,000 7,000 — 25,000
M. Carapigt 345,805 83,666 96,463 525,934
A.J. Downe 65,535 54,500 — 121,035
P.J. Maher 45,819 13,334 - 60,153
N.R. Minogue 110,811 — - 110,811
N.W. Moore 835,251 - 7,862 843,113
W.R. Sheppard 259,271 - — 258,271
G.C. Ward 13,287 15,924 — 29,211
Former
W.J. Moss () 268,511 - 180 269,701

(&) Includes on market acquisitions and disposals.

() Or date of retirerent if earfier,

{c} Mr Martin retired as a Non-Executive Director of the Bank on 20 July 2006.
() MrW.J. Moss retired trom the Executive Committee on 30 March 2007.
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4.5 Shareholdings and other equity interests continued
Shareholding of Key Management Personnel and their refated parties
The following table sets out details of fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank held during the year by the Key Management Personnel
including their related parties.

For the year ended 31 March 2006
Number of

Number of shares held Shares issued on shares held at

Name and position at 1 April 2005(a) exercise of options Other changes(b) 31 March 2006(c)

Executive Directors

D.5. Clarke 923,200 47,133 6,815 977,248
L.G. Cox 378,090 2,500 (112,478) 268,112
M.R.G. Johnson 493,803 - (140,000) 353,803
AE. Moss 404,436 — (100) 404,336
Non-Executive Directors

J.G. Allpass 13,595 2,500 468 16,563
PM. Kirby 5.360 — 2.531 7.8
C.B. Livingstone 6.633 - 703 7.336
B.R. Martin 8,358 — 616 8,974
H.K. McCann 6,601 2,500 468 9,659
J.R. Nitand 3,641 — 468 4,109
H.M. Nugant 14,630 3,783 699 19,112
Executives

J.K. Burke (d) 18,000 — — 18,000
M. Carapiet 286,276 59,500 29 345,805
A.J. Downe 66,287 — 248 66,535
P.J. Maher 13,427 33,334 58 46,819
N.R. Minogue 111,956 20,000 (21,145) 110,811
N.W. Moare 627,252 207,959 - 835,251
W.J. Moss 269,351 — 160 269,511
W.R. Sheppard 259,271 — — 259,271
G.C. Ward 26,498 16,666 (29.877) 13,287
Former

O. Weiss (e) 33,712 115,666 10,000 159,378

(@) Or date of appointment if later.

) Includes on market acquisitions and disposals.

(©) Or date of retirernent if earfier.

{d) Mr Burke was appointed Group Head, Equity Markets Group and became a mermber of the Executive Commitiee on 1 Octaber 2005.
(e} Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005,



31 March 2007 continued

4.6 Loans
Details of loans provided by the Bank to Key Management Personnel and their related parties are disclosed in the following tables:
Opening Closing
Balance at Interest Balance at Number
1 April charged(a)Write-off 31 March in group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 31 March
Total for Key Management Personnel 2007 76,318 5,871 - 62,101 19
and their retated parties 2006 47,578 6,035 - 80.730" 22
Total for Key Management Personnel 2007 57,882 4,493 - 44,891 1
2006 34,999 2,590 - 62,293* 12

" Includes loans provided by the Bank to Mr Weiss and his related parties. Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Commitiee on 4 October
2005. As such, he was not a Key Management Person on 1 April 2006 and his loans have not been included in the opening balance.

|
|
Loans and other financial instrument transactions are made by the Bank in the ordinary course of business with related parties.

Certain loans are provided under zero cost collar and share appreciation fadilities secured over Macquarie Bank shares under normal
terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees.

Prior period comparatives have been restated to include loans provided by mortgage securitisation entities to Key Management
Personnel and their related parties. The application of AIFRS has resulted in these entities being consolidated.

Key Managernent Personnel including their related parties with loans above $100,000 at any tirne during the financial year:
For the year ended 21 March 2007

Balance at Balance at

1 April 2006 Interest charged Write-off 31 March 2007 Highest in period
Name and position $'000 $'000(z) $'000 $'000(b) $'000
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 48,940 3,729 - 29,937 52,658
LG. Cox 621 21 - 200 684
M.R.G. Johnson 220 5 - 20 220
Executives
. Carapiet 5,183 372 - 5,286 5,208
A.J. Downe 500 13 - — 500
P.J. Maher 1,838 103 - 2,866 3,249
N.R. Minogue 5,054 349 - 45618 6.379
N.W. Moore 6,848 908 - 12,81 12,891
W.R. Sheppard 100 3 - - 100
G.C. Ward 739 107 - 1,727 1,727
Formmer
W.J. Moss (c) 6,275 361 - 4,556 7,933

{a) Allloans provided by the Bank ‘o Directors and Executives are made in the ordinary course of business on an amvs-length basis and are
entered into under normal terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees. There have been no write-downs or
alowances for doubtfui debts.

{b) Or date of ratirement if earlier.

{c) MrW.J. Moss retired from the Executive Committee on 30 March 2007.
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4.6 Loans continued

=)

For the year ended 31 March 2006

Balance at Balance at

1 April 2005 Interest charged Write-off 31 March 2006 Highest in period
Name and position $°000 $'0004a) $'000 $'000(D) $000
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 31,304 4,276 — 48,940 50,505
L..G. Cox 836 52 — 621 636
M.R.G. Johnson 2,870 N - 220 2,870
Executives
M. Carapiet 71 363 — 5,183 8,025
A.J. Downe 500 61 - 500 500
P.J. Maher 530 96 — 1,838 1,859
N.R. Minogue 4,592 382 - 5,054 5,641
N.W. Moore — 49 — 6,848 6,848
W.J. Moss 5674 a72 — 6.275 6,620
W.R. Sheppard 100 11 — 100 100
G.C. Ward 801 86 - 739 1,002
Former
. Weiss () 500 96 — 4,412 4,412

All loans provided by the Bank to Directors and Executives are made in the ordinary course of business on an arm's-length basis and are
entered into under normal terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees. There have been no write-downs or

allowances for doubtful debts.

(o} Or date of retirenent if earlier.
(c) Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 Cctober 2005.
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4.7 Other disclosures

Other transactions and balances of Key Management Personnel and their related parties

The following Key Management Personnel have acquired Infrastnacture Bonds and similar products from controlled entities within the
Bark which have been financed with kmited recourse loans and are subject to forward sale agreements, The Joan repayments and
preceeds arising from the forward sale agreement are subject to legal right of sei-off and as such are not recognised for financial
reporting purposes. The only amounts recognised by the econoric entity in respect of these transactions are the annual condribitions
from the relevant Key Management Personnel which are brought to account as fee revenue. Thesa transactions have been undertaken
on terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees.

Consolidated Consalidated
2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Total annual contributions from Key Management Personnel and their related
parties in respect of Infrastructure Bonds and similar products 16,817 16,280

The annual contributions in respect of Infrastructure Bonds and similar products relate to the following Key Management Personnel:

Executive Directors
D.5. Clarke, LG, Cox, M.R.G. Johnson

Non-Executive Directors
PM. Kirby

Executives
J.K. Burke, M. Carapiet, A.J. Downe, P.J. Maher, N.R. Minogue, N.wW. Mocre, W.R. Sheppard, G.C. Ward

Former
W.J. Moss, O. Weiss

The following Key Management Persornel (inciuding related parties) have entered into zero cost collar transactions with the Sank and
other non related entities in raspect of fully paid ordinary Bank shares. This has the effect of acquiring cash-sattied put options against
moverments in the Bank's share price below current levels and dispasing of the benefit of any share price moverment above the nominated
leved. These are not refated 1o any shares required to be held as pari of the profit share retention amangements as outlined in section 2.4.2.

Transactions with the Bank
Number of shares  Number of sharas
Name and position Description 2007 2006
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke" Maturing June 2010 213,517 -
Maturing August 2009 25,196 25,196
Maturing June 2008 100,784 361,163
Maturing May 2008 260,379 -
M.R.G. Johnson Maturing August 2006 — 60,000
Maturing December 2006 - 69,383
Executives
M. Carapiet Maturing August 2007 160,666 —
Maturing August 2006 - 160,666
AJ. Downe™ Maiuring December 2007 27,834 -
Maturing August 2007 36,382 -
Maturing August 2006 — 46,748
F.J. Maher Maturing June 2006 — 4,039
N.R. Minogue Maturing August 2007 11,500 -
G.C. Ward Maturing August 2007 21,666 -
Maturing August 2006 - 8,333

* In the prior year Mr Clarke also entered! into a cash settled put option against 333,836 fully paid ordinary Bank shares. In addition,

Mr Ciarke has an indirect interest in cash-seftled put options that are exercisable against 213,517 fully paic ordinary Bank shares.

* In the prior year Mr Downe also entered into a cash-settied put option against 70,560 fully paid ordinary Bank shares.

Al other transactions with Key Management Personnel inchuding iheir personally refated parties) were conducted on an amm's-length
basis in the erdinary course of business and under nomat terms and conditions for customers and employees. These transactions
were triviad or domestic in nature and consisted principally of normal personal banking and financial investment senvices.

This is the end of the Remuneration Report.

Macquarie Bank Limitad 2007 Annual Review




Directors' equity participation
At 14 May 2007, the Directors have relevant interests, as notified by the Directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), in the following shares and share options of the Bank:

Fully paid ardinary shares held Share options held

at 14 May 2007 at t4 May 2007
D.S. Clarke 650,629 53.734°
M.R.G. Johnson 293,803 84,795
AE. Moss 404,236 511,000
L.G. Cox 269,812 23,265
J.G. Allpass 18,513 -
PM. Kirby 9772 -
C.B. Livingstone 7,550 -
HK. MceCann 11,359 -
J.R. Niland 5959 -
H.M. Nugent 11,592 -

* These share options were issued pursuant 1 the Employee Option Plan and are subject 10 the exercise conditions applying 1o granis of
options to Executive Direclors, as described in note 36 to the full financial report — Employee equity participation.

During the financial year, Direclors received dividends relating to their shareholdings in the Bank at the same rate as other shareholders.

The relevant interests of Directors as at 14 May 2007 in managed investrent schemes macie availabie by subsidiaries of the
Bank and contracts that confer a right to call for or deliver shares in the Bank are listed on pages 93-94.

Directors’ and officers' indemnification and insurance

Under the Banic's Constitution, the Bank indemnifies all past and present Directors and Secretaries of the Bank (including at this time the
Directors named in this report and the Secrelaries), and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, against every liabifty incurrex! by them in, and &l
legal costs incurred in defending or resisting {or otherwise in connection with) proceedings in which they become involved because of,
their respective capacities unless:

— the liability is owed {0 the Bank or to a related body corporate;

— the liability diid not arise out of conduct in good faith;

— the liability is for a pecuniary penalty order or a compensation order under the Corporations Act 2001,

—in the case of legal costs, the costs are incurred in defending or resisting a liability excluded abave, criminal proceedings in which the
person is found guilty or proceedings brought by the Australian Securities and Investrments Commission or a liquidator where grounds
for a court order are established (but excluding costs relating to investigations before commencement of proceedings for the court order),
or the costs incurred in refation to proceedings for redef to the persan under the Corporations Act 2001 in which the court denies relief;

— the Bank is forbidden by statute to indernnify the person against the liability or legal costs; or

— anindemnity by the Bank of the person against the liability or legal costs would, if given, be made veid by statute.

Following approval by shareholders at the 1998 Annual General Meeting, the Bank entered into a Deed of Access, Indemnity and
Insurance dated 4 August 1998 [Deed), which protects Directors acting as Directors during their term of office and after their resignation
{except where an individual engages in conauct invelving a lack of good faith). Under the Deed, the Bank agrees to:

—indemnify a current or past Voting Director to the Rill extent of the indemnity given in refation 1o officers of the Bank under its Constiution
in force from time to time;

—1{ake out and maintain a company reimbursement insurance policy and make availabie to Oirectors a Direciors” and Cfficers’ insurance
policy [sach policy to be in an amount and on terms and conditions appropriate for a reasonably prudent company it the Bank's position)
for seven years after the Director ceases to be a Director of the Bank;

— koan funds to a Director to cover the Director's legal costs in defending a claim, repayable when the outcome of the proceedings is
determined (where the outcome results in the Cirector having an indeminity for such legal costs, the loan wil be repayable from the
amount paid by the Bank 1¢ the Director urkler the indemnity); and

— grant access to Directors to all Board papers for at least seven years after the Director ceases to be a Director of the Bank, and access
to other documents if the documenis were in the Bank’s possession at the time the Director was a Director and whese it is not contrary
to the Bank's interest for the documents to be provded.
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Directors’ and officers’ indemnification and insurance continued

In addition, following the approval of sharsholders at the 1299 Annual General Meeting, the Bank made an Indemnity and Insurance
Deed Poll on 30 July 1999 (Deed Poll). The benefit of the undertakings made by the Bank under the Dead Pol have been given to each
of the Directors, Secretarigs, parsons invotved in the management and certain other persons, of the Bank, its wholly-owned subsidiaries
and other companies where the person is acting as such at the specific request of the Bank or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank.
The Deed Poll provides for the same indemnity and insurance arrangements for those persons with the benefit of the Deed Poll as for
the Deed of Indemnity, Access and Insurance described above. However, the Deed Poll does not provide for access to documents of
the Bank.

Following the epproval of shareholders at the 2000 Annual General Meeting, both the Deed and the Deed Poll wera amended in a minor
way to clarify the operation of the deeds with respect o the provision of loans to indemnified persons for legal costs and the requirement
to repay such loans. From November 2005, sach Director, each Secratary and other officers having the benefit of the indemnity
provisions under the Bank's Constitution, the Deed and the Deed Poll was asked to agree that those indermnities would not apply to the
extent to which an indermnity for any liability or legal costs is forbidden by Australian statute or would, if given, be made void by Australian
statute. These limitations on the indemnities were subsequently adopted into the indemnity provisions of the Bank's Gonstitution with the
approval of shareholders at the 2006 Annual General Meeting with the effect that this imitation now applies directly to the terms of the
Deed and the Deed Poll,

The Bark maintains a Directors' and Officers’ insurance policy that provides cover for each person in favour of whom such insurance
is reguired 1o be taken out under the Deed and the Deed Poll and for the Bank in indemnifying such persons pursuant to the Deed and
the Deed Poll. Individuals covered by the insurance policy pay the premium attributable to their direct coverage and the Bank pays the
premium attributable o the company reimbursement coverage under the policy. The Directors’ and Officers' insurance policy prohibits
disclosure of the premium payable under the policy and the nature of the liabiiities insured.

Directors’ interests and benefits

A nurnber of Directors have given written notices stating that they hold office in specified companies and accordingly are regarded as
having a refevant interest in any contract or proposed contract that may be made between the Bank and any of these companies.
Transactions between the Bank and any of these companies are on nomal commercial terms and conditions.

Other than any benefit that may have been derived from loans and other financial instrument transactions provided by and to the Bank

or a related entity and any amounts received in respect of previously accrued remuneration, no Director has, during the financial year and
the period to the date of this report, become entitled to receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of
emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors shown in this Report, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Bank or of
a refated entity) by reason of a contract made by the Bank or a related entity with the Director, or with a firm of which he/she is a member,
or with an entity in which he/she has a substantial financial interest,

Share options
Information on the Bank's share option scheme, options granted and shares issued as a result of the exercise of options during or since
the end of the financial year is contained in note 36 1o the full financial report - Employee equity participation,

No person holding an option has or had, by virtue of the option, a right to participate in a share issue of any other corporation.
No unissued shares, other than those referred 10 above, are under option as at the date of this report.
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Directors’ other relevant interests

Tres redevant interests of Direciors as at 14 May 2007 in managed investment schemes made available by controlled entities of the Bank

and other disclosable relevant interests are:

Name and position Direct interests

Indirect interests

Executive Directors
0.5, Clarke — 285,575 Zero Cost Collars? — 391,854 67 Macquarie Balanced Growth
Fund Units
— 500,000 Macquarie Investrnent Trust [l A Units
— 500,000 Macguarie Investment Trust IV A Urits
— 5,000 Macquarie Office Trust Units
— 213,517 Cash Settled Put Options!
— 100,784 Zero Cost Colar®
— 428,865.49 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units
M.R.G. Johnson — 241,835 Macquarie Global infrastructure — 649,523 Macquarie Infrastructure Group
Fund A Units Stapled Securities
— 241,835 Macguarie Giobal Infrastructure — 185,670.36 Macquarie Lazard Master Global
Fund 8 Units Equities Fund
— 54,185 Macqguarie Global Infrastructure
Fund C Units
— 54,178 Magcquarie Globa!l Infrastructure
Fund © Units
— 161,696 Macquarie Infrastructure Group
Stapled Securities
— 251,800 Macguarie Martin Place Trust Units
AFE. Moss — 713.078 Macquarie Airports Stapled Securities — 250,000 Macquarie Capital Aliance Group

— 500,000 Macquarie Cormmunications
Infrastructure Group Stapled Securities

— 25,000 Macquarie Globa! Infrastructure
Trust Units

— 162,000 Macquarie Infrastructure Group
Stapled Securities

— 10,000 Macquarie Leisurg Trust Units

— 48,108.06 Macquarie Newton Australian
Absolute Return Fund

— 11,429 Macquarie Cffice Trust Units

— 51,250 Macquarie Private Equity Trust Uniis

— 100,000 Macquarie Technology Fund 1A Units

— 421,333.14 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units

Stapled Securities
— 10,000 Macquarie CountryWide Trust Units
— B,334 Macquane Office Trust Uinits
— 357,332 65 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units
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Name and position Direct interests Indirect interests
LG. Cax — 938.93 Macquarie Cash Management Trust Units ~ — 605,800 High Yield Infrastructure Dehbt
Trust Units

— 189,236 Macguarie Airports Stapled Securities
— 13,794.63 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units
= 40,000 MP Structured Fund Units
— 63.71 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units

Independent Directors

J.G. Allpass — 45,140 ConnectEast Group Stapled Securities
— 170,006 Macquarie Airports Stapled Securities
— 60,488 Macquarie Capital Allance Group
Stapled Securities

— 39,058 Macqguarie Communications
infrastructure Group Stapled Securities

— 89,966 Macquarie CountryWide Trust Units

- 142,774 Macquarie Direct Property Fung Units

= 30,000 Macquarie Equinox Limited
Class E Shares

— 90,000 Macquarie Global Infrastructure
Trust Units

— 45,008.05 Macqguarie Global Infrastructure
Trust Il Units

— 123,781 Macquarie Infrastructure Group
Stapled Securities

— 20,000 Macquarie Media Group Stapled
Securities

— 75,718 Macquarie Office Trust Units

— 10,000 Macquarie Private Capital Group
Stapled Securities

— 70,000 Macquarie Private Equity Trust Units

— 60,000 Macquarie Private Equity Trust I} Units

PM. Kirby — 146,707 ConnectEast Group Stapled Securities — 27,800 Macquarie Infrastructure Group
— 109,987 Macquarie Infrastructure Group Stapled Securities
Stapled Securities — 76,954.66 Macquarie Cash Management
— 30,000 Macquarie Media Group Stapled Securities Trust Units

C.B. Livingstone — 18,813 Macquarie CountryWide Trust Units
— 174,446.92 Macquarie Cash Managerment
Trust Units

H.K. McCann — 103,000 Macquarie Martin Place Trust Units
— 12,500 Macquarie Capital Aliance Group
Stapled Securities
— 50,000 Macguarie Communications
Infrastructure Group Stapled Securities
— 110,000 Macquarie Countn/Wide Trust Units

J.R. Niland — 58,000 Macquarie Capital Aliance Group

Stapled Securities

— 20,291 Macquarie infrastructure Group
Stapled Securities

— 50,875 Macquarie Office Trust Units

— 500 Macquarie Park Street Trust Reset
Preference Units

— 7,500 Macquarie Airports Stapled Securities

H.M. Nugent — 26,524 Macquanie Airports Stapled Securities — 372,407 .90 Macquarie Cash Management
Trust Units
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Cash-settied put options are exercisable against the Bank in
relation to Bank shares pursuant to a Shared Appreciation Loan
with the Bank. In relation 1o Mr Clarke, the two cash-settled put
cptions in which Mr Clarke has an incirect interest are exercisable
against 53,538 and 153,979, respectivety, fully paid ordinary
Bank shares.

Mr Clarke entered into a Zero Cost Collar transaction with the
Bank in respect of 153,296 fully paid ordinary Bank shares,

which has the effect of acquirng cash-settied put options against
movements in the Bank share price below the then current share
price, and dispasing of the benefit of any share price movements
above a nominated level aver the pencd from 16 May 2003 to

12 June 2008, in respect of those shares. Mr Clarke entered into
a Zero Cost Collar transaction with the Bank in respect of 167,083
fully paid ordinary Bank shares, which has the effect of acquiing
cash-settled put options against movernents in the Bank share
price below the then current share price, and disposing of the
benefil of any share price movements above a nominated level
aver the period from 20 May 2003 to 12 June 2008, in respect

of those shares. Mr Clarke entered into a Zero Cost Collar
transaction with the Bank in respect of 25,196 fully paid ordinary
Bank shares, which has the effect of acguining cash-settled put
options against moverments in the Bank share price below the
then current share price, and disposing of the benefit of any share
price movements above a nominated level over the penod from
19 August 2004 to 18 August 2009, in respect of those shares.

A compary in which Mr Clarke has a relevant interest entered into
a Zero Cost Collar transaction with the Bank: in respect of 100,784
fully paid ordinary Bank shares, which has the effect of acquiring
cash-settled put options against moverments in the Bank share
price below the then cument share price, and disposing of the
benefit of any share price movernents above a nominated level
over the period from 16 May 2003 10 12 June 2008, in respect of
those shares.

The transactions in (1) 10 (3) above do not relate to Bank shares in
respect of which the relevant persons are not permitted by Bank
policy to minimise their equity risk.

Environmental regulations

The Bank and its controled entities have policies and procedures
in place thal are designed to ensure that, where operations are
subject 1o any particular and significant environmental regulation
under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Teritory, those
obligations are identified and appropriately addressed.

The Directors have determined that there has not been any
matenal breach of those obligations during the financial year.

Non-audit services

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor of the

Bank PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC"), and its related practices
for non-audit senvices provided, during the year, is disclosed in
note 47 to the full financial repor — Audit and other services
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC").

The Bank's external auditor policy, which is discussed in the
Bank's Corporate Governance Statement contained in the 2007
Annual Review, states that the external auditor is not to prowde
non-audit services under which the auditor assumes the role of
management, becomes an advocate for the Bank, or audts its
own professional expertise. The policy also provides that
significant permissible non-audit assignments awarded to
external auditors must be approved in advance by the Board
Audit and Compliance Commitiee or the Commitiee Chairman,
as appropriate.

The Board Audit and Compliance Committee has reviewed a
summary of non-audit senvices provided, during the year, by Pw(
and its refated practices, and has confirmed that the provision of
non-audit senvices is compatibie with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001
{C1h} {"the Act”). This has been formally advised to the Board of
Directors. Consequently, the Cirectors are satisfied that the
provision of non-audit services, during the year, by the auditor
and its related practices did not compromise the auditor
incependence requirements of the Act.

Auditors’ independence declaration

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration, as required
under section 307C of the Act, is set out in the Directors’ Report
Schedule 2 following this report.

Rounding of amounts

In accordance with Australian Securities and Investments
Comrission Class Order 98/0100 (as amended), amounts in the
full Financial Report and Concise Report have been rounded off
to the nearast million doflars unless otherwise indicated.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

Ao

David Clarke
Non-Executive Chairman

ALt f L ner

Allan Moss
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Sydney
14 May 2007
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Directors' experience and special responsibilities

David $ Clarke, AQ, BEc (Hons), Hon DScEcon (Syd),

MBA (Harv) (age 65)

Non-Executive Chairrman (Chairman since the Bank's inception
in February 1985)

Chairman of the Board Nominating Committee

Chairman of the Board Risk Committee

Member of the Board Remuneration Cormmittee

David Clarke has been Non-Executive Chaimman of Macquarie
Bank Limited since 1 April 2007. He was Executive Chaimman of
Macquarie Bank from its formation in 1985 until 31 March 2007.
From 1971 to 1977, he was Joint Managing Director of Hil
Samuel Australia Limited {pradecessor to Macquarie Bank
Limited), from 1977 to 1984 Managing Director and from 1984
Executive Chairman. He is also Chaimman of McGuigan Simeon
Wines Limited {since 27 November 1891), Macguarie Goodman
Group (since 26 October 2000), Pocle’s Rock Wines Pty Ltd
[since 1 May 1970}, the Sydney University Football Club
Fourdation and the George Gregan Foundation. He is a member
of the Investment Advisory Committee of the Australian Otympic
Foundation, a member of the Harvard Business School Asia
Advisory Board, a member of the Seoul International Business
Aavisory Councll and the Bloomberg Asia Pacific Advisory
Committee. He is also a member of Council of the Royal
Agricultural Society of NSW and an honorary life member of the
Financial Markets Foundation for Children, He is a member of
the Corporate Governance Cormmittee of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors, Vice President of the Sydney University
Cricket Club and a Director of The Clayton Utz Foundation. He
was previously Chairman of the management companies of
Macquarie ProLogis Trust (from 26 June 2002 until 31 March
2007), Macquarie Office Trust (from 30 Jurne 1987 until 31 March
2007) and Macquarie Countrywide Trust {from 22 June 1985 until
31 March 2007). Mr Clarke is a resident of New South Wales,

Mark RG Johnson, LLB (Hons) (Melb), MBA (Harv) (age 66)
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman (Deputy Chairman since
Septernber 2000)

Executive Voting Director from February 1987 to March 2007
Member of the Board Corporate Governance Committee
Member of the Board Risk Committee

Mark Johnson joined Macquarie Bank in February 1987 as an
Executive Director of the Bank and Chairman of its Corporate
Sesvices Davision. He ceased fo be an Execitive of Macquarie
Bank on 31 March 2007, He was joint Managing Director of Hill
Samuel Australia Limited (predecessor to Macquarnie Bank Limited)
with David Clarke from 1871 to 1977 and an Executive Director of
Hill Samuel & Co. London until 1880. He was founding Director
of the Australian Bank in 1981 and resigned from that position in
1986 before regjoining Macquarie Bank. He is Chairman of AGL
Energy Limited (director since 1988), Chairman of Macquarie
Infrastructure Group (director since 15 February 1996) and a Life
Governor of the Victor Chang Cardiac Research Institute Limited.
He is Chairman of the APEC Business Advisory Council (“ABAC")
and Chairman of the Australian Strategic Policy Institute.

Mr Johnson is a resident of New South Wales.
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Allan E Moss, AQ, BA LLB (Hons) (Syd), MBA (Harv} {age 57}
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer since

August 1993

Executive Voting Director since June 1989

Member of the Board Risk Committee

Allan Moss joined Hill Samuel Australia Limited {predecessor to
Macquarie Bank Lirited) in the Corporate Services Group in 1977
and in 1982 became a Director of Hil Samuel Australia Limited.

In 1983, he led the team respensible for preparing the submission
to the Australian Government for the formation of Macquarie
Bark. The following year, he founded the Risk Management
Group which is responsible for the Bank's credit and other
prudential controls. In 1986, Mr Moss was made responsible for
the Comorate Banking Group. He was appointed Head of the
Financial Markets Group ir 1988 and Deputy Managing Director
the following year. Mr Moss became Managing Director in 1993,
Mr Moss is a resident of New Scuth Wales.

John G Allpass, FCA, FCPA, FAICD (age 66)

Independent Voting D¥rector - joined the Board in January 1994
Member of the Board Audit and Compliance Committee
Member of the Board Rernuneration Committee

Member of the Board Risk Committee

Jorn Apass is a Chartered Accountant and nas 33 ysars
experience in the accounting profession. He was Managing
Partner of KPMG's Queensiand practice for nine years until 1893,
He was also a member of the KPMG National Board. He currently
holds a nurmber of other appoiniments including Chairman of
Envestra Limited since July 2002 (director since 24 June 1997),
Emvic Holdings 2 Limited (director since 1 July 1999) and
directorships of Queensland Investment Corporation and MBF
Australia Limited, memnber of the Brisbane Advisory Board of the
Salvation Army, Coungillor of St John's Coflege and Chairman of
the National Trust St John's Cathedral Fund Raising Board, Mr
Allpass is a resident of Queensland.

Laurence G Cox, AO, BCom (Melbj, FCPA, SF Fin {age 68)
Voting Director since January 1996

Executive Voting Director since March 2004

Member of the Board Risk Committee

Laurie Cox joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director and also
became Joint Chairman of Macquarie Corporate Finance Limited
in January 1996. He was previously Executive Chairman of the
Potter Warburg Group of Companies and a Director of S G
Warburg Securities of London. Mr Cox was Chairman of
Australian Stock Exchange Limited from 1989 to 1994, Hewas a
Director of ASX from its inception in 1987, a Director of Securties
Exchanges Guarantee Corporation from 1987 to 1995, ard a
member of the Executive Commiittee of the Internationale Bourses
des Valeurs from 1990 to 1892. He is also a former member of the
Internationat Markets Advisory Board of The NASDAQ) Stock
Market (USA). He is currently an associate of ASX and on the
Executive Committee of the Australia Japan Business Co-
operation Committee, He is Chairman of SMS Managernent

& Technology Limited {since 9 May 2001) and the Murdoch
Chiidrens Research Institute and is a Director of Smorgon Steel
Group Limited {director since 16 September 1998) and Research
Australia Limited. He is a former Chairman of Transurban Group
{from February 1996 to February 2007). He was appointed an
Executive Director of the Bank in March 2004, Mr Coxis a
resident of Victoria,




Peter M Kirby, BE¢ (Rhodes), BEc (Hons} (Natal), MA (Manch),
MBA (Wits) (age 59)

Independent Voting Director ~ joined the Board in June 2003
Member of the Board Remuneration Committee

Member of the Board Risk Cornmittee

Peter Kirby was the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
of CSR Umited from 1998 to March 2003. He was a member of
the Board of the Business Council of Australia from 2001 10 2003.
Mr Kirby received the Centenary Medal in 2003. Prior 1o joining
CSR, Mr Kirby was with the Imperial Chemical Industries PLC
group ('ICI7 for 25 years in a variety of senior management
positions around the world, including Chairman/CEQ of ICt Paints,
respansible for the group's coatings businesses worldwice, and a
mermber of the Executive Board of ICI PLC, with responsibility for
ICI Ameficas and the western hemisphere. Mr Kirby is a Director
of Orica Limited (since 22 July 2003) and the Beacon Foundation,
He is a former Chairman and Director of Medibank Private Limited,
Mr Kirty is a resident of Victoria.

Catherine B Livingstone, BA {Hons) (Macquarie), FCA, FTSE
{age 51}

Independent Voting Director — joined the Board in

Novernber 2003

Chairrran of the Board Audit and Compliance Commitiee
Member of the Board Risk Committee

Member of the Board Nominating Cornmittee

Catherine Livingstone was the Managing Director of Cochlear
Limited from 1994 to 2000. Prior 1o that she was the Chief
Executive, Finance at Nudleus Limited and before that held a
variety of finance and accounting roles including having been with
chartered accountants, Price Waterhouse, for several years.
Ms Livingstone was alsa previousty Chairman of the CSIRO and
a Director of Goodman Fielder Limited and Rural Press Limited.
M3 Livingstone was awarded the Centenary Medal in 2003 for
senvice to Australian Society in Business Leadership and was
glected a Fellow of the Australian Academy of Technological
Sciences and Engineering in 2002. She is a Director of

Telstra Corporation Limited (since 17 November 2000) and a
member of the Federal Education Minister's Business/Industry/
Higher Education Counci. Ms Livingstone is a resident f New
South Wales.

H Kevin McCann, AM, BA LLB (Hons) (Syd}, LLM (Harv}, FAICD
{age 66)

independent Voting Director — joined the Board in

December 1996

L ead Independent Voting Director

Chairman of the Board Corporate Governance Committee
Member of the Board Audit and Compliance Committee
Member of the Board Risk Committee

Kevin McCann is a former Partner and Chairman of Allens Arthur
Robinson, a leading firm of Australian lawyers. He was a Partner at
the firm from 1970 to 2004. He practiced as a commercial lawyer
specialising in Mergers and Acquisitions, Mineral and Resources
Law and Capital Markets Transactions. He is Chairman of
Healthscope Limited (since 11 March 1994), Origin Energy Limited
(since 18 February 2000) and the Sydney Harbour Federation,

a director of BlueScope Steel Limited (since 10 May 2002) and

a Mamber of the Takeovers Panel, the Defence Procurement
Advisory Board and the Council of the National Library of Australia.
Mr McCann is a resident of New South Wales.

John R Nitand, AC, BCom, MCom, HonDSc (UNSWj}, PhD
{Mlingis), DUniv (SCU), FAICD (age 66)

independent Voting Director - joined the Board in

February 2003

Member of the Board Corporate Governance Comrmittee
Member of the Board Risk Cornrmittee

Member of the Board Audit and Compliance Committee

John Niland is a Professor Erexitus of the University of New
South Wales [JUNSW) and was Vice-Chancellor and President of
UNSW from 1992 to 2002, Before that he was the Dean of the
Facutty of Commerce and Economics, He is currently Chainman
of the Centennial Park and Moore Park Trust and of Campus
Living Funds Managerment Limited, President of the National Trust
of Australia {(NSW)} and is a Direcior of the Australian Innovation
Association. He is also a member of the University Grants
Committee of Hong Kong and a member of the Board of Trustees
of Singapore Management University, where he chairs the Finance
and Remuneration Committee. Professor Niland is a former Chiaf
Executive of the State Poliution Control Commission and
Executive Chairman of the Environment Pratection Authority.

He has served on the Australian Universities Council, the Prime
Minister's Science, Engineering and Innovation Counci, the
Boards of realestate.com.au Limited, St Vincent's Hospital and
the Sydney Symphony Crchestra Foundation and the Sydney
Olympic bid’s Building Comimission. Or Niland is & resident of
New South Wales.

Helen M Nugent, AQ, BA (Hons), PhD (Qld), MBA (Harv)

(age 58)

independent Vioting Director - joined the Board in June 1999
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee

Member of Board Nominating Committee

Member of the Board Risk Comimittee

Helen Nugent has held a number of roles in the finance sectar.
She is currently Chairman of Funds SA and Swiss Re Life and
Health (Australia) Limited and previousty was Direclor of Strategy,
Wesipac Banking Corporation (1994 to 1999), a Non-Executive
Director of the State Bank of New South Wales (1993 to 1994)
and a Nen-Executive Director of Mercantile Mutuat (1992 1o 1994),
Currently, she is also a Director of Origin Energy Limited (since

25 March 2003) and Freehills and the Australian Institute of
Company Directors as well as being part-time Executive Chairman
of Hudson (Australia and New Zealand). She is a former girector
of UNITAB (1999 to 2006) and Carter Calt Harvey (2003 to 2006).
She was formerly Deputy Chaiman of the Australia Council and
Chairman of the Major Perorming Arts Board of the Australia
Coundil and in 1999, she was Chairman of the Ministerial Inquiry
into the Major Parforming Arts. Prior to joining Westpac, Dr
Nugent was Professor in Management and Director of the MBA
Program at the Australian Graduate School of Management and
a partner at McKinsey and Company. Dr Nugent is a resident of
New South Wales.
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31 Marcn 2007 continued

Company secretaries’ qualifications and experience

Dennis Leong, BSc BE (Hons) (Syd), MCom (UNSW),

CPA, FCIS

Cornpany Secretary since 25 October 1993

Dennis Leong is an Executive Director of Macquarie Bank and
Head of Macquarie Bank's Company Secretarial and Investor
Relations Oivision, which is responsible for the Group's company
secretarnial requirements and professional risks insurances and
Macquarie Bank's employee equity plans and investor relations.
He has had over 13 years company secretarial experience and
12 years experience in corporate finance at Macquarie Bank and
Hill Sarmuet Australia Limited,

Amelia Cho, BCom LLB (UNSW)

Assistant Company Secretary since 29 March 2001

Amelia Cho is an Associate Director of Macquarie Bank. Ms Cha
has had 11 years experience in the Company Secretarial and
Investor Relations Division at Macquarie Bank. She was previously
an Associate Lawyer in the Commercial Division of Dunhill
Madden Butler {now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers Legal).
She holds a current practicing certificate with the Law Scciety

of NSwW.
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Michael Panikian, BBus (UTS) CA F Fin

Assistant Company Secretary since 13 Novemnber 2006
Michael Panikian is an Associate Director of Macquaris Bank.

Mr Panikian has nine years experience at Macquarie in a range of
Financial Reporting, Hurman Resources and Company Secretarial
moles. He was previously an Audi Supenasor at Coopers &
Lybrand (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers) and has
worked in finanoe roles for other investment banks in London.
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

As lsad auditor for the audit of Macquarie Bank Lirmited for the
year ended 31 March 2007, | confim that to the best of my
knowiedge and belief, there have been:

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2004 in relation to the audit for the reporting
period, and

nao contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct
in relation to the audit for the reporting penod.

This staterment is in respect of Macquane Bank Limited and the
entities it controlled during the reporting period.

‘:Z'—a_”_ /’é....«—_//
lan Hammond
Partner

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Sydrrey
14 May 2007

Liability is imited by a scheme under Professional
Standards Legistation
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Consolidated  Consolidated

2007 2006

Notes $m Bm

Interest and similar income 4,632 3,136
Interest expense and similar charges (3,904) {2.544)
Net interest income 728 592
Fee and commission income 3,540 2,842
Net trading income 1,047 B76
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures using the equity methcd 242 172

Other operating income 1,676 411
Impairment charges (52 (61)
Total operating income 7,181 4,832
Employment expenses (3,733) (2,407)
Brokerage and commission expenses {421) (366)
Cocupancy expenses {226) (139)
Non-salary technology expenses {163) (128)
Other operating expenses {710) (505)
Total operating expenses (5,253) {3,545)
Operating profit before income tax 1,928 1,287
income tax expense B3N {290}
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 937
Profit attributable to minority interests (57} {52)
Profit attributable to equity holders of Macguarie Bank Limited 1,494 945

Distributions paid or provided on:
Macquarie Income Securities 5 (31) (29)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,463 916
Cents per share

Basic earnings per share 591.6 400.3
Diluted eamings per share 569.8 382.3

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and discussion and analysis.
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Consolidated  Consolidated

2007 2006
Notes $m $m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 3 5
Due from banks 6,120 6,394
Cash collateral on securities bonmowed and reverse repurchase agreements 25,909 13,570
Trading portfolic assets 15,518 14,246
Loan assets held at amortised cost 45,796 34,999
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 2,779 2,104
Derivative financial instruments — positive values 11,913 10,978
Other assets 10,444 8,452
Investment securties available for sale 6,060 3,746
Intangitbie assets 100 150
Life investment contracts and other unit holder assets 5,847 5,183
Interest in associates and joint veniures using the equity method 4,071 3,463
Property, plant and equipment 378 292
Deferred income tax assets 457 240
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 994 2,389
Total assets 136,389 106,211
Liabilities
Due {o banks 4,127 2118
Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements 7,489 6,995
Trading partiolic liabilities 15,922 10,057
Derivative financial instruments - negative values 11,069 10,057
Deposits 12,403 9,267
Debt issued at amortised cost 51,365 39,022
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 5,552 5481
Cther [abilties 11,958 9,553
Current tax iabiities 132 a7
Life investment contracts and other unit holder labiliies 5781 5,130
Provisions 153 132
Deferrad income tax liabilities 78 157
Liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale 170 1,427
Total liabilities excluding loan capital 126,199 99,493
Loan capital
Subordinated debt at amortised cost 1,783 1.115
Subordinated debt at fair value through profit and loss 888 266
Total liabilities 128,870 100,874
Net assets 7,519 5337
Equity
Contributed equity
Ordinary share capital 3,103 1,916
Treasury shares ) 2)
Macquare Income Securities ity 33
Reserves 380 250
Retained samings 2 2,795 1,934
Total capital and reserves attributabie to equity holders of Macguarie Bank Limited 6,662 4,489
Minority interest 857 848
Total equity 7,518 5337

The above consalidated balance sheat should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and discussion and analysis.
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Consolidated  Consolidated
2007 2008
Sm $m
Total equity at the beginning of the year 5,337 4,425
Adjustments on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 138, net of tax:
Retained profits — 16
Reserves —— 1 71
Available for sala investments, net of tax 7 84
Associates and joint ventures {12) 2
Cash flow hedges, net of tax 8 2
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (3} -
Net income recognised directly in equity 70 167
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 997
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,621 1,164
Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 1,160 308
Dividends and distibutions paid or provided (633) {550)
Minority interest:
{Reductionjcontribution of equity, net of transaction costs {21) (12)
Changes in retained eamings due to acquisitions and disposals 27 —
Distributions paid or provided {54) {51)
Cther equity movements:
Share based payments 87 53
Net purchase of treasury shares (5) -
Total equity at the end of the year 7,519 5,337
Total recognised income and expense for the year is atiributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,533 1,088
Macquarie Income Securities holders Kl 29
Minority interest 57 a7
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,621 1,164

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and

discussion and analysis.
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Consolidated

Consolidated

2007 2005
$m $m

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 4,461 3,069
Interest and other costs of finance paid {3,828) {2,301)
Dwvidends and distributions received 460 230
Fees and other non-interest income received 3,572 2.644
Fees and commissions paid {380} {443)
Net {paymentsyreceipts from {rading securities and
other financial assetsAiabilities (8,281) {5,257}
Payments to supoliers 797 827
Employment expenses paid (2,377 {1,854)
Income tax paid (626) (353)
Life investment contract income 415 193
Life investment contract premiums received and other unit holder contributions 2,594 o973
Life investment contracts payments (2,469) (1.187)
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
- net receipts/{payments} from operations 173 (2)
Loan assets (net) {11,621) (7.777)
Recovery of loans previously written-off 3 —
Net increase in money market and other deposit accounts 17,726 18,510
Net cash flows from cperating activities {975} 5,618
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for assets available for sale {14,651) (7.374)
Proceeds from the realisation of assets available for sale 13,762 7,173
Payments for interests in associates (1,525} (2.453)
Proceeds from the sale of associates 1,080 1,070
Proceeds from the sale of assels and disposal groups classified as held for sale 2,159 1,238
Payments for the acquisition of controlied entities, excluding disposal groups, net of cash acquired (25) (106)
Payments for the acquisition of assets and disposal groups classified as held ior sale,
net of cash acquired {1,750} (921)
Payments for ife investment contracts and other unit holder investments {6,083) {6.327)
Proceeds from the sale of life investment contract investments 5,520 5647
Payments for fixed assets (199) {262)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 7 5
Net cash flkows from investing activities {1,705) {1.310)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the tssue of ordinary share capital 946 223
{(Payments to)/proceeds from cther minority interest 5 2)
Repayment of subordinated debt - (26)
Issue of subordinated debt 1,394 -
Dnvidends and distributions paid {472) (520)
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,873 {325)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash (807) 3,983
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the financial vear 9,133 5,150
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 8,326 9,133

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Discussion and Analysis of Income Statement

The economic entity achieved a profit from ordinary activities after
income tax attributable 1o ordinary equity holders of $1,463 milion
(2006: 916 million), a 0% increase. The return on average
ordinary shareholders’ funds was 28.1%, against 26.0% in the
previous financial vear.

Total income from ordinary activities
Total income from ordinary activities increased by $2,349 million
(49%) to $7.181 milion at 31 March 2007.

Net interest income
Net interest income increased by $136 million (23%) to
$728 million,

Interast and simitar income rose by $1,496 million (48%) to
$4,632 million, driven by growth in average interest bearing
assets of $21,765 million (44%) and an increase in average
interest rates due to the mix of assets employed.

Interest and simiar charges increasad by $1,360 million (53%)
to $3,904 million, arising from growth in average interest bearning
liakilities of $22,834 million (44%), rising interest rates during the
year, and a change in the mix of fiabiities.

Net fee and commission

Net fee and commission income increased by $698 million (25%)
this financial year. Market conditions have been favourable for
investment banking aciivities.

Net trading income
Net trading income increased by $171 million (20%) to $1,047
million, primarily from increased income on equity products.

Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures using the
equity method

Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures using the
equity method grew from $172 milion {0 $242 milion an increase
of 41% due to the growth in interest in associates.

Other operating income
Cther operating income increased by $1,265 million (308%)
1o $1,676 milion, driven by profits from asset realisations,

Total expenses from aordinary activities
Total expenses from ordinary activities rose $1,708 million (48%)
in the period primarily from increased employment expenses,

Income tax

The effective income tax rate decreased on the prior year (2007:
20.5%; 2006: 24.0%}, reflecting the increase in offshore income
and the rate differential on such income.

Eamings per share
Basic earnings per share increased from $4.00 per share for
2006 {0 $5.92 per share, reflecting the strong growth in earnings.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

The interim ordinary dividend paid during the financial year ended
31 March 2007 was $1.25 per {ully paid ordinary share, 100%
franked at 30% (2006: 80 cents per fully paid crdinary share,
80% franked at 30%).
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Since year end, the Directors have recommended the payment
of a final dividend. The final dividend will be $1.90 per fully paid
ordinary share, 100% franked based on tax paid at 30% (Final
dwidend 2006: $1.25 per fully paid ordinary share, 100% franked
at 30%).

Discussion and Analysis of Balance Sheet
Net assets increased from $5,337 rmillion at 31 March 2006 to
$7.519 milion at 31 March 2007, a 41% rise.

Total assets

Total assets rose by 28% to $136,389 milicn at 31 March 2007,
attributable to strong growth in cash collateral on securities
borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements; trading portfclio
assets; loan assets held at amortised cost; derivative financial
instruments-positive values and investmensi securities available
for sale.

Total liabilities

Total liabilities (excluding loan capital) rose 27% to $126,199
million at 31 March 2007, arising primarily from increases across
cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agresments;
trading portfolio liabilities; dertvative financial instruments-negative
values and other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss. Subordinated debt increased by $1,280 million (93%) since
31 March 2006.

Total capital and reserves attributable o equity holders of the
economic entity increased by $2,173 million (48%) to $6,662
million. The increase is due 1o the $700 million capital raising in
May 2006, growth in retained samings, reserves and ordinary
share capital attributable to the exercise of options and the
Drvidend Reinvestment Flan.

The total capital adequacy ratio increased from 14,1% 16 15.5%
at 31 March 2007 and the Tier 1 ratic increased from 12.4% to
15.0% as at 31 March 2007. These movements were primarily the
result of a growth in retained eamings and share capital exceeding
the increass in risk weighted assets attributable to balance sheet
growth cver the year. These ratios remain in excess of the Bank's
minimum ratios.

The Bank's credit ratings continue to reflect strong prudentiai
controts and diversified eamings. During the financial year, the
Bank mainiained all its external credit ratings.

Discussion and Analysis of Cash Flow Staternent
Cash flows from operating activities for the financial year was a net
outflow of $375 million {2006: net infiow of $5.618 milion).

Cash flows from investing activities was a net outflow of
$1,705 million (2006: net outflow of $1,310 milion).

Cash flows fram financing activities was a net inflow of $1,873
million (2006: net outflow of $325 milion). This was mainly due to
the inflow of proceeds from the issue of share capital totalling
$246 milion (2006: $223 milion} and the inflow of proceeds from
the issue of subordinated debt totaling $1,394 miion (2006: $nib.
This was counteracied by the payment of dividends and
distributions of $472 milion (2006; $520 million).




Note 1. Basis of accounting

The concise financial report is derfved from the fult financial report of Macquarie Bank Limited and the entities that it controlled {together,
“the economic entity") at the end of and during the financial year ended 31 March 2007, which is prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards (which incudes Austradian Interpretations by virtue of AASB 1048), the Corporations Act 2001 and the Banking
Act 1959, Cormpliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial report complies with International Financial

Reporting Standards.

The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASE 1039: Concise Financial

Reports and the relevant provisions of the Corporations Act 2001.

Consolidated  Consolidated
2007 2006
$m $m

Note 2. Retained earnings

Balance at the Deginning of the financial year 1,934 1,523

Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 138, net of tax —— 16

Profit attributable to equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,494 945

Distributions paid or provided on Macquarie Income Securities {31) (29)

Dividends paid on ordinary share capital {602} (521}

Total retained eamings 2,795 1,934

Note 3. Revenue

Interest and similar income 4,632 3,136

Fee and commission income 3513 2819

Investment revenue and management fees from lfe investment contracts

and other unit holder businesses 613 509

Net trading income 1,047 876

Profit on the sale of investment securities

available for sale and associates and joint ventures 810 178

Crther incorne (excluding profit on the sale of investment secunties available for sale

and associates and joint ventures) 1,108 405

Total revenue from operating activities 11,723 7.923
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Note 4. Segment reporting
Primary segment - business

Asset and
wealth Financial Investment
management markets banking Lending Total
$m $m $m $m Sm
Consolidated 31 March 2007
Income statement
Revenue from extermal customers 2,327 2,806 3,236 3.0M 11,440
Net operating incorme from disposal groups held for sale — - L3 - 41
Intersegmental revenue/expense) 35 (530) (242) 737 -
Share of net profits of associates and
joint ventures using the equity method 195 33 9 - 242
Total revenue from ordinary activiies 2,557 2,314 3,044 3,808 11,723
Operating profit rom ordinary activities
before income tax 494 376 883 175 1,928
Income tax (expense) (132) (42) (157) {46) 3770
Profit frorm ordinary activities after income tax 362 334 726 129 1,551
Non-cash expenses: deprediation {22) (15) (65) (88) {190}
Balance sheet
Total assets 12,417 69,717 13,713 40,542 136,389
Total labtlities 9,163 86,920 4,319 28,468 128,870
Fixed assets acquired during the financial year 21 85 28 55 199
Intangible assets acquired during the financial year - 9 25 13 47
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 43 - 851 - 994
Interest in associates an joint ventures using
the equity methed 921 207 2,893 50 4,071
Consolidated 31 March 2006
Income statement
Revenue from external customars 1,702 1,968 1,887 2212 7,769
Nei operating loss from disposal groups held for sale - - (18) - (18)
Intersegmental revenue/iexpense) 48 (280} (138) 370 -
Share of net profits of assodiates and
joint ventures using the equity method 155 3 17 3} 172
Totat revenue from ordinary activities 1,905 1,691 1,748 2,579 7.923
Operating profit from ordinary activities
before income tax 345 292 480 170 1,287
Income tax (expense) {104) (38) {104) {44) {290)
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 241 2564 376 126 aq7
Non-cash expenses: depreciation (18) &) (25) {53) (104)
Balance sheet
Total assets 8,780 50,732 12,587 34,112 106,211
Total liahiities 7,385 63,768 5,488 24233 100,874
Fixed assets acquired during the financial year 18 54 1685 35 262
Intangible assets acquired during the financial year 33 24 71 2 130
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 24 — 2.365 — 2,389
Interest in associates and joint vantures
using the equity method 1,070 276 2,085 22 3,463
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Note 4. Segment reporting continued
Secondary segment — geographical

Geographical segments have been determined based on where the transactions have been booked. The operations of the economic
entity are headquariered in Australia. All locations below the reportable segment threshold have been collectively classified as other.

Australia Asia Pacific* Europe  North America Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m S
Consolidated 31 March 2007
Revenue from
external customers 7,014 1,458 1,643 1,314 1 11,440
Total assets 69,983 12,593 37,559 14,808 1,446 136,389
Fixed assets acquired
cluring the financial year 153 13 26 7 - 193
intangible assets acquired
during the financial year 11 10 g 17 - a7
Consolidated 31 March 2006
Revenue from
external customers 5,107 1,056 1,011 568 27 7,769
Total assets 75,626 7.950 14,284 7,723 628 106,211
Fixed assets acquired
during the financial year 74 31 119 33 5 262
Intangitie assets acquired
during the financial year a6 12 8 24 — 130
* Excludes Australia as it is disclosed as a separate segment.
Consolidated Consolidated
2007 2006
$m $m
Note 5. Dividends paid and distributions paid or provided
i) Dividends paid
Ordinary share capital
interim dividend paid {$1.25* (2006: $0.90%) per share) 32 208
2006 Final dividend paid ($1.25* {2005: $1.007) per share) 290 224
2006 Special dividend paid ($nil (2005: $0.40%) per share) - 89
Total dividends paid 602 521

* These dividends were 100% franked at the 30% corporate tax rate.
* These dividends were 90% franked at the 30% corporate tax rate.

The Bank’s Dividend Reirvestment Pian ("DRP™) remains activated, The DRP is optional and cffers ordinary shareholders in Australia and
New Zealand the opportunity to acquire fulty paid ordinary shares, without transaction costs, at a 2.5% discount 1o the prevaiing market
value with effect frorm the 2006 final dividend. A shareholder can elect to participate in or terminate their invelvernent in the DRP at any
time. Details of fully paid ordinary shares issued pursuant 1o the DRP are included in note 31 - Conitributed equity in the full financial report.

Dividend per ordinary share

Cash dividends per ordinary share (distribution of current year profits) $3.15

$2.15

iy Dividends not recognised at the end of the financial year

Since the end of the financial year the Directors have recommended the payrment of the 2007 final dividend of $1.90 per fully paid ordinary
share, 100% franked based on tax paid at 30%. The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on 4 July 2007 out
of retained profits at 31 March 2007, but rot recognised as a liability at the end of the financial year, is $482 milion. This amount has been
estimated based on the nurmber of shares sligible to participate as at 31 March 2007.
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Consolidated  Consolidated
2007 2006
$m $m
Note 5. Dividends paid and distributions paid or provided continued
iii) Distributions paid or provided
Macquarie Income Securities
Cistributions paid (net of distributions previously provided) 24 23
Cistributions provided 7 6
Total distributions paid or provided K1 29

The Macquarie Income Security (‘MIS"} is a stapled amangement, which includes a perpetual preference share issued by the Bank.

No dividends are payable under the preference shares until the Bank exercises its option to receive future payments of interest and
principal under the other stapled security. Uipon exercise, dividends are payable at the same rate, and subject to similar conditions, as the
MIS. Dividends are also subject to Directors’ discretion. The distributions paid/provided in respect of the MISs are recognised directly in

equity in accordance with AASB 132: Finandial Instruments: Presentation.

Consolidated  Consclidated
2007 2006
$m m

Macquarie [Income Preferred Securities
Cistributions paid {net of distributions previously provided) 30 27
Distributions provided 24 24
Total distributions paid or provided 54 51

The Macquarie Income Prefermed Securities represent a minority interest of the consolidated entity. Accordingly, the distributions paid/
provided in respect of the Macguarie income Prefemed Securities are recorded as movements in mincrity interest, as disclosed in note 32
- Reserves, retained eamings and minority interests in the full financial report, The Bank can redirect the payments of distributions under
the convertible debentures to be paid to itself. Each debenture converts for 500 Bank preference shares at the Bank's discretion at any
{ime, in certain circumstances {to meet capital requirements), or on maturity, Refer to Note 31 within the Full Financial Report for further

details on these instruments.
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Consolidated Consolidated

2007 2006
Cents per share
Note 6. Eamings per share
Basi¢ earnings per share 591.6 400.3
Diluted eamings per share 569.8 3823
Reconciliation of earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
$m 3m
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 997
(Profit) atiributabie to minority interests:
Macquarie income Preferred Securities (54) (B
Other equity holders 3 m
Distributions paid or provided on:
Macguarie Income Securities {31} (29
Total earnings used in the calculation of basic arkd diuted eamings per share 1,463 916
Number of shares
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
of basic earnings per share 247,313,494 228,840,495
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
Weighted average fully paid ordinary shares 247,313,494 228,840,495
Potential ordinary shares:
Weighted average options 8,441,575 10,790,865
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential
ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted eamings per share 256,755,069 239,631,360

Intormation concerning the classification of securities
Options

Options granted to employees under the Employee Option Plan are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have been included
in the calculation of diuted earnings per share ta the extent to which they are dilutive. The issue price, which is equivalent 1o the fair value
of the options granted, and exercise price used in this assessment incorporate both the amounts recognised as an expense up to the

reporting date as well as the fair value of options yet 1o be recognised as an expense in the future,

Included in the balance of weighted average options are 1,998,451 (2006: 1,424,595} aptions that were converted, lapsed or canceled
during the financial year. There are a further 1,765,225 (2006: 10,241,088) options that have not been included in the balance of
weighted average options on the basis that their strike price was greater than the average market price of the Bank's fully paid ordinary
shares for the financial vear ended 31 March 2007 and consequently, they are nat considered ta be dikutive.
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Note 7. Acquisition and disposal of controlled entities
Entities acquired or consclidated due to change in control:
a} Macquarie Small Caps Roads (an additional four toll roads:
Central Alabarma Assets; plus the Detroit Windsor Tunnel)
On 12 May 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank acquired 100% of
the assets in four toll road-related companies in Alabama, USA.
Acquired on the same day was 100% of the equity of Macquarie
North American Infrastructure, Inc, whose wholly owned
subsidiary, The Detrolt & Canada Tunnel Corporation is the
controfier under long-term concession of the US operations and
operator under subcontract of the Canadian operations of the
Detroit Windsor Tunnel.

b} East London Bus Group Holdings Limited
On 22 June 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank signed a sale and
purchase agreament to acquire 100% of East London Bus Group
Hoidings Limited. The company owns and operates a bus and
ooach business in the United Kingdom.

¢) Cervus Financial Corp
On 6 July 2006 a subsidiary of the Bank purchased a 100%
interest in Cervus Financial Corp, a listed Canadian corporation
with established mortgage servicing contracts and mertgage
broker network,

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

d) Corona Energy Holdings Limited

On 31 July 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank, Macquarie
internationale Investments Limited, acquired 100% of the share
capital of Gorona Energy Holdings Limited, a {nited Kingdom
non-domestic gas supply company.

&) Longview Oit and Gas

On 26 October 2008, a subsidiary of the Bank acouired 100% of
the business assets of Longview Oit and Gas. The business is a
series of operational oil and gas properties, gas processing plant
and gas gathering infrastructure, locatad in Arkansas, USA,




Reconciliation of cash movement

Cash consideration (544) (589)
Less cash acquired 10 279
Total cash outflow {534) (310)

The operating results of these entiiies have not had a matenal impact on the results of the economic entity.

There are no significant differences between the fair value of net assets acquired and the acquiree’s carmying value of net assets ather
than the goodwill and other intangible assets noted above.

The 31 March 2006 comparatives relate to the acquisitions of Daegu East Circutation Road Company, S2Net Limited (formerly Open
Telecommunications Limited), Korean Power Investment Co. Limited, ATM Solutions Australasia, The Steam Packet Group Limited,
Srmarte Carte Comporation, AHA Access Health Abbotsford Limited ardd AHA Access Health Vancouver Limited, Balcwin County Bridge
Cornpany LLC and Macquarie Cook Energy LLC {formexty Cook Inlet Energy Supply LLG).

Entities disposed of or deconsolidated due to change in control:

a}) Macquarie Small Caps Roads
On 2 October 2006, a subsidiary of the Bark sold 100% of its interest in Macquarie Small Caps Roads.

b} Smarte Carte Corporation
On 20 Novernber 2006, a subsidiary of the Bark sold part of its investment in Smarte Carte Corporation. A subsidiary of the Bank has
retained a 10% interest.

¢) East London Bus Group Holdings Limited
On 24 November 2006, a subsiciary of the Bank soid its intesest in East London Bus Group Holdings Limited. A subsidiary of the Bank
has retained a 10% interest.

d) The Steam Packet Group Limited
On 19 Decermnber 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank sold its interest in The Steam Packet Group Limited. A subsidiary of the Bank has
retained a 10% interest.

&) Access Health Abbotsford Limited and Access Health Vancouver Limited
On 30 Jaruary 2007, a subsidiary of the Bank sold its interest in AHA Holdings Lirmited and Vancouver Health Holdings Limited.

f) Forward Steps Holdings Limited

On 13 Decernber 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank, Macquarie |eisure Services Pty Limitec, entered into a Share Sale Agreement to seb
1s interest in Forward Steps Holdings Limited ("FSHL”). The transaction settled on 2 February 2007.

111

113




114

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Audit opinion

In owr opinion, the concise financial report of Macquarie Bank
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 complies with
Australian Accounting Standard AASE 1039: Concise
Financial Reports.

This opinion must be read in conjunction with the rest of our
audit report.

Scope

The concise financial report and Directors’ responsibility

The concise financial report comprises the consolidated balance
sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow
staterment, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
discussion and analysis of and notes to the financial statements,
and the Directors’ dedlaration for Macquarie Bank Limited {the
company) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Oirectors of the company are responsiole for the

preparation and presentation of the financial report in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039: Concise
Financial Reports.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the concise: financial
report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the
company, Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as
to whether the concise financial report is free of matenal
misstatement, The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such
as the use of professional judgement, selective testing. the
inherent imitations of intemal control, and the availability of
persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit
cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been
detected. For further explanation of an audit, visit our website
hitp:/Awew pwe com/awyfinancialsiaternentaudit.

We also performed an independent audit of the full financial report
of the company ended 31 March 2007. Our audit report on the full
financial report was signed on 14 May 2007, and was not subject

to any qualification.

In conducting our audit of the condcise financial report, we
performed procedures {o assess whether in all material respects
the concise financial report is presented fairly in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039: Concise Financial
Reports.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures,
which included:

testing that the information included in the concise financial report
is consistent with the information in the full financial report, and
examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence
supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other
disclosures in the concise financial report which were not directly
derived from the Ut financial report.

Our procedures include reading the other information in the Annual
Review to determine whether it contains any material
inconsistencies with the concise financial report.

Liahility limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation.

Macquerie Bank Limitec 2007 Annual Review

Independence

In conducting our audt, we followed applicable independence
raquirernents of Australian professional ethical pronouncements
and the Corpormatians Act 2001.

SRt s alodsulaihes

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Ftin Pt

lan Hammond
Partner

Sydney
14 May 2007




Note 7. Acquisition and disposal of controlled entities continued
Aggregate detalils of the acquisitions {ncluding disposal groups) are as follows:

2007 2006
$m m

Fair value of net assets acquired
Cash and other financial assets 103 182
Derivatives and financial instruments — positive values 39 269
Fixed assets 8 28
Intangible assets 14 112
Assets of disposal groups classified as heid for sale 1,189 2,271
Derivative financial instrumenis — negative values - (254)
Payables, provisions and borrowings (135) (197}
Liabiities of disposal groups classified as held for sale (674) (1,660)
Minarity interest in disposal groups classified as held for sale — {151)
Total fair value of net assets acquired 544 600
Purchase consideration
Cash consideration 544 589
Deferred consideration - 76
Total purchase consideration 544 665
Reconciliation of cash movement
Cash consideration {544) {589)
Less cash acquired 10 279
Total cash outflow (534) (310}

The operating results of these entities nave not had a malerial impact on the results of the economic entity.

Thera are no significant differences between the fair value of net assets acquired and the acquiree’s carrying value of net assets other
than the goodwill and other intangible assets noted above.

The 31 March 2006 comparatives relate to the acquisitions of Daegu East Circulation Road Company, S2Net Limited (formerty Open
Telscommunications Limited), Karean Power investment Co, Limitad, ATM Solutions Australasia, The Steam Packet Group Limited,
Smarte Carte Corporation, AHA Access Health Abbotstord Limited and AHA Access Health Vancouver Limited, Baldwin County Brdge
Company LLC and Maccuarie Cook Energy LLC (formenty Cook Inlet Energy Supply LLC).

Entities disposed of or deconsolidated due to change in control:

a) Macquarie Small Caps Roads
On 2 Ociober 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank sold 100% of its interest in Macquarie Small Caps Roads.

b} Smarte Carte Corporation
On 20 November 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank sold part of its investrent in Smarte Carte Corporation. A subsidiary of the Bank has
retained & 10% interest.

¢} East London Bus Group Holdings Limited
On 24 Novernber 2006, a subsidiary of the Bank sold 18 interest in East London Bus Group Holdings Limited. A subsidiary of the Bank
has retained a 10% interest.

d) The Steam Packet Group Limited
On 19 December 2006, a subsidiary of the Bark sold its interest in The Stearn Packet Group Limited. A subsiciary of the Bank has
retained a 10% interest.

e) Access Health Abbotsford Limited and Access Health Vancouver Limited
On 30 Jarary 2007, a subsidiary of the Bank soid its interest in AHA Holcings Limited and Vancouver Health Holdings Limited.
fy Forward Steps Holdings Limited

On 13 December 2008, a subsidiary of the Bank, Macquarie Leisure Services Pty Uimited, entered into a Share Sale Agreement to sell
its interest in Forward Steps Hoidings Limited (“FSHL"). The transaction settied on 2 Fetruary 2007.
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Note 7. Acquisition and disposal of controlled entities continued
Aggregate detals of the disposals are as follows:

2007 2006
$m $m

Carrying value of assets and liabilities disposed of
Cash and other financial assets 2 —
Assets of disposal groups classified as held for sale 3,015 1,099
Fixed assets 1 —
Intangible assets 21 -
Liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale (2.361) 687)
Payables and provisions (1) -
Minority interest in disposal groups classified as held for sale — (139}
Total camrying value of assets and liabilities disposed of 677 273
Reconciliation of cash movement
Cash received” 1,125 460
Less:
Investment retained 61) (110}
Cash deconsolidated {(163) (102)
Total cash inflow a01 248

* Cash received includes the repayment of intercompany debt in the 31 March 2006 financial year.

The 31 March 2006 comparatives relate to the deconsoiidation of RG Capital and DMG Regional Radic, Casgu East Circulation Road
Company and Korean Power Investment Co. Limited,

Note 8. Events occurring after reporting date
There were no material post balance sheet events occurring after the reporting date requining disclosure in these financial staterments.

Note 9. Full financial report

Further financial information can be obtained from the full financial report which is available, free of charge, on request from the Bank.
A copy may be requested by calling (61 2) 8232 3333. Alternatively, both the full financial report and the concise financial report can be
accessed viz the internet at: http:/Awww.macquarie.com.au.
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The Directors deciare that in their opinion, the concise financial
report of the aconomic entity for the financial year ended

31 March 2007 as set out on pages 100 1o 112 complies with
Australian Accounting Standard AASS 1039: Concise
Financial Reports.

The financial statements and specific disclosures included in this
concise financial report have been derived from the full financial
report for the financial year ended 31 March 2007.

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as full
an understanding of the financial perfarmance, financial position
and financing and investing activities of the econamic entily as the
full financial report, which as indicated in note 9, is available
onrequest.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of

the Directors.

Qoo B

David Clarke
Non-Executive Chairman

Al otr S g

Allan Moss
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Sydney 14 May 2007
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Audit opinion Independence

In our opinion, the concise financial report of Macquarie Bank In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 complies with requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncemenis
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039: Congise and the Corporations Act 2001.

Financial Reports.

This opinion must be read in conjunction with the rest of our

audit report.

Scope .

The concise financial report and Directors’ responsibility A‘CWMW

The concise financial report comprises the consolidated balance

sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow PricewaterhouseCoopers

staternent, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
discussion and analysis of and notes 1o the financial statements,
and the Directors' declaration for Macquarie Bank Limited {the
company) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Directors of the company are responsible for the __2'2‘,\ A
preparation and presentiation of the financial report in accorgdance

with Austrafian Accounting Standard AASB 1039: Concise lan Hammond

Financial Reports. Partner

Audit approach Sydney

Wa conducted an independent audi of the concise financial 14 May 2007

report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the
company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as
to whether the concise financial report is free of material
misstatemnent. The nature of an audit is influenced by {actors such
as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the
inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of
persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit
cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been
detected. For further explanation of an audit, visit our website
http:/Avww.pwe.comvaufinancialstatementaudit.

We also performed an independent audit of the full financial report
of the company ended 31 March 2007. Our audit report on the full
financial report was signed on 14 May 2007, and was not subject
to any qualification.

In conducting our audt of the concise financial report, we
performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects
the concise financial report is presented fairty in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039: Concise Financial
Reports,

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures,
which inchded:

—testing that the information included in the concise financial report
is consistent with the information in the: full financial report, and

—examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence
supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other
disclosures in the concise financial report which were not directly
derived from the full financial report.

Qur procedures inciude reading the other information in the Annual
Review to determine whether it containg any material
inconsistencies with the concise financial report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation.
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With the exception of 31 March 2005, the financial inforrnation presented below has been based on the accounting standards adopied
atl each reporting date. The financial information for the periods ended 531 March 2005 and later are based on results reported uncer
Ausiralian Accounting Standards that incorporate International Financial Reporting Standards,

Years ended 31 March 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2006 2006 2007
Income statement ($ million)
Total income from ordinary activities 757 904 1337 1648 1822 2155 2823 4197 4832 7,181
Total expenses from ordinary activities B90)  (686) (1.036) (1.324) (1,467) (1695 (2138) (3039 (3.549) {5,253)
Operating profit before income tax 167 218 301 325 355 460 B85 1,158 1,287 1,928
Income tax expense (26) (53) 79) (53) {76) @8 (1617 (2880 (290) (377)
Profit for the year 1414 165 222 272 279 64 524 870 997 1,551
Macquarie Income Preferred
Securities distributions - - - - - - - (28) &1 59)
Other minority interasts - - - 1 - 3 Q) m {1} 3
Macqguarie Income Securities distributions - - (12) {31) 29 {28) 2N (29) (29) {31)
Profit attributable 1¢ ordinary equity holders 141 165 210 242 250 333 494 812 916 1,463
Balance sheet ($ million}
Total assets 7.029 G456 23,380 27,848 30.234 32462 43771 67.980 106211 136,389
Total liabilities 7348 8805 22,154 26510 27,817 20877 40938 B3.555 100,874 128,870
Net assets 581 651 1,235 1,338 2417 2585 2833 4,425 5337 7,519
Risk-weighted assets 4067 4987 8511 9,860 10651 10,030 13,361 19,771 28,751 39,386
Total lcan assets 2158 4002 6518 7,785 9209 9839 10777 28425 34999 45796
Impaired assets {net of provisions) 12 44 23 31 49 16 61 42 85 88
Share information
Cash dividends per share (cents per share)
Interim 21 30 34 a1 41 41 52 61 a0 125
Final 30 38 52 52 52 52 70 100 125 190
Special - - - - - 50 - a0 - -
Total 51 68 86 93 93 143 122 20 215 5
Basic eamings per share (cents per share) 88.1 1013 1243 1389 1328 1648 2330 3696 4003 596
Share price at 31 March (§) (@) 1435 1910 2640 2763 3326 2470 3580 4803 6488 B275
Ordinary share capital (milion shares) (b} 1576 1611 1712 1759 1985 2045 2159 2237 2324 2538
Market capitalisation at 31 March
{fully paid ordinary shares) {§ milion) 2962 3077 4520 4860 6602 5051 7,729 10744 15032 21,010
Ratios
Return on average ordinary
shareholders’ funds 26.1% 268% 281% 27.1% 187% 180% 223% 298% 260% 28.1%
Payout ratio 57.9% B7.2% 70.0% B7.5% 738% B87.4%(c)532% 532% 544% 54.3%
Tier 1 ratic 117% 13.0% 145% 129% 178% 19.0% 16.2% 144% 124% 15.0%
Capital adequacy ratio 16.4% 17.3% 18.4% 1160% 184% 214% 199% 21.2% 14.1% 15.5%
Expensa/income ratio 77.9% 759% 775% B80.3% 805% T787% 757% 724% 734% 73.2%
Impaired assets as % of loan assets
{(exchuding securitisation SPVs and
segregated futures funds) 04% 11% 03% 04% 05% 02% 06% 03% 05% 04%
Net loan losses as % of loan assets
(excluding securitisation SPVs and
segregated futures funds) Q0% 01% 01% 01% 02% 00% 03% 02% 02% 01%
Assets under management {$ billion) (d) 214 228 263 309 413 523 626 967 1403 1972
Staff numbers (g) 2474 3,119 4070 4467 4726 4839 5716 6556 8183 10,023

(8) The Bank's ordinary shares were quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange on 29 July 1996
(B} Number of fully paid ordinary shares at 31 March, excluding options and partly paid shares.
(¢} The special dividend for 2003 was paid 10 release one-off franking credits 1o shareholders on entry into tax consolidation.

Excluding the special dividend of 50 cents per share, the payout ratio would have been 56.8%.

have been restated in accordance with the revised methodclogy.

{d} The methodology used to calculate assets under management was revised in Septernber 2005. Comparatives at 31 March 2005

(e} Includes both permanent staff (full time, part time and fixed term) and contractors (including censultants and secondees).
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Website
To view Annual and Interim Reports, presentations,
dividend information and other investor information,

Shareholder calendar

Shareholders may like to note the following key dates:

2007

Date Event

15 May Ful-year resuft announcement

25 May Record date for ordinary final dividend
4 July Payment of ordinary final dividend

16 July MIS distributicn

19 July 2007 Annual General Meeting

30 Septermber First half financial year end

15 October MIS distribution; MIPS distribution

13 Novernber Half-year result announcement

23 Novermber Record date for ordinary interim dividend
14 December Payment of ordinary interim dividend
2008

Date Event

15 January MIS distribution

31 March Full-year financial year end

15 April MIS distritaution; MIPS distribution

2007 Annual General Meeting

The 2007 Annual General Mesting of the Bank will be held at
10.30 am on Thursday, 19 July 2007 at The Westin Sydney,
in the Grand Ballroom, Lower Level, No. 1 Martin Place,
Sydney, NSW. Details of the business of the meeting are
contained in the separate Notice of Annual General Meeting
sent to security holders.

Cost minimisation

Consolidation of duplicate holdings: We incur registry costs
on an individua) Securityholder basis, therefore, if you have
maore than one holding and would like to consolidate themn,
please call Computershare on 1300 554 096.

Direct Credit: Having your dividend directly credited to your
bank or building society account provides a fast, safe and
convenient method of receiving your dividend. It is also the
most cost effective method of paying dividends.

Macauarie Bank Limited 2007 Annual Review

eTree: Macquane Bank is a foundation member of eTree, a joint
venture between Computershare and Landcare Australia which
provides an environmental incentive to shareholders of Australian
companies to elect to receive shareholder communications
electronically. For every shareholder who registers an emall
address, Macquarne donates $2 to Landcare Australia 1o support
reforestation projects in the shareholder’s state/temitory.

If you are a New Zealand shareholder your donation will support

a reforestation project in New Zeatand, and for all other overseas
sharsholders the donations will be equally divided between thess
elree projects.

Not only does this help the ervironment, it also ensures we can
deliver information 1o shareholders more quiclkly while reducing
the costs of paper, printing and postage. Shareholders can
register for eTree at www.gTreg.com.au/macquarne

Annualintenim Reports: Shareholders not wishing to receive the
Annual Report should advise the share registry in writing so that
their names can be removed from the mailing fist. Shareholders
automaticatty receive the Concise Report uniess they advise the
share registry otherwisa.

Shareholders can also nominate to receive email notification of
the refease of the Annual and Interim Reports, and then access
these docurments via a link 1o the Bank's website. See the eTree
section above,

Stock exchange listing

Futly paid ordinary shares issued by Macquarie Bank Limited and
Macquarie Income Securities are quoted on the Australian Stock
Exchange. Macquarie Bank's code on the Australian Stack
Exchange is MBL and the Macquarie Income Securities' code is
MBLHB. Macquarie Bank also bas debt securities and
debentures quoted on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the
Channe! Islands Stock Exchange respectively.

American Depaositery Receipt (ADR) Program

in June 2005, Macquarie Bank Limited (MBL} established an
ADR program which enables US investors to trade Macquarie
Bank shares in US dollars.

MBL ADRs are negotiable certificates issued by the Bank of
New York, with one ADR representing one MBL share. They are
traded under the symbol MOBKY and are classified as Level 1.
They are not listed on any exchange and are traded over-the-
counter via brokers.

The register of ADRS is kept at:

The Bank of New York
Investar Services

PO Box 11258

Church Street Station
New York NY 10286-1258
USA.

Toll-free telephone number for domestic callers:
1-888-BNY-ADRs

Telephone number for intemational callers:
+1-212-815-3700

Further information can be found at www.stockbny.com
or by emailing shareowners@bankofry.com




Dividend details - Macquarie Bank Limited

Macquarie Bank Limited generally declares a dividend on its
tully paid ordinary shares twice a year following the
announcements in May and November of the Bank's final and
interim results. The proposed dates for the 2007 final dividend
and 2008 interim dividend are listed below:

Dividend Pronosed
announced Record date payment date
15 May 2007 25 May 2007 4 July 2007

13 November 2007 23 November 2007 14 December 2007

Dividend Reinvestment Plan {DRP}

Tre DRP allows shasholders 1o apply their dividends to acquire
new MBL shares rather than recenving dividends in cash. Shares
are dlotted at the market value {as defined by DRP rules) minus a
2.5% discount.

To participate in the DRF or to make changes to your DRP
participation, contact Computershare on 1300 554 096.

Distribution details - Macquarie Finance Limited

Macquarie Finance Limited makes interest payments guarterty in
amears on or about 15 January, 15 Aprl, 15 July and 15 October
each year. Dates and payment rales are listed at

WWWLIT) 1e.Com nire

Voting rights

Ordinary shares

Al meetings of members or classes of members each memtser
may vote in person or by proxy, attomey or {if the member is a
bady corporate) corporate representative. On a show of hands
every person present who is a member or a representative of a
member has one vote and on a poll every member present in
person or by proxy or attormey has:

i} one vote for each fully paid share held; and

i) that proportion of a vote for any gartly paid ordinary share held
that the amount paid on the party paid share bears to the
total issue pnce of the share.

Macquarie income Securnties
Hoiders of Macquarie Income Securities, as holders of a stapled
security that includes a preference share, have:

the right to voie at any general meeting of the Bank only in each
of the following circumstances:

i during a period when two consecutive Semi-annual
Dividerds (as defined in the preference share terms) dug and
payable on the preference shares have not been paid in full,
and no Optional Dividend (as defined in the preference share
terns) has been paxd;

i) on any proposa to reduce the Bank's share capital;

iy on any resolution to approve the terms of a buy-back
agreement;

iv) on any proposal that affects the rights attaching to the
preterence shares;

v} on a proposa to wind up the Bank;

v} on any proposal for the disposal of the whole of the Bank's
property, business and undertaking;

Vi) during the winding up of the Bank; and;

the same voting rights, in those circumstances, as holders of
ordinary shares (as set out above),

Macquarie Income Prefarred Securities

Unpaid preference shares were issued by the Bank as part of
the Macguarie Income Preferred Securities issue. Whilst these
preference shares remain unpaid, they have no voting rights. If
paid up, these preference shares will have the same voting rights
as holders of Macquarie Income Securities, except that instead
of having a right to vote in situation {a)) abcve, they have a right
to vote at any general meeting of the Bank during a period in
which a dividend has been declared on the preference shares
but which has not been paid in full by the relevant dvidend
payment date.
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Fulty paid ordinary shares

% of

Twenty largest ordinary shareholders at 7 May 2007 Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares
JP Morgan Nominees Austrafia Limited 40,197,989 15.83
HSBC Custody Nominees {Australia) Limited 37,719,684 14.85
National Nominees Limited 33,487,302 13.19
ANZ Norminees Limited <Cash income a/c> 11,696.286 4,61
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 8,191,973 3.23
Queensland Investment Comoration 5,252,284 207
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 4,242,413 1.67
Argo Irvestments Limited 3,780,360 1.49
Citicorp Nominegs Pty Limited <CFS Wsle Geared Shr Fnd a/c> 2,931,248 1.15
AMP Life Limited 2,852,289 1.12
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <CFS Wsle Imputation Fnd a/c> 1,674,996 0.66
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd <116C a/c> 1,510,000 0.59
Australian Reward Investment Alliance 1,134,559 0.45
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <CFS Imputation Fund a/c> 1,093,321 0.43
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited <SMP Accounis:> 985,951 0.28
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 966,730 0.38
ANZ Nominees Limited <Income Reinvest Plan a/c> 841,185 0.33
RBC Dexia Investor Sernvices Australia Nominees Pty Limited <Pipooled a/c> 832,716 0.33
Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited <AET> 825,963 0.33
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <CFS Wsle Aust Share Frd a/c> 746,892 0.29
160,964,151 63.39

Substantial shareholders

At 7 May 2007 the following shareholders were registered by the Company as a substantial shareholder, having declared a relevant

interest in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 {Cth), in the voting shares below:

Holder

Ordinary shares Date cf notice

Capital Group of Companies
AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Limited
Barclays Global Investors Australia Limited

18,168,263 19 February 2007
12,833,303 22 February 2007
12,006,573 29 March 2007

Spread of ordinary shareholdings

Details of the spread of ordinary shareholders at 7 May 2007 were as follows:

Range Sharenolders Shares
1-1,000 55,613 18,835,302
1,001 - 5,000 9,877 20,148,216
5,001 - 10,000 965 6,813,798
10,001 - 100,000 904 24,212,892

100,001 shares and over

122 183,930,997

71,481 253,941,205

493 shareholders (representing 1,201 fully paid shares) held less than a marketable parcel.

All 34,658,099 options on issus at 7 May 2007 are held by Bond Street Custodians Limited as nominee for participants in the Bank's

Cption Flans.
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Macquarie Income Securities

% of
Macquarie Macquarie
Twenty largest Macquarie Incorme Security holders at 7 May 2007 Income Securities  Income Securities
HSBC Custody Nominees {Australia) Umited 353,324 8.83
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 239,225 598
RBC Dexia Investor Senvices Australia Nominees Pty Limited <MLCI a/c> 136,945 342
Questor Financial Sarvices Limited <TPS RF a/c> a7.912 2.45
ANZ Norminees Limited <Cash Income a/c» 59,079 1.48
Australian Executor Trustees Limited <No 1 a/c> 41,561 1.04
UBS Wealth Managemert Australia Nominees Pty Lid 20,442 Q.74
Termple Society Central Fund (Aust) 25,500 0.64
Custodial Services Limited 25,386 063
Citicorp Norminees Pty Limited <CFSIL Cwith Spec 5 a/c> 22,31 0.56
ANZ Executors & Trustee Company Limited <The JO & JR Wicking a/c> 15,100 0.38
Argo Investments Limited 15,000 0.38
Catholic Church Endowment Society Incorporated 15,000 0.38
RBC Dexia investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited <NMSMT a/c> 14,685 0.37
Carmichasl Group Investrments Pty Ltd 14,220 0.36
Tasmatex Pty Lid 13,534 034
Questor Financial Services Limited <TPS PIP a/c> 12,882 032
Albert investments Pty Ltd 10,000 025
Mrs Yvonne Marjan Black 10,000 025
Local Government Finance Authority of South Australia 10,000 0.25
1,161,236 29.05
Spread of Macquarie tncome Securities

Details of the spread of Macquarie Income Security holders at 7 May 2007 were as folows:
Holders Securities
1-1.000 6,548 1,929,668
1,001 - 5,000 377 761,028
5,001 - 10,000 24 178,068
1,001 - 100,000 14 401,742
100,001 securities and over 3 729,494
7.366 4,000,000

Three hoiders (representing three Macquarie Income Securities) held less than a marketable parcel.

Macquarie Income Preferred Securities

As at 7 May 2007, al 7.000 convertible debentures and all 350,000 unpaid preference shares, issued by the Bank as part of the
Macquarie Income Preferred Securities issue, were held by one holder, Macquarie Gapital Funding L.P. The registers in respect of
the preference shares and conventible debentures are kept at the Bank's principal administrative office at No. 1 Martin Place, Sydney,

NSW, 2000; telephone number +61 2 8232 3333.
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Enquiries

Investors who wish 10 enquire about any matter relating to their
Macquarie Bank Limited shareholding or Macquarie Income
Securities helding are invited to contact the Share Registry office
below or visit its internet site at:

Website: www.computershare, com

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

GPO Box 242

Melboume Victoria 8060 Australia

Telephone: +61 3 9415 4000

Freecall: 1300 554 096

Facsimile: +61 2 8234 5050
Email: sydney.services@computershare.com.au
Website: www.compitershare.com

Any other enquines relating to your Macquarie Bank share
investment or Macquarie Income Securities can be directed to:

Investor relations

Macquarie Bank Limited

Level 15, No. 1 Martin Place

Sydney New South Wales 2000 Australia

Telephone: +81 2 8232 5006

Facsimile: +61 2 8232 4330

Email: macquarie.shareholders@macqguanie.com
Website: www.macquarie.com.aw/shareholdercentre

The Bank's company secratary, Dennis Leong,
may be contacted on the numbers above.

Macquarie Bank Limnited 2007 Annual Review
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shareholder communications
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registering their email address,
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The Macguarie Bank Group's 2007
annual report consists af two
documents — the 2007 Annual Review
{incorporating the Concise Report)
and the 2007 Financial Report. The
Annual Review provides an overview
of the Group’s operations and a
summary of the financial statements,
This Financial Report contains the
Bank's risk management report and
statutory financial statements.

If you would ke a copy of the
2007 Annual Review please call
us on +61 2 8232 5006 or visit
wWww.macquarie.com.au/
sharehcldercentre.

Cover: Thames Water

Thames Water is the largest water
and wastewater services company in
the United Kingdom, sarving eight
million water and 13 milion wastewater
customers across London and the
Thames Valley. The history of Thames
Water dates back to the early 1600s
when the privately funded New River,
a 40-mile channel, was huilt to create
London's water supply.

On 1 December 2006, a Macguarie-
led consortium, Kemble Water,
acquired Thames Water for £8 billion
{$A19.88 bilion). Kemble Water,
named after the town near the
headwaters of the Thames River,

is the largest consortium Macqguarie
has ever brought together and
includes investors from Europe,
Narth America and Australasia.

On Kemble Water's behalf, Macguarie
has been working closely with
Thames Water management to

help lay the foundations for a new

era for the company.

Cover pholograph by Steve Speler,

Map image ® Crown Copyright (2007).

All ights reserved!.

Ordrance Survey Licence Number 100018345,

2007 Annual General Meeting
Macquarie Bank's 2007 Annual
General Meeting will be held at
10.30am on Thursday. 19 July 2007
at the Westin Sydney, in the Grand
Ballroom, Lower Level, No.1 Martin
Place, Sydney.

Details of the business of the meeting
will be contained in the separate
Notice of Annual General Mesting 1o
be sent to sharegholders.

The Holey Dollar

In 1813 Governor Lachlan Macquarie
overcame an acute currency
shortage by purchasing Spanish
silver doliars (then worth five shilings).
punching the centres out and
creating two new coing — the ‘Holay
Dollar” (valued at five shillings) and
the 'Dump’ (valued at one shilling
and three pence).

This single maove net only doubled
the number of coins in circulation

but increased their worth by 25 per
cent and prevented the coins leaving
the colony. Governor Macquarie’s
creation of the Heoley Dollar was an
inspired solution to a difficult problermn
and for this reasen it was chosen as
the symbol for the Macguarie Group.
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The Financial Report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 14 May 2007.

Risk Management Report

Income statements

Balance sheets

Statements of changes in equity

Cash flow statements

Notes to the financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
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Risk is an integral part of the Macquarie Bank Group's
(Macquarie or the Bank} businesses. Management of that risk
is therafore critical to the Bank's continuing profitability. Strong
independent prudential management has been a key to the
Group's success over many years. Where risk is assumed, it
is within a calculated and controlled framework,

The main risks faced by the Bank are market risk, equity risk,
credit risk, kquidity risk, operational risk, legal compliance risk
and documentation risk. Responsibility for management of
these risks lies with the individual businesses giving rise o them,
it is the responsibility of the Risk Management Group ("BMG”) to
ensure appropriate assessment and management of these risks
within Macquarie. These risks are quantified and aggregated in
the economic capital model.

The risk managernent principles followed by Macguarie are:

-Independence - RMG is independent of all other areas of
the Bank, reparting directly to the Managing Director and
the Board. The Head of RMG is a member of the Group's
Executive Committee. RMG authority is required for all
material risk acceptance decisions. RMG identifies, guantifies
and assesses all risks and sets prudential imits. Where
appropriate, these limits are approved by the Executive
Committee and the Board.

-Centralised prudential management - RMG's responsibility
covers the whole of the Macquarie Bank Group, meaning it
can assess risks from a Bank-wide perspective and ensure
a consistent approach across all areas.

-Approval of all new business activities — Other areas of
the Bank ¢annot undertake new businesses or activities,
offer new products or enter new markets or undertake
significant change to existing products or processes
without RMG's approval,

-Continuous assessment — RMG continually reviews changes
in risks brought about by both external developments and
internal circumstances.

-Frequent monitoring — Centralised systems allow RMG to
monitor credit and market risks daily. RMG staff laise closely
with other areas of the Bank to ensure that, should any
limit breaches occur, they are immediately addressed, and
escalated as necessary.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Financial Report

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss associated with changes in the
level of volatility or prices in markets to which the Group is
exposed. The Group is exposed to the following risks in gach
of the major markets in which it trades:

- foreign exchange markets: changes in spot and forward
exchange rates and the volatility of exchange rates;

—interest rate markets: changes in the leve!, shape and volatility
of yield curves, the basis between different interest rate
securities and derivatives and credit margins;

—equity markets; changes in the price and volatility of individual
equities, equity baskets and equity indices, including the risks
arising from equity underwriting acthvity;

-bullion markets: changes in the price and volatility of gold and
silver; and

—commodity markets: changes in the price and volatility of
base metals, agricultural commodities and energy products.

In addition, certain products involve an exposure to the
correlations between the prices of different instruments.

RMG measures exposures in all markets for each dealing desk
and for markets in aggregate. Risk exposures are measured on
derivatives and underlying assets and liabfities in the same
market, together.

RMG sets limits for all exposures in all markets. Limits are set
for individual markets and trading areas, and for the Group

as a whole. Limits on the Group's aggregate market risk are
approved by the Group's Executive Committee. The aggregate
axposure to each market is limited to a small percentage of the
Group's shargholders’ funds. Trading limits are not targets and
actual exposures in normal day-to-day trading tend to be well
below limits.

RMG monitors market risks against limits daily and provides &
report of market exposures to senior management every day.

Market risk limits are set on three complementary bases:

— a wide range of price and volatility scenarios, including
comprehensive worst case, or stress, scenarios. These
scenarios are measured every day and form the comerstone
of the risk management approach. The scenarios are set for
meovements in individual prices and rates, as wel as for
simultaneous movernents in muttiple markets. The worst case
scenarios include market moverments larger than have
occurred historically. Multiple scenarios are set for each market
s¢ as te capture the non-linearity and complexity of exposures
arising fromn derivatives. A wide range of assumptions about
the correlations batween markets is applied;

— a statistically based Value At Risk (VaR) measure which,
to correspond with the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority's (APRA) capital adequacy standard, is based on
a 10-day holding period and a 29 per cent confidence level.
RMG performs back testing on the VaR results, which
represents a comparison of hypothetical daily trading profits
and losses against the daily VaR. VaR is calculated using a
Monte Carlo simulation approach; and

- volume, maturity and open pasition mits are set on a large
number of market instruments and positions in order to
constrain concentration risk and to avoid the accumulation
of risky, illiquid positions.




The table below shows the average, maximum and minimum VaR over the year for the major markets in which the Bank operates.
The VaR shown in the 1able is based on & one-day holding pericd. The aggregate VaR is on a correlated basis.

Value at Risk {VaR) figures for year ended 31 March

2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006

Average Maximum Minimum  Average Maximum  Minimum

$m Sm Sm &m Sm Sm

Equities 79N 13.67 3.39 597 10.69 215

Interest rates 213 3.33 1.26 3.35 5.30 1.09

Foreign exchange and bulion 219 472 1.39 1.49 3.48 0.51

Commodities 3.50 8.00 1.43 1.97 431 1.02

Aggregate 8.44 15.22 218 6.90 11.32 334
The Group also has exposure 10 non-traded interest rate risk Equity risk

generated by banking products such as loans and deposits.
Banking businesses have small limits to accumulate marketable
parcels of interest riate risk. Wherever possible, these interest
rate risks are transterred t0 Macquarie's Treasury &
Commodities business and managed within tracied market risk
limits. Some residual interest rate risks remain in the banking
book as an unavoidable consequence of doing business.
Residual risks have independent limits that are monitored by
RMG Market Risk. Banking book interest rate exposure is
reqularty reported to Executive Management.

Risks arise on equity-like exposures that are taken by Macquarie
from time to time. These exposures include:

—-Holdings in specialised funds managed by the Bank
- Oirect investments in entities external to the Bank
—Property

-Lease residuals

—-Holdings of seed assets for funds.

All of the above positions are subject 1o an aggregate Equity
Risk Limit (ERL). The ERL is set by the Board. The exposures
arising on each of the positions are calculated on a 'worst case’
hasis depending on the nature of the asset, and are aggregated
to determine a total portiolio risk value, taking into account the
correlations between the various asset classes, The limit is
monitored by RMG and repcrted monthly to the Board.

For significant acquisitions or seed assets, RMG undertakes a
comprehensive assessment of the associated risks. Depending
an the type of acquisition, this can include an overall iransaction
review, as well as the identification and assessment of afl risks
and potential losses associated with the acquisition such as:

—market and credit risks
—reguiatory. capial, liquidity and compliance requirernents
—operational and reputation risks.

All material equity risk positions are subject to approval by
AMG and by the Managing Director, Executive Committes
and the Board, depending on the size and nature of the risk.




Credit risk

Credit risk arises from both lending and trading activities. In

the case of trading activity, credit risk reflects the possibility that
the trading counterparty will not be in a position to complete the
contract at any stage. The resultant credit exposure is a function
of the movement of prices over the term of the undertying
contract and systems for the assessment of potential credit
exposures exist for each of Macquarie's trading activities.

No material credit exposures are assumed without appropriate
analysis. After this analysis is undertaken limits are set for an
acceptable tevel of potential exposure. All limits are reviewed at
least once a year, or more frequently if necessary, to ensure that
the most current information avallable on counterparties is taken
into account.

Macquarie's philosophy on credit risk management reflects

the principle of separating prudential control from operational
management. The responsibility for approval of credit exposures
is delegated to specific individuals. All approvals reflect two
principles: a requirement for dual sign-off and a requirement
that, above relatively low limits, all credit exposures must be
approved outside the business line proposing to undertake
them. Most credit decisions are therefore taken within BMG.

All counterparties are rated on a Macguarie rating scale which
is similar to that used by public ratings agencies. Each rating is
associated with a Probability of Default and an assessment is
also made of the Loss Given Default. This classification enables
effective application of resources to the management, pricing
and monitoring of credit exposures.

Ratio of provisions and impaired assets to loans,
advances and leases

Per cent

Collective provision to loans, advances and leases
(Balance sheet) ©

Net impaired assets to loans, advances and leases
{Balance sheet} W

Net credit losses to loans, advances and leases
{income statement) =—a—

Al credit exposures are monitored regularly against limits.
Credit exposures which fluctuate through time are monitored
daty. These inctude ofi-balance sheet exposures such as
swaps, forward contracis and options, which are assessed
using sophisticated valuation techriques.

To mitigate credit risk, Macquarie makes increasing use of
margining and other forms of collateral or credit enhancement
techniques (including guarantees, letters of credit and the
purchase of credit defautt swaps) where appropriate.

The Bank’s policies to control credit risk include avoidance

of unacceptable concentrations of risk either to any economic

sector or 1o an individual counterparty. Policies are in piace 1o

requlate large exposures to single counterparties or groups of

counterparties. Such exposures are generally restricted unless
the credit is of the highest standard or thers is a high level

of security.

As offshore exposures continue to grow the analysis of
country risk is of increasing importance to credit risk. While
the majority of exposures continue to be to OECD countries,
Macquarie also has exposures to nen-CECD Asia and South
America, and limited exposure to African countries. Macquarie
has developed a country risk framework which covers the
assessment of country risk and the approval of country

risk limits. Where appropriate the country risk is covered by
political risk insurance.
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Loans, advances and leases by sector

Finance and insurance 34%

Private households/
individuals 30%

Property and business
services 14%

Transport and storage 6%
Other industries 5%
Whalesale & retall trade 3%
Mining 3%

(Govt admin & defense 3%
Heaith & community services 1%
Communication services 1%

Liquidity risk
Responsibility for Macquarie's liguidity policy lies with RMG.
it is reviewed regularty and has been agreed with APRA.

Liquidity requirements are managed on a day-to-day basis by
the Treasury Division. They are responsible for ensuring funding
is readily available for all the Bank's fransactions, even in a crisis
scenario, and for maintaining a diversity of funding sources.

RMG monitors adherence to liquidity policy on a daily basis.

A full descnption of Macquarie's liquidity policy is contained in
noie 43 to the Financial Report.

Operational risk

Macquarie Bank faces operational risks which could lead to
reputation damage, financial loss or regulatory conseguences
as a result of inadequate or failed internal processes, people
or systems, or because of external events. Responsibility

for management of operational risk lies in the first instance
with the area concemed. Business Cperational Risk Managers
have been appointed to help ensure all areas of the Bank
meet this responsibitity.

Al areas of the Bank perform regular operational risk self
assessments, report any internal losses (including expected
losses and near misses) and apply Bank-wide and business-
specific policies as appropriate. Operational risk is a key factor
in the consideration and approval of each new product and
new business prior to its implementation,

RMG assesses operational risk across Macquarie as a whole
and ensures that an appropriate framework exists to identify,
assess and manage operational risk. RMG ensures that
operational risk throughout the Bank is identified and that
appropriate resources are available to control it

Legal and compliance risk

Macquarie actively manages legal and compliance risks 1o its
husinesses. Legal and compliance risks include tha risk of
breaches of applicable laws and regulatory requirements, actual
or perceived breaches of abligations to clients and
counterparties, unenfarceabitity of counterparty obligations and
the inappropnate documentation of contractual relationships.

Each of the Bank's businesses is rasponsible for developing
and implementing its own legal risk management and
compliance procedures. RMG assesses compliance risk
from a Bank-wide perspective and works closely with legal,
compliance and prudential teams throughout Macquarie to
ensure compliance risks are identified and apprepriate
standards are applied consistently to these compiliance risks.
The developrment of new businesses and regulatory changes,
domestically and internationally, are key areas of focus within
this role.



Economic capital model
Macquarie's economic capital model assesses risk based
on internal models for each major risk type:

- Credit Risk: credit portfolio model based on loss estimates
and default probabiiities linked to Macquarie’s intemnal
ratings system

- Market Risk: worst case multi-market scenario analysis
and the value-at-risk model

- Equity Risk; a portfoiio model based on worst case risk
estimates and correlation assumptions across asset classes

- Operational Risk: statistical model based on scenario
analysis for potentially severe losses.

The risks are then aggregated, recognising diversification
benefits, and capital is allocated to business areas across the
Bank. This is used to calculate return on capital for each of
these areas. Economic capital methods allow assessment of
projected returns relative to risk on new business approvals,
new product approvals and significant individual transactions.

The aggregate risk is subject to the global risk limit. This limit
represents the financial resources available 1o Macquarie to
absorb risk.

The economic capital model is managed by RMG with regular
reporting to senior management and the Board.

Basel li

APRA have commenced the release of draft Australian
Prudential Standards based on Basel Il. It is anticipated that all
standards will be issued by mid year after final consultation with
industry participants. These standards will come intg force from
1 January 2008 with transitional capital arrangements in place
for the first two years of operation.

Under the Basel || capital framework, the Bank for International
Settlements seeks to secure intemational convergence on
regulations governing the capital adequacy of intemnationalty
active banks. In doing this, it aims for more risk-sensitive capital
requirements that are concepiually sound and are based on

a bank’s own assessment of its risks, Banks are able to select
approaches that are most appropriate for their operations.

Macquarie has applied to APRA for accreditation under the
Foundation Internal Ratings Based Approach ior credit risk
and the Advanced Measurement Approach for operational risk.
In preparing its submission, the Group reviewed its risk
management practices against the requiremnents of the Basel Il
framework, APRA is expected to respond to the application
before 31 Decernber 2007. Macquarie is preparing for the

full implementation of Basel 1l in 2008,

APRA have commenced the release of draft Australian
Prudential Standards based on Basel Il. It is anticipated that all
Standards will be issued by mid year after cansultation with

industry participants. These standards will come into force from

1 January 2008 with transitional capital arrangements in place
for the first two years of operation.
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Internal Audit

Internal Audit provides independent assurance to senior
management and the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness
of Macqguarie's financial and risk management framework.
Internal Audit forms an independent and objective assessment
as 1o whether risks have been adequately identified, adequate
intermal controls are in place to manage those risks and those
controls are working effectively. Internal Audit is independent of
business management and of the activities it reviews. The Head
of Internal Audit is jointly accountable to the Board Audit and
Compliance Committee (BACC) and the Head of RMG and has
free access at all times to the BACC.

International offices

Macquare's international offices are subject to the same

risk management controls that apply in Australia. Before an
international office can be set up or undertake new activities,
RMG analyses the proposed activities, infrastructure, resourcing
and procedures to ensure appropriate risk management
controls are in place. BMG staff monitor and routinely visit
overseas offices to ensure compliance with prudential controls.
In addition, RMG staff are located in certain of the larger offices.

Where international offices undertake trading activities, daity
reports are produced in Sydney and all exposures, both credit
and market, are monitored against established limits.

RMG resources

Magcquarie continues to grow rapidly, and Macquarie recognises
the importance of ensuring that this growth is managed
effactively. RMG resources have been increasing slightly faster
than Group-wide headcount. RMG has also been expanding its
intermaticnal presence.

RMG headcount at 31 March

2004 2005 2006 2007"
Credit 36 52 72 82
Compliance 22 38 58 67
Internal Audit 22 34 a3r 43
Finance {a} 18 23 34 62
Operational Risk (b) n/a n/a 7 13
Other 3 8 10 16
Total 101 155 218 283
Based in Australia B85 123 155 190
Based overseas 16 32 63 a3
Total RMG Staff 10} 155 218 283

* Includes contractors.
{a) Finance is the area of BMG which oversees market risk,

equity risk, liquidity risk, the econaomic capital model and the
Bank's complianca abligations to APRA. Finance now
includes the Quantitative Applications Division.

(b} Until 31 March 2005, internal audit and operational risk

functions were combined within an area known as
Operational Risk Review. Since 1 April 2005, the areas have
been operating separately.




Consolidated Consalidaied Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Sm $m Sm Sm
Interest and similar income 2 4,632 3,136 3,368 2,017
Interest expense and similar charges 2 {3,904) (2,544} {2,850) (1,680}
Net interest income 728 592 518 337
Fee and commission income 2 3,540 2842 1,264 794
Net trading income 2 1,047 B76 a2 709
Share of net profits of associates
and joint ventures using the equity method 2 242 172 - -
Other operating income 2 1,676 417 1,985 1,078
Impairment charges 2 (52) (61) (42) (46}
Total operating income 7,181 4,832 4,646 2872
Employment expenses 2 {3,733} {2,407) (2,561) {1.581)
Brokerage and commission expenses 2 {a21) (366) {306) (267)
Occupancy expenses 2 {226) (139) (139 82)
Non-salary technology expenses 2 {163} (128) {101) 85)
Other operating expenses 2 (710} (505) (441) (266)
Total operating expenses (5,253) {3,545) (3,548} {2,291)
Operating profit before income tax 1,928 1,287 1,098 581
Income tax (expenselbenefit 5 (377) (260 (13} 4
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 97 1,085 585
Profit attributable to minority interests {57) (52) - -
Profit attributable to equity holders
of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,494 945 1,085 585
Distributions paid or provided on:
Macquarie Income Securities 6 (31) (29) - -
Conwvertible debentures ] - - {54) (51)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,463 a16 1,031 534
Cents per share
Basic eamings per share 7 531.6 400.3
Diluted earnings per share 7 569.8 3823

The abave income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes $m S Sm $m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 3 5 3 S
Due from banks 8 6,120 6,394 4,580 4579
Cash collateral on securities bormowed
and reverse repurchase agreements g 25,909 13,570 25,843 13,565
Trading portfolio assets 10 15,518 14,246 14,931 13,030
Loan assets held at amortised cost 11 45,796 34,999 18,759 13,181
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and joss 13 2,779 2,104 2,180 1,854
Derivative financial instruments - positive values 40 11,93 10978 11,047 10,618
Other assets 14 10,444 8,452 4,699 3213
Investment securities available tor sale 15 6,060 3,746 3,211 2,310
Intangible assets 16 100 i50 10 11
Life investment contracts and other unit holder assets 17 5,847 5,183 - -
Due from controlied entities - - 13,527 10.241
Interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 18 4,07 3,463 613 833
Property, plant and equipment 19 KYS: 292 150 a0
Investments in controlled entities 20 - - 4,085 4,087
Deferred income tax assets 21 457 240 431 232
Assets and disposal groups classifiedt as held for sale . 22 994 2,389 139 18
Total assets 136,389 106,211 104,208 77.907
Liabilities
Due to banks 23 4127 2118 211 1.217
Cash collateral on securities lent and
repurchase agreements 24 7,489 6,995 7,489 6,995
Trading portfolio liabilities 25 15,922 10,067 15,957 10,053
Derivative financial instruments — negative values 40 11,069 10,067 9,800 9,286
Deposits 12,403 9.267 12,055 9,004
Debt issued at amortised cost 26 51,365 39,022 28,519 20,567
Other financial kabilities at fair value through
profit and loss 27 5,552 5,481 5,149 5058
Other liabilties 28 11,958 9,553 7,094 4417
Curmrent tax fiablities 132 97 94 22
Life investment contracts and other unit holder liabilities 5,781 5,130 - -
Due to controfled entities - - 7,136 5275
Provisions 29 153 132 124 108
Deferred income tax liabilities 21 78 157 LYl 129
Liahilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale 22 170 1,427 - -
Total liabilities excluding loan capital 126,199 89,493 95,569 72221
Loan capital
Subordinated debt at amortised cost 30 1,783 1,115 1,783 1,114
Subordinated debt at fair value through profit and loss 30 688 266 888 266
Total liabilities 128,870 100,874 98,240 73,601
Net assets 7,519 5337 5,968 4,306
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes $m $m $m $m
Equity
Contributed equrty
Ordinary share capital 31 3,103 1,916 3,103 1,916
Treasury shares 31 @ 2 - -
Macquarie Incorme Securities 31 39 391 3an 39N
Convertible debentures. Kyl - - 884 884
Reserves 32 380 250 212 166
Retained earmnings 32 2,795 1,934 1,378 949
Total capital and reserves attributable
t0 equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 6,662 4,489 5,968 4,306
Minority interest 32 857 848 - -
Total equity 7,519 5,337 5,968 4,306

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accomparnying notes.




10

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
$m $m $m Sm
Total equity at the beginning of the year 5,337 4,425 4,306 3.826
Adjustments on adoption of AASE 132 and AASB 139,
net of tax:
Retained profits | 16 I (14)
Reserves | 71 . 61
Available for sale investments, net of tax 77 B84 15 45
Associates and joint ventures (12) 2) - -
Cash flow hedges, net of 1ax 8 2) {33} 20
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 3 - 4 )
Net income recognised directly in equity 70 167 {14} 106
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 997 1,085 585
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,621 1,164 1,07 891
Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 1,160 308 1,160 308
Divicienkds and distritastions paid or provided (633) (550 {602) (521)
Minority interest:
Reduction of equity net of transaction costs {21) (12) - -
Changes in retained samings due to acquisitions and disposals 27 - - -
Distributions paid or provided (54) 53] - -
Convertible debentures:
Distributions paid or provided - - {54) (51)
Other equity movements:
Share based payments 87 53 87 53
Net purchase of treasury shares {5) - - -
Total equity at the end of the year 7,519 5.337 5,968 4,306
Total recognised income and expense for the year is attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,533 1,088 1,017 840
Macquarie Income Securities holders K| 29 - -
Conwvertible debentures helders - - 54 5
Minority interest 57 a7 - -
Total recognised income and expense for the year 1,621 1,164 1,071 691

The above staterments of changes inn equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes $m Bm sm sm
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 4,461 3,089 3,199 1,980
Interest and cther costs of finance paid (3,828) (2,301) (2,767) (1.530)
Dividends and distributions received 460 230 1,030 465
Fees and other non-interest income received 3,572 2,644 1,653 1,403
Fees and commissions paid (380) {a43) {280} (281}
Net payments from trading securities
and other finarcial assets/liabilities {8,281) (6.257) (8,228) {4,251}
Payments to suppliers (797) 827) (255) {1.153)
Employment expenses paid (2,377 {1,854} (1,494) (1.210)
Income tax paid (626) (353) (510) (297
Life investrment contract income 415 193 - -
Life investrment contract premiums received
and other unit holder contributions 2,594 973 - -
Life investment contract payments (2,469) (1,187) - -
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
- net receipts/{payments) from operations 173 2) - )]
Loan assets granted (net) (11,621) (7.777) {5,793) {6,034)
Recovery of loans previously written off 3 - - -
Net increase in money market and
other deposit accounts 17,726 18,510 11,815 14,350
Net cash flows from operating activities 33 (975) 5618 {1,629) 3,433
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for assets available for sale (14,651) (7,374) (11,489) 5.631)
Proceeds from the realisation of assets available for sale 13,762 773 11,969 6,192
Payments for interests in associates (1,525) (2,453 {193) (383)
Proceeds from the sale of assaciates 1,080 1,070 771 143
Proceeds from the sale of assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale 2,159 1,238 52 204
Payments for the acquisition of controlled entities,
excluding disposal groups, net of cash acquired {25) (106) (1,162} {595)
Payments for the acquisition of assets and disposal
groups classified as hekd for sale, net of cash acquired {1,750} (921} {62) (26)
Payrments for life investiment contracts and other
unit holder investments {6,083) (5,327) - -
Proceeds from the sale of life investment
contract investments 5,520 5,647 - -
Payrnents for fixed assets (199) (262) (109) {79}
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 7 5 3 3
Net cash fiows from investing activities {1,705) (1,310 (220) 82
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds frem the issue of ordinary share capital 946 223 946 223
Proceeds frem/ipayments 10) other minonty interest 5 @ - -
Repayment of subordinated debt - (26) - (26}
Issue of subordinated debt 1,394 - 1,394 -
Dividends and distributions paid (472) (520 (442) (491)
Net cash flows from financing acivties 1,873 {325) 1,898 (294)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash (807) 3,883 49 3,057
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the financial year 9,133 5,150 7,304 4,247
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the financial year 33 8,326 9,133 7,353 7.304

The above cash flow staternents shoukd be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

i) Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
this financial report and that of the previous financial year are set
out below. These policies have been consistentty applied 1o all
the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

This financiak report ts a generat purpose financial report which
has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards {which includes Australian Interpretations by virtue of
AASB 1048), the Corporations Act 2001 and the Banking Act
1959, Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards
ensures that the financial report complies with (nternational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Historical cost convention

This financial report has been prepared under the historicat
cost convention, as modified by ihe revaiuation of investment
securities available for sale and certain other assets and
liabilities {inciuding derivative instruments) at fair value.

Critical accounting estimates and significant judgements
The preparation of the financial report in conformity with
Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accouniing estimates. It also requires management to
exercisa judgement in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The notes to the financial statements set out areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions are significant to the Bank and economic
entity financial report such as:

—fair value of financial instruments (note 45),

—impairment losses on loans and advances (notes 14xi),
1 and 46),

—acquisitions and disposals of controfled entities, joint ventures
and associates, and held for sale investments (notes 1(il), 1(4),
18, 20 and 22),

—consoclidation of special-purpose entities {notes 1),

11 and 26), and
—ability to realise deferred tax (notes 1{vi), 5 and 21}

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including reasonabte expectations of future events.
Management believes the estimates used in preparing the
financial report are reasonable. Actual resulls in the future
may differ from those reported.

Macquarnia Bank Uimited 2007 Financial Report

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published
standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published that are mandatory for
the Bank and economic entity for accounting perods beginning
on or after 1 April 2007 or later periods but which the Bank and
economic entity has not yet adopted. The significant ones are
as follows:

AASB 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures (effective from

i April 2007). AASB 7 introduces new disclosures to improve
the information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about
exposure to risks arsing from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit, liquidity and
market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk. The
Bank and economic entity expect that the main additional
disclosures will be the sensitivity analysis of market risk and
the capital disclosures.

AASB 101, Presentation of Financial Statements (effective from 1
April 2007), The impacts of revised AASB 101 are to eliminate
much of the Austraiian specific content, including the Australian
ilustrative formats of the income statement, balance sheet and
statement of equity which entities were previously 'encouraged’
to adopt in preparing thelr financial statements. In addition to
this, the standard introduces disclosures about the level of an
entity’s capital and how it manages capital.

AASB 8, Operating Segments (effective from 1 April 2009).

This standard will require the entity to adopt the ‘management
approach’ to disclosing information about its reportable
segments. Generally, the financial information will be reported
on the same basis as it is used internally by the chief decision
maker for evaluating operating segment performance and
deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.
Such information may be prepared using different measures to
that used in preparing the income statement and balance sheet,
in which case reconciliations of certain items will be required.

AASE 2007-4, Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments (effective from 1
April 2007} was made recently to introduce accounting policy
choices allowed under IFRS that were not previously
incorporated by the AASB, and to remove many Australian-
specific disclosures. The primary impacts expected for the
Bank and economic entity are to reduce the disclosures relating
to investments in associates and joint ventures.

Accounting choices that will now be allowed include using the
indirect method to prepare the statement of cash flows, and
using the propoertionate consclidation method for accounting for
joint venture interests. Australian-specific disclosures that will no
longer be required include the share of profits before tax, share
of tax expense, and impairment losses from investments in
associates and joint ventures. Additionally, most intermediary
subsidiaries of the Bank that are Australian reporting entities will
nG longer be required to consolidate their subsidiaries when
preparing financial statements. Instead, they can carry their
investments in subsidiaries using the cost method.




ii} Principles of consolidation

Controlled entities

The censclidated financial report comprises the financial report
of the Bank and its controlled entities (together, “the economic
entity”}. Controlled entities are all those entities (including special
purpose entities) aver which the Bank has the power 10 govern
directly or indirectly decision-making in relaticn to financiaf and
operating policies, so as to require that entity to conform with
the Bank's cbjectives. The effects of all transactions betweaen
entities in the economic entity have been eliminated in full.
Minority interest in the results and equity of controlled entities,
where the Bank owns less than 100% of the issued capital, are
shown separately in the consolidated income statement and
balance sheet.

Where control of an enlity was obtained during the financial
vear, its results have been included in the consolidated income
statement from the date on which control commenced. Where
control of an entity ceased during the financial year, its results
are included for that part of the financial year during which
control existed.

Controlled entities held by the Bank are carried in its separate
financial statements at cost in accordance with AASB 127:
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

The Bank and economic entity determine the dates of obtaining
control {i.e. acquisition date) and losing control (i.e. disposal
date) of another entity based on an assessment of all pertinent
facts and circumstances that affect the ability to govern the
financial and operating colicies of that entity. Facts and
circumstances that have the most impact include the
confractual amangements agreed with the counterparty, the
manner in which those amangements are expected 0 operate
in practice, and whether regutatory approval is required. The
acquisition/disposal date does not necessarity occur when the
transaction is closed or finalised at law.

Securitisations

Securitised positions are held through a number ¢f Special
Purpose Entities (*SPEs™), which are generally calegorised as
Mortgage SPEs and Other SPEs, which include certain
managed funds and repackaging vehicles. As the sconomic
entity is exposed to the majority of the residual risk associated
with these SPEs, their undertying assets, liabilities, revenuss and
expenses are reported in the economic entity’s consolidated
balance sheet and income statement,

When assessing whether the economic entity controls (and
theretore consolidates) an SPE, judgement is required about
risks and rewards as well as the economic entity's ability 1o
make cperational decis ons for the SPE. The range of faciors
that are considered in assessing control are whether

(a) a majority of the bensfits of an SPE's activities are obtained,
(b} 2 majority of the residual ownership risks related to the SPE's
assets are obtained; (c) the decision-making powers of the
SPE vest with the economic entity; and (d) the SPE's activities
are being conducted on behalf of the economic entity and
according 10 its specific busingss needs.

Interests in associates and joint ventures using the

equity method

Associates and joint ventures are entities over which the
economic entity has significant influenge or joint control, bhut not
control, and are accounted for under the equity method except
for those which are held for sale (see note 1(x)). The equity
method of accounting is applied in the consolidated financial
report and involves the recognition of the economic entity's
share of its associates’ and joint ventures™ post-acquisition
profits or Iosses in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves,

Associates and joint ventures held by the Bank are carried in
its separate financial statements at cost in accordance with
AASB 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

The Bank and economic entity determine the dates of
obtaining/osing significant influence or joint control of another
entity based on an assessment of all pertinent facts and
circumstances that atfect the ability to significantly influence or
jointty control the financial and operating policies of that entity.
Facts and circumstances that have the most impact include the
contractual arrangements agreed with the counterparty, the
manner in which those arrangements are expected to operate
in practice, and whether regulatory approval is required to
complete. The acquisition/disposal date doas not necessarily
occur when the transaction is closed or finalised at law.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

iii) Foreign currency translations

Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the financial statements of foreign operations
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the foreign operation operaies (“the
functional currency”}). The Bank and economic entity’s financial
staterments are presenied in Australian dollars (presentation
currency), which is the Bank's functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are tranglated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at

the cates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
Insses resutting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in
equity as a result of meeting cash flow hedge or net investment
hecige accounting requirements.

Translation differences on non-monetary items (such as equities)
held at fair value through profit and loss, are reported as part of
the falr value gain or loss in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items (such as equities) classified
as available for sale financial assets are included in the available
for sale reserve in equity, unless they form part of fair value
hedge relationships in which case the translation differences

are recognised in the income statement.

Controlled and other entities

The results and financial position of all foreign operations that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—assets and liabtities for each balance sheet presented ara
translated ai the closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

-income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at actual exchange rates at the date of the
transaction; and

- all resutting exchange ditferences are recognised in a
separate component of equity - the forgign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences from the translation of
any net investment in foreign operation, and of borrowings and
other forgign currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken directly to the foreign currency
translation reserve.

Macquarie Bank Limited 2007 Financiat Feport

iv} Segment reporting

For interal reporting and risk management purposes, the
economic entity is divided into six operating groups: Banking

& Property, Equity Markets, Financial Services, Funds
Management, Investment Banking and Treasury &
Commaodities. These operating groups do not meet the
definition of reportable segments under AASE 114; Segrment
Reporting as they provide certain products 10 customers which
have the same, or similar, risk and retum characteristics, For the
pumoses of segment reporting disclosures, the economic
entity's activities are reported within the following segments:
Asset and Wealth Management, Financial Markets, kwestment
Banking and Lending.

v] Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income arising from loans and deposits is brought to
account using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest method calculates the amortised cost of a financial
instrument and allocates the interest income ar expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net camying amount of the
financial asset or liability. Fees and transaction costs associated
with loans are capitalised and included in the effective interest
rate and recognised over the expected fife of the instrument.
Interest income on finance leases is brought to account
progressively over the life of the lease consistent with the
outstanding investment balance.

Fee income

Corporate advice and other fees charged in respect of services
provided are brought to account as work is completed and a fee
is agreed with clients. Fees charged for performing a significant
act in relation to funds managed by the economic entity are
recognised as revenue when that act has been completed.

Dividends and distributions
Dividends and distributions are recognised as income
upon declaration.

vi) Income tax

The income tax expense for the year is the tax payable on the
current period's taxable income based on the national income
tax rate for each jursdiction, adjusted for changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities and unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised when temporary differences
arise between the tax base of assets and fiabilities and their
respective camrying amounts which give rise to a future tax
benefit, or where a benefit arises due to unused tax losses,

but are only recognised in both cases 1o the extent that it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences or tax losses, Deferred tax liabifities
are recognised when such temporary differences will give rise to
taxable amounts being payable in future periods. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised at the tax rates expected io
apply when the assets are recovered or the liabilities are settted.




The Bank and its whally-owned Australian controlled entities
implemented the tax consolidation regime in Australia, effective
from 3 Cctober 2002, Under the terms and conditions of the tax
contribution agreement, the Bank, as the head entity of the tax
consolidated group, will charge or reimburse its wholly-owned
subsidiaries for current tax liabiities or assets it incurs in
connection with their activities. As a consequence, the Bank
will recognise the cunent tax balances of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries as if those were its own in aadition to the current
and deferred tax amounts arising in relation 1o its own
transactions, events and balances. Amounts receivable or
payable under a tax contribution agreement with the tax
consolidated entities are recognised separately as tax-related
amounts receivable cr payable.

No provision is made for additional taxes which could becorme
payable if certain retained earnings or reserves of foreign
controlled entities were 1o be distributed. 1t is not expected that
any substantial amount will be distributed from these retained
earnings or reserves in the foreseeable future.

The Bank and economic entity exercise judgement in
determining whether deferred tax assets, particularty in relation
to tax losses, are probable of recovery. Factors considered
include the ability to offset tax losses within the group in the
relevant jurisdiction, tne length of time that tax losses are efigible
for carry forward to offset against future profits and whether
future profits are expacted to be sufficient to recoup losses.

vii) Cash collateral on securities borrowed/lent and
repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements

As panl of its trading activities, the economic entity lends and
borrows securities or a collateralised basis. The securities
subject to the borrowing/lending are not derecognised from the
balance shests of the relevant parties, as the risks and rewards
of ownership remain with the initial holder. Where cash is
provided as collateral, the cash paid to third parties on securities
borrowed is recorded as a receivable, while cash received from
third parties on securities lent is recorded as a borrowing,

Repurchase transactions, where the Bank sells securities
under an agreement to repurchase, and reverse repurchase
transactions, where the Bank purchases securities under an
agreement 1o resell, are also conducted on a collateralised
basis. The securities subject to the repurchase/reverse
repurchase agreements are not derecognised from the balance
sheets of the relevant parties, as the risks and rewards of
ownership remain with the initial holder. Where cash is provided
as collateral, the cash paid to third parties on the reverse
repurchase agreement is recorded as a receivable, while cash
received from third parties on the repurchase agreement is
recorded as a borrowing.

Fees and intarest relating o stock berrowing/lending and
repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements are recognised in
the income statement, using the effective interest rate method,
over the expected life of the agreemeants.

The Bank continually reviews the fair value of the securities on
which the above transactions are based and, where appropriate,
requeasts or provides additional collateral to support the
transactions, in accordance with the underlying agreements.

viii} Trading portfolio

Trading portiolio assets (“long positions”) comprise debt

and equity securities, bank bills, treasury notes, bullion and
commodities purchased with the intent of being actively

traded. Trading portfolio liabilties (“short positions™ comprise
ohligations to deliver assets across the same trading categories,
which the Bank has short-sold angd are actively traded.

Iterms included in the trading portfolic are carried at fair valus.
Realised gains and losses, and unrealised gains and l0sses
arising from changes in the fair value of the trading portfolio

are recognised as trading income or expense in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Dividend income

or expense on the trading portfolio is also recorded as trading
income or expense, Interest income and expense on the trading
portfolic is recognised in the income statement as interest
income or expense.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The Bank and economic entity use trade date accounting when
recording regutar way purchases and sales of financial assets.

It recognises from the date the transacticn is entered into (trade
date) the resulting financial asset or liability and any subsequent
unrealised profits and losses arising from revaluing that contract
te fair value in the income statement. When the economic entity
becomes party 10 a sales contract of a financial asset, it
derecognises the asset and recognises a trade receivable

until settlerment date.

ix) Derivative instruments and hedging

Derivative instruments entered into by the Bank and economic
entity include futures, forwards and forward rate agreements,
swaps and options in the interest rate, foreign exchange,
commoadity and equity markets. These denvative instruments
are principally used for the risk management of existing financial
assets and liabilities.

All derivatives, including those used for balance sheet hedging
purposes, are recognised on the balance sheet and are
disclosed as an asset where they have a positive fair value at
balance date or as a liability where the fair value at balance date
is negative.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and subseguently remeasured
to their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in active markets, including recent market transactions,
and valuation techniques, inchuding discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate. Movements
in the carrying amounts of derivatives are recognised in the
income statement, unless the derivative meets the requirements
for cash flow or net investment hedge accounting.

The best evidence of a darivative's fair value at initial recognition
is the transaction price, unless its falr value is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market fransactions

in the same instrument ar based on a valuation technigue whose
vanables include only data from observable markets. Where
such evidence exists, the Bank and economic entity recognises
profits immediately when the derivative is recognised.
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Cash flow hedges

For a derivative or financial instrument designated as hedging
a cash flow exposure arising from a recognised asset or liability
{or a highly probable forecast transaction), the gain or loss on
the dertvative or financial instrument associated with the
effective portion of the hedge is initially recognised in equity in
the cash flow hedge reserve and subsequently released to the
income statement when the hedged item affects the income
staternent. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion of
the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Fair value hedges

For a derivative or financial instrument designated as hedging
a fair value expaosure arising from a recognised asset or liability
for a firm commitment), the gain or loss on the derivative or
financial instrument is recognised in the incoma statement
immediately together with the loss or gain on the hedged asset
or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk.

Net investment hedges

For a derivative or financial instrument designated as

hedging a net investment in a foreign operation, the gain or
loss on the derivative or financial instrument associated with
the effective portion of the hedge is initially recognised in

the foreign currency translation reserve and subsequently
releasad 1o the income statement when the foreign operation is
disposed of, The ineffective portion is recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

¥} Investments and other financial assets

With the exception of trading portfolio assets and derivatives
which are classified separately in the balance sheet, the
remaining investments in financial assets are classified into the
following categories: loan assets held at amortised cost, other
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, investment
securities available for sale, and assets classified as held for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which

the investment was acquired, which is determined at initial
recognition and, except for fair value though profit and loss,

is re-evaluated at each reporting date.

Loan assets held at amortised cost

Loan assets which are held at amortised cost on the balance
sheet are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not guoted in an active markst.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
This category only includes those assels which have been
designated by management as held at fair value through profit
and loss on initial recognition. The policy of management is to
designate a financial asset as such if the asset contains
embedded derivatives which must otherwise be separated and
carried at fair value; or by doing so efiminates, or significantly
reduces, a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise. Interest income on such items is
recognised in the income statement in interest income.




Investment securities available for sale

Investment sacurities available for sale consist of securities that
are not actively traded and are intended 1o be heid for an
indefinite perod of time. Such securities are available for sale
and may be sold should the need arise, including liguidity
needs, or considering the impacts of changes in interest rates,
exchange ratss or equity prices.

Irvestment securities available for sale are initially carried at

fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses arising

from subsequent changes in fair value are recognised directly
in the available for sale reserve in equity, until the asset is
derecagnised ar impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss will be recognised in the income statement. Fair values of
quoted investments in active markets are based cn current bid
prices. If the relevant market is not considered active (or the
securities are unlisted), fair value is established by using
valuation techniques, including recent anm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

The Bank and economic entity determine that available for

sale equity investmenis are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decfine in the fair value below its cost.
The determination of what is significant or prelonged requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Bank and economic
entity evaluate among other factors, the normai volatility in share
price. In addition, impaiment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial condition of the
investee, industry and sector performance, operational and
financing cash flows or changes in technology.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

This category includes controlled entities and intarests in
associates or joint ventures whose carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
continuing use. The policy of management is to classify these
assets as held for sale when it is highly probable that the asset
will be sold within the twelve months subsequent to being
classified as such.

Assets and liabilities, including those within a disposal group,
classified as held for sale are each presented separately on

the face of the balance sheet. The revenue and expenses from
disposal groups are presented net within the income statement
and notes 1o the financial statements.

Agsets classified as held for sale are carried at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Assats
classified as held for sale, or included within a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, are not depreciated.

An impairment 10ss is recognised for any intial or subsequent
write cown of tne asset to fair value less costs 10 sell. A gain
would be recognised for any subsequent increase in fair value
less costs to sell, limited by the previous cumulative impairment
loss recognised. A gain or l0ss not previously recognised by the
date of sale would be recognised at the date of sale.

xi) Loan impairment review

Allloan assets are subject 1o recurning review and assessment
for possible impairment. All bad detsis are written off in the
pericd in which they are identified. Provisions for loan iosses are
based on an incurred loss model, which recognises a provision
where there is objective evidence of impairment at each balance
date, and is calculated based on the discounted values of
expected tuture cash flows.

Specific provisions are recognised where specific impaiment is
identified. Where individual lgans are found not to be impaired,
they are placed inlo pools of assets with sirnilar risk profiles and
collectively assessed for losses that have been incurred but not
yet identified.

The Bank and economic entity make judgements as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that there is a significant
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual
ioan in that portfolic. This evidence may inciude cbservable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of the borrowers in a group, or national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in
the group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar 1o those in the portfolio
when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and tirming

of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
Changes in assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
could resuit in a change in provisions for loan losses and have
a direct impact on the impairment charge.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

xii) Life business
The following are key accounting policies in refation to the
life business:

Disclosure

The consolidated financial staterments recognise the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the life business conducted by
a subsidiary of the Bank in accordance with AASB 139: Ainancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ("AASB 1397, and
AASB 1038: Life insurance Contracts ("AASB 1038") which
apply 1o investment contracts and assets backing insurance
liabilities respectively, These amounts represent the total life
business of the subsidiary, including undertying amounts that
relate to both policyholders and shareholders of the: life business.

Investment assets

Investments assets are carried at fair value through profit and
loss. Fair values of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If the refevant market is not
considered active fand for unlisted securities), fair value is
established by using valuation techniques, including recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, opticn
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used
by market participants. Changes in fair values are recognised in
the income statement in the financial peried in which the
changes occur.

Restriction on assets

investments held in the Life Funds can only be used within the
restrictions imposed under the Life Insurance Act 1895. The
main restrictions are that the assets in a fund can only be used to
meet the liabilities and expenses of the fund, acquire invesiments
to further the business of the fund or pay distributions when
solvency and capita! adequacy requirements allow. Sharehclders
can only receive a distribution when the capital adequacy
requiremenits of the Life Insurance Act 1995 are met,

Policy liabilities

Life insurance liabilities are measured as the accumulated
benefits to policyhclders in accardance with AASB 138 and
AASB 1038, which apply to investment contracts and assets
backing insurance liabilities respectively.
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xiii) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if ary. Assets are reviewed for impairment annually. Historical
cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset.

Depreciation on assets is calculated on a straight-line basis to
allocate the difference between their cost and their residual
values over their estimated usefut lives, at the following rates:

Fumiture and fittings 10% 10 20%
Leasehold improvements* 20%
Computer equipment 33% 1o 50%
Pant and equipment 20% to 33%
Infrastructure assets 5% to 20%
Art 1%

* Where remaining lease terms are less than five years,
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term.

Useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually

and reassessed in light of commercial and technological
developments. If an asset’s carrying value is greater than its
recoverable amount due to a useful lite, residual value or
impairment adjustment, the carrying amount is writlen down
immediately 1o its recoverable amount. Adjustments arising
from such restaternents and on disposal of fixed assets are
recognised in the income statement.

xiv) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill representis the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the economic entity's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of controlled entities is included in intangible
assets on the balance sheet. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in the carrying value of investmenits in
associates. Goodwill acquired in business combinations is not
amortised but tested for impairment annually, or more frequentty
if events indicate that it might be impaired. In this event, it is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

ldentifiable intangibles

- Licences and trading rights are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. These assets are not being
amortised on the basis that they have indefinite fives.

—Management rights have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of management rights over their estimated
useful life not exceeding twenty years.

Igentifiable intangibles with indefinite lives are subject to annual
impairment testing, or more frequently if events indicate that
there may be an impairment.




Software

Certain internal and external costs directly incurred in acquiring
and developing certain software have been capitalised and
are being amortised over their useful life, usually for a period

of 3 years. Costs incurred on software mainienance are
expensed as incurred. The costs of repairs and maintenance
are expensed as incurred.

xv} Financial liabilities

The Bank and economic entity has on issue debt secunties and
instruments which are initialty recognised at fair value, net of
fransaction ¢cests incurred. These instruments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the income staterment aver the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
This category only incluges those financial liabilities which have
been designated by management as held at fair value through
profit and loss on initial recognition, The policy of management
is to designate a financial liability as such if the liability contains
embedded derivatives which must otherwise be separated and
carried at fair value, or by doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise. Interest expense on such items is
recognised in the income statement in interest expense.

xvi) Provisions

Employee benefits

Liabiities for unpaid salaries, salary related costs and provisions
for annual leave are recorded in the halance sheet at the salary
rates which are expected to be paid when the liabiity is settled.
Provisions for long service leave and other long-term benefits
are recognisad at the present value of expected future
paymenits to be made. In determining this amount, consideration
is given to expected future salary levels and employee service
histories. Expected future payments are discounted to their net
present value using rates on Commonwealth Government
securities with terms that match as closely as possible to the
expected future cash flows.

Dividends

Provisions for dividends to be paid by the Bank are recognised
on the balance sheet as a liability and a reduction in retained
earnings when the dividend has been declared or publicly
recommended by the Directors.

xvii) Funds under management

Within the economic entity cenain controlled entities act as

a custodian and/or a single responsible entity for a number

of investment funds and trusts. As at 31 March 2007, the
investment funds and trusts, both individually and collectively,
have an excess of assets over liabilities. The value of funds
managed by the economic entity (measured based on the gross
assets of the individual funds) is $197.2 billion (31 March 2006:
£140.3 billion). This includas $5.9 bilion (31 March 2006: $5.2
billion) in respect of the life business statutory funds and certain
other funds that are consolidated in the financial report. Other
invesirment funds and trusts have nct been consolidated in the
financial repor because individual entities within the ecenomic
entity do not have control of the funds and trusts.

Commissions and fees earned in respect of the economic
entity’s funds management activities are brought 1o account

as services are provided, and where these are subject to claw
back or meeting certain performance hurdles, at the point when
those conditions can no longer affect the cuicome.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

xviil) Performance based remuneration

Share based payments

The Bank operates share-based compensation plans, which
include options granted to employees and shares granted to
employees under share acquisition plans. The Bank and
economic entity recognises an expense {and equity reserve)
for shares and options granted to employees, The shares and
options are measured at their grant dates based on their fair
value and in the case of options, using the number expected to
vest. This amount is recognised as an expense evenly over the
respective vesting periods.

Performance hurdles attached to the options issued {o the
Executive Officers are not taken into account when determining
the fair value of the option at grant date. instead, these vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant
using a trinomial option pricing framework. The following key
assumptions have been adopted for grants made in the current
financial year, risk free interest rate: 6.5% {weighied average),
expecied life of options: four years, volatility of share price:

20% and dividend yield: 3.2% p.a.

Where options are issued by the Bank to employees of
subsidiaries, the Bank accounts for the equity provided as a
capital contribution to the controlled entity.

The economic entity annually revises its estimates of the
number of cptions that are expected to become exercisable.
Where appropriate, the impact of revised estimates are reflected
in the income staternent over the remaining vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share based payments
reserve in equity.

These rules are mandatory to options granted after 7 November
2002 that vest after 1 January 2005.

In February 2007, Interpretation 11 AASB 2: Group and
Treasury Share Transactions was approved by the AASB. This
Interpretation applies to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 March 2007. As the requirements of this interpretation
are in line with the Bank's existing accounting pelicy, the Bank
has adopted this interpretation earty.
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Profit share remuneration

The Group recognises a liability and expense for profit share
based on a formula that takes into consideration the Group's
after tax prefit and its earnings over and above the estimated
cost of capital.

xix) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include Cash and balances with
central banks, short-tarm amounts included in Due from banks,
hank accepted bills and negotiable certificates of depasits
issued by a bank, with an original maturity of less than

3 months, included in Trading portfolio assets and lnvestment
securities available for sale.

xx) Leases

Where finance leases are granted to third parties, the present
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable and
included in Loan assets held at amortised cost. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable is recognised as uneamed interest income. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease using

the effective interest rate method, which reflects a constant
rate of return,

Leases entered into by the Bank and economic entity as lessee
are primarily operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases are charged 10 the income statement ona
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Purchased assets, where the economic entity is the lessor
under operaiing leases, are carried at cost and depreciated over
their useful lite which varies depending on each class of asset
and ranges from 3 to 40 years,

xxi} Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported on the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settla the fiability simuftaneousty.

xxii) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in presentation in the current year,

xxii} Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in Australian Securities and
Investments Commission Class Order 98/0100 (as amended),
relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the financial report.
Amounts in the financial report have been roundec off in
accordance with that Class Order to the nearest million dofars
unless otherwise indicated.




Consolidated Consolhdated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm gm $m &m
Note 2. Profit for the financial year
Net interest income
Interest and similar income receved/recevable
Other entities 4,632 3136 2,670 1,661
Controlled entities - - 698 356
Interest expense and similar charges paid/payable
Other entities (3,904) {2,544 (2,525) {1.508)
Controlled entities - - (325) (172)
Net interest income 728 592 518 337
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income 3,513 2,819 1,264 794
Income from life business and other unit holder businesses (note 17) 27 23 - -
Fee and commission income 3,540 2,842 1,264 794
Net trading income*
Equities 765 526 as1 430
Commodities 295 197 161 84
Foreign exchange products 120 152 (59) 153
Interest rate products (133) 1 62) 42
Net trading income 1,047 876 91 708
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 242 172 - -
Other operating income
Net gains on sale of investrent securities avaiable for sale 160 100 125 82
Net gains on sale of associates and joint ventures 650 78 353 148
Net operating income/(loss) from disposal groups held for sale™ L3 (18) - -
(Gain on deconsolidation of previousty controlled entities
and businesses held for sale 469 128 - -
Dridends/distributions receved/recervable:
- equity investments and investment securities avaitable for sale 84 42 105 78
- controlled entities - - 925 378
Management fees, group semvice charges and
cost recoveries — controlled entities - - 456 364
Cther income*™ 272 81 Pl 28
COther operating income 1,676 411 1,985 1,078
Impairment charges
Pravision for diminution of investment securities (including investment
securities available for sale, associates and joint ventures) 12) 25) {3) (18)
Collective abowance for credit losses provided for during the
finandial year {refer note 11) {11) 1) (13) g
Specific provisions
- provided for during the financial year (refer note 11) {36) (36) (31) (26)
—recovery of loans previcusly provided for (refer note 11) 13 15 6 9
— ioan losses writien-off © (® L m
- recovery of loans previously written-off 3 3 - -
Impaimment charges (52) {61) (42) (46)
Total operating income 7,181 4,832 4,645 2872

* Included in the net trading income are fair value changes of $68 milion for the year ending 31 March 2007 (31 March 2006: $15 million)
refating to financial assets and financial liabilities designated as held at fair value through profit and loss. Fair value changes refating to
derivatives are also reported in net trading income which partially offsets the fair value changes relating 10 the financial assets and financial
liabilities designated at fair value. Also includes fair value changes on derivatives used to hedge the Group's economic interest rate risk
where hedge accounting requirements are not met — refer to note 1 (ix).

- Included within net income from disposal groups held {or sale are the net income and expenses arising from the activities of the disposal
groups. Refer to note 22 — Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale for the name of each group.
™ Included within other income is rental income of $169 milion (2006: $63 milion) less depreciation ¢f $109 milion (2006: $44 million)
in relation 1o operating leases where the Group is the lessor.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m Sm sm
Note 2. Profit for the financial year continued
Employment expenses
Salary, salary related costs incduding commissions,
superannuation and performance-related profit share {3,469) 2.214) (2,371) {1,472
Share based payments {87) 53) (68) 37)
Provision for annual leave {15) (12) {7 6)
Provision for long senvice leave {8) i {6) 5]
Total compensation expense {3,579) {2,286} {2,452) {1.520)
Other employment expenses including on-costs,
staff procurernent and staff training (154) (121 (109) 71)
Total employment expenses {3,733) (2,407} {2,561) {1.531)
Brokerage and commission expenses
Brokerage expenses (289) (264) (221) (188)
Other fee and commission expenses {132 (102} {85) 79)
Total brokerage and commission expenses (421) (366} {306) (267)
Occupancy expenses
Operating lsase rentals (151) 91} (102) (58)
Depreciation: infrastructure, fumiture, fittings and leasehold
improvements {(note 19) (36) 21} {16) ]
Other Gocupancy expenses (39) 27} {21) (14)
Total occupancy expenses (226) (139) (139) 82)
Non-salary technology expenses
Infarmation services {64) (54 (31) {29)
Depreciation: computer equipment (note 19) (38) (34) (25) (29)
Other non-salary technology expenses {61) (40) {45) {31)
Total non-salary technology expenses (163) (128) (101) (85}
Other operating expenses
Professional fees {233) (143) (158) {74
Auditors’ remuneration {note 47) (18) (13) @ {9)
Travel and entertainment expenses {154) (122) (76) {63)
Advertising and promational expenses (36) (33) (20) {24)
Communication expenses {34) (29) {16) (14
Depreciation: communication equipment (note 19) @ ()] ©) )
Cther expenses (228) {160) {159) {82)
Total other operating expenses (710 (505) (441) (266)
Total operating expenses (5,253) {3,545) (3,548) {2.291)
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
$m sm $m &m

Note 3. Revenue from operating activities
Interest and similar income 4632 3,136 3,368 207
Fee arxd commission income 3,513 2819 1,264 794
Investment revenue and management fees from life investment
contracts and other unit holder businesses (note 17) 613 509 - -
Net trading income 1,047 876 a 709
Profit on the sale of investment securities available for sale
and associates and joint ventures 810 178 478 230
Other income (excluding profit on the sale of investment securities
avallabla for sale and associates and joint ventures) 1,108 405 1,507 848
Total revenue from operating activities 11,723 7.923 7,538 4,598

Note 4. Segment reporting

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly attributable 10 a segment or the relevant portion that
can be allocated to a segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment. The carrying amount
of certain assets used jointly by segments is allocated based on reasgnable estimates of usage.

Any transfers between segments have been determined on an arms-length basis and eliminated on consolidation.

The segment information has been prepared in conformity with the economic entity’s accounting policies as disclosed in note 1
— Summary of significant accounting policies.

Primary segment — business

For internal reporting and risk management purposes, the economic entity is divided into six operating Groups (“the Groups"}.
The Groups do not mest the definition of business segment for the purposes of reporting in accordance with AASE 114:
Segment Reporting, because the Groups provide certain products to customers which have the same, or similar, risk and
return characteristics.

For the purposes of determining business segments, the activities of the economic entity have been divided into four areas:

— Asset and Wealth Management: distribution and manufaciure of funds management products;

- Financial Markets: trading in fixed income, equities, currency, commodities and derivative products;

- Investment Banking: corporate and structured finance, advisory, underwriting, facilitation, broking and rea! estate/property
development; and

- Lending: banking activities, mortgages, margin lencing and leasing.

Primary segment — business

Asset and
Wealth Financial Investment
Management Markets Banking Lending Total
Sm $m Sm $m &m
Consolidated 31 March 2007
Income statements
Revenue from extenal customers 2,327 2,806 3,236 3,071 11,440
Net operating income from disposal groups held for sale - - 41 - 41
Intersegmental revenue/{expense) 35 {530) (242) 737 -
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 195 38 9 - 242
Total revenue from ordinary activities 2,557 2,314 3,044 3,808 11,723
Operating profit from ordinary activities before income tax 494 376 883 175 1,928
Income tax expense {132} 42) (157) (46) {377)
Profit from ordinary activities after income fax 362 334 726 129 1,551
Non-cash expenses: depreciation {22} (15) (65) (88) {150}
Balance sheets
Total assets 12,417 69,717 13,713 40,542 136,389
Total liabilities 9,163 86,920 4,319 28,468 128,870
Fixed assets acquired during the financial year 21 95 28 55 199
Intangible assets acquired during the financial year - 9 25 13 47
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 43 - 951 - 994
Interest in associates and jcint ventures using
the equity rrethod 9N 207 2,893 50 4,071
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Note 4. Segment reporting continued
Primary segment — business

Asset and
Wealth Financiat Investment
Management Markets Banking Lending Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Consolidated 31 March 2006
Income statements
Revenue from external customers 1,702 1,968 1.887 2212 7,769
Net operating loss from disposal groups held for sale - - (18) - (18}
Intersegmental revenue/{expense) 48 {(280) (138) 370 -
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 155 3 17 3 172
Total revenue from ordinary activities 1,905 1,691 1,748 2579 7.923
Operating profit from ordinary activities before income tax 345 292 480 170 1,287
Income tax axpense {104) (38} (104) (44) {290)
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 241 254 are 126 997
Non-cash expenses: depreciation (18) 8 (25) 53) {104)
Balance sheets
Total assels B.780 50,732 12,587 34,112 106.211
Total liabilities 7,385 63,768 5,488 24,233 100,874
Fixed assets acquired during the financial year 18 54 155 35 262
Intangible assets acquired during the financial year 33 24 71 2 130
Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 24 - 2,365 - 2,389
Interest in associates and joint ventures using the
equity method 1,070 276 2,085 22 3,463

Secondary segment — geographical

Geographical segments have been determined based on where the transactions have been booked. The operations of the economic
entity are headquartered in Australia. All locations below the reportable segment threshold have been collectively classified as other,

Australia Asia Pacific* Europe  North America Other Total
Sm Sm $m sm Sm $m
Consolidated 31 March 2007
Revenue from
external customers 7.014 1,458 1,643 1,314 1 11,440
Total assets 69,983 12,593 37,559 14,808 1,446 136,389
Fixed assets acquired
during the financial year 153 13 26 7 - 199
Intangible assets acquired
during the financial year 1 10 9 17 - 47
Consolidated 31 March 2006
Revenue from
external customers 5107 1,056 1,011 568 27 7,769
Total assets 75,626 7,950 14,284 7.723 628 106,211
Fixed assets acquired
during the financial year 74 3 119 33 5 262
Intangible assets acquired
during the financial year 86 12 8 24 - 130

* Excludes Australia as it is disclosed as a separate segment.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
$m Sm $m &m
Note 5. Income tax {expense)/benefit
a} Income tax {expense)/benefit
Current tax {596) (388 (144} {37)
Deferred tax 219 a8 13 4
Total (377) {290) (13} 4
Deferred income tax revenue included
in income tax (expenseybenefit comprises:
increase in deferred tax assets 129 35 55 23
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities 90 63 76 18
Total 219 a8 131 41
b} Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
Prima facie income tax expense on operating profit* (578) (387) {329} (174}
Tax effect of amounts adjusted in calculating taxable income;
Rate differential on offshore income 195 85 63 55
Distribution provided on Macguarie Income Preferred
Securities and similar distributions 16 15 16 15
Non-deductible options expense {26) (16) {20) ' {n
Infragroup dridends - - 277 114
Other itams 16 13 {20) 5
Total income tax (expenseybenefit 377) (290 {13) 4
¢} Amounts recognised directly in equity
Aggregate curent and deferred tax anising in the reporting
period and not recognised in profit and loss but directly
recognised in equity:
Net deferred tax - debited/{credited) directty to equity H 67 {19) 54
Total 11 67 {19) 54

* Prima facie income tax on operating profit is calculated at the rate of 30% {31 March 2006: 30%). The consolidated entity has a tax year
ending on 30 September.

Pursuant to a resolution of the Bank, the consolidated entity's Australian tax liabilities are determined according 1o tax consolidation
legislation. The Bank together with all eligible Australian resident wholly-owned controlled entities of the Bank represent a Tax
Consolidated Group, with the Bank as the Head Entity. As a consequence, the relevant controlled entities are not liable to make
income tax payments and do not recognise any curment tax balances. Under the terms and conditions of a tax funding agreement,
the Bank charges each controlled entity for all current tax liabilities incurred in respect of their activities and reimburses each
centrolled entity for current tax assets utlised.

Should the Bank be in default of its tax payment obligations, or a default is probable, the current tax balances of the conirclled
entities will be determined in accordance with the terms and conditions of a tax sharing agreement between the Bank and entities
in the Group.

In preparing this financial report the Bank has considered the information curently available and where considered necessary have
taken legal advice as to the economic entity's tax liability and in accordance with this believe that provisions made are adequate.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
$m $m Sm $m

Note 6. Dividends paid and distributions paid or provided
i) Dividends paid
Ordinary share capital
Interim dividend paid ($1.25* (2008: $0.9C"} per sharg) a2 208 N2 208
2006 Final dvidend paid ($1.25* (2005: $1.00°) per share) 290 224 290 224
2006 Special dividend paid ($nil (2005: $0.40") per share) - 83 - 89
Tota! dividends paid 602 521 602 521

* These dhvidends were 100% franked at the 30% comporate tax rate.
* These dividends were 90% franked at the 30% corporate tax rate.

The Bank's Dividend Reinvastment Plan (“DRP™ rermains activated. The DRP is optional and offers ordinary shareholders in Australia and
New Zealand the opporturity to acquire fully paid ordinary shares, without transaction costs, at a 2.5% discount to the prevailing market
value with effect from the 2006 final dividend (at the prevailing market value, prior 1o the 2006 final dividend). A shareholder can elect to
participate in or terminate their involvernent in the DRP at any time. Details of fully paid ordinary shares issued pursuant to the DRP are
included in note 31 — Contributed equity.

Dividend per ordinary share
Cash dividends per ordinary share

(distribution of current year profits) $3.15 $2.15 $3.15 $2.15
Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
sm $m Sm $m

Franking credits available for the subsequent financial
year at a corporate tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%;) 176 149 176 149

The franked portion of dividends proposed as at 31 March 2007 will be franked out of existing franking credits or out of franking credits
arising from the payment of income tax payable at the end of the financial year.

The above amounts represent the balances of the franking accounts as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:

a) franking crediits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the financial year;

b) franking credits that may be prevented from being distributed in subsequent financial years,

¢) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends propesed as at the end of the financial year and the final dividend
disclosed below in {iy; and

d) franking debits that will arise from the receipt of tax receivables as at the end of the financial year.

ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the financial year

Since the end of the financial year the directors have recommended the payment of the 2007 final dividend of $1.90 per fully paid ordinary
share, 100% franked based on tax paid at 30%. The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on 4 July 2007
out of retained profits at 31 March 2007, but not recognised as a kability at the end of the finandial year, is $482 million. This amount has
heen estimated based on the number of shares eligible to participate as at 31 March 2007.

iii} Distributions paid or provided
Macquarie Income Securities

Distributions paid (net of distributions previously provided) 24 23 - -
Distributions provided 7 6 - -
Total distributions paid or provided 3 29 - -

The Macquarie Income Security {'MIS") is a stapled arrangement, which inciudes a perpeiual preference share issued by the Bank. No
dividends are payable under 1he preference shares uniil the Bank exercises its option to receive future payments of interest and principal
undler the other stapled security. Upon exercise, dividends are payable at the same rate, and subject to similar conditions, as the MIS,
Dividends are also subject to Directors’ discretion. The distributions paid/provided in respect of the MIS are recognised directly in equity in
accordance with AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Macquarie Income Preferred Securities

Distributions paid (net of distributions previously provided} 30 27 - -
Distributions provided 24 24 - _
Total distributions paid or provided 54 51 - -

The Macquarie Income Preferred Securities represent the minority interest of a consolidated entity. Accordingly, the distributions paid/
provided in respect of the Macquarie Income Preferred Securities are recorded as movemnents in minority interest, as disclosed in note 32
- Reserves, retained earnings and minority interests. The Bank can redirect the payments of distributions under the convertibie
debentures to be paid to itself. Each debenture converts for 500 Bank preference shares at the Bank's discration at any time, in certain
droumstances (to meet capital requirements), or on maturity, Refer to note 31 for further detalls on these instruments.

Macquarie Bank Limted 2007 Financial Report




Consolidated Consclidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m Sm Bm
Note 6. Dividends paid and distributions paid or provided continued
Convertible Debentures
Distributions paid {net of distributions previousty provided) - - 30 27
Distributions provided - - 24 24
Total distributions paid or provided - - 54 51
Consolidated Consolidated
2007 2006
Note 7. Earnings per share Cents per share
Basic eamings per share 591.6 400.3
Diluted eamings per share 569.8 3823
Sm $m
Reconciliation of earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share
Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 997
{Profit) attributable to minonty interests:
Macquarie Income Prefermred Securities (54) (51
Other equity holders {3} (1)
Distributions paid or provided on:
Macqguarie Income Securities (31) (€9)
Total eamnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share 1,463 916

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares

Number of shares

used in the calculation of basic eamings per share 247,313,494 228,840,495
Weighted average number of shares used in the
calculation of diluted eamings per share
Weighted average fully paid ordinary shares 247,313,494 228,840,495
Potential ordinary shares:

Weighted average options 9,441,575 10,790,865
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary
shares used in the calculation of diluted eamings per share 256,755,069 239,631,360

Information concerning the classification of securities
Options

Options granted to employees under the Employee Option Plan are considered to be potential ondinary shares and have been included in
the calculation of dikied eamings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive, The issue price, which is equivalent to the fair value of
the options granted, and exercise price used in this assessment incorparate both the amounts recognised as an expense Up 1o the

reparting date as well as the fair value of options yet to be recognised as an expense in the future.

Included in the balance of weighted average options are 1,998,451 (2006: 1,424,535) options that were converied, lapsed or cancelled
during the financial year, There are a further 1,765,225 (2006: 10,241,098} options that have not been included in the balance of weighted
average options on the basis that their strike price was greater than the average market price of the Bank's fully paid ordinary shares for

the financial year ended 31 March 2007 and consequently, they are not considered (o be dilutive.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
$m 3m 5m m
Note 8. Due from banks
Cash at bank” 1,671 203 633 566
Overnight cash at bank 936 1,836 923 1,823
Other loans 1o banks 3,380 2417 2,941 2,078
Oue from clearing houses 133 128 83 it2
Total due from banks 6,120 6,304 4,580 4,579
* Included within this balance is $nil {2006: $8 milion) provided as security over payables to other financial institutions.
Note 9. Cash collateral on securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements
Ceniral bank - 22 - 22
Govemnments 48 385 48 385
Other financial institutions 13,130 5,001 13,083 5,001
Other 12,731 8,162 12,702 8,157
Total cash collateral on securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 25,909 13,570 25,843 13,565
Note 10. Trading portfolio assets
Trading securities
Equities and other securities 12,114 9,211 11,675 8,117
Corporate bonds 1,496 995 1,412 a71
Promissory notes 809 1,188 808 1,188
Certificates of deposit 426 1,597 426 1,597
Other government securities 350 612 350 612
Bank bills 159 330 158 330
Commonwealth govemnment bonds 71 166 Al 166
Foreign government bonds 6 42 6 a2
Total trading securities 15,431 14,141 14,908 13,023
Other trading assets
Commodities 87 105 23 7
Total other trading assets 87 105 23 7
Total trading portfolic assets 15,518 14,246 14,931 13,030

Trading assets pledged as security

Included in the balance of equities and cther securilies, certificates of deposit and bank bills are assets provided as security over issued
notes and payables tc other extermal investors and financial institutions. The value of assets provided is $371 milion (2006: $1,249 million).

Macquarie Bank Lirmited 2007 Financial Report




Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
sm Sm Sm gm
Note 11. Loan assets held at amortised cost
Due trom clearing houses 2,827 2,033 2,751 1,906
Due from governments® 165 223 110 158
Due from other entities
Cther loans and advances*™ 40,269 30,845 16,009 11,208
Less specific provisions {71) 52) (69} {48}
40,198 30,793 15,840 11,160
Lease receivables 2,697 2030 47 35
Total due from other entities 42,895 32,823 15,987 11,195
Total gross loan assets 45,887 35,079 18,848 13,257
Less collective allowance for credit losses 91) (80) 89) {76)
Total loan assets held at amortised cost 45,796 34,999 18,759 13,181

" Governments include federal, state and local governments and related enterprises in Australia.
** Included within this balance are morgage loans of $20,034 millicn (2006: $17,795 million) held by consolidated SPEs.

Included within the balance of loan assets held at amortised cost are assets provided as security over issued notes and payables
to other external investors and financial institutions. The value of assets provided, excluding mortgage securitised oans, is
$1,631 milion (2006: $nil).

Specific provisions

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 52 45 48 39
Provided for during the financial year 36 35 K1) 26
Loan assets written off, previously provided for {4 {10) 4} (10)
Recovery of loans previously provided for (13 {15) € ©
Transfer from other provisions and other items - 1 - }

Transfer to provision against interest in associates

and joint ventures using the equity method - (9] - -
Attrtwtable to foreign cumency translation - 1 - 1

Total specific provisions ral 52 69 48

Specific provisions as a percentage of gross loan assets 0.15% 0.15% 0.37% 0.36%

The specific provisions relate to doubtiul loan assets that have been identified and provided for.

Collective allowance for credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 80 109 76 105
Adustment on adoption of AASB 139 | Com | {47)
Provided for during the financial year 1 11 13 10
Transfer from trading portfolio assets - 10 - 8
Total collective allowance for credit losses 9 80 89 76

The collective allowances for credit losses is intended to cover losses inherent in the existing overall credit portfolio which are not yet
specifically identifiable.

Note 12. Impaired assets
Impaired assets have been reported in accordance with AASB 139 and include loan assets and impaired iterns in respect of derivative
financial instruments and unrecognised contingant commitments,

Impaired assets with specific provisions for impairment 166 152 150 132
Less specific provisions (78} 67) (74) (50)
Total net impaired assets 88 85 76 82
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2008 2007 2006
$m Sm $m $m

Note 13. Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Investment securities 789 395 190 185
Loan assets 1,990 1,709 1,990 1,709
Total other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 2,779 2,104 2,180 1,894

Note 14, Other assets

Debtors and prepayments” 5,549 3434 4,693 3,054
Securty settliements’” 3,580 4,146 2 156
Assets under operating lease™* 975 694 2 1
Property held for sale and development” 336 173 - 2
Other 4 5 2 -
Total other assets 10,444 8,452 4,699 3,213

* Included within these balances is $383 million of debiors and prepayments (2006: $7 million), and $309 miflion {2006: $159 miiion)
of property held for sale and development which are provided as security over amounts payable to otner financial institutions.
** Security settlements are receivable within three working days of the relevant trade date.

*++ Assets under operating lease are stated net of accumulated depreciation of $158 million (2006: $63 million).

Note 15. Investment securities available for sale

Equity securities
Listed 617 347 323 168
Unlisted® 377 168 34 89
Debt secunties™ 5,066 3,201 2,854 2,063
Total investment securities available for sale 6,060 3,746 3,211 2,310

* Included within this balances is $155 million (2006: $nil) provided as security over payables to other financial institutions.
** Included within this balance are debt securities of $471 million {2006: $311 million) which are recognised as a result of a total return
swap with Macquaris Intemational Infrastructure Fund Limited. The economic entity does not have legal title to these assets but has
full economic exposure to them.

Note 16. Intangible assets

Goodhwil 39 83 - -
Capitalised software 17 22 10 11
Cther identifiable intangibles 44 45 - -
Total intangible assets 100 180 10 11
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
$m Sm Sm $m
Note 17. Life investment contracts and other unit holder assets
Life investment contracts and other unit holder assets
Cash and due from banks 63 188 - -
Debt securities 865 820 - -
Units in unit trusts 4,675 3,846 - -
Equity securities 244 229 - -
Total life investment contracts and
other unit holder investment assets 5,847 5,183 - -

Invesiment assets are held primarily 1o satisfy policy holder liabilities, which are investment linked.

Income from life investment contracts and other unit holder assets

Premium income, investment revenue and management fees 613 509 - -
Life investiment contract claims, reinsurance and changes

in policy liabilities {578) 479 - -
Direct fees (8) {7 - -
Total income from life investment contracts

and other unit holder assets 27 23 - -
Solvency

Solvency requirements for the life investment contracts business have been met at all times during the financial year,
As at 31 March 2007, the life investment contracts business had investment assets in excess of policy holder liabilties of $86 million

{2006: $59 million).

Note 18. Interest in associates and joint ventures using the equity method
Interest in associates and joint ventures using the equity method

Loans and invesiments without provisions for impaimment 4,016 3.327 537 786

Loans and invesimenits with provisions for impairrment 60 176 80 65

Less provision for impaimnent (5) (40} (@) 8
Loans and investments at recoverable amount 55 136 76 47

Total interest in associates and joint ventures

using the equity methogd* 4,071 3,463 613 833

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of

accounting and are carried at cost by the parent entity (refer to note 1(i).

* Included in this balance is $184 million (2006: $153 million) provided as security over amounts payable to other financial institutions,

{a) Reconciliation of movement in the economic entity’s investment in associates and joint ventures using the equity method:

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 3,463 2,117
Associates acquired/equity contributed 1,542 2,728
Share of pre-tax profits of associates and incorporated joint ventures 345 246
Share of tax expense of associales and incomorated joint ventures (103) (74}
Dividends received/receivable from associales (374) (197)
Associates disposed of (720 {1,070}
Investments in associates provided forfwritten-off 2 (18
Foreign exchange and other adjustments (100) 93
Transferred to/{from) hedd for sale, available for sale equity 16 {362)
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,07 3,463
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Note 18. Interest in associates and joint ventures using the equity method continued
{b) Summarised information of certain interests in material associates and joint ventures is as follows:

Country of Participating
Incorporation  Reporting Date interest
2007 2006
Narme of entity % %
Maoquarnie Airports {a)™ " Australia 31 December 16% 14%
Diversified CMBS Investments nc {C) USA 31 March 57% 57%
Macguarie Gounirywide Trust {bj™ Australia 30 Jure 9% 6%
Macquarie MEAG Prime REIT (b} Singapore 31 December 24% 20%
Macquarie Diversified (A4) Trust {c) Australia 31 March 28% 31%
Macquarie Office Trust (o)™ Australia 30 June 6% 4%
Macquarie Media Group (e}*™ Australia 30 June 22% 20%
Macqguarie Communications Infrastruciure Group (&)™  Australia 30 June 12% 11%
Macquarie Capital Aliznce Group {¢)"™ Australia 30 Jung 17% 10%
Macquarie Aircraft Leasing Limited (a) Irefand 31 December A% -
European Directories SA (d)™ Luxembourg 31 December 13% 15%
Euro Gaming Limited (e) UK 31 December 50% -
Macquarie Infrastructure Group (a)™ Australia 30 June 2% 1%
Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund (a)™ UK 31 March 5% -
Macauarie Goodman Group by Australia 30 June - 8%

* Voting rights for this investment are not proportional to the ownership interest. The sconomic entity has joint control because neither the

economic entity nor its fellow investors have control in their own right.

" The economic entity has significant influence due to its fiduciary relationship as manager of these entities.
*** Significant influence arises due to the economic entity’s voting power and board representation.

A Denotes legal interest is different to participating interest. Legal interest in Macquarie Aiports is 18% and 17% in Macquarie

Communications infrastructure Group.

{a) Infrastructure

{t) Property deveiopment/ management entity

{c) Funds management and investment banking

(d) Directories business

{e) Media, television, gaming and intemet investments
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Note 1B. Interest in associates and joint ventures using the equity method continued
() The fair values of certain interests in material associates and joint ventures for which there are public quotations are as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

Sm Sm $m Sm

Macquarie Airports 1,096 783 41 13
Macquarie Communications Infrastructure Group 324 256 14 4
Macquarie Countrywide Trust 23 149 10 4
Macquarie MEAG Prirme REIT 225 153 - -
Macquare Media Group 197 110 5 -
Maoqguarie Cffice Trust 178 110 1 4
Macquarie Infrastructure Group 176 133 54 15
Macquarie Capital Aliance Group 176 89 7 1
Macquarie Goodman Group ' - 585 - 585

{d) Share of associates' and joint ventures’ expenditure commitments,
other than for the supply of inventories, is as follows:

Capital commitments 88 70 - 25
Lease commitments 52 145 37 86

(e) Contingent liabilities of associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Share incumed jointly with ciher investors 24 83 4 41
For which the economic entity is severally iable 146 59 6 59

() Aggregated financial information of interests in associates
and joint ventures are as foliows:

Economic entity's share of;

Assets 9,472 5,676 529 773
Liabiities 5,806 2,767 280 434
Revenues 1,359 a05 134 103
Profit 242 172 42 37
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Consoclidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m Sm gm
Note 19. Property, plant and equipment
Furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements
Cost 309 235 17 118
Less accumulated depreciation (109) (97} {78) {70)
Tetal furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements 200 138 93 48
Communication equipment
Cost 29 26 23 21
Less accumulated depreciation (22) (20) {19} {18)
Total communication equipment 7 6 4 3
Computer equipment
Cost 249 188 204 168
Less accumulated deprediation (176) (140) (151) (129)
Total computer equipment 73 48 53 39
Infrastructure assets
Cost 106 103 - -
Less accumulated depreciation 8) 3} - -
Total infrastructure assets 98 100 - -
Total property, plant and equipment 378 292 150 90
Reconciliation of the movement in the econamic entity’s property, plant and equipment at their written-cdown value:
Furniture,
fittings and
leasehotd Communication Computer Infrastructure
improvements equipment equipment assets Total
$m sm Sm $m $m
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 133 6 48 100 292
Acquisitions 1A 8 64 6 199
Disposals © - (1} - ]
Reclassification” {25) - - - (259)
Depreciation expense {28) @ {38) (8) 81)
Balance at the end of the financial year 200 7 73 98 378

Fixed assets pledged as security

Inciuded in the balance of property, plant and equipment are assets pledged as security over payabies to other financial institutions.
The terms preciude these assets from being sold or being used as security for further liabilities without the permission of the financial
institution. The carrying value of assets pledged is $89 million 2006: $132 million).

in December 2008, ATM Solutions, a whally owned subsidiary of the bank, was reclassified as Held for Sale {refer to note 22}

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

$m $m Sm $m

Note 20. Investments in controlled entities

Investments at cost without provisions for impairment - - 4,058 4,060
Investments at cost with provisions for impaimant - - 71 71
Less provisions for impairment - - (44) (a4
Investments at recoverable amount - - 27 27
Total investments in controlled entities - - 4,085 4087
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Note 20. Investments in controlled entities continued

The material controlled entities of the Bank, based on contribution to the economic entity’s profit from orginary activities, the size of the

investment made by the Bank or the nature of the activities conducted by the controlled entity, are:

ConnectEast Management Limited

Diversified CMBS Australia Holdings Pty Limited

Macquarie Acceptances Limited

Macquarie Africa (Proprietary) Limited {South Africa)

Macquarie Airports Management Limited

Macquarie Alternative Assets Management Limitec

Macquarie Asia Real Estate Management Limited (formerty Macguarie Asia Real Estate Limited)
Macquarie Australia Securities Limited

Wacquarie Capital Aliance Management Limited

Macquarie Capital Funcing L.P. (United Kingdom)

Macquarie Capital Korea Co Limited (Kovea)

Macquarie CLO Investments No.1 Pty Limited

Macquarie Communications Infrastructure Management Limited
Macquarie Countrywide Management Limited

Macquarie Direct Property Management Limited

Macquarie Diversified Investments No.2 Pty Limited

Macquarie Equity Capital Markets Limited

Macquarie Finance Limited

Macquarie Financial Products Management Limited

Macquarie Funds Management Holdings Pty Limited
Macquarie Global Debt Investrment No.1 Pty Limited
Macquarie Global Finance Senvices (Mauritius) Limited (Maunitius)
Magcquarie Holdings {U.S.A) Inc (United States)

Macquarie Inc (Unitexd States)

Macquarie Infrastructure Debt Managament Limited

Macquarie Infrastructure Investrnent Management Limited
Macquare Infrastructure Management (Asia) Pty Limited
Macquarie Infrastructure Management (USA) Inc (United States)
Macquarie International Finance Limited

Macquarie Investment Management (UK) Limited {United Kingdom)
Macquare Investment Management Limited

Macguarie Investment Services Limited

Macqguarie Investments (UK) Limited {United Kingdom)
Macquarie Investments Australia Pty Limited

Macquarie Leisure Management Limited

Macquarie Office Management Limited

Macquarie Property Advisors Korea Limited {Korea)

Macquarie Property Investment Management 2 Limited
Macquarie FProperty Investment Management 5 Limited
Macquarie Property lnvestment Management 6 Limited
Macquarie Securities (Australia) Limited

Macguarie Securities South Africa Limited (South Africa)
Macquarie Securitisation Limitec

Macguarie Specialised Asset Management 2 Limited
Macquarie Specialised Asset Management Limited

Macquarie Specialised Asset Management (Bermuda} Limited (Bermuda)
M&I Debt Investments Pty Limited

MQ Japan Market Neutral Fund (Cayman Istands)”

MQ Japan Market Neutral Fund®

Regicnal Media Trust

Retirement Villages Group R.E. Limited

Note: All entities are incorporated in Australia unless otherwise stated.

Overseas controlled entities camy on business predeminantly in their place of incorporation.
Beneficial interest in all entities is 100%, unless atherwise stated.

All entities have a 31 March reporting date, unless otherwise stated.

* These entities have a 30 June reporting date.
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bark
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m $m m
Note 21. Deferred income tax assets/{liabilities)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Provisions and accrued expenses 798 569 631 440
Tax losses 37 25 9 -
Fixed assets 20 21 20 21
Financia! instruments {386) {336) (229) (229)
Investments in associates 12) (39 - -
Total deferred income tax assets 457 240 4N 232
Available for sale financial assets (78} 63 (41) (29)
Investrnents in associates - 94) - (94)
Cther liabilties - - - (6
Total deferred income tax liabilities 78 {(157) (1) (129)
Net deferred income tax assets 379 83 390 103

Potential tax assets of aporoximately $52 million (2006: $32 miltion) attributabie to tax losses canied forward by controlled entities have
not been brought to account in the controlled entities and in the economic entity as the Directors do not believe the realisation of the tax
assets is probable.

The econamic entity’s Australian tax liabilities are determined pursuant to tax consolidation legistation. All eiigible Australian resident
wholly-owned controlied entities of the Bank represent a Tax Consolidated Group, Under the terms and conditions of a tax contribution
agreerment, the Bank, as the head entity of the tax consolidated group, will charge or reimburse its wholly-owned subsidiaries for current
tax liabilities or assets it incurs in connection with their activities, As a consequences, the Bank has recognised the cumrent tax balances of
its wholly-owned subsidiaries as if those were its own in addition to the current and deferred tax amounts arising in relation to its own
transactions, events and balances. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax contribution agreement with the tax consofidated entities
are recognised separately as tax-related amounts receivable or payable. The principles of the batance sheet method of tax effect
accounting have been adopled whereby the income tax expense for the financial year is the tax payable on the curent period’s taxable
income adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilties attributable to temporary differences betwsen the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carmying amournits in the financial staternents and to unused tax losses. The tax assets relating to deductible
temporary differences ard tax ksses are not carmied forward as an asset unless the benefit is probable of reafisation.

The tax assets have been applied against defermed tax liabifities to the extent that they are expected to be realised in the same period,
within the sarme tax paying antity.

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
$m gm $m sm

Note 22. Assets and disposal groups ¢lassified as held for sale
Asscciates* 750 586 139 18

Assets of disposal groups held for sale

ATM Solutions 166 - - -
Longview Ol & Gas 78 - - -
Steam Packet Group - 597 - -
AHA Holdings Limited - 469 - -
Macquarie SC Investments Inc. - 400 - -
Macquarie Small Cap Roads Holdings, LLC - 185 - -
Vancouver Health Holdings Limited - 142 - -
Total assets of disposal groups held for sale®™* 244 1,803 - -
Total assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 994 2,389 139 18

* Included within this balance are assets with a carrying value of $408 million (2006: $nil) provided as security over payables to other

.
H

financial institutions.
Included within this balance are assets with a carrying value of $34 million {2006: $823 million) provided as security over payables
to other financial institutions.
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Note 22. Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale continued

{a) Summarised information of material associates classified as held for sale is as fobows:

Country of Participating
Incorporation  Reporting Date interest
2007 2006
Name of entity % %
Macquane New York Parking 2 LLC (@) LSA 31 December 53% 53%
Tawan Cable TV Investments Sarl {b)# Tawan 31 December 20% 40%
Retirernent Viltages Group (C} Australia 30 June 48% 50%
Lane Cove Tunnei Holding Company Pty Limited (cf) Australia 31 December 19% -
Macguarie Industrial Investments Norway AS (g} Norway 31 December - 21%

All associates classified as held for sale are unlisted companies.

Participation interest is equivalent to ownership interest unless otherwise stated.

* Voting rights for this investment are not proportional to the ownership interest. The economic entity has joint control because neither
the economic entity nor its fellow investors have control in their own right.

" Denotes legal interest is different 10 participating interest. Legal interest in Taiwan Cable TV Investment Sart is 40%.

{a) Retail parking stations

b} Media, television and internet investments
{c) Retirement homes

(@) Infrastructure

{e) Cther
Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m $m $m
{(b) Share of associates’ expenditure commitments,
other than for the supply of inventories, is as follows:
Capital commitments 7 8 - -
Lease commitments 7 10 - -
{c) Contingent liabiities of associates are as folows:
Share incumred jointty with ather investors - - - -
For which the economic entity is severally liable - - - -
{d) Aggregated financial information of interests in associates
are as follows:
Economic entity’s share of:
Assels 2,542 2,059 377 -
Liabilities 1,97 1,491 2141 -
Revenues 372 351 22 -
Profit/lloss) - - - -
{e) Liabilities of disposal groups classified as hekd for sale
Total liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale’ 170 1,427 - -

* This year's batance includes the lizbilities of ATM Sotutions and Longview Odl and Gas. The prior year's balance represents the
labilities of Steam Packet Group, AHA Holdings Limited, Macquarie SC Investments Inc., Vancouver Health Holdings Limited and

Macquarie Small Cap Roads Holdings, LLC.

All of the above investments are expected to be disposed of by way of sale tc a Macquarie Fund, trade sale or sale to other investors
within twelve manths of being classified as held for sale, unless events or circumstances occurred that are beyond the Bank or economic

entity’s control.
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Consglidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
$m gm $m Sm
Note 23. Due to banks
OECD banks 3,056 1,537 1,427 703
QECD Central Banks 229 373 229 373
Clearng houses 147 67 134 67
Clearing banks 27 40 27 40
Other 668 1M 294 34
Total due to banks 4127 2118 2,111 1,217
Amounts due o clearing houses are settled on the next business day.
Note 24. Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements
Central banks 985 1,039 985 1038
Cther financial institutions 3,118 2328 3,118 2,328
Other 3,386 3628 3,386 3628
Total cash collateral on securities lent
and repurchase agreements 7,489 6,995 7,489 6.995
Note 25, Trading portfolio liabilities
Listed equity securities 14,258 4,435 14,293 4,431
Commonwealth government securities 1,243 4,867 1,243 4,867
Other government securities 352 685 352 685
Corporate securities 69 70 69 70
Total trading portfolio liabilities 15,922 10,057 15,957 10,053
Note 26. Debt issued at amortised cost
Debt issued at amortised cost® 51,365 39,022 28,519 20,567
Total debt issued at amortised cost 51,365 39,022 28,519 20,567
* Included within this batance are amounts payable to mortgage special purpose entities’ noteholders of $19,932 million
{2006: $17,778 million).
Note 27. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Debt issued 5,552 5,481 5,149 5,058
Total other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 5,552 5,481 5,149 5058
Reconciliation of debt issued at amortised cost and other financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss by major currency:
Australian dollars 28,596 23,784 6,124 5.065
United States dollars 15,936 8,206 15,899 8,211
Euro 5120 5,440 5,120 5,440
Great British pounds 3,467 3,844 3,467 3,844
Hong Kong doflars 1,592 1,435 1,450 1,270
Japanese yen 871 695 571 695
Other currencies 1,635 1,100 997 1.100
Total by cumency 56,917 44,503 33,668 25,625

The Bank's primary program for domestic and intermational debt issuance is its mutti-curency, multi-jurisdictional Debt Instrument Program.

Securities are issued for terms varying from one ctay to 30 years.
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2007 2006 2007 2006
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Note 28. Other liabilities
Creditors 5,166 3,247 4,021 2,358
Accrued charges and sundry provisions 3,556 2,155 2,902 1,815
Due to brokers ard customers® 3,034 4,000 77 174
Other 202 151 94 69
Total other liabilities 11,958 9,553 7,094 4,417

" Amounts due to orokers and customers are payable within three working days of the relevant trade date.

Note 29. Provisions

Provision for annual leave 69 57 48 33
Provision for long service leave 53 45 52 45
Provision for dividends 3 30 24 24
Total provisions 153 132 124 108

Note 30. Loan capital

Subordinated debt

Agreements between the Bank and the lenders provide that, in the event of liquidation, entitiernent of such lenders to repayment of the
principal sum and interest thereon is and shall at all times be and remain subordinated to the rights of all other present and future
creditors of the Bank.

The dates upon which the Bank has committed 1o repay the principal sum to the lenders are as follows:

Subordinated debt

18 February 2013 227 227 227 227
2 May 2013 25 25 25 25
20 June 2013 332 340 332 340
15 September 2014 am 300 am 300
18 September 2015 432 489 432 488
19 September 2016 486 - 486 -
6 December 2016 576 - 576 -
31 May 2017 292 - 292 -
Total subordinated debt 2,6T 1,381 2,671 1,380

Reconciliation of subordinated debt by major currency:

Australian dolleyrs 845 552 845 552
Euro 908 340 908 340
Great British pounds 486 - 486 -
United States dollars 432 489 432 488
Total subordinated debt by currency 2,671 1,381 2,671 1,380

In accordance with Australian Prudential Regulation Authority guidefines, the Bank includes the applicable portion of the principal sum
as Tier 2 capital.
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Consolidated and Bank Consolidated and Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Number of shares $m $m

Note 31. Contributed equity

Ordinary share capital

Opening balance of fully paid ordinary shares 232,440,369 223,683,592 1,916 1,600
Issue of 10,606,061 ordinary shares on

22 May 2006 at $66.00 per share 10,606,061 - 696 -
Cn-market purchase of shares pursuant to the

Macquarie Bank Staff Share Acquisition Plan (*MBSSAP”)

and Non-Executive Directors Share Acquisition Plan

(“NEDSAP™ at $67.94 (2006: $60.61) per share (268,009) (160,186) (20) (10)
Allocation of shares to employees pursuant to the MBSSAP

and NEDSAP at $67.94 (2006: $60.61) per share 288,009 160.196 20 10
Issue of shares on exercise of options 7,536,936 7,206,943 239 222
Issue of shares pursuant to the Employea Share Plan

at $ 68.30 per share - 20,118 - 1

Issue of shares on 23 June 2006 pursuant to the

Share Purchasa Plan at $66.00 per sham 137,947 - 9 -
Issue of shares on 12 January 2007 pursuant to the

Employee Share Pan at $76.82 per share 21,632 - 2 -
Issue of shares on 1 July 2005 pursuant to the

Dividend Reirvestrnant Plan (“DRP") at $51.27 per share - 1,133,173 - 58
Issue of shares on 16 December 2005 pursuant to the

DRP at $67.77 per share - 396,543 - 27
Issue of shares on 5 July 2006 pursuant to the DRP

at $63.60 per share 1,523,326 - a7 -
Issue of shares on 15 Decamber 2006 pursuant to the

DRP at $70.23 per share 1,674,934 - 117 -
Transfer from share based payments reserve for

expensed options that have been exercised - - 27 8

Closing balance of fully paid ordinary shares 253,941,205 232,440,369 3,103 1,916

As at 31 March 2007, 34,358,273 (2006: 31,235,034} options granted to emnployees over unissued ordinary shares had not been
exercised. For further information regarding the terms and conditions of the issue of options and shares to employees refer to note 36

- Employee equity participation.

On 22 May 2006, the Bank issued 10,606,061 additional ordinary shares at A$66.00 per ordinary share via an institutional placement.
These placement shares rank par passu with existing ordinary shares except that they did not participate in the 2006 final dividend paid
on 5 July 2006. The equity raised is net of placemnent fees of $4 milion.

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

$m $m $m $m

Total Treasury Shares 4] v} - -

Macquarie Income Securities

4,000,000 Macquarie Income Securities of $100 each 400 400 400 400

Less transaction oosts for original placement ©) Q) [12)] 9
Total Macquarie Income Securities ' n 3N 391 391

The Macquarie Income Securities are classified as eqguity in accordance with AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Presentation. Interest is
paid quarterty at a floating rate of BBSW plus 1.7% p.a. Payment of interest to holdars is subject to certain conditions, including the
profitability of the Bank. They are a perpetual instrument with no conversion rights. They were listed for trading on the Australian Stock
Exchange on 19 October 1999 and becarne redeemable (in whole or in part} at the Banlks discretion on 19 Novernber 2004.

Convertible Debentures
7,000 convertible debentures of £50,000 each - - 884 884
Total convertible debentures - -~ 884 884

As part of the issue of the Macquarie Income Preferred Securities (as detailed in note 32 - Reserves, retained earnings and minority
interests), the Lordon branch of the parent entity issued 7,000 reset subordinated convertitle debentures, each with a face value of
£50,000, to Macguarie Capital Funding LP, a controlled entity. The convertible debentures, which eliminate on consolidation, currently pay
a B.177% semi-annual cumulative fixed rate distribution. The debentures mature on 15 April 2060, but may be redsemed, at the Bank’s
discretion, on 15 April 2020 or on any reset date thereafter. If redermnption is not elecied, then on 15 April 2020 and on each fitth
anniversary thereafter, the debenture coupon will be reset to 2.35% above the then prevailing five year benchmark sterling gilt rate.

The distripution policies for thesa instruments are included in note 6 of this report,
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Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm Sm 5m Sm
Note 32. Reserves, retained eamnings and minority interests
Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance 4 )] {44) {38)
Currency translation differences arising during the financia! year,
net of hedge {3) 5 4 (6}
Total foreign currency translation reserve 1 4 (40) {44}
Available for sale reserve
Opening balance 151 93 -
Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASE 129,
net of tax RS 67 I 48
Revaluation movement {or the financial year, net ¢f tax 175 16 74 76
Transfer to profit on realisation (98) (32) {59) {31
Total available for sale reserve 228 151 108 83
Share-based payments reserve
Opening balance 84 39 84 39
Option expense for the financia year 87 53 68 ar
Options issued 10 subsidiary employees - - 19 16
Transfer to share: capital on exercise of expensed options {27 8) {27 (8}
Total share-based payments reserve 144 B4 144 84
Cash flow hedging reserve
Opening balance 2 - 33 -
Adustrment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 139,
net of tax | 4 13
Revaluation movement for the financial year, net of tax 8 2) (33) 20
Total cash flow hedging reserve 10 2 - 33
Share of reserves of interests in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method
Opening balance 9 11 - -
Share of resarves during the financial year 12) m - -
Transfer to profit on realisation - m - -
Total share of reserves of interests in associates
and joint ventures using the equity method 3) a - -
Total reserves 380 250 212 166

41




Consolidated Consplidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2008
$m $m $m $m
Note 32. Reserves, retained earnings and
minority interests continued
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,934 1,523 49 930
Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 139,
net of tax ] 16 I (14)
Profit attributable 1o equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 1,454 845 1,085 585
Distributions paid or provided on Macguarie Income Securities {31} (29) - -
Distributions paid or provided on convertible debentures - - 54 51)
Dividends paid on ordinary share capital (602) (821} (602) (521)
Total retained eamings 2,795 1,934 1,378 245
Minority interest
Macquarie Income Preferred Securities”
Proceeds on issue of Macquarie Income Preferred Securities 894 804 - -
Issue costs {10) (10) - -
884 884 - -
Current year profit 54 51 - -
Distribution provided on Macquarie Income Prefemed Securities (54) (51 - -
Foreign curmency translation reserve 43) (43) - -
Total Macquarie Income Prefemed Securities & 841 - -
Other minority interests
Ordinary share capital 9 36 - -
Preference share capital 6 - - -
Accumutated gains/{losses) 1 29 -~ -
Total other minority interests 16 7 - -
Total minority interest 857 848 - -

* On 22 September 2004, Macquarie Capital Funding LP, a member of the economic entity established to faciftate capital raising,
issued £350 miion of Tier 1 capital-eligible securities (“Macquarie Income Preferred Securities”, “the Securities”). The Securities —
guaranteed non-cumuilative step-up perpetual preferred securities — currently pay a 6.177% semi-annual nen-cumutative fixed rate
distribution. They are perpetual securities and have no fixed maturity but may be redeemed on 15 April 2020, at the Bank's
discretion. If redemption is not elected on this date, the distribution rate will be reset to 2.35% per annum above the then five-year
benchmark sterling gilt rate. The Securities may be redeemed on each fitth anniversary therealter at the Bank's discretion. The first
coupon was paid on 15 April 2005,

The instruments are reflected in the econornic entity's financial statements as a minority interest, with distribution entitlements being
included with the minerity interest share of profit after tax.
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Consclidated Consolidated Bank Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m $m Sm

Note 33. Notes to the cash flow statements
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statements is reconciied o related itlems in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash and balances with central banks 3 5 3 5
Due from other financial institutions

- due from banks” 5,540 6,390 4,567 4,575
- tradling securities™ 2,783 2,738 2,783 2,724
Cash at the end of the financial year 8,326 9,133 7.353 7.304

Recongiliation of profit from ordinary activities after
income tax to net ¢cash flows from operating activities

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 1,551 987 1,085 585
Adjustrrents 1o profit from ordinary activities
Amounts provided during the financial year 55 61 42 46
Depreciation 81 60 46 39
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures (242) (172) - -
Dividends received from associates 374 197 - 9
Share based payment expense 87 53 87 53
Changes in assets and liabilties
Decrease in dividends receivable 376 188 - G
{increase)/decrease in fees and commissions receivable (66) 80) 67) 245
Increase/(decrease) in fees and commissions payable 41 at1) 26 (11)
Increase/{decrease) in tax liabilities 215 99 (298) (193)
Increase in tax assets (385) 39) (111) (198)
{Decrease)increase in deferred 1ax liabilities {79) (123) (88) a0
Increase in interest receivable {225) B1) 71) 37)
Increase in interest payable 319 243 233 150
Increase in employment provisions 20 23 16 14
Increase in loan assets granted (11,567) {7,777) (5,762) 6.034)
Increase/(decrease) in debtors, prepayments, accrued charges
and creditors 98 {419) 635 {713)
Increase in financial instruments, foreign exchange
and commodities (9,603) (5,926) (9,066) (4.971)
Incraase in money market and other deposits 17,462 18,382 11,664 14,350
Decrease/(increase) in life investment contract receivables 513 (47) - -
Net cash flows from operating activities {975) 5618 {1,629) 3,433

* Includes cash at bank, due from clearing houses and overnight cash at bank as per note 1{xix).
** includes certificates of deposit, bank bills and cther short-lerm cash securities as per note 1{xix).
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Consalidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
$m $m $m $m
Notes 33. Notes to the cash flow statements continued
Financing arrangements
Total unused 1,014 1,234 -

Total overdraft tacilities 1,014 1,234 -

Capital Meters Limied, a controlled entity of the bank incorperated in the United Kingdom, has a credit facility of £118 milion
{2006: 2118 milion). As at 31 March 2007, the entity had drawn down £50 milion {2006: £29 million) of the amourt available.

Macquarie Equities {Asia) Limited, a controlled entity of the Bank incorperated in Hong Kong, has a HKD 200 milion overdraft facility
{2006: HKD 200 milion). The facility may be drawn down at any time and is subject to annual review on 31 December of each year.
As at 31 March 2007, the fadility is undrawn (2006: undrawn).

Macqguarie Intermational Finance Limited, a controlled entity of the Bank incorporated in Australia, has credit faciities of $1.1 bilion
(2006: 1.3 bilion). As at 31 March 2007, the entity had drawn down $608 million (2006: $387 milion) of the amount available.

Macquarie Investments Australia Limited, a controlied entity of the Bank incorporated in Australia, has a $500 milion overdraft facifity
(2006: Snil). As at 31 March 2007, $275 million was drawn down (2006: undrawn).

Note 34. Related party information
Ultimate parent
The uttimate Australian parent entity of the Group is Macquarie Bank Limited.

Controlled entities

Transactions between the Bank and its controlled entities principally arise from the provision of banking and other financial services,
the granting of Ioans, acceptance of funds on deposit and provision of management, administration services, provision of guarantees
and provision of licences to use the Macquarie brand name.

Al transactions with controlied entities are in accordance with regulatory requirements, the majority of which are on commercial terms.
Al transactions undertaken during the financial year with controfied entities are eliminated in the consolidated financial report. Amounts
due from and due to controlled entities, at balance sheet date, are shown in the balance sheet of the Bank.

Balances arising from lending and bonmowing activities between the Bank and controlled entities are typically repayable on demand,
but may be extended on a term basis and where appropriate may be either subordinated or collateralised. Amounts due to and from
controfted entities are separately included on the Bank's balance sheet.

The Bank has entered into a tax contrbution agreement with its eligible Australian controlled subsidiaries. The terms and conditions of
this agreement are set out in note 1 — Summary of significant accounting policies. The amount receivabie by the Bank under the tax
contribution agreement with the tax consolidated entities is $198 million (2006: $51 million). This balance is included in "Due from
controlied entities” in the Bank’s separate balance shest.

The Bank has entered into derivative transactions with its controlled entities to hedge ther eperations. The fair value balance of derivative
financial instruments refating to transactions between the Bank and its controlled entities at 31 March 2007 are $281 million positiva value
(2006: $39 milion pesitive value) and $203 million negative value (2006: $104 milion negative valug).

During the year, the following transactions occurred with controlled entities:

Caonsolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

$m $m $m $m

Interest income received/receivable - - 698 356

Interest expense paid/payable - - {325) (172)

Fee and commission income - - 169 50
Other operating income - - 2

Gains on sate of associates and joint ventures - - - 77

Diwvidends and distributions received/receivable - - 925 378

Management fees, group service charges and cost recoveries - - 456 364

Brokerage and commission expense - - (1) 45}
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2007 2006 2007 2006
Sm $m Sm Sm

Note 34. Related party information continued
The following balances with controlled entities were oulstanding at the year-end:

b

Armounts receivabie - 13,527 10,241
Amounis payable - - (7,136) (5,275)

Associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the economic entity and its associales and joinl ventures principaly anse from the provision of corperate advisory
services, the granting of loans, derivative transactions and the provision of management services. All transactions undertaken with
associates and joint ventures are efiminated where they are unrealised, to the exlent of ownership interests held by the bank and its
controlled entities, in the consolidated profit and loss.

During the year, the following transactions occumed wath associates and jont ventures:

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

Sm &m Sm &m

Interest income received/receivable 80 55 53 41
Interest expense paid/payable (13) (17) {9) {1)
Fee and cormmission income” 967 1,015 275 242
Other income 4 6 2 3
Gains on sale of securities™ 58 143 42 45
Dividends and distributions™* 374 197 72 35
Brokerage and commission expense (14) 5) - -

* Fee and commission income includes all fees charged to associates. Any eliminations of the unrealised compenent made when
equity accounting is included within the share of profits/losses of these associates.

** Gains on sale of secutities are shown net of elimination of unrealised profits/losses calculated by referance 10 the economic entity’s
ownership interest in the associate. These gains include profits arising from the transfer of equity securities under the terms of a total
return swap (see below for details).

** Dividends and distributions are shown as gross amounts. Under the equity accounting method these amounts are not taken as profit
but as an adjustment to the interest in the associate balance.

From time to time, defivative transactions are uncertaken by associates with the economic entity under nomal commercial terms.

This includes the use of total return swaps to transfer the economic benefits of equity securties and interests in associates from the Bank
1o its associates. Under this arangement the Bank retains legal title to the equity securities and receives the economic benefits of a
portiolic of debt securities in return.

The total value of equity securities fransferred to associales urkler the terms of a tolal return swap as described above are as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

$m $m $m $m

Equity securities and interests in associates - 439 - -

Balances arising from lending and borrowing activities between the Barik and its controlied entities and associates and joint ventures are
typically repayaoie on demand, but may be extended ¢n a term basis and where appropriate may be either subordinated or collateratised.

The following balances with associates and joint ventures were outstanding at the year-end (excludes amounts forming part of interest in
associates disclosed in note 18):

Consolidated Consolidated Bank Bank

2007 2006 2007 2008

$m &m $m $m

Amounts receivable 721 1,496 565 1,132
Amounts payable (68) (264) (2} {132)
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Note 35. Key Management Personne! disclosure

Key Management Personnel

Note that throughodut this note, Mr Clarke and Mr Johnson are presented as Executive Directors because this was their status
throughout the financial year, and the comparative year. However, they both retired from executive responsibilities with effect from
31 March 2007 so they will be classified in future Reporis as Non-Executive Directors, except in comparative tables.

The following persans were Voting Directors of Macquarie Bank Limited during the financial years ended 31 March 2007 and
31 March 2006, unless otherwise indicated:

Executive Directors:

D.S. Clarke, AO  Chairman

AE. Moss, AQ"  Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
M.R.G. Johnson  Deputy Chairman

L.G. Cox, AO

Independent Non-Executive Directors**:
J.G. Allpass

PM. Kirby

C.B. Livingstone

B.R. Martin {retired on 20 Juty 20086)

H.K. McCann, AM

J.R. Niland, AC

H.M. Nugent, AO

In addition to the Executive Directors listed above, the following persons alse had authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Bank and its controlled entities during the past two financial years ended 31 March 2007 and
31 March 20086, unless otherwise indicated:

Executives:

J.K. Burke® Group Head, Equity Markets Group {appointed 1 Cctober 2005)

M, Carapiet’ Joint Head, Corporate Finance, Investiment Banking Group

A.J. Downg™ Group Head, Treasury and Commadities Group

P.J. Maher* Group Head, Financial Services Group

N.R. Minogue®  Group Head, Risk Management Group

N.W. Moorg® Group Head. investment Banking Group

W.J. Moss, AM  Former Group Head, Banking and Praperty Group (retired on 30 March 2007)

W.R. Sheppard®  Deputy Managing Director

G.C. Ward" Group Head, Corporate Affairs Group and Chief Financial Officer

0. Weiss Former Group Head, Equity Markets Group (retired as Group Head on 30 September 2005, retired from the
Executive Committee on 4 October 2005 and ceased employmeant with the Bank on 31 March 2006)

* Current members of the Bank's Executive Committee
** In accordance with the Bank's definition of independence (as set out in the Corporate Governance Statement contained in the
2007 Annual Review). Those Directors listed as Independent Directors have been independent throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2007.

[t is important to note that the Bark's Independent Non-Executive Directors are specifically required to be categorised as Key
Management Personnel for the purposes of the disclosures in section 4 of the remuneration report. However, the Independent Direciors
de not consider that they are pan of 'management”.

The remuneration arangements for all of the persons listed above as Executive Directors or Executives are described in section 2 of the
remuneration repor.

The remuneration arangements for all of the persons listed above as Independent Non-Exegutive Directors are described in section 3
oi the remuneration report.
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Note 35. Key Management Personnel disclosure continued
Key Management Personnel remuneration
The following table details the aggregate remuneration for Key Management Personnel. The Bank has taken advantage of the reliet

provided by ASIC Class Order 06/50 and has transferred the detailed remuneration disclosures 1o the Directors” Report. The relevant
information can be found in section 4.2 of the Remuneration Report.

Short-tem Long-term Share
employee employee based
benefits benefits payments
Total
Salary and Performance short-term
fees {including related Cther ermployee Rastricted Tatal
superannuation) remuneration benefits benefits profit share  Options remuneration
3 $ 3 $ 5 § %
2007 7,158,710 153,640,322 89,433 160,888,465 40,449,633 7,369,553 208,707,651
2006 7,236,731 101,166.468 133,450 108,536,649 24,778,140 5,590,630 138,905,419

Option holdings of Key Management Personnel and their related parties
The following tanles set oul details of options held during the year for the Key Management Personnel including their related parties.
The options are over fully paid unissuved ordinary shares of the Bank. Further details in relation to the Option Plan are disclosed in

note 36 - Employee equity participation.

For the year ended 31 March 2007 Number
Options Options of options
Number granted exercised Nurnber vested Number
of options during the during the of options  during the of options
held at financial financial COther held at 31 financial vested at 31
Name and position 1 April 2006 year year changesia) March 2007(b} year  March2007()
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke {¢) 133,934 - - (80,200) 53,734 53,734 53,734
L.G. Cox 15,720 9,245 {1,700) - 23,265 2,800 2,800
M.R.G. Johnson 66,300 18,495 - - 84,795 36,366 36,366
AE. Moss 502,400 165,400 - {156,800) 511,000 107,468 55,200
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 1,700 - {1,700} - - - -
PM. Kirby - - - - - - -
C.B. Livingstone - - - - - - -
B.R. Martin id) 1,700 - {1,000} - 700 - 700
H.K. McCann 1,700 - (1,700} - - - -
J.R. Niland - - - - - - -
H.M. Nugent - - - - - - -
Executives
J.K, Burke 242,000 65,000 (7,000) (118,665} 181,335 39,999 -
M. Carapiet 297,144 143,360 {83,666) - 356,838 83,666 -
A, Downe 292168 85,000 {54,500)  (104,333) 218,335 82,833 -
P.J. Maher 121,668 30,000 (13,334) (13,334} 125,000 30,001 33,333
N.R. Minogue 132,334 35,000 - (37.499) 129,835 36,333 21,500
N.W. Moare 434,335 160,000 - - 594,335 134,334 134,334
W.R. Sheppard 161,000 45,000 - {57,666) 148,334 57,666 -
G.C. Ward 95,001 30,000 {15,924) {8,334) 100,743 30,000 5,742
Former
W.J. Moss (g) 297,501 105,000 - (73,500) 329,001 73,500 -

{a) Vested options soid under facility provided by an external party unless ctherwise noted.

{b) Cr date of retirement if earlier.

{c) Mr Clarke retired as Executive Chairman on 31 March 2007, whereupen 80,200 unvested options lapsed.
He will continue as Non-Executive Chairman.

{d) Mr Martin retired as a Non-Executive Director of the bank on 20 July 2006.

(&) Mr W.J. Moss retired from the Executive Committee on 30 March 2007.
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Note 35. Key Management Personne! disclosure continued

Option holdings of Key Management Personne! and their related parties continued

For the year ended 31 March 2006 Number
Cptions Options of options
Number granted exercised Number vaested Nurnber
of options during the during the of options during the of options
held at financial financial Other held at 31 financial  wvested at 31
Name and position 1 Aprit 2005(a) year year changes(b) March 2006(c) year March 2006(c)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 156,067 25,000 {47,133 - 133,934 47,133 -
L.G. Cox 12,600 5,620 (2,500) - 15,720 - 1,700
M.R.G. Johnsan 108,100 16,000 - (58.800) 66,300 29,400 -
AE. Moss 498,400 180,000 - {176,000) 502,400 94,266 104,532
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 4,200 - {2.500) - 1,700 - 1,700
PM. Kirby - - - - - - -
C.B. Livingstone - - - - - - -
B.R. Martin 4,200 - - (2,500 1,700 - 1,700
H.K. McCann 4,200 - (2.500) - 1,700 - 1,700
J.R. Nitand - - - - - - -
H.M. Nugent 3,783 - (3,783) - - - -
Executives
J.K. Burke {d} 242,000 - - - 242,000 - 85,666
M. Carapiet 234,834 121,810 {59,500) - 297,144 59,500 -
At Downe 206,667 50,000 - {54,499 292,168 79,833 76,000
P.J. Maher 130,002 25,000 {33,334) - 121,668 23,334 30,000
N.R. Minogua 134,000 35,000 {20,000) {16,666) 132,334 31,332 22 666
N.W. Moore 472,334 170,000 {207,999 - 434,335 126,667 -
W.J. Moss 320,500 160,000 - (182,999) 297 51 101,834 -
WR. Sheppard 206,000 50,000 - {95,000) 161,000 59,000 -
G.C. Ward 88,335 30,000 {16,666) {6,668) 95,001 23,334 -
Former
Q. Weiss (e) 273,000 - (115,666) (43,334} 114,000 205,000 114,000

(a) Or date of appointment if later.

(b) Vested options sold under faciiity provided by an exdemal party unless otherwise noted.

(c) Or date of retirement if earlier,

{d) Mr Burke was appointed Group Head, Equity Markets Group and became a member of the Executive Committee on 1 Ostober 2005.

Mr Burke was not awarded any options from his date of appointment as Group Head until 31 March 2008,

(e) Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005. Upon retirement, the vesting of 114,000 of Mr Weiss's outstanding

options was acoelerated, as approved by the Board Remuneration Committee, while 43,334 options lapsed.
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Note 35. Key Management Personnel disclosure continued

Shareholding of Key Management Personnel and their related parties

The following tables set out details of fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank held during the year by the Key Management Personnel
including their related parties.

For the year ended 31 March 2007

Shares
Number of issued Number of

shares held at on exercise Cther shares held at
Name and position 1 April 2006 of options changesi@ 31 March 2007(b)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 977,248 - (326,135) 651,113
L.G. Cox 268,112 1,700 - 269,812
M.R.G. Johnson 353,803 - (60,000} 293,803
AE. Moss 404,336 - - 404,336
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Alpass 16,563 1,700 250 18,513
PM. Kirby 7,891 - 1,881 9772
C.B. Livingstone 7,336 - 214 7,550
8.R. Martin () 8,974 1,000 146 10,120
H.K. McCann 9,659 1,700 - 11,359
J.R. Nitand 4109 - 1,850 5,959
H.M. Nugent 15,112 - 650 19,762
Executives
J.K. Burke 18,000 7,000 - 25,000
M. Carapiet 345,805 83,666 96,463 525,934
AJ. Downe 66,535 54,500 - 121,035
P.J. Maher 46,819 13,334 - 60,153
N.R. Minogue 110,811 - - 110,811
NW, Moore 835,251 - 7.862 843,113
W.R. Sheppard 259,271 - - 259,271
G.C. Ward 13,287 15,924 - 29,211
Former
W.J. Moss (d) 269,511 - 190 269,701

{a) Includes on market acquisitions and disposals,

(b} Or date of retirement if eartiex.

{c) Mr Martin retired as a Non-Executive Director of the Bank on 20 Juty 20086.
{d} Mr W.J. Moss retired from the Executive Committee on 30 March 2007,
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Note 35. Key Management Personnel disclosure continued
Shareholding of Key Management Personnel and their related parties continued

For the year ended 37 March 2006

Shares
Number of issued Number of

shares held at on exercise Other shares held at
Name and position 1 April 2005(a) of options changes(b) 31 March 2006(c)
Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke 923,200 47133 8,915 G77.248
LG. Cox 378,090 2,500 {112,478} 268,112
M.R.G. Johnson 493,803 - (140,000) 353,803
AE. Moss 404,436 - (100} 404,336
Non-Executive Directors
J.G. Allpass 13,505 2,500 468 16,563
PM. Kirby 5,360 - 2,531 7.891
C.B. Livingstone 6,633 - 703 7.336
B.R. Martin 8,358 - 616 8,974
H.K. McCann 6,691 2,500 468 9,659
J.R. Niland 3,641 - 468 4,109
H.M. Nugent 14,630 3,783 699 19,112
Executives
J.K. Burke (d) 18,000 - - 18,000
M. Carapiet 286,276 59,500 29 345,805
A.J. Downe 66,287 - 248 66,535
P.J. Maher 13.427 33,334 58 46,819
N.R. Minogue 111,956 20,000 (21,145) 110,811
N.W. Moore 627,252 207,998 - 835,251
W.J. Moss 269,351 - 160 269,511
W.R. Sheppard 259,271 - - 258,271
G.C. Ward 26,498 16,666 (29,877) 13,287
Former
O. Weiss {g) 33,712 115,666 10,000 159,378

(&) Or date of appointment if later,

(b} Includes on market acquisitions and disposals.

(©) Or date of retirement if earlier.

(d) Mr Burke was appointed Group Head, Equity Markets Group and became a member of the Executive Committee on 1 October 2005.
(€) Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005.
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Note 35. Key Management Personnel disclosure continued
Loans to Key Management Personnel and their related parties

Details of loans provided by the Bank to Key Management Personnel and their related parties are disclosed in the following tabies:

Opening Closing
balance Interest balance Number in
at 1 April charged(a) Write-off at 31 March group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 31 March
Total for Key Management 2007 76,318 5971 - 62,101 19
Personnel and their related parties 2006 47 578 6,035 - 80,730° 22
Total for Key Management Personne! 2007 57,882 4,493 - 44,81 1
2006 34,999 2.540 - 62,293 12

* Includes loans provided by the Bank 1o Mr Weiss and his related parties. Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committes on
4 QOctober 2005. As such, he was not a Key Management Personngl on 1 April 2006 and his loans have not been included in the

opening balance.

Loans and other financial instrument transactions are made by the Bank in the ordinary course of business with related parties.

Certain loans are provided under zero cost collar and share appreciation facilities secured over Macquarie Bank shares under nomal

terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees.

Prior period comparatives have been restated to include loans provided by mortgage securitisation entities to Key Management
Personnel arxd their related parties. The application of AIFRS has resulted in these entities being consalidated.

Key Management Personngl including their related parties with loans above $100,000 at any time during the financial year:

Far the year ended 31 March 2007

Balance at Interest Balance at Highest in

1 April 2006 charged(3) Write-off 31 March 2007(b) pericd
Name and position $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
Executive Directors
D.S. Ciarke 48,940 3,729 - 29,937 52,658
L.G. Cox 621 2 - 200 684
M.R.G. Johnson 220 5 - 20 220
Executives
M. Carapiet 5,183 372 - 5,286 5,298
A.J. Downe 500 13 - - 500
PJ. Maher 1,838 103 - 2,866 3,249
N.R. Minogue 5,064 349 - 4,618 6,379
N.W. Moore 6,848 908 - 12,841 12,81
W.R. Sheppard 100 3 - - 100
G.C. Ward 739 107 - 1,727 1.727
Former
W.J, Moss (¢) 6,275 361 - 4,556 7,933

(a) All loans proviced by the Bank to Directors and Executives are made in the ortiinary course of business on an amms-length basis and
are entered into under normal terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees. There have been no write-downs
or alowances for doubtful debts.

) Or date or retirerment if sarlier.

{c) Mr W.J. Moss retired from the Exacutive Committee on 30 March 2007.
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Note 35. Key Management Personnel disclosure continued
Loans to Key Management Personnel and their related parties continued

For the year ended 31 March 2006

Balance at Interest Balance at Highest in

1 Aprl 2005 charged(a) Wwrite-off 31 March 2006(b) period
Namg and position $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
Executive Directors
0.5, Clarke 31,304 4276 - 48,940 50,505
LG. Cox 635 52 - 621 636
M.R.G. Johnson 2,870 N - 220 2,870
Executives
M. Carapiet 71 363 - 5,183 8,025
A.J. Downe 500 61 - 500 500
P.J. Maher 530 96 - 1,838 1,859
N.R. Minogue 4,592 382 - 5,054 5,641
N.W. Moore - 49 - 6,848 6,848
W.J. Moss 5674 472 - 6,275 6,620
W.R. Sheppard 100 11 - 100 100
G.C. Ward 801 86 - 739 1,002
Former
O, Welss {c) 500 96 - 4412 4,412

{a} All loans provided by the Bank to Directors and Executives are made in the ordinary course of business on an arms-length basis and
are entered into under normal terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees. There have been no write-
downs or allowances for doubtiul debts,

{b) Or date of retirerment if earlier.

{c) Mr Weiss retired from the Executive Committee on 4 October 2005,

Other transactions and balances of Key Management Personnel and their related parties

The following Key Management Personnel have acquired Infrastructure Bonds and similar products from controlied entities within the
Bank which have been financed with imited recourse loans and are subject to forward sale agreements. The loan repayments and
proceeds arising from the forward sale agreements are subject to legal right of set-off and as such are not recognised for financial
reporting purposes. The only amounts recognised by the economic entity in respect of these transactions are the annual payments from
the refevant Key Management Personnel which are brought to account as fee revenue. These transactions have been urdentaken on
terms and conditions consistent with cther customers and employees.

Consolidated Consolidated

2007 2006
$'000 $'000
Total annual contributions from Key Management Perscnnel and their related
parties in respect of Infrastructure Bonds and similar products 16,817 16,280

The annual contrbutions in respect of Infrastructure Bonds and similar products relate to the following Key Management Personnel:

Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke, L.G. Cox, M.R.G. Johnson

Non-Executive Directors
PM. Kirby

Executives
J.K. Burke, M. Carapiet, A.J. Downe, P.J. Maher, N.R. Minogue, N.W. Moore, W.R. Sheppard, G.C Ward

Former
W.J. Moss, O. Weiss
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Note 35. Key Management Personne! disclosure continued

Other transactions and balances of Key Management Personnel and their related parties continued

The following Key Management Personnel {including related parties} have entered a zerc cost collar transaction with the Bank and
ather non-related entdies in respect of fully paid ordinary Bank shares. This has the effect of acquiring cash-settled put options
against movements in the Bank's share price below current levels and disposing of the benefit of any share price movernent above
the nominated level.

Transactions with the Bank
Number of Number of
shares shares
Name and position Description 2007 2006

Executive Directors
D.S. Clarke” Maturing June 2010 213,517 -
Maturing August 2009 25,196 25,196
Maturing June 2008 100,784 361,163
Maturing May 2008 260,379 -
M.R.G. Johnson Maturing August 2006 - 50,000
Maturing December 2006 - 69,383

Executives

M. Carapiet Maturing August 2007 160,666 -
Maturing August 2006 - 160,666
A Downe™ Maturing December 2007 27,834 -
Maturing August 2007 36,382 -
Maturing August 2006 - 46,748
P.J. Maher Maturing June 2006 - 4,039
N.R. Minogue Maturing August 2007 11,500 -
G.C. Ward Maturing August 2007 21,666 -
Maturing August 2006 - 8,333

* In the prior ysar Mr Clarke entered into a cash settled put option against 333,936 fully paid ordinary Bank shares. In additicn,
Mr Clarke has an indirect interest in cash-settled put options that are exercisable against 213,517 fully paid ordinary Bark shares.
** [n the prior year Mr Downe also entered into a cash-settled put option against 70,560 fully paid ordinary Bank shares.

Al ather transactions with Key Management Personnel (including their refated parties) were conducted on an arm's-length basis in
the ordinary course of business and under normal terms and conditions for custamers and employees. These transactions were
trivial or domestic in nature and consisted principally of normal persenal banking and financial investment services.
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Note 36. Employee equity participation

Option Plan

In November 1985, the Bank introduced an Employee Option Plan (the *Flan’}, as a replacement for the Bank’s now closed parity
paid share scheme. Staff eligible to particinate are those of Assodiate Director level and above and consultants to the economic entity,
Al 31 March 2007 there were 2,099 (2006: 1,825) participants in the Plan,

Options, currently for five years, over fully paid unissued ordinary shares in the Bank are granted to Bond Street Custodians Limited as
agrminee for the individual or the indvidkaal's controlled cormpany or an entity approved under the Plan to hold options.

The options are issued for no consideration and are granted at prevaitng market pricas. Prior to 21 Novermnber 2003, the exercise price of
new opticns granted was generally based on the weighted average rmarket price during the month prior to acceptance of employment for
new employees or during the calendar month of June in respect of options granted as a resutt of annual promotions and compensation
reviews. From 21 Novermber 2003 until 25 November 2004, the exercise price of new options granted was generally based on the
weighted average market price during the one week perod prior to the date of grant of the options. From 26 November 2004, the
exercise price of new optlions granted is generally based on the weighted average market price during the one week up to and including
the date of grant of the options.

The folowing is a summary of options which have been granted pursuant to the Plan:

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise

Number of price Number of orice

options 2007 options 2006

2007 $ 2006 $

Quitstanding at the beginning of the financial year 31,235,034 42.45 28,292,709 3163
Granted during the financial year 11,887,127 62.88 10,766,858 6203
Forfeted during the financial year (1,326,952) 50.30 (617,590} 39.15
Exercised during the financial year (7,536,936) N7z (7,206,943} 30.85
Cutstanding at the end of the financial year 34,358,273 5163 31,235,034 4245
Exercisable at the end of the financial year 4,478,569 31.24 6,995,116 30.72

For options exercised during the financial year the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was $67.09 (2006: $62.14).
The range of exercise prices for options outstanding &t the end of the year was $20.57 to $83.55 (2006: $20.44 to $70.60).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2007 is 3.16 years
(20086: 3.18 years). The weighted average remaining contractual life when analysed by exercise price range is:

Number of Number of
options Years options Years
Exercise price range (3) 2007 2007 2006 2006
20-30 3,848,229 1.42 5,896,002 240
3040 8,243,550 205 14,144,034 2.59
40-50 750,989 2.90 896,400 3.89
50-60 97,500 .21 97,500 421
B80-70 20,534,415 389 9,981,098 436
70-80 687,590 4.36 220,000 457
80-90 196,000 4.94 - -
34,358,273 3.16 31,235,034 3.18

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the financial year was $12.45 (2006: $10.45).
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Note 36. Employee equity participation continued
Option Plan centinued

The market value of shares issued during the year as a
result of the exercise of these options was $506 million
(2006: $448 million).

The market value of shares which would be issued from the
exercise of the outstanding options at 31 March 2007 was
£2,843 million {2006: $:2,020 million), No unissued shares,
other than those referred to above, are under oplion as at the
date of this report.

COptions granted since the 1997 annual promotion and
cormpensation reviews vest as to one third of each tranche
after the second, third and fourth anniversaries of the date of
cammencement of employment for new starters and, for
existing employees, on 1 July two, three and four years after the
allocation of the options. Subject to staff trading rules, options
can be exercised after the vesting period at any time up to
expiry. In individual cases, such as where an employee leaves
with the Bank's agreernent towards the end of a vesting period,
the Bank's Executive Committee has the power 16 waive the
remainder of any vesting period and allow exercise of some or
all of the relevant cpticns.

In respect of each tranche of vested options granted to
Executive Directors of the Bank after the 1997 Annual
General Meeting until the 2002 promotion and compensation
review granis;

—one third of the vested options may only be exercised if
the Bank's average annual Return on Equity for the three
previous financial years is at or above the 55th percentile of
the corresponding figures for all companies in the then ASX
All Industrials Index;

—another third of the vested options may only be exercised
if the Bank's average annual Return on Equity for the three
previous financial years is at or above the 65th percentile of
the corresponding figures for all companies in the then ASX
All Industrials Index; and

-the final third of the vested options may only be exercised
if the Bank's average annual Return on Equity for the three
previous financial years is at or above the 75th percentile of
the corresponding figures for all companies in the then ASX
All Industrials Index, with the conditions to be examined
quarterly from vesting untit expiry of the options. Options
which have vested but are not able to be exercised at a
particular examination date, will be exercisable (until expiry)
at or after future quarterly examination dates when and if the
exercise conditions periaining to any of those dates have
been met.

Following cessation of publication of the ASX All Industrials
Index in mid-2002, the Board exercised its authority to resolve
that whether the exercise conditions are met from that point on
is to be determined by having regard to the actual performance
of the Bank by using the formula set out in the exercise
conditions but with the words "Alt Ordinaries Index excluding
companies in the GICS Level 2 'Energy’ and GICS Level 3
‘Metals and Mining' classifications” replacing "ASX All Industriais
Index” and using “Return on Ordinary Equity” instead of “Return
on Equity”.

In respect of options granted from mid-2002 to 25 November
2004, in respect of each tranche of vested options granted to
members of the Bank's Executive Committeg, Executive Voting
Directors and other Executive Directors of the Bank, options are
only exercisable if the Bank’s average annual return on ordinary
equity for the three previous financial years is at or above the
65th {(Executive Committee and Executive Voting Directors)

and 50th (other Executive Cirectors) percentiles, of the
corresponding figures for all companies in the then S&P/ASX
300 Indlustrials Index, with the conditions examined quarterty
from vesting until expiry.

For options granted from 26 Novemnber 2004 onwards, where
the invitation to apply for the options was sent to the Executive
before 30 June 20086, in respect of each tranche of vested
aptions granted to members of the Bank's Executive
Commitiee, Executive Voting Directors and other Executive
Directors of the Bank, options are only exercisable if the Bank's
average annual return on ordinary equity for the three previous
financial years is above the 65th (Executive Committee and
Executive Voting Directors) and 50th {cther Executive Directors)
percentiles, of the correspending figures for all companies in the
then S&F/ASX 300 Industrials Index, with the conditions
examined quarterly from vesting until expiry.

For options granted to the members of the Bank's Executive
Committee, Executive Voting Directors and cther Executive
Directors of the Bank where the invitation to apply for the
options was sent to the Executive on or after 30 June 20086,
in respect of each tranche of vested options, options will only
be exercisable if the Bank’s average annual return on ordinary
equity for the three previous financial years is above the 65th
(Executive Committee and Exscutive Voling Directors) and 50th
{other Executive Directors) percentiles, of the comresponding
figures for all companies in the then S&P/ASX 100 Index, with
the conditions to be exarmined only upon vesting.

The Plan Rules provide that the total number of options which
can be on issue at any one time is limited such that the number
of shares resulting from exercise of all unexercised options does
not exceed 20% of the number of the Bank’s then issued
crdinary shares plus the number of shares which the Bank
would have to issue if all rights 1o require the Bank to issue
shares, which the Bank has then granted (including options)
were then enforced or exercised to the greatest extent
permitied. The Board has a second limitation on the number

of options being etfectively the same calculation as in the Plan
Rules except that any exercised options granted less than five
years ago, where the Executive is still with the Bark, will be
treated as still being unexercised.

Fully paid ordinary shares issued on the exercise of options rank
pari passu with all other tully paid ordinary shares then on issue.

On 25 May 2000, the Board approved amendments to the Plan
Rules referred to as the Deferred Exercise Share Option Plan
("DESOP"). Shares resulting from the exercise of options since
then have been placed under the DESOP, unless option holders
request otherwise. Unless the Bark is aware of circumstances
which, in the reasonable opinion of the Bank, indicate that the
relevant Executive may have acted fraudulently, dishonestly or in
a rmanner which is in breach of his/her obligations to the Bank
or any associated entity, then such a request will be granted.

55



o6

Note 36. Employee equity participation continued
Option Plan continued

Shares acquired under DESOP cannot be sold, transferred or
disposed of for a period of six months from the date that the
shares are transferred into a participating employee’s name and
are also subject to forfeiture by an employee in a number of
circumstances including theft, fraud, dishonesty, or defalcation
in relation to affairs of the Bank or a related entity or if they carry
out or fail to carry out an act which brings the Bank or an
associated entity into disrepute.

Shares held in the DESOP will be withdrawn on the earlier of:

-an employee's resignation irom the Bank or a related
company;

—upon request from the employee {after the expiration of the
non-disposal period); and

—ten yvears from the date that the options were onginally granted.

Options carry no dividend or voting rights but have
standard adjustment clauses for bonus and rights issues
and reconstructions.

Employee Share Plan

Following shareholder approval at the 1997 Annual General
Meeting, the Bank introduced the Macguarie Bank Employee
Share Ptan (“ESP") whereby each financial vear, elighle
employees are offered up to $1,000 worth of fully paid ordinary
Bank shares for no cash payment. The Bank's staff profit
sharing pools and for certain staff, future commissions, are
adjusted downwards by the aggregate market value of the
shares issued under the ESP.

Shares issued under the ESP cannct be sold uniil the earlier
of three years after issue or the time when the participant is no
longer employed by the Bank or a subsidiary of the Bank. In all
other respects, shares issued rank equally with alil other fully
paid ordinary shares then on issue.

The number of shares each participant recefves is $1,000
divided by the weighted average price at which the Bank's
shares are traded on Australian Stock Exchange Limited on the
seven days up to and including the date of allotment, rounded
down to the nearest whole share.

The employees who are eligible for an offer are those parmanent
employees who have been continuously employed by the Bank
or a subsidiary of the Bank since 1 April of the retevard year, are
still employed by the Bank or a subsidiary of the Bank on the
relevant affoiment date and are Australian residents on both

the closing date of an offer and on the relevant allotment date.
Persons who are ingligible include all non-permanent staff,

staff seconded to the Bank from external companies, stafi
leaving Australia for an overseas posting prior to the alloiment
date, staff who have been given notice of dismissal from
employment by the Bank or subsidiary of the Bark or who have
tendered their resignation to avoid such a dismissal {even if they
would, but for this requirement, be eligible to acquire shares)
and any staff member that a Group Head believes should be
ineligible based on poor performance.
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The latest offer under the ESP was made during

Cecember 2006. A total of 1,684 (2006: 1,437) staff
participated i this offer. On 12 tanuary 2007, the participants
were each issued with 13 (2006: 14} fully paid ordinary shares
based on the offer amount of $1,000 and the then calculated
average market share price of $76.82 (2006: $68.30), a total
of 21,632 (2006: 20,118) shares were issued. The shares were
issued for no cash consideration.

Staff Share Acquisition Plan

Fallowing sharehclder approval at the 1989 Annual General
Meeting, the Bank introduced the Macquarie Bank Staff Share
Acquisition Plan ("MBSSAP" whereby each financial year,
Australian based eligible employees are given the cpportunity
to nominate an amount of their pre-tax available profit share or
future commissicn to purchase {fully paid ordinary Bank shares
{*Shares™). The total number of Shares purchased under the
MBSSAP is limited in any financial year to three percent of the
Bank's Shares as at the beginning of that financial year.

Shares are acquired at prevailing market prices. Any applicable
brokerage expenses, workers’ compensation premiums and
payroll tax are applied to the employee’s account.

Shares acquired under the MBSSAP cannot be sold, transferred
or disposed of for a period of six months from the date that the
Shares are transferred into a participating employee’s name
except in special circumstances if the employee resigns. The
Shares held in the MBSSAP are also subject to forfeiture by an
employee in a number of circumstancas including theft, fraud,
dishonesty, or defalcation in relation to the affairs of the Bank or
a related company or if they carry out an act or fail to do an act
which brings the Bank or a related company into disrepute.

Shares held in the MBSSAP will be withdrawn on the earier of.

—-an employee’s resignation from the Bank or a related entity;

—upon request by the employee (afier the expiration of the non-
disposal period); and

—ten years from the date that the Shares are registered in an
employee’s name.

In all other respects, shares rank equally with all other fully paid
ordinary shares then on issue.

Eligible employees are Austraiian-based permanent full-time or
part-time employees of the Bank or a related company who
either receive available profit share in the relevant year of at least
$1,000 in total or allocate at least $1,000 in available
commission towards the MBSSAP.

The Macquarie Bank Executive Director Share Acguisition Plan
("MBEDSAP”) is a sub plan of the MBSSAP which was created
in 2003 and was open to eligible Executive Directors. The
disposal and forfeiture restrictions in the MBEDSAP differ to
those in the MBSSAP. No further offers under the MBEDSAP
are currently proposed.

Offers under the MBSSAP were made during May 2006, A total
of 553 (2006: 368) staff participated in the MBSSAP, In July and
December 2006, a total of 285,268 (2006: 154,243) shares were
acquired on-market. No staff participated in the MBEDSAR




Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

Following shareholder approval at the 1999 Annual General Meeting, the Bank also introduced the Macquarie Bank Non-Executive
Director Share Acquisition Plan ("NEDSAP") whereby each financial year Australian based Non-Executive Directors (*NEDs") of the
Macquarie Bank Group of companies are given the cpportunity to contribute some or all of their future pre-tax remuneration from the
Macquarie Bank Group to acquire Macquarie Bank Limited shares (“shares”). NEDs may subsequently apply to reduce their previous
allocations provided that the relevant buying period has not commenced. If NEDs wish to participate there is a minimum contribution
of $1,000 of NED remuneration per buying period to go towards the NEDSAP,

Shares are acquired at prevailing market prices. Brokerage fees are applied to the NED's account.

Shares acquired under the NEDSAP cannot be sold, transferred or disposed of for a pericd of six months from the date that the
Shares are transferred into a NED's name except in special circumstances if the NED resigns. The shares held in the NEDSAP are
also subject to forfeiture by a NED in a number of circumstances including theft, fraud. dishonesty, or defalcation in relation to the
affairs of the Bank or a related company or if they carry cut an act or fail to do an act which brings the Bank or a related company
into disrepute.

Shares held in the NEDSAP will be withdrawn on the earlier of:

-the participant ceases 0 be a NED of MBL;
—upon request by the NED (after the expiration of the non-disposal period), and
-1en years from the date that the shares are registered in a NED's name.

In all other respects, shares rank equally with all other fully paid ordinary shares then on issue.
Shares resulting from participation in the NEDSAP may count towards meeting the minimum sharehoiding requirements of NEDs.

Offers under the NEDSAP were made during May 2006. A total of 4 (2006: 7) NEDs participated in the NEDSAP. in July and
December 2008, a otal of 2,741 (2006; 5,953) shares were acquired on-market.
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Note 37. Contingent liabilities and assets
The following details of contingent liabiities and assets exclude derivatives.

Contingent liabilities exist in respect of:

Guarantees a 364 2,316 1,226
Indemnities 25 64 28 237
Undrawn credit facilities 6,576 3.926 5,546 3.817
Undrawn credit facilities — revocable at any time 3,938 2,979 3,938 2,979
Other contingent liabilities (2) 1,139 1,509 1,189 827
Total contingent liabilities 11,999 8,842 13,017 9,086

{a) Other contingent liabilties include letters of credit, commitments certain of drawdown and performance related contingents. Also
included are forward asset purchases whereby the economic entity has entered into conditional agreements to acquire assets and
operating businesses with the intention of subsequent disposal. These assets and businesses will be recognised when control passes
10 the economic entity. The tatal commitment at 31 March 2007 was $1,115 million (2006: $1,466 million).

Contingent liabiliies exist in respect of claims and potential claims against entities in the economic entity. Where necessary, appropriate
provisions have been made in the financial statements. The Bank and economic entity does not consider that the outcorme of any such
claims known 1o exist at the date of this report, eitber individually or in aggregale, are likely 1o have a material effect on its operations or

financial position.

Of the tota! contingent liabilities above, $10.5 bilion (2006: $6.9 bilion) alse represent contingent assets. Such commitments to provide
credit may in the normal course convert to loans and other assets.

Note 38. Capital and other expenditure commitments

Mot later than one year 30 88 30 28
Later than cne year and nat later than five years 23 23 23 23
Later than five years - - -
Total capital and other expenditure commitments 53 111 53 51
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Note 39. Lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases expiring:
Mot later than one year 145 127 109 127
Later than one year and not later than five years 474 431 387 431
Later than frve years 216 2N 172 291
Total operating lease commitments B35 849 668 849

Operating leases relate to commercial buildings and motor vehicles leased by the Bank's staff. The future lease commitments disclosed
are net of any remal incentives received and sub-lease income earned.

Note 40. Derivative financial instruments

Objectives of holding and issuing derivative financial instruments

The economic entity is an active price maker in derivatives on interest rates, foreign exchange, commodities and equities. Its objectve is
to eam profits from the price making spread and from manraging the residual exposures on hedged positions. Proprietary position taking
is a small part of the Bank's trading activities. Risks on derivatives are managed together with all other trading positions in the same
marketl. All trading positions, including derivatives, are marked to fair value daily.

The economic entity also uses derivatives 10 hedge banking operations and for asset/liability management, Certain dervative transactions
may qualify as cash flow, fair value or net investment in foreign cperations hedges, if they meet the appropriate strict hedge criteria
outlined in note 1{x):

Cash flow hedges The economic entity is exposed to volatility in future interest cash flows arising from the
consolidated mortgage securitisation vehicles and other structured products which are
subject to variable interest rates. The aggregate principal balances and interest cash
flows across alf thesa portfolios form the basts for identifying the non-trading interest rate
risk of the economic entity, which is hedged with interest rate swaps.

In addition to this, the interest rate swaps used to hedge the MIPS securities have been
designated as cash flow hedges of an intercompany loan by the Bark in its separate
financial statements. Changes in the fair value of these interest swaps are deferred in
equity and subsequently released to sarmings as the interest on the intercompany loan is
accrued. At 31 March 2007, the fair value of autstanding derivatives held by the Bank
and designated as cash flow hedges was $35 milion positive value (2006: $37 milion
positive value).

In 2007, the economic entity recognised a loss of $3 milion {2006: $3 million loss) in

the income statement due to hedge ineffectiveness. At 31 March 2007, the fair value of
outstanding derivatives held by the economic entity and designated as cash flow hedges
was $181 million negative value (2006: $84 milion negative value).

Fair value hedges The economic entity’s fair value hedges principally consist of foreign exchange forward
contracts used (o protect against changes in the fair value of forexgn denominated equity
instruments due 1o movements in market foreign exchange rates.

As at 31 March 2007, the fair value of outstanding derivatives held by the economic
entity and designated as fair value hedges was $10 milion positive value (2006:
$8 million negative value).

Net investment in foreign cperations hedges ~ The economic entity has applied net investment hedging for foreign exchange risk arising
from {oreign operations.
At 31 March 2007, the fair value of outstanding derivatives held by the economic entity
and designated as net investment in foreign operations hedges was $108 milion positive
value (2006: $54 milion positive valug),

The types of contracts which the economic entity trades and uses for hedging purposes are detailed below:

Futures: Futures contracts provide the holder with the obligation 1o buy a specified financial instrument or commodity at a fixed price and
fixed date in the future. Contracts may be closed early via cash settlement. Futures contracts are exchange traded.

Forwards and forward rate agreements: Forward contracts, which resemible futures contracts, are an agreement between two parties
that a financial instrument or commodity will be traded at a fixed price and fixed date in the future. A forward rate agreement provides for
two parties to exchange interest rate differentials based on an underying principal amount at a fixed date in the future.

Swaps. Swap transactions provide for two parties to swap a series of cash flows in relation to an undertying principal amaunt, usually to
exchange a fixed interest rate for a fioating interest rate. Cross-currency swaps provide a tool for two parties to manage risk arising from
movements in exchange rates.

Options: Option contracts provide the holder the right to buy or sell financial instruments or commeodities at a fixed price over an agreed
period or on a fixed date. The contract does not oblige the holder to buy or sell, however the writer must perform if the holder exercises
the rights pertaining to the option,
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Note 40. Derivative financial instruments continued
The following table provides details of the economic entity's outstanding derivatives used for trading and hedging purposes as at
31 March.

Consaolidated 2007 Consolidated 2006
Notional Asset Liability Net tair Notional Asset Liability ~ Net fair
amount  revaluations revaluations value amount revaluations  revaluations value
$m Sm &m $m $m $m $m $m
Interest rate contracts
Exchange traded 172,510 8 14 6) 56,072 10 22 {12
Forwards 4,950 35 36 {1} 19,480 3 3 -
Swaps 121,996 1,265 795 470 100,779 888 586 302
Qotions 3,374 7 5 2 1,848 2 1 1
Total interest
rate contracts 302,830 1,315 850 465 178,179 803 612 2N
Foreign exchange contracts
Exchange traded - - - - 359 3 1 2
Forwards 23,350 944 703 241 88,697 1,685 1,069 616
Swaps 97,716 1,008 1,365 (357) 10,438 254 793 (539)
Options 133,717 624 501 123 71,885 804 739 65
Total foreign
exchange contracts 254,783 2,576 2,569 7 171,479 2,746 2,602 144
Equity contracts
Exchange traded 7,166 433 145 288 4,820 166 79 87
Swaps 13,117 53 838 {785) 2,306 200 706 (407
Options 29,829 667 611 56 17,103 356 473 (117
Ciher 972 115 157 {42) 10,001 109 151 {42)
Total equity contracts 51,084 1,268 1,751 (483) 34,230 930 1,409 (479
Commodity contracts
Exchange traded 41,961 1,642 2,551 (909) 22,838 1,226 2,010 (784)
Forwards 70,576 3,220 1,534 1,686 20,599 3,469 1,937 1,632
Swaps 12,598 505 497 8 2,833 527 522 5
Options 45,601 1,387 1,317 70 19,938 1477 965 212
Total commaodity
contracts 171,136 6,754 5,899 855 66,208 6,399 5434 965
Total derivatives
contracts cutstanding 779,833 11,913 11,069 844 450,096 10,878 10,057 921
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Note 40. Derivative financial instruments continued

The following table provides details of the Bank's outstanding derivatives used for frading and hedging purposes as at 31 March.

Bank 2007 Bank 2006
Notional Asset Liability Net fair Notional Asset Liabiity  Net fair
amount  revaluations revaluations value amount revaluations revaluations value
Sm $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Interest rate contracts
Exchange traded 170,133 9 16 (rg] 56,072 10 22 {12)
Forwards 2,829 32 33 W] 19,449 3 3 -
Swaps 107,433 1,179 74 438 83,803 872 570 302
Options 1,953 7 5 2 1,848 2 1 1
Total interest
rate contracts 282,348 1,227 795 432 161,172 a7 506 291
Foreign exchange contracts
Exchange traded - - - - 359 - - -
Forwards 23,350 944 703 241 88,697 1.685 1,069 616
Swaps 97,260 1,007 687 320 7,586 241 328 {87}
Options 133,717 624 501 123 71,985 804 740 64
Total foreign
exchange contracts 254 327 2,575 1,891 684 168,627 2,730 2137 593
Equity contracts
Exchange traded 7,166 433 145 288 4,820 166 79 87
Swaps 13,097 39 838 799) 2,306 283 698 (a15)
Options 27,688 634 559 75 17,103 346 469 {123)
Other a72 115 157 {42) 10,001 109 150 (41
Total equity contracts 49123 1,221 1,699 (478) 34,230 904 1,396 {492)
Commodity contracts
Exchange traded 24,127 1,072 2,133 {1,061) 24,654 965 1,755 {790)
Forwards 69,302 3139 1,542 1,597 20,483 3,443 1,916 1,527
Swaps 12,178 426 423 3 2,428 523 521 2
Options 45,601 1,387 1,317 70 19,681 1,166 955 201
Total commodity
contracts 151,208 6,024 5415 609 67,246 6,097 5157 840
Total derivatives
contracts outstanding 737,008 11,047 9,800 1,247 431,275 10,618 9,286 1,332
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Consolidated 2007

Consolidated 2006

Average Income/  Average Average Income/ Average
balance (expense) rate balance  (expense) rate
$m $m %a m Sm %
Note 41. Average interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and related interest
Assets
Interest bearing assets
Cue from banks 3,753 200 5.3 2702 123 46
Cash collateral on securities bomrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 16,889 865 5.1 10,341 505 49
Trading portfolio assets 4,379 260 59 2,829 151 5.3
Loan assets held at arnortised cost 41,218 2,986 7.3 29,812 2,115 7.1
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 820 55 6.7 739 57 7.7
Other assets 19 1 6.0 101 6 58
Investment securities available for sale 4,224 255 6.0 3,105 175 56
Net interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 197 10 52 105 4 38
Total interest bearing assets 71,499 4,632 49,734 3,136
Total non-interest bearing assets 48,105 41,378
Total assets 119,604 a1,112
Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Due to banks 3,570 {176} 49 1,489 {65) 4.4
Cash collateral on securities lent and
repurchase agreements 8,333 (432) 5.2 3,381 (158) 4.7
Trading portfolio liabiities 3,190 (179} 56 5,528 (284) 5.1
Deposits 10,720 (498) 46 8,643 (376) 44
Debt issued at amortised cost 45,407 (2,444) 54 30,379 {1,566) 52
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 1,227 (46) 3.7 885 (27) 30
Other liabilities 118 1] 7.5 107 {4 37
Loan capital
Subordinated debt 2,013 (120 6.0 1.328 {64) 48
Total interest bearing liabilities 74,578 (3,904) 51,744 (2,544)
Total non-interest bearing liabiities 38,359 34,420
Total liabilities 112,837 86,164
Net assets 6,667 4,948
Equity
Contributed equity
Ordinary share capital 2,763 1,780
Treasury shares (3} )]
Macquarie Income Securities 3N 391
Reserves 325 140
Retained earnings 2,325 1.682
Total capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of Macguarie Bank Limited 5,801 3,992
Minority interest from disposal groups
classified as held for sale {3) 102
Minority interast 869 854
Total equity 6,667 4,948
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Bank 2007 Bank 2006
Average Income/ Average Average Income/  Average
balance (expense) rate balance  {expense) rate
$m Sm % $m $m %
Note 41. Average interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and related interest continued
Assets
Interest bearing assets
Dug from banks 2,848 153 5.4 1,880 84 45
{ash colateral on securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 17,029 861 5.1 10,341 505 49
Trading portfolio assets 4,841 270 56 2,825 151 53
Loan assets held at amortised cost 15917 1,183 74 9,903 764 7.7
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 670 41 6.1 556 46 8.3
Other assets 16 1 6.0 92 8 6.1
Investment securities available for sale 2,488 153 6.2 1,965 14 53
Due from controlled entities 13,619 699 5.1 6,420 356 55
Net interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method 166 7 4.1 30 1 4.1
Total interest bearing assets 57,594 3,368 34,012 2,017
Total non-interest bearing assets 25,874 28,115
Total assets 83,468 62,127
Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Due to banks 1,956 (89} 4.5 1,222 {45) 3.7
Cash collateral on securities lent and
repurchase agreements 8,129 (432} 53 3.381 (158) 47
Trading portfolio liabilities 3,214 (179} 56 5,528 (284) 5.1
Deposits 10,442 (486) 47 8,373 (361) 43
Debt issued at amortised cost 25,240 {1,170) 46 13,774 (565) 41
Cther financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss 1,227 {45) 37 889 {27) 31
Cther liabilities 36 (2) 59 105 {4) 35
Due to controlled entities 6,369 (327) 51 3,159 (172 55
Loan capital
Subordinated debt 2,013 (120) 6.0 1,328 {64) 18
Total interest bearing liabilities 58,626 {2,850) 37,759 {1,680)
Total non-interest bearing liabilities 19,883 20,783
Total liabilities 78,509 58,542
Net assets 4,959 3,585
Equity
Contributed equity
Ordinary share capital 2,752 1,780
Treasury shares - -
Macquarie Income Securities 3AH 391
Convertible debentures 884 884
Reserves 187 112
Retained earmings 745 418
Total capitat and reserves attributable to
equity holders of Macquarie Bank Limited 4,959 3.585
Minority interest from disposal groups
classified as held for sale - -
Minarity interest - —
Total equity 4,959 3,585

Macquarie Bark Limited 2007 Financial Report




Note 42. Geographical concentration of deposits and borrowings
The following table details the scurce of deposits and borrowings, based upon the location of the relevant counterparty. Refer to “Liquidity
Management" within note 43 — Maturity analysis of monetary assets and liabilities and liquidity management, for discussion on the source

of the Bank's funding.
North Asia
Australia Eurcpe America Pacific* Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Consolidated 2007
Due to banks 1,551 1,172 709 588 107 4,127
Cash collateral on securities
lent and repurchase agreements 4,276 2,654 459 57 43 7,489
Trading portiolic liabilities 2,632 10,096 2,510 638 45 15,922
Deposits 11,319 108 575 268 133 12,403
Debt issued at amorised cost 27,484 16,328 6,850 703 - 51,365
Other financial liabifities at far value
through profit and koss 905 1,393 557 2,697 - 5,552
Subordinated debt at amortised cost 442 1,341 - - - 1,783
Subordinated debt at fair value through
profit and loss 403 485 - - - 888
Total deposits and bormrowings by
geographical location 48.012 33,577 11,660 4,951 328 99,529
Bank 2007
Cue to banks 577 793 455 179 107 211
Cash collateral on securities
lent and repurchase agreements 4,276 2,654 459 57 43 7,489
Trading portfolio liahilities 2,649 10,096 2,510 665 37 15,957
Deposits 11,237 107 404 268 39 12,055
Debt issued at amortised cost 5,251 15,715 6,850 703 - 28,519
Other financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss 623 1,377 557 2,592 - 5,149
Subordinated debt at amortised cost 442 1,341 - - - 1,783
Subordinated debt at fair value through
profit and loss 403 485 - - - 888
Total deposits and borrowings by
gecgraphical location 25,458 32,568 11,235 4,464 226 73,951

* Excludes Australia.
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North Asia
Australia Europe America Pacific* Other Total
Sm Sm &m $m Sm Sm
Note 42. Geographical concentration of deposits and borrowings continued
Consolidated 2006
Due to banks 727 731 267 360 3 2,118
Cash collateral on securities lent
and repurchase agreements 4,782 1,581 610 11 11 6,995
Trading portiolio liabiities 6,049 280 - 3,728 - 10,057
Deposits 7.806 107 423 710 221 9,267
Debt issued at amortised cost 22,706 13,314 1,436 1,566 - 39,022
Other financial liabities at fair value
through profit and loss 776 1,224 - 3,484 - 5481
Subordinated dabt at amortised cost 288 827 - - - 1,115
Subordinated dabt at fair value through
profit and loss 266 - - - - 266
Total deposits and borrowings by
geographical location 43,400 18,061 2,736 9,859 265 74,321
Bank 2006
Due to barks 488 427 196 73 33 1,217
Cash collateral on securities tent
and repurchase agreements 4,782 1,581 810 11 11 6,995
Trading portiolio liabilities 6,049 280 - 3,724 - 10,053
Deposits 7.741 96 438 710 109 9,094
Debt issued at amortised cost 4,250 13,315 1,436 1,566 - 20,567
Other financial liabilities at fair vatue
through profit and loss 529 1,211 - 3,318 - 5,058
Subordinated dett at amortised cost 288 826 - - - 1,114
Subordinated debt at fair value through
profit and loss 266 - - - - 266
Total deposits and borrowings by
geographical location 24,393 17,736 2,680 9,402 153 54,364

* Excludles Australia.
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Consolidated 2007

No
3 months 3monthsto 1yearto Over  maturity
At call orless 12months  5Syears 5years specified Total
$m Sm Sm $m Sm Sm Sm

Note 43. Maturity analysis of monetary assets
and liabilities and liquidity management
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 3 - - - - - 3
Due from banks 3119 2,988 - 13 - - 6,120
Cash collateral on sec urities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 21,801 4,078 - - - - 25,909
Trading portfolio assets - 15,518 - - - - 15,518
Loan assets held at amortised cost 5,278 7,468 3,359 5,048 24,643 - 45,796
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 781 924 74 286 714 - 2,779
Investiment securities available for sale 12 3,296 - 1,149 631 972 6,060
Life investment contracts and other
unii holder assets’ 146 550 198 il - 4,832 5,847
Interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method - — - - - 4,071 4,071
Total monetary assets 31,170 34,822 3,631 6,617 25,988 9,875 112,103
Liabilities
Due to banks 1,074 2,229 272 138 414 - 4127
Cash collateral on securities lent arxd
repurchase agreements 4,086 3,403 - - - - 7,489
Trading portfalio liabilities - 15,922 - - - - 15,922
Deposits 6,808 4,719 761 101 14 - 12,403
Debt issued at amortsed cost 1,236 17,009 13,262 5153 14,705 - 51,365
Other financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and koss 43 993 1,181 2,958 KY#) - 5,552
Life investment contracts arkd
other unit hoider liabilities - - - - - 5,781 5,781
Subordinated debt issued at amortised cost - - - - 1,783 - 1,783
Subordinated debt issued at fair value through
profit and loss - - - - 888 - 888
Total monetary liabilities 13,247 44,275 15,476 8,350 18,181 5781 105310

* The life investment contract business offers an investment linked product. Policy holders are primarily exposed to the liquidity risk on life
investment contract assets. The members are subject to liquidity risk on the surplus in the life investment contract statutory funds.

The table details the maturity distribution of selected monetary assets and liabilities.

Maturities represent the remaining period as at 31 March 2007 to the repayment date. Certain deposits however are recordad at their
expected maturity date rather than the contractual repayment date. These deposits, although withdrawable on demand, display the

necessary characteristics of longer term deposis.
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Bank 2007

No
3months 3monthsto 1 yearto Qver  maturity
At call orless 12 moenths Syears S5years specified Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Note 43. Maturity analysis of monetary assets
and liabilities and liquidity management continued
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 3 - - - - - 3
Due from banks 1,657 2910 - 13 - - 4,580
Cash collateral on securities bormowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 21,765 4,078 - - - - 25,843
Trading portfolio assets - 14,931 - - - - 14,931
L.oan assets held at amortised cost 5,046 6,666 1,405 3,371 22N - 18,759
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 519 735 72 286 568 - 2,180
Investment securities available for sale 4 2,578 - 200 75 354 3,211
Due from controlled entities 11,092 - - 292 834 1,309 13,527
Interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method - - - - - 613 613
Total monetary assets 40,086 31,898 1,477 4,162 3,748 2,276 83,647
Liabilities
Due to banks 349 149 133 138 - - 2,111
Cash collateral on securities lent and
repurchase agreements 4,086 3,403 - - - - 7,489
Trading portfolic liabilities - 15,957 - - - - 15,957
Deposits 6,802 4,592 626 35 - - 12,055
Debyt issued at amortised cost 1,236 16,942 6,302 3,985 54 - 28,519
Cther financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss 28 898 1,172 2,674 377 - 5,149
Due to controlled entities 6,261 - - - - 875 7,136
Subordinated debt issued at amortised cost - - - - 1,783 - 1,783
Subordinated debt issued at fair value
through profit and loss - - - - 888 - 888
Total monetary liabilities 18,762 43,283 8,233 6,832 3,102 875 81,087

The table details the maturity distribution of selected monetary assets and liabilities.

Maturities represent the remaining period as at 31 March 2007 tc the repayment date. Certain deposits however are recorded at their
expected maturity date rather than the contractual repayment date. These deposits, although withdrawable on dermand, display the

necessary characteristics of longer term deposits.
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Consolidated 2006

No
3menths 3monthsto 1 yearto Cver  matunty
At call orless 12 months Syears Syears  specified Total
$m Sm sm m Sm m Im

Note 43. Maturity analysis of monetary assets
and liabilities and liquidity management continued
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 5 - - - - - 5
Due from banrks 4,025 2,369 - - - - 6,354
Cash collateral on securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 6,218 7,352 - - - - 13,570
Trading portfclic assets 14,246 - - - - - 14,246
Loan assets held at amortised cost 4418 7,073 2,173 4,209 17,126 - 34,99G
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 609 686 1 208 600 - 2,104
Investment securities available for sale 358 1,892 299 242 406 549 3,748
Life investrment contracts and other
unit holder assets” 181 653 51 116 - 4,182 5183
Interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method - - - - - 3,483 3,463
Total monetary assets 30,060 20,025 2,524 4,775 18,132 8,194 83,710
Liahilities
Due to banks 875 893 122 64 164 - 2,118
Cash collateral on securties lent and
repurchase agreerments 3,047 3.948 - - - - 6,395
Trading portiolio liabilities 10,057 - - - - ~ 10,0567
Oepasits 5,955 2,699 346 247 20 - 9,267
Debt issued at amortised cost 966 10,219 12,29 5,305 10,241 - 39,022
Other financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and joss - 14 496 662 - 4,309 5.481
Life investrment contracts and other
unit holder liabilities - - - - - 5,130 5,130
Subordinated debt issued at
amortised cost - - - - 1,115 - 1,115
Subordinated debt issued at fair value
through profit and loss - - - - 266 - 266
Total monetary liabilities 20,900 17,773 13,255 6,278 11,808 9,439 79,451

* The life investrment contract business offers an investment linked product. Policy holders are primarity exposed to the liuidity risk on life
investment contract assets. The members are subject to iquidity nsk on the surplus in the Ke investment contract statutory funds.,
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Bank 2006

No
dmonths 3monthsto  1yearto Over  matunty
At call orless 12 months Syears Syears  specified Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m 3m

Note 43. Maturity analysis of monetary assets
and liabilities and liquidity management continued
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 5 - - - - - 5
Due from banks 2517 2,062 - - - - 4,579
Cash collateral on securities bormowed
and reverse repurchase agreements 6,213 7,352 - - - - 13,565
Trading portiolio assets 13,030 - - - - - 13,030
Loan assets held at amortised cost 4,275 4,236 1,528 2,553 589 - 13,181
Cther financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 608 a77 1 208 800 - 1,894
Investment securities available for sale 62 1,500 292 200 - 256 2310
Dueg from controfled entities 9,138 1,105 10,241
Interest in associates and joint ventures
using the equity method - - - - - 833 833
Total monetary assets 35,848 15,627 1,821 2,961 1,189 2194 59,638
Liabilities
Due to banks 769 329 119 - - - 1,217
Cash collateral on securities lent
and repurchase agreements 3,047 3,048 - - - - 6,995
Trading portfolio fiabilities 10,053 - - - - - 10,053
Deposits 5674 2,708 346 362 - 9,094
Debt issued at amortised cost 966 10,044 4,688 4,808 61 - 20,567
Other financial kabilities at fair value through
profit and loss - 14 S5H 684 - 3,859 5,058
Due to controlied entities 3,187 - - - - 2,088 5275
Subordinated debt issued at amortised cost - - - - 1,114 - 1,114
Subordinated debt issued at fair value
through profit and loss - - - - 266 - 266
Total monetary liabilities 23,696 17,044 5,654 5,854 1,444 5,947 59,639

Liquidity management

The liquidity management policy of the economic entity is
approved by the Board and agreed with the Australian Prudential
Regulation Authority. This policy is reviewed regularty by the Risk
Management Group (“RMG”) to ensure it continues to meet the
needs of the economic entity under a range of different market

circumstances. The economic entity’s liquidity policy requires that:

1. Core assets (that is. on balance sheet assets that cannot be
liquified quickly) ptus liquidity buffers are funded with deposits/
horrowings with a minimum maturity greater than 1 week
(5 working days);

2. Specified percentages of borrowings have maturities beyond
6 and 12 months. A limit is &lso set on the maximum percentage
of deposits maturing within the next 3 months and in any one
rmonth; and

3. The economic entity must keep at least a certain percentage of
its total assets in highly fiquid form (for example, Cornmorwealth
and State Government debt, bark bils, overnight loans and
repurchase agreements).
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Within these parameters fiquidity management is the responsibility
of the Treasury Dvision within the Treasury and Commodities
Group subject to risk management oversight by RMG.
An objective of the economic entity's liquidity policy is 1o achieve
a diversified source of core liabilities, by investor type, location,
currency, maturity and product. in respect of the retail market, the
Bark focuses its attention on small and medium sized depositors
who do not generally access the professional market,

The Bank’s key tools for accessing wholesale funding markets
are the USD$25 bilion Debt Instrument Prograrmme and the
USD$10 bilion Commercial Paper Program, both of which allow
the Bank to achieve its objective of diversified sources of funding
in the offshore markets. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit also
provide a reliable source of funding in the domestic markets.




Note 44. Interest rate risk

The interast rate shown is the effective interest rate o weighted average effective interest rate in respect of a class of assets or liabilities.
For fluating rate instrumenis the rate is the curent market rate; for fixed rate instruments the rate is a historical rate. The bandings reflect
the earfier of the next contractual repricing date or the maturity date of the asset or kability.

Consolidated 2007

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest  interest 1 month to 3 to12 1yearto Over  interest
rate rate orless months months 5 years Syears  bearing Total
% $m $m $m $m 3m Sm $m $m

Assets
Cash and balances
with central banks 5.3 3 - - - - - - 3
Oue from banks 5.6 3,314 2,806 - - - - - 6,120
Cash collateral on securties
borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements 53 21,831 2,837 1,241 - - - - 25,909
Trading portfolio assets 5.0 - 904 365 s 800 1,053 12,018 15,518
Loan assels held at
amortised cost 6.8 34,267 1,610 2,423 3,658 3,33 507 - 45,796
Other financial assets at fair
value through profit and ioss 7.0 772 852 100 413 177 209 256 2,779
Derivative financial instruments
- positive values - - - - - - - 11,913 11,913
Other assets - - - - - - - 10,444 10,444
Investment securities
available for sale 6.3 83 511 2,505 270 1,126 578 987 6,060
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 100 100
L ife investment contracts
and other unit holder assets* 24 145 313 238 198 121 - 4,832 5,847
Interest in associates and joint
ventures using the equity method 6.3 304 - - - - - 3,767 4,07
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 378 378
Deferred income tax assets - - - - - - - 457 457
Assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale - - - - - - - 994 994
Total assets 60,719 9,833 6,872 4917 5,555 2,347 46,146 136,389

* The life business offers an investment linked product, Policy holders are primarily exposed to the interest rate risk on ife investment

contract assets. The members are subject to interest rate nisk on the surplus in the life business statutory funds.
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Consolidated 2007

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest  interest 1 month to3 to12 1yearto Over  interest
rate rate orless months months Syears 5Syears bearing Total
% $m Sm $m $m $m $m $m $m

Note 44. Interest rate risk continued
Liabilities
Due to banks 5.4 2179 648 4N 286 264 319 - 4,127
Cash collateral on securities
lent and repurchase agreements 5.1 4,086 3,403 - - - - - 7,489
Trading portfolic liahilities 5.0 - - 90 am 477 722 14,242 15,922
Derivative financial instruments
- negative values - - - - - - - 11,069 11,069
Deposits 77 9,718 1,537 802 346 - - - 12,403
Debt issued at amortised cost 70 1,779 7,324 9,425 13,262 4,963 14,612 - 51,365
Cther financial liabilities at fair
vatue through profit and loss 56 - 9 250 707 263 1 4,322 5,552
Cther liabilities - - - - - - - 11,958 11,958
Current tax kabilities - - - - - - - 132 132
Life investment contracts and
other unit hoider liabilities - - - - - - - 5,781 5,781
Provisions - - - - - - - 153 153
Deferred income tax babilties - - - - - - - 78 78
Liahilities of disposal groups
classified as held for sale - - - - - - - 170 170
Subordinated debt at
amortised cost 6.1 - - 1,783 - - - - 1,783
Subordinated debt at fair
value through profit and loss 6.8 - - 153 735 - - - 888
Total liabilities 17,762 12,91 12,934 15,727 5,967 15,654 47,905 128,870
Total equity 7,519 7,519
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Note 44. Interest rate risk continued

interest rate risk in the balance sheet anises from the potential for 2 change in interest rates 1o have an adverse effect on the net inlerest
earnings in the cument reporting period and in future years. Interast rate risk arises from the structure and characteristics of the Bank and
economic entity's asseis, liabilties and equity, and in the mismatch in repricing dates of its assets and liabilities. The tables for both the
2006 and 2007 financial years detail the exposure of the economic entity's assets and kabilities to interest rate risk. The amount shown
represents the face value of assets and liabilities, or the equivalent assel or liability arising from a derivative financial instrurnent.

Bank 2007
Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest  interest 1 month to3 to12 1yearto Over  interest
rate rate orless meonths months  5Syears Syears bearing Total
Y% Sm $m Sm $m $m $m $m sm

Assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 5.3 3 - - - - - - 3
Due from banks 5.6 2,941 1,639 - - - - - 4,580
Cash collateral on securities
borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements 5.3 21,512 2,837 1,494 - - - - 25,843
Trading portfolio assets 5.0 - 763 365 378 762 1,007 11,656 14,931
Loan assets held at
amortised cost 7.6 11,840 2,978 1,126 913 1,395 507 - 18,759
Cther financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 7.7 752 735 28 411 177 63 14 2,180
Derivative financial instruments
- positive values - - - - - - - 11,047 11,047
Cther assets - - - - - - - 4,699 4,699
Investment securities
available for sale 6.5 77 511 2,065 - 200 - 358 321
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 10 10
Due from controlled entities 6.3 11,092 - - - - - 2,435 13,527
Interest in associates and
joint veniures using the
equity method 6.3 105 - - - - - 508 613
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 150 150
Investments in controlied entities - - - - - - - 4,085 4,085
Deferred income tax assels - - - - - - - an aNn
Assets and disposal groups
classified as heid for sale - - - - - - - 139 139
Total assets 48,322 9,463 5,078 1,702 2,534 1,577 35,532 104,208
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Bank 2007

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest  interest 1 month to3 to12 1yearto Over  interest
rate rate orless months months Syears Syears bearing Total
% Sm sm Sm $m $m $m $m $m

Note 44. Interest rate risk continued
Liabilities
Due to banks 5.9 1,538 175 1 133 264 - - 2111
Cash collateral on securities
lent and repurchase agreements 5.1 4,086 3,403 - - - - - 7,489
Trading portfolio liabilities 5.0 - - 90 m 477 722 14,277 15,957
Derivative financial instruments
- negative values - - - - - - - 9,800 9,800
Deposits 74 9,626 1,542 541 345 - - - 12,055
Debt issued at amortised cost 5.3 1,614 7,174 9,390 6,302 3,985 54 - 28,519
Cther financia liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss 5.9 - 8 211 700 262 - 3,938 5,149
Cther liabilities - - - - - - - 7,094 7,094
Current tax liabilities - - - - - - - 94 94
Due to conirolled entities 6.3 6,261 - - - - - 875 7,136
Provisions - - - - - - - 124 124
Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - - - 41 41
Subordinated debt at
amortised cost - - - 1,783 - - - - 1,783
Subordinated debt at fair
value through profit and loss 6.1 - - 153 735 - - - 888
Total liabilities 23,125 12,302 12,199 8,607 4,988 776 36,243 98,240
Total equity 5,968 5,968
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Consolidated 2006

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest interest 1 month o3 w012  1yearto Over interest
rale rate or less maonths months 5 years 5 years hearing Total
% Sm &m &m Sm Sm &m &m $m

Note 44. Interest rate risk continued
Assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 53 5 - - - - - - 5
Due from banks 5.0 4,025 2,320 49 - - - - 6.394
Cash collateral on securities
bomowed anki reverse
repurchase agreements 5.3 6,218 6,032 1,320 - - - - 13,570
Trading portfolio assets 8.1 50 876 1,560 778 765 1.048 9,169 14,246
Loan assets held at
amortised cost 71 22,072 4,358 3,888 1,222 3170 289 - 34,999
Cther financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 6.1 6809 451 235 1 208 600 - 2,104
Derivative financial instruments
- positive values - - - - - - - 10,978 10,978
Other assets - - - - - - - 8,452 8,452
Investment securities available
for sale 5.8 358 714 1,178 299 242 406 549 3,746
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 150 150
Life investment contracts and
other unit holder assets® 26 181 304 349 51 116 - 4,182 5,183
Interest in associates and joint
ventures using the equity method 5.5 135 - - - - - 3328 3.463
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 292 292
Deferred income tax assets - - - - - - - 240 240
Assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale - - - - - - - 2,389 2,389
Total assets 33,653 15,055 8,579 2351 4,501 2,343 38,729 106,211

* The life business offers an investment linked product. Policy holders are primarily exposed to the interest rate risk on life investment

contract assets. The members are subject 1o interest rate risk on the surplus in the life business statutory funds.
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Consclidated 2006

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1month 3 months Non-
interest interest 1 month to3 t012 1vyeario Over interest
rate rate or less months months 5 years 5years bearing Total
% $m $m $m $m $m $m &m $m

Note 44. Interest rate risk continued
Liabilities
Due to banks 46 875 258 635 122 64 164 - 2,118
Cash collateral on securities lent
and repurchase agreements 53 3,047 3,848 - - - - - 6,995
Trading portfolio liabilities 45 - - 105 877 2,361 2,445 4,269 10,057
Derivative financial instruments
- negative values - - - - - - - 10,067 10,057
Deposits 45 5955 1.756 943 346 247 20 - 9,267
Debt issued at amortised cost 5.1 1,145 3,305 6,846 12,380 5,167 10,179 - 39,022
Other financial liabdities at fair
value through profit and loss 38 - - 14 496 662 - 4,309 5,481
Other lighilities - - - - - - - 9,553 9,553
Current tax liabilities - - -~ - - - - 97 97
Life investment contracts and
other unit holder Bahilities - - - - - - - 5130 5,130
Provisions - - - - - - - 132 132
Deferred income tax liatdities - - - - - - - 157 i57
Liabiities of disposal groups
classified as held for sale - - - - - - - 1,427 1,427
Subordinated debt at
armortised cost 50 - - 1,115 - - - - 1,315
Subordinated debt at fair
value through profit and loss 6.1 - - - 266 - - - 266
Total liabilities 11,022 9,267 9,658 14,487 B.501 12,808 35131 100,874
Total equity 5337 5,337
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Bank 2006

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Hoating 1 month 3 months Non-
interest interest 1 month to3 to12 iyearto Over interest
rate rate or less months months 5years 5 years bearing Tota!
% $m $m $m $m $m $m &m $m
Note 44. Interest rate risk continued
Assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 53 5 - - - - - - 5
Due from banks 52 2517 2,061 1 - - - - 4,579

Cash collateral on securities
borrowed and reverse

repurchase agreements 53 6,213 6,032 1,320 - - - - 13,565
Trading portfolio assets 52 50 876 1,659 778 744 Q00 8,123 13,030
Loan assets heid at

amortised cost 7.3 4572 3,063 3822 426 645 653 - 13,181
Ciher financial agsets at

fair value through profit and loss 6.2 6808 423 54 1 208 600 - 1,894
Derivative financial instruments

— positive values - - - - - - - 10,618 10618
Other assets - - - - - - - 3,213 3,213
Investment securities available

for sale 56 82 378 1,122 292 200 - 256 2,310
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 11 11
Due from controlled entities 55 §,136 - - - - - 1,105 10,241
Interest in associates and joint

ventures using the equity method 5.5 58 - - - - - 775 833
Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - 80 a0
Investments in controlled entities - - - - - - - 4,087 4,087
Deferred income {ax. assets - - - - - - - 232 232
Assets and disposal groups

classified as held for sale - - - - - - - 18 18
Total assets 23,221 12,833 7878 1,497 1,797 2,153 28,528 77,907
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Bank 2006

Weighted Fixed interest rate repricing
average
effective  Floating 1month 3 months Non-
interest interest 1 month o3 to12 1yearto Cwer interest
rate rate orless  months months Syears Syears  bearng Total
% $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Note 44, Interest rate risk continued
Liabilities
Due to banks 41 769 67 262 119 - - - 1,217
Cash collateral on securities
lent and repurchase agreements 5.3 3,047 3,948 - - - - - 6,995
Trading portfolic liabilities 39 - - 105 877 2,361 2,445 4,265 10,053
Derivative financial instruments
— negative values - - - - - - - 9,286 0,286
Deposits 45 5674 1,755 954 346 362 3 - 0,004
Debt issued at amortised cost 4.4 a7 3,270 6,605 4777 4,793 61 - 20,567
Cther financial liabilities at fair
value through proft and loss 38 - - 14 51 684 - 3,859 5,058
Cther liabilities - - - - - - - 4417 4417
Current tax liabilities - - - - - - - 22 22
Due to controlled entities 45 3,887 - - - - - 1,388 5275
Provisions - - - - - - - 108 108
Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - - - 129 129
Subordinated debt at
amortised Cost 50 - - 1,114 - - - - 1,114
Subordinated debt at far value
through profit and loss 6.1 - - - 268 - - - 266
Total liabilities 14,348 9,040 9,144 6,886 8,200 2,509 23,474 73,601
Total equity 4,308 4,306

For intemal risk managerment, the econamic entity does not use the repricing infermation in the way presented in this table. Interest rate
risk, like all market risk, is measured and controlled on the basis of a wide range of rate movement scenarios, including worst case
scenarics. It is calculated daily and covers all interest rate sensitive instruments. The economic entity also calculates daily Value At Risk
measures for all market risks, including interest rate risk.
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Note 45. Fair value

Fair value refiects the present value of future cash flows
associated with a financial asset or liability. Market prices or
rates are used to determine fair value where an active market
exists. Where no active market price or rate is available, fair
values are estimated using present value or other valuation
techniques, using inputs based on market conditions prevailing
at balance sheet dates.

The values derived from applying these techniques are significantly
affected by the choice of valuation model used and the undertying
assumptions made regarding factors such as timing and amaunts
of future cash flows, discount rates, credit risk and volatility.

The following methods and significant assurnptions have been
applied in determining the fair vaiues of financial assets and
labilties camed at fair value, and for disclosure purposes, in
determining whether a material difference between the fair
value and camying amount exists.

Financial instruments carried at fair value:

—Trading portfolio assets and habilities, financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, derivative
financial instruments, and other transactions undertaken for
trading purposes are measured at fair value by reference to
quoted market prices when availabte (e.q. listed securities).

If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
estimated on the basis of pricing models, or other recognised
valuation techniques;

- Investment securities classified as available for sale are
measured at fair value by reference to quoted market
prices when available (e.g. listed securities). If quoted market
prices are not available, then fair values are estimated on the
basis of pricing models or other recognised valuation
technigues. Unrealised gains and losses, excluding
impairment write-downs, are recorded in the Available For
Sale Reserve in equity until an asset is sold, collected or
otherwise disposed of;

—Fair values of fixed rate loans and issued debt classified as
fair value through profit and loss is estimated by comparing
market interest rates when the loans were granted/debit
issued with current market rates offered on similar loans.

Financial instruments carried at cost:

~The carrying amount of liquid assets and other assets
maturing within 12 months approximates their fair value.
This assumption is applied to liquid assets and the short-term
elerments of all other financial assets and financial liabilities;

-The fair value of demand deposits with no specific maturity
is approximately their camrying amount as they are short term
in nature or are payable on demand;

- The fair value of variable rate financial instrumerys,
including cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements, is approximated by their carrying
amounts and in the case of loans, does not, therefore, reflect
changes in their credit quality, as the impact of credit risk is
largely recognised separately by deducting the amount of the
allowance for credit losses;

-The fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market rates
offered on simiar loans, Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfclic are recognised separately by deducting
the amount of the allowance for credit losses. The camrying
amounts are not materiaily different to their face value;

~Substantially all of the economic entity's cornmitments 1o
extend credit are at variable rates. As such, there is no
significant exposure to fair value fluctuations resulting from
interest rate movernents relating to these commitments;

-The fair value of variable rate notes payable and debt issued
at amortised cost is approximated by their carrying amount.

Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All
models are certified before they are used, and models are
calibrated to ensure the outputs reflect actual data and
comparative market prices. To the extent possible, models
use only gbservable data (e.g. for OTC derivatives), however
areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. The effect of changing
these estimates, for those financial instruments for which the
fair values were measured using valuation techniques that
are determined, in full or in part, based on unobservable data
{e.g. for certain exctic or structured financial instruments),

to a range of reasanably possible alternative assumptions,
would not have a material impact as compared to the
amounts recognised n the financial statements.
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Note 46. Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss arising through the default of counterparties 1o financial assets. The table below details the concentration
of credit exposure of the economic entity's assats to significant geographical locations and counterparty types. The amounts shown
represent the maxirnum credit risk of the economic entity’s assets. In all cases this is equal to the carrying value of the assats with the
exception of credit commitments and contingent liabitities and dervatives which are recorded at the maximum credit exposure.

Consolidated 2007

Credit risk concentration
Cash collateral Lean assets Other financial
on securities Trading held at assets at fair
Due from bomrowed and reverse portfolio amortised vatue through
Banks repurchase agreements assets cost profit and loss
$m $m Sm $m $m
Australia
Central bank
Governments - 438 895 40 125
Other financial institutions 1,570 1123 724 66 29
Other - 3,659 2,929 36,754 1,999
Total Australia 1,570 4,830 4,548 36,860 2,153
New Zealand
Govermments - - - - -
Other financial institutions 52 1 - -
Other - - - 306 -
Total New Zealand 52 1 4 306 -
Europe
Govemnments - - 6 - -
Other financial institutions 1,094 11,997 62 5 50
Other - 7.779 2,866 2,845 74
Total Europe 1,094 19,776 2,934 3,346 124
Nerth America
Governments - 595 - 1 -
Other financial institutions 720 10 22 23 -
Other - 674 2,923 4877 492
Total North America 720 1,279 2,945 4,901 492
Asia
Governments - - - - -
Other financial institutions 2,532 - - 1 -
Other - 1 5,050 224 9
Total Asia 2,532 1 5,050 225
Other
Governments - - 6 - -
Other financial institutions 152 - - - -
Other - 12 K| 158 1
Total other 152 12 37 158 1
Total 6,120 25,909 15,518 45,796 2,779
Total gross credit risk
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Derivative Debt Life Interest in
financial investrment investment Credit associates and
instruments securities contracts and commitments  joint ventures
- positive available other unit and contingent using the
values Other assets for sale holder assets labilities  equity method Total
sm $m $m $m $m $m Sm
218 - - - 92 - 1,418
1,202 - 1,266 - - 14 5,994
1,504 4,977 678 5847 1,086 2,665 62,098
2,924 4977 1,944 5,847 1,178 2,679 69,510
1 - - - - - 1
5 - - - - - 62
35 54 - - - 399
41 54 - - - 462
- - - - - - 6
3,720 - 769 - - - 18,193
838 2,601 1,406 - 79N 472 19,672
4,558 2,601 2,175 - 791 472 37,87
3 - - - - 599
1,552 - 99 - - - 2,426
1,213 35 809 - 229 428 11,680
2,768 35 908 - 229 428 14,705
245 - - - - - 2,779
583 2,675 3s - 179 482 9,252
829 2,675 35 - 179 482 12,031
- - - - - - 6
41 - - - - - 193
752 102 - - 48 6 1,110
793 102 - - 48 6 1,309
11,313 10,444 5,066 5,847 2,425 4,07 135,888
135,888
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Note 46. Credit risk continued
The following provides detail around the active management of Credit Risk by the economic entity:

The economic entity enters infe master netting agreements with its counterparties to manage the credit risk where it has trading derivatives
in the Equity Markets and Treasury and Commodities divisions, Credit denvatives have been used by the economic entity to mitigate risk
by buying and selling protection over balance sheet assets. As at 31 March 2007 the fair value of the credit derivatives was $2 milicn
negative value (2006: $1 milion positive value). Stock borowing and reverse repurchase amangements entered into by the economic
entity with external counterparties requires collateral of 105% (which is consistent with industry practice). Mortgage insurance contracts
are entered into in order to manage the credit risk around the mortgage portfolios, As at 31 March 2007, loans of $22.1 hilion {(2006:
$18.1 billion) were covered by these contracts. Other risk mitigation measures include blocked deposits, bank guarantees and letters

of credil. As at 31 March 2007, this amounted to $2,305 million (2006: $426 million),

Bank 2007
Credit risk concentration Cash collateral
on securities Loan assets  Other financial
borrowed and Trading held at assets at fair
reverse repurchase portfolio amortised value through
Due from Banks agreements assets cost  profit and loss
m $m $m $m $m
Australia
Govermments - 48 895 18 125
Other financial institutions 1,288 1,086 706 65 -
Other - 3,658 2,902 12,753 1,931
Total Australia 1,288 4,792 4,503 12,836 2,056
New Zealand
Central bank - - - - -
Cther financial institutions 16 1 - - -
Other - - - 49 -
Total New Zealand 16 1 - 49 -
Europe
Govemments - - 6 - -
Other financial institutions 987 11,997 62 - 50
Other - 7,779 2,866 2,811 -
Total Eurcpe 987 19,776 2,934 2,811 50
North America
Governmernts - 595 - - -
Other financial institutions 3 10 22 20 -
Other - B57 2,556 2,808 74
Total North America 391 1,262 2,578 2,828 74
Asia
Cther financial institutions 1,897 - - - -
Cther - - 4,909 83 -
Total Asia 1,897 - 4,909 83 -
Other
Governments - - 6 - -
Other financial institutions 1 - - - -
Other - 12 1 152 -
Total other 1 12 7 152 -
Total 4,580 25,843 14,931 18,759 2,180

Total gross credit risk
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instruments securities commitments joint ventures Due from
- positive available and contingent using the Controlled

values Other assets for sale liabilittes  equity method entities Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
218 - - 92 - - 1,396
1,104 - 1,264 - 4 - 5517
1,504 3,592 111 1,697 479 8,170 36,797
2,826 3,592 1,375 1,789 483 8170 43,710
1 - - - - - 1
4 - - - - - 21
35 - - - - 345 429
40 - - - - 345 451
- - - - - - 6
3,506 - 769 - - - 17,371
837 1,106 593 39 - 2,70 18,822
4,343 1,106 1,362 39 - 2,79 36,199
- - - - 595
1,337 - 99 - - - 1,879
912 1 18 60 53 1,683 8822
2,249 1 117 60 53 1,683 11,296
245 - - - - - 2,142
561 - - 11 77 411 6,082
806 - - 1 77 44 B,224
- - - - - 6
41 - - - - - 42
742 - - a8 - 97 1,052
783 - - 48 - 97 1,100
11,047 4,699 2,854 1,947 613 13,527 100,980
100,980
21

9 _ - - - - g

287 - - - - 11 3210

429 2.358 - - 42 368 4,269

825 2,358 - - 42 379 7.488

66 - — —_ —_ - 84

359 25 7 - 13 2 557

425 25 7 - 13 641

10978 8,452 3,201 5183 916 3,463 103,506

103,506
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Note 46. Credit risk continued

Bank 2006
Credit risk concentration Cash collateral
on securities Loan assets Cther financial
borrowed and Trading held at assets at fair
reversa repurchase portiolio amortised value through
Cue from Banks agreements assets cost profit and loss
$m $m $m $m &m
Australia
Central bank - 22 - - -
Governments - 385 1,457 161 178
Cther financial institutions 2,092 2,304 1,305 - -
Cther - 5255 8,716 9,984 1,714
Total Australia 2,092 7.966 11,478 9,645 1,892
New Zealand
Cther financial institutions 11 - - - -
Other - 1 - ] -
Total New Zealand 11 1 - @ -
Europe
Other financial institutions 738 2,239 137 - -
Other - 2,357 1,283 1,818 -
Total Europe 738 4,506 1,420 1,818
North America
Other financial institutions 109 898 35 - -
Other - 18 97 1,228
Total North America 109 914 132 1,228
Asia
Central Banks - - - - -
Other financial institutions 1,628 88 - - -
Cther - - - 346 -
Total Asia 1,628 88 - 346 -
Other
Other financial institutions - - - -
Other - - - 151 -
Total other 1 - - 151 -
Total 4,579 13,565 13.030 13,181 1.8%4
Total gross credit risk
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Derivative LCebt Interest in
financial investment C